1.

2

10.

LY.

12.

" I;“ OF LEXINGTON &

RICHLAND COUNTIES

Agenda
Board of Trustees
Regular Meeting
Location: Center for Advanced Technical Studies
Video Livestream: https://lexrich5.rev.vbrick.com/#/webcasts/boardmeeting

December 13, 2021
Call to order at 6:00 p.m.
Approval of the agenda

Enter Executive Session to consider the following:
a. Selected employment items (Exhibit A) (Action)
b. Selected employment items (Exhibit B) (Information Only)
c. Legal advice regarding a contractual matter
d. Legal update regarding C/A No. 2021-CP-40-03694
e. Legal update regarding Cognia matter
f. Legal advice regarding property at Harbison West Elementary (Exhibit C)
g. Update regarding Permanent Superintendent Search

Call to order at 7:00 p.m.
Welcoming remarks — Jan Hammond, Board Chair
Invocation — Matt Hogan, Board of Trustees
Pledge of Allegiance — Matt Hogan, Board of Trustees
School Board Spotlight
Superintendent’s Report
a. COVID-19/Dashboard Update
Strategic Plan Update
Monthly Financial Reports (Exhibit D)

2020-2021 Financial Audit Report (Exhibit E)
. Teacher Support Pilot Program/Expectations Coaches

m Q 0 T

Approval of the minutes of the November 15, 2021 board meeting
Approval of the minutes of the December 6, 2021 special-called board meeting

Public Participation™



ACTION AGENDA

13. Action as Necessary or Appropriate on Matters Discussed in Executive Session

14, Approval of Appointment to Richland County Board of Assessment of Appeals (Exhibit F)
15, Approval of 2021-2022 through 2025-2026 Strategic Plan

16. Action as Appropriate on the Timeline of the Divestiture of the Qld Chapin High School Property
on Columbia Avenue in Chapin

17. Approval of 2021-2022 General Fund Budget Amendment {Exhibit G)

18. Approval of Adoption of the 2021 South Carolina Model School Procurement Code
and Exemptions (Exhibit H})

DISCUSSION AGENDA

19. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BCA “Board Member Code of
Ethics” (Exhibit 1}

20. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy BCB “Board Member Conflict
of Interest” (Exhibit J)

21, Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy DI/DIE “Fiscal
Accounting/Audits” (Exhibit K)

22. Discussion and First Reading of Proposed Revisions to Board Policy FEE “Site Acquisition”
{Exhibit L)

23. Adjourn

INFORMATION AGENDA

24, Emergency, Sole Source, and Minority Procurements (Exhibit M)

25, The next regular scheduled board meeting will be January 10, 2022, at the Center for Advanced
Technical Studies.

* The Board welcomes and encourages public participation. However, the privilege of addressing the
Board does not include the ability to make personal attacks on any Board Member, district employee, or
other member of the public. We respectfully ask that you adhere to the procedures and the decorum
provided in board policy BEDH “Public Participation at Meetings”. Your comments should be limited to
three minutes. Questions asked during public participation will be handled in accordance with board
policy BEDH.

COVID-19 NOTICE: Due to state social distancing guidelines, seating capacity at our school board
meeting will be limited. Mask use is encouraged. The district will live stream board meetings to provide
virtual viewing options.



Minutes/November 15, 2021

The Board of Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties met at the
Center for Advanced Technical Studies with the following members present:

Mrs. Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Mrs. Nikki Gardner, Secretary

Mrs. Jan Hammond, Chair

Mr. Matt Hogan

Mrs. Catherine Huddle

Mr. Ken Loveless, Vice Chair

Mrs. Tifani Moore

Dr. Akil Ross, Interim Superintendent

The following staff were in attendance:

Mr. Todd Bedenbaugh, Executive Director of Operations

Dr. Michael Harris, Chief Student Services and Planning Officer
Mrs. Anna Miller, Chief of Academics and Administration

Mrs. Marty Rawls, Chief Finance Officer

Mrs. Amanda Taylor, Director of Communications

Dr. Tamara Turner, Chief Human Resources Officer

A livestream video link was provided to the public as a viewing option for the October 25, 2021,
board meeting.

Chair Hammond called the meeting to order and gave welcoming remarks. The Invocation and
Pledge of Allegiance were led by Jan Hammond, chair, board of trustees.

The Board conducted the School Board Spotlight.
The Board conducted the Election of Officers.

During the Superintendent's Report, Dr. Ross presented updates on: 1%t Jobs Initiative and
Teacher Support Pilot Program. Also, during the Superintendent's Report, Dr. Michael Harris
presented an update on Who are the Children? (45-Day Report); Mrs. Anna Miller presented an
updated on How are the Children? (Academic Update); Mr. Vann Holden presented updates on
the COVID-19 Dashboard and Strategic Plan; and Mrs. Marty Rawls presented monthly financial
reports (Exhibit G).

During the public participation, Laura Carson spoke regarding $50 Fridays; Bill Zobel spoke
regarding the District/Spring Hill High School; Celise Zbytovski, Todd Grosh, Christa Sorrenti,
Daniel Bourbon, Ernest Floyd, Renee Kelly, and Haley Griggs spoke regarding parents as
primary stakeholders and Alan Wright spoke about CRT, vetting classroom materials and parents
as primary stakeholders.

A = Absent
www.lexrichb.org AB = z;bzstiig
1020 Dutch Fork Road - Irmo, South Carolina 29063 - (803) 476-8000 X = Yes

“Pursuing Excellence for Tamorrow's Challenges” R = Recuse



The Board presented for discussion the Angela Bain Consulting report.

The Board presented for discussion the Appointment of Richland County Board of Assessment of
Appeals (Exhibit K).

The Board presented for discussion the Divestiture of the Old Chapin High School Property on
Columbia Avenue in Chapin.

The Board presented for discussion the Facilities Committee Study — Phase |l Building Program
(Exhibit L).

The Board presented for discussion the Adoption of the 2021 South Carclina Model School
Procurement Code (Exhibit M).

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of November 15, 2021

OMmMmZ—I ZACWXOrrow

AMZOUXD> W

OZ0EEE>T

ZrO0T

mroOoOCXI
momrm<Or
minoo=

1.

M. Gardner S. Hogan

Approve the agenda

M. Huddle S. Blackburn Hines

| move that we amend the agenda to move item 3 (g)
contractual matter regarding Angela Bain Consulting to the
discussion agenda before item 16.

Vote on the original motion

M. Loveless S. Huddle

| make the motion that we enter executive session to
consider the following: a.) Selected employment items
{Exhibit A) (Action); b.) Selected employment items
(Exhibit B) (Information Only); c.) Receipt of legal advice
on Latent Roof Defects; d.) Contractual Matter
Architectural/Engineering Firm for Close-Out of Piney
Woods Elementary School (Exhibit C); e.) Contractual
Matter regarding Guaranteed Energy Savings Contractor
{Exhibit D; f.) Contractual Matter regarding Procurement
Auditor (Exhibit E); h.) Update on Permanent
Superintendent Replacement Search.

Election of Board Officers.

Hogan nominated Hammond as Chairman seconded by
Huddle

Huddle nominated Loveless as Vice Chairman seconded
by Hogan

A= Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




B|G|H|HI|H L | M
LIA|JA|J]O|]U|O]|O
AR M|G|D|V]|O
cC| D M|A | D|E|R
K| N|O]|N L L|E
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE B|E N E | E
OF Ul R | D S
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of November 15, 2021
H
I
N
E
S
Loveless nominated Gardner as Secretary seconded by XK X[ XX X ]| X | X
Huddle
M. Huddle S. Moore X X1 X | X X | X X
| move that we approve the minutes of the November 15,
2021 board meeting.
M. Loveless S. Huddle X | X X | X X | X | X
| make the motion that we approve the items presented
for selected employment items for action (Exhibit A).
M. Loveless S. Huddle N[ X 1 X X | X | X | N
| move that the Interim Superintendent direct the district's
attorney to move forward with any legal remedies the
district might have to correct at the contractor's expense
Latent Roof Defects at the Chapin High School 2008 Bond
Referendum Project. This motion is also intended to
include any latent watertightness defects with components
of wall and roof construction.
M. Huddle S. Gardner N | X X X | X AB| X
I move that Meade & Hunt be awarded as the qualified
engineering and architectural firm to provide services as
the district representatives for close-out of Piney Woods
Elementary (Exhibit C).
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=DNo
X=Yes

R =Recuse




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE
OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Meeting of November 15, 2021

omZ—TIT ZACWXRXQOPrr W

AMZ0A>» 6

OZ0=2E=E2>» T

Z>»H0OxIT

mrgOCT
nNMOMmMrm<Or
maunoo<

10.

M. Loveless 5. Gardner

I move that the Interim Superintendent negotiate the
contract for services of CMTA Energy Solutions as
Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract as shown in (Exhibit
D) provided that the projects be completed within the time
limits set by the US Government for completion to gain
ESSER funding.

>

1.

M. Huddle S. Gardner

| move that we contract with the Procurement Audit Firm
that met the reguirements of the RFP for the detailed
Procurement Audit provided that the firm agrees to extend
their South Carolina license to at least 12/31/22 (Exhibit
E}.

12.

M. Hogan S. Huddle

t move that the Board direct our attorney to contact
Superintendent applicants A, B, and C to schedule
interviews with the Board during the month of December.

13.

M. Blackburn Hines S.  Huddle

| move that the Board of Trustees approve the
recommended revisions of Board Policy IHAQ
“Career/Transition to Work Education” (Exhibit 1).

A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




B|G|[H|H]|H LM
LIA]JA|]O|lU|]O|O
AR M| G| DV |O
c|D| M| A|D E|R
K| N|[C]|N L L E
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE B E | N E E
OF U R | D s
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of November 15, 2021
H
[
N
E
S
14. M. Gardner S.  Huddle X1 X | X | X | X X i X
| move that we approve the resolution to South Carolina
School Boards Association concerning the National
School Boards Association as seen in (Exhibit J).
15. M. Hogan S. Moore X X X1 X | X X X
Adjourn at 10:23 p.m.
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=No
X=Yes

R =Recuse




Minutes/December 6, 2021

The Board of Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties met at the
District Administration Building with the following members present:

Mrs. Rebecca Blackburn Hines
Mrs. Nikki Gardner, Secretary
Mrs. Jan Hammond, Chair

Mr. Matt Hogan

Mrs. Catherine Huddle

Mr. Ken Loveless, Vice Chair
Mrs. Tifani Moore

A = Absent

www.lexrich5.org AB = /;bitﬁg

1020 Dutch Fork Road « Irmo, South Carolina 29063 » (803) 476-8000 Ve
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow’s Challenges” R = Recuse



B|G|H|H]|H L | M
LITA|JA|O|U]OC]|O
A|lRIM|G|D|V]|O
C|D|M|A|DI|E]|R
K| N|O|N L L E
SCHOQCL DISTRICT FIVE B E | N E | E
CF U| R | D S
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES R S
N
Meeting of December 6, 2021
H
]
N
E
S
1. M. Huddle S. Hogan XX | X | X | X | X | X
Approve the agenda
2, M. Loveless S. Huddle X | X XX | XX X
Enter exective session to consider the following: a.)
Superintendent applicant inferviews
3, M. Hogan 8. Blackburn Hines X X i X1 X1 X X | X
Adjoumn
A = Absent
AB = Abstain
N=DNo
X=Yes

R =Recuse




MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Board of Trustees

Through: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

From: Marty Rawls,
Chief Finance Officer MW
Date: December 3, 2021

Re: Monthly Financial Reports - October 2021

EXHIBIT D

Attached for your information are the October 31, 2021 General Fund Monthly Revenue and
Expenditure Reports.

MR

Attachment

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road ¢ Irmo, South Carolina 29063 ¢ 803-476-8000



LEXINGTON RICHLAND SCHOOL DISTRICT 5
GENERAL FUND

MONTHLY REVENUE SUMMARY

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2021

LOCAL SOURCES

Property Taxes - Operations & Delinquent
Property Taxes - Penalties & Interest
Revenue in Lieu of Taxes (FILOT)

Tuition - Out of District

Rentais

Medicaid

Interest on Investments

Other Local Revenue

TOTAL - LOCAL SOURCES
STATE SOURCES

Education Finance Act (EFA)

State Fringe Benefits

Retiree Health Insurance

State Aid to Classrooms - Teacher Salary
Property Tax Relief - Tier | (1996: $100,000)
Homestead Exemption - Tier Il (Seniors Age 65+)
Homestead Exemption - Tier lll - (Act 388)
Merchant's Inventory Tax

Schocl Bus Drivers' Salaries/Fringes
Manufacturer's Depr. Reimbursement & Motor Carrier
PEBA Credits

Other State Revenue

TOTAL - STATE SOURCES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

E | A-Teacher Salary Supplement & Fringe
Indirect Cost - Special Revenue Funds
Sale of Fixed Assets

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OPERATIONAL BALANCE TRANSFER

TOTAL REVENUES THROUGH 10/31/2021
TOTAL REVENUES THROUGH 10/31/2020 *

* Use of $3,000,000 from Fund Balance was approved for use in FY 2020-2021 on 12-14-2020

ACTUAL %

BUDGET YEAR TO DATE Received
71,535,771 6,329,955 8.85%
415,633 78,982 19.00%
1,552,340 - 0.00%
5,000 2,651 53.02%
120,000 7,480 6.23%
105,000 31,019 29.54%
350,000 14,966 4.28%
240,000 159,780 66.58%
74,323,744 6,624,833 8.91%
42,751,929 14,162,644 33.13%
20,573,475 6,757,241 32.84%
5,456,118 1,818,706 33.33%
4,078,646 - 0.00%
10,580,071 - 0.00%
1,758,200 - 0.00%
32,534,571 3,504,187 10.77%
213,955 53,489 25.00%
1,403,932 184,081 13.11%
572,460 121,580 21.24%
1,190,410 - 0.00%
20,000 16,625 83.13%
121,133,767 26,618,552 21.97%
5,756,655 1,572,936 27.32%
480,000 15,418 3.21%

- 19,044

6,236,655 1,607,399 25.77%
201,694,166 34,850,783 17.28%
199,524,672 35,321,559 17.70%




School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Revenue
Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

[ Include pre encumbrance
D Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:
E Print accounts with zero balance

71112021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.000.0111001.0000.000 Ad Valorem Taxes - Lexington {$39,338,263.00) $0.00 ($39,338,263.00) {$607,616.05) ($607,616.05) ($38,730,646.95) $0.00 ($38,730,646.95) 96.46%
10¢.000.01711002.0040.000 Ad Valorem Taxes - Richland {$15,842,356.00) $0.00 ($15,842,356.00) $153,495.50 $153,495.50 ($15,995,851.50) $0.00 ($15,995,851.50) 100.97%
100.000.0112001.0000.060 Venicle Taxes - Lexington {57,465,741.00} $0.00 ($7465741.00) ($2,783,495527) ($2,783,49552) (34,682,245.48) $0.00 ($4,682,24548) 62.72%
760.000.0112002,0000,000 VeRiicle 1 axes - Richiand ($7,081,082.00} $0.00  ($7,081,002.00) (32,545,302.22)  (32,646,322.02)  ($4,535,759.78) $0.00  ($4,535,750.78)  64.05%
100.000,0113001.0000.000 Delinquent Taxes - Lexington (£963.639.00) $0.00  (3963,839.00)  (3264,067.58)  (5264,067.58)  (SGOB,B71.42) $0.00  (3608,871.42) 7251%
150,008,111 13002, 0000,000 Delinquent Taxes - Riohiand {$844,490.00) $0.00  ($844.49000)  (5282,049.61)  (3282,049.61)  ($662,440.39) $000  (3562,440.39) 66.60%
100,008.0114001,0000.000 E;;gif; & Inferest on Taxes - ($298,185.00} $0.00  ($298,185.00) {$39,648.41) ($39,648.41)  ($258,536.59) $0.00  ($258,536.59) 86.70%
100.000,011400Z,0000.600 Eﬁ:ﬁ:ﬁ & Interest on Taxes - ($117,448.00) 50.00 ($117,448.00) {$39,333.18) ($39,333.18) {$78.114.82) $0.00 ($78,114.82) 66.51%
100.600.0115001.0000.000 Sales & Use Tax Gredit - Leximgion $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 %0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100.600.0115002.60G0.000 Sales & Use Tax Credit - Richtand $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100.000.0125301 .0000.000 Il_‘:;ﬁg?:nm Lieu of Taxes - (81,552,340.00) $0.00  ($1,552,340.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($1,552,340.00} $0.00 ($1,552,340.00) 100.00%
100.060.0126002.0000.000 Revenue in Lieu of 1 axes - Richiand $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
106.600.0131600.0000.600 Sludent Tuilion Gul of Distrct {$5,000.00) %0.00 {$5,000.00) (62,651,060} (52,651.00) ($2,349.00) $0.00 ($2,349.00) 46.868%
100,000,0132000,0000,800 Tuilion from Oher LEAS Tor Reguiar $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 30.00 $0.00 $0.00 30,00 0.00%
100.000,051000,0000,0G0 ::r’l?gres:!hg: !]nvestmenls ($350,000.00) $0.00 {$350,000.00} ($14,719.52) ($14,719.52} {$335,280.48) $0.00 {$335,280.48)  95.79%
100.000.0151001.0000.000 Interest - Lexington $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($246.08) ($246.08) $246.08 $0.00 $246.08  0.00%
T00.600.0151002.0000.000 interest - Richiang Golinty $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
106.000.6174006.0000.000 Sfident Fees $0.00 $0.00 $6.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6.00 0.00%
1010.000,0196000.0000,000 g;mr: ;evenues from Local $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($27,432.59) ($27,432,59) $27,432.59 $0.00 $27,432.58  0.00%
100.000.0181000.2000.000 Rentals {$120,000.00) $0.00 ($120,000.00) ($7,480.00) {$7,480.00} ($112,520.00) $0.00 ($112,520.00) 93.77%
100.000.61920006.6000.000 Private Donations $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
100.000.¢193000.€000.000 Medicaid ($105,000.00) $0.00 ($105,000.00) ($31,018.83) ($31,018.83} ($73,981.17) $0.00 ($73,981.17) T0.46%
100.000.0195000.6000.000 Refund of Prior Year {$15,000.00) $0.00 ($15,000.00) (3821.47) {$821.47) ($14,178.53) $0.00 ($14,178.53)  94.52%
104.900.0196000.0000.00¢ Printing Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($9,755.36) ($9,755.36) $9,755.36 $0.00 $9,755.36 0.00%
1G6,000,0199200,6000,000 E-Ralc Revenue $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 50,00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100-000.0199300.0000.000 insurarice Proceeds {5$25,000.00) $0.00 ($25,000.00) ($27,673.59) ($27,673.59) $2,673.59 $0.00 $2,673.69 -1069%
104.000.0199400.0000.000 Recelpl of Legal Setlements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6.00  0.00%
104.600.0189500.0060.00¢ Other Local Revenue {$200,000.00} $0.00  ($200,000.00) ($94,097.02) ($94,097.02)  ($105,902.98) $0.00 {$105,902.98) 52.95%
100.000.6189901.0000.000 Other Local Revenue - Lexington $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  G.00%
150.000.0199902.0000.000 Othier Local Revenue - Richland §6.00 30.00 $0.00 $0.00 50.00 %0.00 30.00 50.00  0.00%
100.000.015955¢.0000.000 Operational Balance $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 30,00 0.00%
100,000.0189999,0000,600 Operalional Balance %0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0,00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  000%
100.000.0313100.6000.000 SP Contracts $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00° 0.00%
100.000.0313200.0000.000 flome Schooling $0.00 %06.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 3000 $0.00  0.00%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:12:34 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpiwBudgetAd) 2021.3.13 Page: 1



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Revenue

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

(] Include pre encumbrance
|:| Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:
Print accounts with zero balance

7112021

To Date:
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Rangs

1043112021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.000.031600.0000.060 Scheol Bus Driver Salary (51,339,432.60} $0.00 ($1,339,43200) ($119,573.03) (5119,573.03) (51,219,858.97) $0.00 ($1,219,858.97) 1.07%
100.000.03161¢0.0000.000 EAA Bus Driver Saiary and Frings $0.00 $0.00 50.00 (3504} (48.04 $8.04 30.00 $804  0.00%
1140.000.03162¢0.0000.000 \[')ngtasrs Compensation School Bus ($64,500.00} $0.00 {$64,500.00) ($64,499.73) ($64,499.73) (80.27) $0.00 (3027  0.00%
T00.000.03T6060.0600.080 Stale Fringe Deneits {$20,573,475,00 $0.00 (520,5673.47500) ($6,757,240.68) ($6,757,240.68) ($13,616,234.32) $0.00 {513,816,234.92)  67.16%
160.060.0318100.0000.000 Refires Heaith Insurance (55,456,118.00) $0.00 ($5456,118.00) ($1.818,70584) ($1,818,705.84] ($3,637,412.16) $0.00 (33,637,81216) o6i%
100.000.03T8600.0000.000 g::v Aid to Classroom - Teacher ($4,078,646.00} $0.00 ($4,078,646.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($4,078,646.00) 50.00 ($4,078,646.00) 100.00%
100.000,0319960,0000,000 Staie Other Scotrces %6.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100.000.0337600.0000.600 EFAFull Time Programs ($42,751,928.00) $0.00 ($42,751,925.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($42,751,829.00) $0.00 ($42,751,925.00] 100.00%
160.000.0331100.0000.000 EFA - Kindergarten $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($586,441.08} {$586,441.08) $586,441.08 $0.00 $586,441.08  0.00%
100.000,0331200.0000.000 EFA-Primary $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,753,549.52) ($1.75354952)  §1,753,540.52 $0.00 $1753,540.52  0.00%
100.000.0331300.0400.000 EFA - Elementary $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($3,618,865.42) ($3,618,8656.42) $3,618,865.42 $0.00 $3,618,865.42 0.00%
100.000.0331400.0000.500 EFA - High School $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($965,807.44) ($965,807.44) $965,807.44 $0.00 $965,807.44 0.00%
100.000.0331500.0000.000 E!;:]\d-i::g:;adbie Mentally $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($22,174.24) (822,174.24) $22,174.24 $0.00 $22,1774.24  0.00%
100,600,0331600,0000.800 EFA - Speech Handicapped $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($1,055,533.84) ($1,055,533.84)  $1,055,533.84 $0.00  $1,055533.84 0.00%
100.600.0331700.0000.000 EFA - Homebound $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($5.415.68) {$5.415.68) $5,41568 $0.00 $541568  0.00%
100.600.0332100.0000.000 EFA- Emotionally Handicapped $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($44.597,85) ($44.597-86) $44,507 .86 $0.00 $44'597_86 0.00%
100.600.0332200.6000.000 EFA - Eoucabie Mentally $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($21,004.16) ($21,004.16) $21,004.16 $0.00 $21,004.16  0.00%
100.000.6332300.0000.000 Eg%j%a%priﬁ:g Disabilitics $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  ($1,028,429.86) ($1,028,429.86)  $1,028,429.86 $0.00  $1,028,429.86  0.00%
160.000.0332400.0000.000 EFA - Hearing Handicapped $0.00 $0.00 50.00 ($62,507.33) ($62,507.33) $62,507.33 $0.00 $62,507.33  0.00%
100.000.6332500.000.000 EFA - Visually Handicapped $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($29,725.52) ($29,725.52) $29,725.52 $0.00 $29,725.52 0.00%
106.000.0332600.0000,000 EFA - Orthopedically Handicapped $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $17,231.72) §17,231.72) $17,231.72 $0.00 $17.23172  0.06%
104.000.6332700.6000.000 EFA - Vocational $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($2,828,335.56) ($2,828,335.56) $2,828,335.56 $0.00 $2,828,335.56 0.00%
T00.000.0333100.0000,000 EFA - Autism $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($399,884.56) ($309,884 56) $399,884.56 $0.00 $399,884.56  0.00%
"TOF000.0333200.0000.000 EFA - Gifled and Talonied $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  (3428,548.68)  (3428,548.68) $428,548.68 $0.00 $428,548.68  0.00%
104.000,6333400.6000.000 E%ﬁﬁm;ﬂigﬁsh Proficiency $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($586,126.16) {$56,126.16) $56,126.16 $0.00 $56,126.16  0.00%
106.000.0335700.6000.000 EFA - Academic Assistance $0.00 $0.00 000 T ($430,601.93)  ($430,601.13) $430,601.13 $0.00 $430,601.13  0.00%
0%.006.0335200.0000.000 EFA - Pupiis in Pavery $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($917,462.72) ($917,462.72) $917,462.72 $0.00 $917,462.72 0.00%
“108.060.6335300.6600.000 EFA - DUAL $0.00 $0.00 $0.60 ($15,514.56) ($15,974.56) $15,914.56 $0.00 $1591456  000%
100.000.0337500.0060.000 EFA Educafion Foundation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 30,00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
104.000.0339200.2000.000 EE%D!EPTEES‘EMSE EFA Formuia $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $125513.44 $125513.44 ({$125,513.44) $0.00 ($12551344) 0.00%
100.000.0381000,8000.000 Local Property Tax Relief (Tler 1y ~ ($10,580,071.00} $0.00 ($10,580,071.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($10,580,071.00) $0.00 ($10,580,071.00) 100.00%
700.000.0381002.0000.000 Local Properly Tax Refief (Tier 1) - 30.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
100.000.4382000.0000.00¢ ﬁm‘g&gad Exemption (Tier 2) ($1,758,200.00) $0.00  ($1,758,200.00} $0.00 $0.00  ($1,758,200.00) $0.00 ($1,758,200.00) 100.00%
T06.000. 13820020060, 000 gs:rlgiljad Exemiption (Tier 2)- $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:12:34 PM Report:  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAdj 2021.3.13 Page: 2



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Revenue

Fiscal Year:

2021-2022

D Include pre encumbrance
D Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:
Print accounts with zero balance

711/2021

To Date: 10/31/2021

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.000.0362500.0060.000 Properly Tax Relief - Tier 3 {$32,534,571.00) $0.00 ($32,534,571.00) ($3,504,186.50) {($3,504,186.50) ($29,030,384.50} $0.00 ($29,030,384.50) 89.23%
100.000.0383001.0000.003 mﬂz&l‘s Inventary Tax - {$194,013.00) $0.00 {$194,013.00) ($49,220.20) ($49,220.20} ($144,792.80} $0.00 ($144,792.80) 7483%
100.000.9383002.0000.000 #erchants Inventary 1ax - Richland ($19,942.00) $0.00 ($19,942.00) {$4,268.58) ($4,268 58} ($15,673.42) $0.00 ($15,673.42)  18.60%
10{.000.0384001.0000.008 ;ﬁ:iﬁgiiir;r:n?fﬁgxingm {$296,231.00) $0.00 ($296,231.00) $0.00 $0.00 ($295,231.00} $0.00 ($296,231.00) 100.00%
100.000.4384002.0000.00¢ hﬂ#:ml&fﬁlg;f:ﬂ?_ﬁ:g{c hiand $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 o;ouj‘
108.000.¢389001.0060.00¢ [git:lrrlgrier\'eh"de Tax - {$211,525.00) $0.00  {$211,525.00) ($63,792.67) ($83,792.67)  (3127.732.33) $0.00 ($127,732\.33) 60.39%
100.000,0369002,0000.000 %ﬁiﬁ; r(]::rrier\"ehicie Tax- {464,704.00) $0.00 (364,704.00) ($37,787.66) ($37.767.66) {526,976.34) $0.00 (526916.39) 4i.60%
“100.000.0350000.0000.000 __ Ofher State Kevenua $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0,00 $5.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100.005.6399000.0000.000 Revenue from Olher State Sources {$20,000.00) $0.00 ($20,000.00) $0.00 $0.00 {$20,000.00) $0.00 ($20,000.00) 100.00%
100.00%.0389200.0000.060 State Forest Commissian Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 ($16,625.34) ($16,625.34) $16,625.34 $0.00 $16,625.34 0.00%
160.006.0398500.0000.060 PEBA On-behall Payments {$1,790,416.00) $0.00 ($1,190,410.00) $0.00 50.00 ($1,190,410.00) $0.00 ($1,190,410,00) 100.00%
1(:0.000.03999060.0000.000 Revenue from Olher State Agency $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 %0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
T60.000.0445000.0000.000 Ciier Federal Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  000%
10,500,0500000,0000,600 Other Sources $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100.000.0520060.0000.000 interfund Transfers $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
100.000.0521000.0800.000 Transfer frem General Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
100.080.0522000.0000.000 Transfer from Special Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 3.00%
100.000.0523000.0400,000 Transfer from EIA ($5,756,655.00) $0.00  ($5,756,65500) ($1,572,936.47) ($1,572,936.47) ($4,183,718.53) $0.00 ($4,183,718.53) 72.68%
100,000,0525000,0000,600 Transfer from Baiding Eund 50.00 $0.00 %0.00 $0.00 50,00 $0.00 $0.00 000 0.00%
100.000.0527000.0000.000 Transfer from Bupil Activity $6.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 " 0.00%
*100.600.0526000.6400.000 Transfer of Indirect Cost ($480,000.00} $0.00 ($480,000.00) {815,418.22) ($15.41822) ($464,581.78} $0.00 ($464,581.78) 96.79%
100.060.0536000.6000.000 Sale of Fixed Assels $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 {519,043.88) (819,043.88) $19,043.88 $0.00 $10,043.88  0.00%
FUND: General Fund - 100 ($201,694,166.00 $0.00 ($201,694,166.00 ($34,850,782.97) ($34,850,782.97) ($166,843,383.03 $0.00 ($166,843,383.03 8272%
Grand Total: ($201.694.166.00; $0.00 {$201 .694.166.00; ($34,850,782.97) ($34,850,782.97) ($1 56,843,383.03; $0.00 ($1BG,843,383.03; 82.72%
End of Report
Printed:  11/28/2021 4:12:34 PM Report:  miGLGenRptwBudgetAdj 2021.3.13 Page: 3



LEXINGTON RICHLAND SCHOOL. DISTRICT 5
GENERAL FUND
MONTHLY EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING OCTOBER 31, 2021

SALARIES AND FRINGE
Instructional
Support & Community Services
Subtotal

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES & Oth. Obj,
Instructional
Support & Community Services
Subtotal

SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS
Instructional
Support & Community Services
Subtotal

EQUIPMENT
Instructional
Support & Community Services
Subtotal

TRANSFERS

Pmits to Other Govt Entities-Per Proviso
Food Service

OPERATIONAL BALANCE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES THROUGH 10/31/2021
TOTAL EXPENDITURES THROUGH 10/31/2020

ADJUSTED ACTUAL

BUDGET

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

%

YEAR TO DATE Expended

$ 116,886,814 §$ 116,781,964 § 24,223,994 20.74%
61,900,092 61,891,979 17,555,536 28.36%
178,786,906 178,673,943 41,779,531 23.38%
2,376,900 2,376,629 180,935 7.61%
12,418,448 12,421,176 4,984,573 40.13%
14,795,348 14,797,805 5,165,508 34.91%
1,735,421 1,833,419 822,299 44.85%
6,001,209 6,017,744 2,254,848 37.47%
7,736,630 7,851,163 3,077,147 39.19%

- - 5422
87,385 87,385 50,632 57.94%
87,385 87,385 56,054 64.15%
20,000 20,000 15,809 79.05%
267,897 267,897 - 0.00%
287,897 287,897 15,809 5.49%
$201,694,166 $201,698,193 $ 50,094,047 24.84%
$195,794,553 $199,524,672 $ 47,696,947 23.91%




School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

From Date:

7H/2021

To Date:

10/31/2021

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 |:| Include pre encumbrance [:] Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range
D Exclude inactive accounts with zerc balance

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.111.10¢00¢0.0000.000 Salarles $4,887,715.57 $0.00  $4,887,71557  $1,008,444.76  §1,008444.76  $3,879,270.81 $3,910,013.48 ($30,742.67) -0.63%
100.111.2080000.0000.000 Employee Benafits $2,150,602.43 $0.00  $2,150,602.43 $487,793.37 $487,793.37  $1,662,809.06  $1,635,553.54 $27,255.52 1.27%
100.111.3080080.0000.000 Purchased Services $50,043.00 $580.00 $50,623.00 $24072 $249.72 $50,373.28 $580.00 $4979378  98.36%
100.111.4000040.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $53,655.00 ($580.00} $53,075.00 $36,516.11 $36,516.11 $16,558.80 ($2,723.96) $19,282.85  26.43%
FUNCTION: Kindergarten Pregrams - 111 $7,142,016.00 $0.00 $7,142,016.00 $1,533,003.96 $1,533,003.96 $5,609,012.04 $5,543,423.06 $65,588.98 0.92%

100.112.1000000.0000.000 Salaties $14,140,206.87 ($11,500.00) $14,128,706.87 $2,812,351.93 $2,812,351.93  $11,316,354,94 $10,826,870.38 $489,484.56 3.46%
100.112.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $5,635,720.13 $0.00 $5,635,720.13 $1,263,022.67 $1,263,022.67 $4,372,697.46 $4,227,877.54 $144,819.92 2.57%
105,172 3000040600060 Purchased Services $123,241.00 $0.00 $123,241.00 $1,879.39 $1.87939 $121,361.61 $0.00 $121,361.61  98.46%
100.112.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $227,119.00 $11,500.00 $238,619.00 $160,771.78 $160,771.78 $77,847.22 {$2,980.35) $80,827.57 3387%
FUNCTION: Primary Programs - 112 $20,126,287.00 $0.00 $20,126,287.00  $4,238,025.77  $4,238,025.77 $15,888,261.23 $15,051,767.57 $836,493.66  4.16%

100.113.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $25,129,062.25 {534,225.00) $25,094,837.25  $4,955,763,04  $4,955,763.04 $20,139,04.21 $19,226,887.00 $912,187.21  3.63%
160.113.2000000,0000.600 Emplayea Benefits $9,413,265.75 $0.00 $9,413,265.75 $2,157,247.69 $2,157,247.69 $7,256,018.06 $7,167,512,79 $88,505.27 0.94%
100,113,3000000,0000.600 Purchased Services $382,151.00 $0.00 $382,151.00 $2,830.50 $2,830.50 $379,320.50 $69.50 $379,251.00 99.24%
00.113.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $418,619.00 $34,225.00 $452,844.00 $214,616.13 $214,616.13 $238,227.87 ($6,272.39) $244,500.26  53.99%
FUNCTION: Elementary Programs - 113 $35,343,098.00 $0.00  $35343,098.00  $7,330457.36  $7.330457.36 $28,012,640.64 $26,388,196.90  $1,624,443.74  460%

100.114.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $20,518,117.46 ($59,125.00)  $20,458,992.46 $3,987,314.66 $3,987,314.66 $16,471,677.80 $15,194,379.81 $1,277,297.99 6.24%
100.14.2060000.0600.G60 Employee Benelils $7,218,176.54 $0.00 $7,218,176.54  $1,679,112.05  $1,679,112.05 $5,539,064.49 $5,577,252.96 (538,188.47) 0.53%
100.114.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $350,103.00 $0.00 $350,103.00 $24,933.12 $24,933.12 $325,169.88 $21,192.35 $303,077.63 85.83%
100,114 .4006000.6004,000 Supplies and Materials $631,216.00 $52,853.00 $684,069.00 $292,142.98 $292,142.98 $391,926.02 $1,666.07 $390,259.95 57.05%
100.14.5000000.0000.000 Capital Qutiay $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,422.13 $5,422.13 ($5,422.13) $0.00 ($5,422.13) 0.00%
100.714.6000000.6006.006 Other Objecls $885.00 $0.00 $885.00 $2,112.99 $2,112.99 {81,227.99) 50.00 (51,227.99) -138.76%
FUNCTION: High School Programs - 114 $28,718,498.00 ($6,272.00) $28,712,226.00 $5,991,037.93 $5,991,037.93  $22,721,188.07 $20,794,491.19 $1,026,696,88 8.71%

100.115.1000000.0600.000 Salaries $3,088,354.40 $0.00  $3,098,354.40 $609,071.04 $609,071.04  $2,489,283.36  $2,191,394.59 $297,888.77 9.61%
100.115.2000000.6000.000 Employae Benefils $797,736.60 $0.00 $797,736.60 $263,224.79 $263,224.79 $534,511.81 $612,395,51 ($77,863.70) -9.76%
100.115.3000000.6000.000 Purchased Services $25,678.00 $0.00 $25,678.00 $2,418.13 $241813 $23,250.87 $3,754.08 $19,505,78 75.96%
100.715.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $112,500.00 50.00 $112,500.00 $28,270.34 $28,270.34 $84,229.66 {$1,412.92) $85,64258 76.13%
INCTION: Career and Technology Education (Vocational) Prog - 115 $4,034,268.00 0.00  $4,034 269.00 $902,984.30 $902,984.30  $3,131,284.70  $2,806,131.27 $325,153.43 8.06%
100.118.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $364,041.65 $0.00 $364,041.65 $61,536.70 $61,536.70 $302,504.95 $243,839.36 $58,665.59 16.12%
100.118.2000000.0000.000 Employes Benefils $96,914.35 $0.00 $96,914.35 $33,520.15 $33,529.15 $63,385.20 $81,430.28 ($18,045.08) -18.62%
100.116.3000600.6000.000 Purchased Services $1,563.00 $0.00 $1,563.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,563.00 $0.00 $1,563.00 100.00%
T00.118-4000000.G000.000 Supplies and Matenials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 3400.00 $400.00 1$400.60) $2.072.14 (32,472.14)  000%
FUNCTION: Montessori Programs - 118 $462,519.00 $0.00 $462,519.00 $95,465.85 $95,465.85 $367,053.15 $327,341.78 $39,711.37 8.59%

Printed:  11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAdj 2021.3.13 Page: 1



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year:

2021-2022

[ Include pre encumbrance

|:| Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

] Print accounts with zero balance

712021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.121.1000000.0600.000 Salaries $1,751,079.10 $0.00 $1,751,079.10 $412,313.33 $412,313.33 $1,338,765.77 $1,660,609,52 (8321,833.75) -18.38%
100.121.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $645,832.90 $0.00 $645,832.90 $189,785.57 $189,785.57 $456,047.33 $471,248.48 ($15,201.15)  -2.35%
100,121,3000000,0000.000 Purchased Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $24,115.00 $24,115.00 ($24,115.00) $68,510.00 ($92,625.00) 0.00%
100.121.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $3,093.00 $0.00 $3,093.00 $15,893.63 $15,893.63 ($12,800.63) ($1.211.19) ($11,589.44) -374.70%
FUNCTION: Educable Mentally Handicapped - 121 $2,400,005.00 $0.00  $2,400,005.00 $642,107.53 $642,107.53  $1,757,897.47  $2,199,146.81 ($441,240.34) -18.39%
100.122,1000000.0000.000 Sataries $423,720.35 $0.00 $423,720.35 $89,826.20 $89,826.20 $333,894,15 $336,713.47 ($2,819.32) -067%
100.122,2000040.0000.000 Employee Benefits $184,440.90 $0.00 $184,440.90 $39,168.55 $39,168.55 $145,272.35 $138,570.21 $6,702.14 3.63%
100,122,4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $1,851.75 $0.00 $1,851.75 $4,107.46 $4,107.46 ($2,255.71) $1,331.72) ($62368)  49.50%
FUNCTION: Trainable Mentally Handicapped - 122 $610,013.00 $0.00 $610,013.00 $133,102.21 $133,102.21 $476,910.79 $473,951.96 $2,958.83 0.49%
100,123,3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $130.00 $0.00 $130.00 $0.00 $0.00 $130.00 $0.00 $130.00 100.00%
100.123.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $1,294.00 $0.00 $1,284,00 $268.19 $268.19 $1,025.81 ($197.80) $1,223.61 94.56%
FUNCTION: Orthopedically Handicapped - 123 $1,424.00 $0.00 $1,424.00 $268.19 $268.19 $1,155.81 {$197.80) $1,353.61 95.06%
100.124.10400000.0900.000 Salaries $63,401.21 $0.00 $63,401.21 $15,014,40 $15,014.40 $48,386,81 $58,194.71 (%9,807.80) -1547%
100.124.2000400.0000.000 Employee Benefits $24,017.04 $0.00 $24,017.04 $5,877.15 $5,877.15 $18,139.89 $19,455.27 ($1,315.38) E¥i
100.724.4G00000.0400.000 Supplies and Materials $1,674.75 $0.06 $167375 $163.75 §163.75 $1,511.00 $0.00 $1.511.00 9022%
FUNCTION: Visually Handicapped - 124 $69,093.00 $0.00 $89,093.00 $21,055.30 $21,055.30 $68,037.70 $77,649.98 ($9.612.28) -10.79%
100.126.1600900.0000.G00 Salares $337,932.31 $0.00 $337,932.31 $48,186.65 $48,186.65 $289,745.66 $187,969.25 $101,776.41  30.12%
+00,125,2000000,0000.600 Employee Benefils $94,620.69 $0.00 $94,620,69 $19,335.00 $19,335.00 $75,285,69 $48,096.20 $27,18949 28.74%
100.125.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $775.00 $0.00 $775.00 $13,650.00 $13,650.00 {$12.875.00) $53,850.00 {$66,725.00) -8609.68%
100.125.4600000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $3,563.00 $0.00 $3,563.00 $569.27 $569.27 $2,993.73 $0.00 $2,093.73 84.02%
FUNCTION: Hearing Handicapped - 125 $436,891.00 $0.00 $436,891.00 $81,740.92 $81,740.92 $355,150.08 $289,915.45 $65,234.63  14.93%
100.126.1000000.0300.000 Salaries $2,041,688.23 $0.00 $2,041,688.23 $347,928.34 $347,928.34 $1,693,759.89 $1,358,587.84 $335,172.05 16.42%
100.126.2000400.0¢00.000 Emplayee Benefits $721,993.77 $0.00 $721,993.77 $148,896.90 $148,896.90 $573,096.87 $522,173.30 $50,923.57 7.05%
100.126,300000.0000.000 Purchased Services $73,710.00 $0.00 $73,710.00 $72,441.00 $72,441.00 $1,269.00 $274,374.00 ($273,105.00) -370.51%
(0. 726 4000000.6000.000 Suppfies and Materials $68,846.00 $0.00 $68,846,00 $11,805,70 $11,805,70 $57,040.30 (31,147.99) $58,182.29 8451%
FUNCTION: Speech Handicapped - 126 $2,9086,238.00 $0.00 $2,906,238.00 $581,071.94 $581,071,94 $2,325,166.06 $2,153,993.15 $171,172.91 5.89%
100.127.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $4,483,782.29 $0.00  $4,483,782.29 $812,294.27 $812,294.27  $3,671,48802  $3,231,110.81 $440,377.21 8.82%
100.127.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $1,691,134.71 $0.00 $1,691,134.71 $354,735.17 $354,735.17 $1,336,399.54 $1,246,693.48 $89,706.06 530%
100.127.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $35,024.00 $0.00 $35,024.00 $19,500.00 $19,500.00 $15,524.00 $73,125.00 ($57,601.00) -164.46%
100.127.40000¢0.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $90,298.00 $0.00 $90,298.00 $28,453.24 $28,453.24 $61,844.76 $1,374.03 $60,470.73  66.97%
FUNCTION: Learning Disabilities- 127  $6,300,235.00 $0.00  $6,300,239.00  §$1,214,982.68  $1,21498268  $5,085,256.32  $4,552,303.32 $532,953.00 8.46%
100.128.10000¢0.0000.000 Salaries $730,708.88 $0.00 $730,708.88 $130,374.43 $130,374.43 $600,334.45 $503,724.80 $96,609.65 13.22%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  ptGLGenRptwBudgetAd) 2021.3.13 Page: 2



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year:

2021-2022

D Include pre encumbrance

[ Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

]:] Print accounts with zero balance

71172021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

1013172021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.128.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benafits $258,410.12 $0.00 $258,410.12 $62,709.45 $62,702.45 $185,700,67 $209,168.69 (513.468.02) -5.21%
100.128.3000040.0000,000 Purchased Services $6,500.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 100.00%
100.128.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $2,118.00 $0.00 $2,118.00 $1,755.91 $1,755.91 $362.09 $0.00 $362.09 17.10%
FUNCTION: Emolionally Handicapped - 128 $997,737.00 $0.00 $997,737.00 $194,839.79 $194,839.79 $802,897.21 $712,893.48 $90,003.72  9.02%
100,128, 70060600,5000,600 Salaries $769,476.68 $0.00 $789,476.68 $136,544.50 $136,544.50 $652,932.18 $441,353.30 $211,678.88  26.80%
100.129.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $204,212.32 $0.00 $204,212.32 $60,342 52 $60,342.52 $143,869.80 $142,257.69 $1.612.11  079%
160.128.3000040.0000.000 Purchased Services $6,918.00 $0.00 $6,918.,00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,918.00 $0.00 $6,916.G0 100.00%
100.129.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,400,00 $1,400.00 ($1,400.00) S0.00 ($1,400.00) 0.00%
FUNCTION: Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS)- 129 $1,000,607.00 $0.00 $1,000,607.00 $198,287.02 $198,287.02 $802,319.98 $683,610.99 $218,708.99 21.88%
100.135.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 ($1,300.00)  0.00%
100.135.2000080.0000.000 Employee Benefits $0.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 50.00 $0.00 $105.30 ($106.30)  0.00%
100.135.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 ($100.00} 50.00 {$100.00) 0.00%
JNCTION: Preschool Handicapped Speech (3 and 4 year olds) - 135 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 ($100.00} $1,405.30 ($1,505.30)  0.00%
100.136,1000000,0000,000 Salaries $50,997.12 $0.00 $50,997.12 $1,110.30 $1,110.30 $49,886.82 $4,319.14 $45,567.68 89.35%
100.736.2000000.0000.000 Employee Henefits $950.68 $0.00 $950.88 $518.40 $518.40 $432.48 $885.02 (5456.64) <B.01%
100.136.4000000.0600.000 Supplies and Materials $400.00 $0.00 $460.00 $160.00 $100.00 $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 75.00%
FUNCTION: Preschool Handicapped Itinerant (3 and 4 yr olds) - 136 $52,348.00 $0.00 $52,348.00 $1,728.70 $1,728.70 $50,619.30 $5,208.16 $45411.14 86.75%
100.137.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $1,197,264.93 $0.00  $1,197,264.93 $206,271.86 $206,271.86 $990,993.07 $870,865.57 $120,127.50 10.03%
100.137.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $469,208.07 $0.00 $469,208.07 $93,873.86 $93,873.86 $375,334.21 $358,671.16 $16,663.05  3.55%
100.137.3000000.0000,000 Purchased Services $30,474.00 $0.00 $30,474.00 $0.00 $0.00 $30,474.00 $0.00 $30,474.00 100.00%
100.137.4000000,0000.000 Supplies and Materials $540.00 $0.00 $540.00 §1,794.60 $1,794,60 ($1,254.60) $0.00 ($1,254.60) -232.33%
INCTION: Preschool Handicapped Self Contained (3 &4 yr old} - 137 $1,697,487.00 $0.00 $1,697,487.00 5$301,840.32 $301,840.32 $1,395,546.68  $1,229,536.73 $166,009.95 9.78%
100.138.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $6,505.88 $0.00 $6,505.88 $486.60 $486.60 $6,019.28 $1,899.08 $4,120.20 63.33%
100.138.2000000.0600.000 Employee Benefits $777.12 $0.00 $77r2 $201.90 $201.90 $675.22 $758.34 (5183.12) -23.56%
UNCTION: Preschool Handicapped Homebased (3 & 4 yr olds) - 138 $7,283.00 $0.00 $7,283.00 $688.50 $688.50 $6,594.50 $2,657 42 $3,937.08 54.06%
100.139.1000080.0000.000 Salaries $1.080,205.77 $0.00  $1,080,205.77 $241,997.48 $241,997 .48 $838,208.29 $900,349.65 ($62,141.36)  -5.75%
100.139.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $524,568.23 $0.00 $524,568.23 $118,120.16 $118,120.16 $406,448.07 $390,029.58 $16,418.49 3.13%
1400.139.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $18,147.00 $0.00 $18,147.00 $4,372.34 $4,372.34 $13,774.66 $0.00 $13,77466 T5.91%
100.139.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $25,851.00 $0.00 $25,851.00 $5,616.06 $5.616.06 $20,234.94 ($909.12) $21,144.06 81.79%
190.139.6000040.0000,000 Other Objects $3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $294.50 $294.50 $3,205,50 ($69.00) $3,274,50 93.56%
FUNCTION: Early Childhood Pregrams - 139 $1,652,272,00 $0.00 $1,652,272.00 $370,400.54 $370,400.54 $1,281,871.46 $1,289,401.11 ($7.529.65) -0.46%
08,141, 1000080,0000,000 Safaries $1,359,968.47 $0.00  $1,350.96B.47  $223.20270  $22329270  $1.136.675.77  SB64,551.74  $272,124.03  2001%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAd) 2021.3.13 Page: 3



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

[ Include pre encumbrance

[ Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

] Print accounts with zero balance

7172021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.141.2000000,0000.000 Employee Benefiis $548,011.53 $0.00 $548,011.53 $95,153.85 $95,153.85 $452,857.68 $367,420.31 $85437.37 1559%
100.141.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $9,472.00 $0.00 $9,472.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,472,00 $1,523.00 $7,949.00  832.92%
100.141.4000000.0030.000 Supplies and Materials $12,725.00 $0.00 $12,725.00 $2,701.52 $2,701.52 $10,023.48 $25.00 $9,99848 78.57%
100.141.6000060.0000.000 Other Objects $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $175.50 $175.50 (317550} $0.00 ($17550)  0.00%
FUNCTION: Gifled and Talenled Academic- 141  $1,930,177.00 $0.00  $1,930,177.00 $321,323.57 $321,323.57  $1,608,853.43  $1,233,520.05 $375,333.38  18.45%
100.143.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $363,375.17 $0.00 $363,375.17 $50,792.92 $50,792.92 $312,582.25 $196,032.80 $116,54845 3207%
100,143, 20600000.0600.060 Employee Bensfits $85,220.83 $0.00 $85,220.83 $20,527.12 $20,527.12 $64,702.71 $62,941.79 3176092  Z07%
100,143,30000080,0000.000 Purchased Services $1,100.00 $0.00 $1,100.00 $0.00 20.00 $1,100.00 $0.00 $1,100.00 100.00%
100.143-A000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 (310000} $6.00 (5100.00)  0.00%
FUNCTION: Advanced Placement - 143 $449,705.00 $0.00 $449,705.00 $71,420.04 $71,420.04 $378,284.96 $258,974.59 $119,310.37  26.53%
100.144.3000060,6000.050 Purchased Services $8,300.00 $0.00 $8,300.00 $0.00 $0,00 $8,300.00 $0.00 $8,300.00 100.00%
700,144 4000C00.0000.000 Suppiies and Materials $50,600.00 $0.00 $50,000.00 $1,478.60 §147850 $48521 80 §5,070.36 §93.45114  66.80%
100.144.6060660.0000.000 Other Objects $11,775.00 $0.00 $11,775.00 $11,650.00 $11,650.00 $125.00 $0.00 $125.00 1.06%
FUNCTION: International Baccalaureate - 144 $70,075.00 $0.00 $70,075.00 $13,128.50 $13,128,50 $56,946,50 $5,070.36 $51,876.14  74.03%
100.145.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $71,289.00 $0.00 $71,289.00 $8,511.75 $8,511.75 $62,777.25 $6,861.00 $55,916.25 78.44%
100,145.2000000.0800.000 Employee Benefits $22 188.00 $0.00 $22,189.00 $3,592.83 $3,502.83 $18,596.17 $2,735.51 $15,860.66 71.48%
100.146.300G000.0000.000 Purchased Services $16,000.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 $0.00 $16,000.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Homebound - 145 $109,478.00 $0.00 $109,478.00 $12,104.58 $12,104.58 $97,373.42 $9,596.51 $87,776.91 60.18%
100.748,1000000.0800.000 Salaries $171,636.77 $0.00 $171,636.77 $33.404.39 $33,404.39 $138,232.38 $125,690.33 $12,542.06  731%
100.148.2000400.0300.000 Emplayee Benefits $57,476,23 $0.00 $57,476,23 $13,661.98 $13,661.98 $43,814.25 $45,698.12 ($1,883.87) -3.28%
700.148.3000000.0000.600 Furchased Services $7,000.00 $0.00 $7,000.00 $45.00 $45.00 6,955.00 $755.00 $6,800.00 97.14%
"0, 148.4600000.6000.660 Suppiies and Haterials $2,875.00 $0.00 $2,875.00 $100.00 $100.00 $2,775.00 $0.00 $2,775.00 96.52%
FUNCTION: Gifted and Talented Artistic - 148 $238,988.00 $0.00 $238,988.00 $47,211.37 $47,211.37 $191,776.63 $171,543.45 $20,233.18 BAT%
100.149.1000400.0000.000 Salaries $527,143.98 $0.00 $527,143.98 $173,296.58 $173,296.58 $353,847.40 $468,655.76 ($114,808.36) -21.78%
100.149.2000900.0800.000 Employea Benelits $251,852.19 $0.00 $251,852.19 $67,308.47 $67,308.47 $184,543.72 $197,390.75 (312,847.03)  5.10%
100.148,3000400.0000.000 Purchased Services $1,180,569.83 $0.00  $1,180,569.83 $0.00 $0.00 $1,180,569.83 $0.00 $1,180,569.83 100.00%
100.149.4000000.0400.000 Supplies and Materials $3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $900.00 $900.00 $2,600.00 $0.00 $2,600.00 74.29%
FUNCTION: Other Special Programs - 149 $1,963,066.00 $0.00  $1,963,066.00 $241,505.05 $241,505.05  $1,721,560.95 $666,046.51 $1,055,51444 53.77%
100.161.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $694,849.13 $0.00 $694,849.13 $155,535.56 $155,535.56 $539,313.57 $578,747 86 (539,43429)  -568%
100.161.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $360,018.62 $0.00 $360,018.62 $80,972.70 $80,972,70 $279,045.92 $256,316.47 $22,729.45 6.31%
100.161.3000000.0{00.000 Purchased Services $8,550.00 $0.00 $8,550.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,550.00 $0.00 $8,550.00 100.00%
100,161,4000000,6000,000 Supplies and Materials $19,133.25 $0.00 $19,133.25 $9,305.32 $9,305.32 $9,827.93 ($962.43) $10,790.36  5640%
FUNCTION: Other Exceptional Programs - 161 $1,082,551.00 $0.00  $1,082,551.00 $245,813.58 $245,813.58 $6836,737.42 $834,101.90 $2,635.52 0.24%
Printed: 11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAd] 2021313 Page: 4



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

I:I Include pre encumbrance

|:| Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

[ Print accounts with zero balance

7172021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.172.1¢00000.0000.600 Salaries $5,056.00 50.00 $5,056.00 $16,230.00 $16,230.00 {$11,174.00} $0.00 ($11,174.00) -221.00%
+00.172.2000000.0000.500 Employee Benefits $1,5673.00 $0.00 $1,573.00 $3,045.91 $3,045.91 {$1,472.91) $0.00 ($1.472.91) -93.64%
FUNCTION: Elementary Summer Schod] - 172 $6,629.00 $0.00 $6,629.00 $19,275.91 $19,275.91 {$12,646.91) $0.00 ($12,646.91) -190.78%
100.173.1000000.0000-000 Salaries $21,521.00 $0.00 $21,521.00 $126,540.00 $126,540.00  ($105,019.00) $0.00  ($105,019.00) <467.98%
100.173.2000000.0000.900 Employee Benefits $6,699.00 $0.00 $6,699.00 $32,435.22 $32,435.22 ($25,736.22) $0.00 ($25,736.22) -384.18%
FUNCTION: High School Summer School - 173 $28,220.00 $0.00 $28,220.00 $158,975.22 $158,975.22 {$130,755,22) $0.00 (8130,755.22) -463.34%
100,175,1000000.0000.000 Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $75.00 $75.00 (575.00) $360.00 ($435.00) 0.00%
100.175.2000000.0000.000 Empleyee Benefits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23.19 $2319 82319y $111.27 (5134.46) 0.00%
JNCTION: Instructional Programs Beyond Regular School Day - 175 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $98.19 $98.19 {$98.19) $471.27 ($569.486) 0.00%
100.181.7000000.60C0.000 Salaries $116,351.46 $0.00 $116,351.48 $38,847.36 $38,847.36 $77,504.10 $78,694.64 ($1,190.54) -1.02%
100.181.2000000.C000.000 Employea Benefits $39,436.54 $0.00 $39,436.54 $14,185.49 $14,185.49 $25,251.05 $26,870.90 ($1,619.85) -4.11%
10:.187.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $3,750.00 ($500.00) $3,250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,250.00 $0.00 $3,250.00 100.00%
100.787.400G000,0000,000 Supplies and Materials $575.00 $0.00 $575.00 $0.00 $0.00 $575.00 $0.00 $575.00 100.00%
100-181.6000000,0000,000 Other Objects $691.00 ($351.00) $340.00 $0.00 $0.00 $340.00 $0.00 $340.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Adult Basic Education Programs - 181 $160,804.00 (5851.00) $159,953.00 $53,032.85 $53,032.85 $106,920.15 $105,565.54 $1,354.61 0.85%
100.182.10C0000.0000.000 Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 {$2,000.00) 0.06%
100.182:2000000.0000.060 Employee Benefils $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $162.00 {$162.00) 0.00%
100.182.30000G0.0000.000 Furchased Services $50.00 $6.00 $50.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.,00 $0.00 $50.00 100.00%
100, 162.4060000.0000,000 Supplies ang Materials $3.574.00 $0.00 $3.974.00 §3068.37 $2.968.37 $1,005.63 $24677) §1,35240 3151%
FUNCTION: Adult Secondary Education Programs - 182 $4,024.00 $0.00 $4,024.00 $2,968.37 $2,968.37 $1,055.63 $1,915.23 ($859.60) -21.36%

100,188.1000060.0000.000 Salaries $56,745.83 $0.00 $56,745.83 $16,147.11 $16,147.11 $40,596.72 $49,591.59 (58.992.87) -15.85%
760,186 2006000,0000,000 Employes Henefis $2.404.97 $0.00 $2,494.17 $7.633.25 $7.633.95 {$5,229.08) $4,923.12 ($10,152.20) 422.21%
FUNCTION: Parenting/Family Literacy - 188 $59,150.00 $0.00 $59,150.00 $23,780.36 $23,780.36 $35,369.64 $54,514.71 ($19,145.07) -32.37%

100,198, 1000000,6000.600 Salaries $734,231.79 $0.00 $734,231.79 $144,567.14 $144,567.14 $589,664.65 $510,986.41 $78,678.24  10.72%
160,190.2000000,0000,000 Employes Beneris $162,972.21 $0.00 $162,972.21 $43,880.04 $43,889.04 $119,023.17 $118,545.85 §477.32  0.25%
100.194.60C00¢0.0000.000 Other Objects $20,800.00 $0.00 $20,800.00 $267.34 $267.34 $20,532.66 $8,920.00 $11,612.66 55.83%
FUNCTION: Instructional Pupil Activity - 190 $917,944.00 $0.00 $917,944.00 $188,723.52 $188,723.52 $729,220.48 $638,452.26 $90,768.22  9.89%
100.211.100006G0.0000.660 Salaries $1,288,656.35 $000  $1,2B8,656.35 $262,843.77 $762,84377  $1,025,812.58 $892237.14 $133 57544 10.37%

100.211.20600¢0.0000.000 Employee Benefiis $352,121.65 $0.00 $352,121.65 $124,593.94 $124,593.94 $227.527.71 $262,917.30 ($35,389.59} -10.05%
140.211.3000040.0000.000 Purchased Services $120,000.00 $0.00 $120,000.00 $451.43 $451.43 $119,548.57 $0.00 $119,54857 99.62%
100.211.4000000,0000.0600 Supplies and Materials $16,110.00 $0.00 $16,110.00 $23,492.00 $23,492.00 ($7,382.00) $0.00 ($7,382.00) 45.82%
FUNCTION: Attendance and Social Work Services - 211 $1,776,888.00 $0.00  $1,776,888.00 $411,381.14 $411,381.14  $1,365,506.86  $1,155,154.44 $210,352.42 11.84%

Printed: 11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  ptGLGenRpiwBudgetAd) 2021.3.13 Page: 5



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year:

2021-2022

[ include pre encumbrance

EI Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

[ Print accounts with zero balance

772021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
10§.212.1000000.6000.000 Salaries $4,136,872.80 $0.00  $4,136,872.80 $895,586.61 $895,586.61 $3,241,286.19  $2,860,460.42 $380,825.77 9.21%
100.212.2000000.8000.000 Employee Benefils $1,174,97150 $0.00  $1,474,571.50 $386,103.05 $386,103.05 $788,868.45 $808,319.70 ($19,451.05) -1.66%
100.212.3000000.€000.000 Purchased Services $3,008.70 $0.00 $3,098.70 $508.98 $508.98 $2,589.72 $0.00 $2,589.72 8357%
10¢.212.4000000.6000.000 Supplies and Materials $25,041.00 $0.00 $25,041.00 $10,318.89 $10,318.89 $14,722.11 ($426.61) $15,148.72  60.50%
FUNCTION: Guidance Services-212  $5,339,084.00 000 $5339,984.00  $1.292517.53  $1,292,517.53  $4,047,466.47  $3,668,353.51 $379,112.96  7.10%
10¢.213.1000000.6000.000 Salaries $2,072,056.38 $0.00  $2,072,056.38 $452,893.42 $452,89342  $1,619,162.96 $1,732,853.43 ($113,690.47) -54%%
“106.273.2000006.5000.000 Empiayee Beneiils $793,334.82 $0.00 $793,334.82 $198,755.94 $198,765.94 $504,578.88 $540,137.17 $54,441.71  6.86%
100.213.3000000.5000.000 Purchased Services $55,531.80 $0.00 $55,531.80 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $20,531.80 $105,000.00 {$84,468.20) -15271%
100.213.4000003.0000.000 Supplies and Matesials $26,916.00 $0.00 $26,916.00 $9,511.54 $9,511.54 $17,404.46 ($1,483.37) $18,887.83  70.17%
100,213.6000008.0060.00¢ Other Objects $116.00 $0.00 $176.00 $0.00 $0.06 $116.00 $0.00 $116.00 100.60%
FUNCTION: Health Services-213  $2,947,955.00 $0.00  $2,947,955.00 $696,160.90 $696,160.90  $2,251,794.10  $2,376,507.23  ($124,713.13) 4.23%
100.214.1000000,0000,000 Salaries $1,499,865.63 $0.00 $1,499,36563 $296,909.18 $296,909.18  $1,202,956.45 $864,636.66 $338.310.79  22.56%
100.214.2000000,0000.000 Employee Benefits $273,145.37 $0.00 $273,145.37 $120,655.94 $120,655.94 $152,489.43 $186,981.34 ($34,49191) -1283%
100.214.3060000.0040.000 Furchased Services $21,033.00 $0.00 $21,033.00 $20,435.00 $20,435.00 $598.00 $85,910.00 (585,312.00) 405.51%
110.214.4020000.0040.000 Supplies and Materials $5,850.00 $0.00 $5,850.00 $3,404.90 $3,404.99 $2,445.01 $0.00 $2,445.01 41.80%
FUNCTION: Psychological Services- 214 $1,799,884.00 $0.00  $1,799,894.00 $441,405.11 $441,405.11  $1,358,488.80  $1,137.528.00 $220,060.89 12.28%
100.277.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $102,487.42 $0.00 $102,487 42 $29,181.62 $29,781.92 $73,305.50 $67,863.76 $544174  531%
100,217,2000000,0000,000 Empioyee Denelits $35,823.58 $0.00 $35,823.58 $12,170.24 $12,170.24 $23,653.34 $24.709.14 ($1,055.80)  -2.95%
100.277.4000000.0000.600 Supplies and Materials $2,035.00 $0.00 $2,035.00 $1,682.78 $1,682.78 $352.22 ($106.53) $458.75 22.54%
FUNCTION: Career Specialist Services - 217 $140,346.00 $0.00 $140,346.00 $43,034.94 $43,034.94 $97,311.06 $92,466.37 $4,84469  345%
140.221.1000000,0000.060 Salaries $2,107,086.04 $0.00  $2,107,086.04 $566,474.33 $566,474.33 $1540611.71  $1,504,979.11 $3563260 1.59%
100221, 2060660.6000.000 Employee Benefits $669,637.06 $0.00 $669,637.06 $220,818.99 $220,618.99 $445.818.97 $447.866.07 §05296  0.34%
100.221.3000000.06060.000 Purchased Services $552,432.50 $500.00 $552,932 50 $530,237.27 $530,237 27 $22,695.23 $4,70874 $17,086.49  3.55%
100.227.5000000.0000.060 Supplies and Materfals $83,115.00 $0.00 $83,115.00 $4,950.11 $4,950.11 $78,164 69 (51,398.95) $70,563.84  95.19%
100.221.6080000.0000.000 Qther Objects $31,929.50 $0.00 $31,929.50 $30,664.00 $30,664.00 $1,265.50 $0.00 $1,265.50 3.96%
INCTION: Improvement of Instruction Curriculum Development- 221 $3,444,201.00 $500.00  $3.444,701.00  $1,353,144.70  $1,353,14470  $2,001556.30  $1,956,154.91 $135,401.39  393%
190.22Z.7000000.0000.000 Salaries $2,101,852.34 $0.00  $2,101,952.34 $402,871.21 $402,871.21  $1,699,081.13  $1,565,541.58 $133,538.55  6.35%
100.222,2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $792,482.56 $0.00 $792,482.56 $183,541.31 $183,541.31 $608,941.25 $582,269.27 $26671.98 337%
100.222 3000000, 0090.660 Purchased Services $3,005.10 $0.00 $3,005.10 $0.00 $0.00 $3,005.10 $0.00 $3,005.10 100.00%
100222 4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materiais $295,957.00 $0.00 $295,997.00 $231,153.60 $231,153.50 $64,84340 $44,658.73 $20,18467  6.62%
1{:0.222 60400060,0000.000 Qther Objects $175.00 $0.00 $175.00 50.00 $0.00 $175.00 $0.00 $175.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Library and Media Services- 222 $3,193,612.00 $0.00  $3,193,612.00 $817,566.12 $817,566.12  $2,376,045.88  $2,192,460.58 $183,576.30  5.75%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  mplGLGenRpiwBudgetAd) 2021.3.13 Page: 6



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

[ Include pre encumbrance
(O Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

] Print accounts with zero balance

71112021
Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Nurnber Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.223.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $979,776.94 $0.00 $979,776.94 $304,779.73 $304,779.73 $674,997.21 $701,371.05 ($26,373.84) -289%
100.223.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $324,049.06 $0.00 $324,049.08 $118,399.77 $118,389.77 $205,640.29 $230,551.13 {524,901.84) -7.68%
109.223.3000009.0000.000 Purchased Services $6,198.00 $0.00 $6,198.00 $163.63 $163.63 $6,034.37 $0.00 $6,034.37 97.36%
100.223.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materialis $2,146.00 50.00 $2,146.00 3503.42 §503.42 $1,562.58 (562.43) $1.635.01  76.19%
100.223.6000000.0000.000 Other Objects $351.00 $351.00 $702.00 $702.00 $702.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%
FUNCTION: Supervision of Special Programs - 223 $1,312,521.00 $351.00  $1,312,872.00 $424,638.55 $424,638.55 $888,233.45 $931,839.75 ($43,606.30)  -3.32%
100224 3000000.0000.600 Puithased Services $75,622.00 ($573.08) §74,648.92 $8,457.41 $8,457.41 $66,781.51 (§648.00) $66,84557  G954%
100.224.4000000.0040.000 Supplies and Materials $10,342.00 $0.00 $10,342.00 $2,769.68 $2,769.68 $7,572.32 ($166.29) $7,73861 74.83%
100.224.6000000.0000.000 Qther Objects $351.00 $0.00 $351.00 $0.60 $0.00 $351.00 $0.00 $351.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Improvement of Instruction Inservice & Staff Train - 224 $86,315.00 ($973.08) $85,341.92 $11,227.09 $11,227.09 $74,114.83 ($814.29) $74.920.12 B7.80%
"190:237.T060000.0000.000 Saleiries $79,624.33 $0.00 §79,624.33 $16,820.25 $16,820.25 $62,804.08 $30,384.00 $33,420.08  2941%
810,231, 2000000,0000,000 Emplayes Benelits $10,752.67 $0.00 $10,752.67 $5,199.62 $5,199.62 $5,553.05 $5,109.24 $443.81 4.13%
100.231.3000000,0600.000 Purchased Services $341,616.00 $0.00 $341,616.00 $192,708.20 $192,708.20 $148,907.80 $149,437.01 {$529.21) -0.15%
100.231.6000000.0000.000 Other Objects $549,204.00 $0.00 $549,204.00 5$584,104.00 $584,104.00 {$34,900.00) $0.50 (534,900.50) B35%
FUNCTION: Beard of Education - 231 $981,197.00 $0.00 $981,197.00 $798,832.07 $798,832.07 $182,364.93 $183,930.75 ($11,565.82) -1.18%
100.232.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $280,826.93 $0.00 $280,826.93 $247,653.35 $247,653.35 $33,173.58 $56,716.21 ($23,542.63) -B.38%
100.232,2000000.0000,000 Employee Benelits $90,466.07 $0.00 $90,466.07 $66,560.75 $66,560.75 $23,905.32 $2,627.77 $21,277.55 23.52%
100.232,3000000,0300,000 Purchased Services $39,150.00 $0.00 $39,150.00 $8,927.36 $8,927.36 $30,222.64 $1,913.84 $28,308.80 7231%
100.232.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $6,723.00 $0.00 $6,723.00 $982.75 982,75 $5,740,25 ($186.90) $5,927.15 BB.16%
100.232.6600600.0000.000 Other Objects $7,100.00 $0.00 $7,100.00 $1,365,00 $1,365.00 $5,735,00 $0.00 $5,735.00 BO.77%
FUNCTION: Office of Superintendent - 232 $424,266.00 $0.00 $424 266.00 $325,489.21 $325,489.21 $98,776.79 $61,070.92 $37,705.87 8.89%
100.233.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $11,974,653.54 ($8,113.00)  $11,966,540.54 $3,390,107.69 $3,390,107.69 $8,576,432.85 $8,191,139.02 $385,293.83 322%
100.233.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $4,115,432.46 $0.00 $4,115,432.46 $1,412,940.93 $1,412,840.93 $2,702,491.53 $2,661,076.15 $41,415.38 1.01%
100.233.30001700.0000.600 Purchased Services $241,205.00 ($2,305.00) $238,900.00 $25,864.27 $25,864.27 $213,035.73 $3,001.00 $210,034.73  87.92%
100.233.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $234,948.00 $16,535.00 $251,483.00 $151,076.44 $151,076.44 $100,406.56 $8,724.29 $91,682,27 36.46%
100.233.5000000.0000.000 Capital Outlay $3,700.00 $0.00 $3,700.00 $0.00 50.00 $3,700.00 $0.00 $3,700.00 100.00%
100.233.6000600.0000.000 Other Objects $23,502.00 ($717.00) $22,785.00 $15,226.00 $15,220.00 $7,565.00 ($103.00) $7,668.00 B[E%
FUNCTION: School Administration- 233 $16,593,441.00 $5,400.00 $16,598,841.00 $4,995,209.33 $4,995,209.33  $11,603,631.67 $10,863,837.46 $739,794.21 4.46%
100.251.1000000.0000.000 Salaries $203,876.33 $0.00 $203,876.33 $12,456.93 $12,456.93 $191,419.40 $56,205.08 $13521432  66.32%
100.251.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $34,591.67 $0.00 $34,591.67 $3,627.24 $3,627.24 $30,964.43 $11,551.24 $19,413.19  56.12%
100.251.3¢:00000.0000.600 Purchased Services $326,600.00 $0.00 $326,600.00 $56,463.82 $56,463.82 $270,136.18 $208,797.24 $61,338.94  18.78%
100,251, 4600G00.0000.600 Supplies and Materials $48,560.00 $0.00 $48,560.00 $0.00 $0.00 $48,560,00 30.00 $48,560.00 100.00%
‘UNCTION: Student Transportation (Federal/District Mandated) - 251 $613,628.00 $0.00 $613,628.00 $72,547.99 $72,547.99 $541,080.01 $276,553.56 $264,526.45 43.11%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAdi 2021.3.13 Page: 7



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures
Fiscal Year: 2021-2022

[ nclude pre encumbrance
[0 Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

From Date:

7/1/2021
D Print aceounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range

To Date:

10/31/2021

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100,252,100000%,0000,000 Salaries $1,129,240.76 $0.00  $1,129,240.76 $301,94G.17 $307,940.17 $827,300.59 $649,529,20 $177,771.39  15.74%
100.252.2000000-0060.00¢ Employec Benefils $340,585.54 $0.00 $340,595.24 $125,329.83 $125,329.83 $215,265.41 $216,507.19 ($1,24178) 036%
100.252.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $167,895.00 $0.00 $167,895.00 $28,371.40 $28,371.40 $159,523.60 $11,851.23 $147,672.38 78.59%
“T0d 2540000 9000.000 Supplies and Materials $48 560.00 $0.00 $48,560.00 $15,309.44 $15,309.44 $33,760.56 $1,247.95 $31,012.67  66.72%
100.252.6000000.0000.004 Other Objects $5,938.00 $0.00 $5,938.00 $2,787.00 $2,787.00 $3,151.00 ($1,550.00% $4.701.00 79.17%
FUNCTION: Fiscal Services- 252 $1,712,229.00 $0.00  $1,712,229.00 $473,827.84 $473,827.84  $1,238,401.16 $877,585.56 $360,815.60 21.67%

100.253.1000:000.9000.00% Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $561.74 $561.74 ($561.74) $0.00 ($561.74)  0.00%
100.253.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $173.64 $173.64 ($173.64) $0.00 ($173.64) 0.00%
FUNCTION: Facilities Acquisition and Construction - 253 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $735.38 $735.38 ($735.38) $0.00 {$735.38) D.00%

100254, 1000000.0060.00¢ Salaries $7,304,966.38 $0.00 $7.304,986.38 $2,2650916.27 $2265,91627  $5,039,070.11  $4,730,345.81 $308,72430 4.23%
106.254.2000000.6000.00¢ Employee Benefils $3,216,887.62 $0.00  $3216,887.62  $1.137,791.51  $1,137,791.91  $2,079,085.71  $2,006,254.08 §72,84163  275%
100.254.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $4,770,129.00 $5,000.00 $4,775120.00 §1,715501.10  $1.715501.10  $3,059,627.90  $1,809,852.68  $1,159,715.02  2429%
106.254.4000000.0000.606 Supplies and Materials $4,858,083 .11 (35,000,000  $4,853,083.11 $1,765,722,76 $1,765,722.76 $3,087,360.35 $628,701.49  $2,458,658.86 50.66%
“100-254 5500060.5060 660 Captal Gullay $63,684.89 $0.00 $63,684.89 $41,534.50 $41,534.50 $42,150.3¢ $31,983.57 $10.166.82 1215%
100.254.6000000.0050.000 Other Objects $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $367.26 $367.26 ($367.26) ($175.50} (3191.76)  0.00%
FUNCTION: Operation and Maintenance of Plant - 254 $20,233,771.00 $0.00 $20,233,771.00  $6,926,833.80  $6,926,833.80 $13,306,937.20  $9,296,962.13  $4,009,975.07 19.82%
100.255.1200000.0000.000 Salaries $4,286,890.77 $0.00  $4,266,899.77 $093,311.49 $093311.49  $3,003,508.28  $2,072,174.48 $321,413.80  7.50%
"100,255.2666000,0000,000 Employee Benefits $1,436,086.23 $0.00  $1.436,086.23 $455,201.39 $455,291.39 $080,794.84  $1,040,110.56 (559,324.72) 4.13%
"100.255.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $162,000.00 $0.00 $162,000.00 $41,306.23 $41,306.23 $120,693.77 $690,187.82 $51,50595 a179%
100.255,4000000,00¢0.500 Supplies ang Materials $50,850.00 $0.00 $50,850.00 $11,152.64 $11,152.64 $39,697.36 $9.313.70 $30,363.66 50.05%
100.255.6000000.0000.000 Other Objects $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $730.00 $730.00 $270.00 $0.00 $270.00 27.00%
FUNCTION: Student Transportation (State Mandated) - 255 $5,936,836.00 $0.00  $5936,836.00  $1.501,791.75 . $1,501,791.75  $4,435044.25  $4,090,795.56 $344,24869  5.80%
100.256.1000000,0000.000 Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $123,000.00  ($123,000.00)  0.00%
100.256,2000000.0040.000 Employee Benefils $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $13,440.00 {$13,440.00) 0.00%
“104,258.4000000,0000,000 Supplies and Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,248.13 $2,248.13 ($2,248.13) $20,987.87 {$23,236.00) 0.00%
FUNCTION: Food Services - 256 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,248.13 $2,248,13 ($2,248.13) $157,427.87  ($159,676.00)  0.00%

10¢:257.1000000.0060.000 Sataries $337,312.52 $0.00 $337,312.82 $88,243.52 $88,24352 $249,069.00 $180,487.02 $68,581.98 20.33%
10¢.267.2000000.0080,00¢ Employee Benefits $108,990.48 $0.00 $108,990.48 $37,022.80 $37,022.80 $71,967.68 $73,157 .48 ($1,189.80) 1.09%
100.257.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $607,819.00 $0.00 $607,919.00 $155,776.84 $155,776.84 $452,142.16 $5,748.97 $44639319 7343%
106.257.4000000.6000.00¢ Suppiies and Materials $40,608.00 $0.00 $40,609.00 $4.786.95 $4,286.95 $36,322.05 $635.09 $35,666.06  87.60%
FUNCTION: Internat Services - 257 $1,094,831.00 $0.00  $1,094,831.00 $285,330.11 $285,330.11 5$809,500.89 $260,029.46 $549,471.43  50.18%

160.258.1000000.0000,500 Sataries $168,961.85 $6.00 $188,967.85 $62,121.28 $62,121.28 $126,840.57 $127,242.86 ($402.70) -027%
Printed:  11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report;  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAdj 2021.3.13 Page: 8



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures

Fiscal Year:

2021-2022

From Date:  7/1/2021 To Date: 10/31/2021

O include pre encumbrance [ Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range
[:I Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance

Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.258.2G00000.0000.000 Employee Benefits $73,133.15 $0.00 $73,133.15 $24,839,15 $24,839,15 $48,294.00 $49,113.83 ($819.83) -L12%
100.258.3¢00000.0000.000 Purchased Services $2,259,434.00 $0.00  $2,259,434.00 $32,796.65 $32,796.65  $2,226,637.35  $2,020,695.50 $205,941.85 8.i1%
100.258.4000000,0000.G00 Supplies and Materials $16,000.00 $973.08 $16,973.08 $1,982.59 $1,982.59 $14,990.49 $16,475.08 {$1,484.58) -B.75%
~100.258.5000000.6068.000 Capital Oullay $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $6,641.91 ($6.641.91) 0.00%
100.258.6000000.0004.000 Giher Objects $410.00 $0.00 3410.00 $0.00 $0.00 $410.00 $0.00 $410.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Security- 258  $2,537,939.00 $973.08  $2,538912.08 $121,739.67 $121,739.67  $2.417,172.41 $2,220,169.18 $197,003.23 7.76%

100.252.1¢00000.0000.000 Salaries $802,220.49 $0.00 $802,220.49 $262,766.45 $262,766.45 $539,454.04 $511,544.40 $27,909.64 3.48%
100.262.2000000.0000.000 Ernployee Benefits $294,695.51 $0.00 $294,695.51 $102,258.64 $102,258.64 $192,436.87 $198,057.99 ($5.621.12) -1.91%
100.262.300G000.C000.00¢ Purchased Services $35,050.00 $0.00 $35,050.60 $0.00 $0.00 $35,050.00 $0.00 $35,050.00 00.00%
FUNCTION: Planning-262  $1,131,966.00 $0.00  $1,131,966.00 $365,025,09 $365,025,09 $766,940.91 $709,602.39 $67,338.52 5.07%

100.263.1000000.6000.000 Salaries $415,859.03 $0.00 $415,859.03 $120,971,65 $120,971.65 $294,887.38 $272,497.05 $22,360.33  5.30%
100.263.2000000.6000.000 Employee Benefits $169,807.97 $0.00 $169,807.97 $53,302.20 $53,302.20 $116,505.77 $78,044.61 $38,461.16  22.65%
100.263.3000000.0000.000 Purchased Services $166,397.00 $0.00 $166,397.00 $70,065.43 $70,065.43 $96,331.57 ($150.00) $96,481.57 57.98%
104.263.400000¢.0000,003 Supplies and Materials $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00 $10,425.83 $10,425.83 $19,674.17 $579.27 $18,994.90 63.32%
100.263.6000000.0000.000 Other Objects $12,000.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 ($11,527.82) ($11,527.82) $23,527.82 ($224.55) $23,752.37 197.84%
FUNCTION: Information Services - 263 §$794,064.00 $0.00 $794,064.00 $243,237.29 $243,237.29 $550,826.71 $350,746.38 %200,080.33 25.20%

"100.264.1000000.0000.000 Salaties $904,133.82 $0.00 $904,133.82 $245,880.45 $245,980.45 $658,153.37 $492,045.10 $166,108.27 18.37%
10{.264.2000000.0000,000 Employee Benefits $295,944.18 $0.00 $295,944.18 $97,512.90 $97,512.90 $198,431.28 $160,986.29 $37,444.99  12865%
10:.264.3000000.0000.00¢ Purchased Services $34,700.00 $0.00 $34,700.00 $10,568.71 $10,568.71 $24,131.29 $6,818.59 $17,312.70  49.89%
706.264.4000000.00170,00¢ Supplies and Materals §27,362.00 $0.00 $27,362.00 $1,443.55 $7,443.55 $25,018.45 $3.574.56 $23,343.80  B531%
100-264 8000600.0000.00¢ Other Objecls $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,076.50 $1,076.50 {$1,076.50} $0.00 $1,076.50) 0.00%
FUNCTION: Staff Services - 264 $1,262,140.00 $0.00 $1,262,140.00 $356,582.11 $356,582.11 $905,557.89 $662,424.54 $243,133.35 19.26%

100,266, 1000000.0000.008 Salaries $1,814,856.31 $0.00 $1,814,856.31 $564,751.43 $564,751.43  $1,250,104.88  $1,106,173.01 $143,931.87 7.93%
100.266.2000000.0000.000 Employee Benefils $673,066,19 $0.00 $673,066.19 $226,071.45 $226,071.45 $446,994.74 $409,723.44 $37,271.30 5.54%
"106:266.3600000.0060.00¢ Purchased Services $1,125,424.00 $0.00 $1,125,424.00 $959,096.40 $959,086.40 $166,327.60 $16,915.61 $149,411.99  13.28%
“T00266 4009600, 9060.506 Bupplies and Malerials $144.468.00 $0.00 $144,468.00 $1,849.71 $1,849.71 $742,618.29 1,917.46 $140,700.83  97.39%
100.266.6000000.0000.000 Other Objects $175.50 $0.00 $175.50 $175.50 $175.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  0.00%
FUNCTION: Technology and Data Processing Services - 266 $3,757,990.00 $0.00 $3,757,990.00 $1,751,944.49  $1,751,944.49  §2,006,045.51 $1,534,729.52 $471,315.9¢  12.54%
103.271.1000000.0060.00¢ Salaries $2,117,797.81 $0.00 $2,117,797.81 $491,908.42 $491,908.42  $1,625,880.39 $1,161,084.50 $464,804.8¢  21.95%
100.271,200000¢.0000,00% Emplayee Benefils $494,072.19 $0.00 $494,072,19 $165,523,24 $165,523,24 $328,548.95 $336,600,74 ($8,051,79)  -1.63%
109.271.3000000.0060.003 Purchased Services $217,528.00 $0.00 $217,528.00 $150,337.40 $150,337.40 $67,190.60 $15,939.60 $51,251.00  23.56%
10¢.271.4000000.0000.00¢ Supplies and Materials $21,644.00 %0.00 $21,644.00 $400.00 $400.00 $21,244.00 $0.00 $21,24400  9815%
100.271.5000000.0000.000 Capital Outlay $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $9,097.01 $9,097.01 ($9,097.01) 50.00 ($9,097.01) 0.00%
Printed: 11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Repori:  rptGLGenRptwBudgetAdj 2021.3.13 Page: 9



School District Five of Lexington and Richland

Board Report Expenditures From Date:  7/1/2021 ToDate:  10/31/2021
Fiscal Year: 2021-2022 [ Include pre encumbrance [:] Print accounts with zero balance Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date Range
|:| Exclude inactive accounts with zero balance
Account Number Description Budget Adjustments GL Budget Current YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Bal % Rem
100.271.6000000.G000.000 Other Objects $419,228.00 $872.00 $420,100.00 $315,872.00 $315,872.00 $104,228.00 $0.00 $104,228,00 24.81%
FUNCTION: Pupit Service Activities - 271 $3,270,270.00 $872.00  $3,271,142.00 $1,133,138.07 $1,133,138.07  $2,138,003.93  $1,513,624.84 $624,379.08 19.08%
T00.390.3000005.G000.600 Purchased Services $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,600.00 50.00 30.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 i00.00%
100.390.4000000.0000.000 Supplies and Materials $5,850.00 $0.00 £5,850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,850.00 $0.00 $5,850.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Other Community Services - 390 $20,850.00 $0.00 $20,850.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,850.00 $0.00 $20,850.00 i00.00%
100.412.7000000.0000.000 Transfers $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $15,809.11 $15,809.11 $4,190.89 $0.00 $4,190.89  20.95%
FUNCTION: Payments to Other Governmental Units - 412 $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $15,809.11 $15,800.11 $4,190,89 $0.00 $4,190.80  20.95%
100.425.7000000.0000.000 Transfers $267,897.00 $0.00 $267,897.00 $0.00 $0.00 $267,897.00 $0.00 $267,807.00 100.00%
FUNCTION: Transfer to Food Service Fund - 425 $267,897.00 $0.00 $267,897.00 $0.00 $0.00 $267,897.00 $0.00 $267,897.00 00.00%
Grand Total: $201,694,166.00 $0.00 $201,694,166.00 $50,094,047.44 $50,004,047.44 $151,600,118.56 $135,041,749.85 $16,558,368.71 8.21%
End of Report

Printed: 11/29/2021 4:09:16 PM Report:  rptGLGenRpiwBudgetAd] 2021.3.13 Page: 10



To:

Through:

From:

Date:

Re:

EXHIBIT E

o
m
5
%
/LG‘

2 Q
O, F\A
Ve RICHW

MEMORANDUM

Members of the Board of Trustees

Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

Marty Rawls,
Chief Finance Officer M W
December 7, 2021

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
2020-2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Attached is the 2020-2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report to inform the Board members of the

current financial reporting status. There will be a presentation at the meeting by a representative from
the District’s auditing firm.

A printed copy of the report will be provided to you at the meeting.

Attachment

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road ¢ Irmo, South Carolina 29063 * 803-476-8000



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF

LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Irmo, South Carolina

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF
LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

Irmo, South Carolina

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE
FINANCIAL REPORT
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021

Prepared By
Office of Finance
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties



This page was intentionally left blank.



DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of Transmittal from Administration
Administrative Table of Organization
Principal Officials
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting

FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position (Deficit)
Statement of Activities
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net
Position (Deficit)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental
Funds

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and
Actual — General Fund

Statement of Net Position (Deficit) — Proprietary Fund Type — Enterprise Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position (Deficit) —
Proprietary Fund Type — Enterprise Fund

Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund Type — Enterprise Fund

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Page

3-9
10
11
12
13

14

16-18

19-25
27

29
30

31

32

33

34

35
36

37
38
39-73



DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Financial Section (Continued)

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability — SCRS and
PORS

Schedule of the District's Contributions — SCRS and PORS

Schedule of the District’'s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability — SCRHITF and
SCLTDITF

Schedule of the District’'s Contributions — SCRHITF and SCLTDITF
Other Supplementary Information
GENERAL FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Special Revenue Fund — Special Projects Funds

Summary Schedule of Designated State Restricted Grants and Other Special Projects
Programs — Special Revenue Fund — Special Projects Funds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — All Programs —
Special Revenue Fund — Education Improvement Act

Summary Schedule By Program — Special Revenue Fund — Education Improvement Act

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Special Revenue Fund - Food Service Fund

DEBT SERVICE FUND
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Debt Service Fund
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — School Building
Fund

ENTERPRISE FUND

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (Deficit) — Proprietary
Fund Type — After School Program

SOUTH CAROLINA STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION SCHEDULES
Location Reconciliation Schedule

Detailed Schedule of Due to State Department of Education/Federal Government

Page

75

77
78

79
80
81
83

85-92
93

95-99

100

101-105
106

107-108
109
111-112
113

115-116
117

119-120
122
124
125



DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) 126
Net Position by Component 128
Expenses, Program Revenues, and Net (Expense) Revenue 129
General Revenues and Total Change in Net Position 130
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds 131
Governmental Funds Revenues 132
Governmental Funds Expenditures by Function and Debt Service Ratios 133
Governmental Funds Other Financing Sources and Uses and Net Change in Fund Balances 134
Assessed Value and Estimated Value of Taxable Property 135-136
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 137-138
Principal Property Taxpayers 139-140
Property Tax Levies and Collections 141-142
Outstanding Debt by Type 143
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 144
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt 145
Legal Debt Margin Information 146
Demographic and Economic Statistics 147
Principal Employers 148-149
Full-Time Equivalents Personnel Allocations by Type 150
Operating Statistics 151
Teacher Base Salaries 152
School Building Information 153-155
SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 156
Independent Auditor’'s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards 158-159
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 160-161
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 162-163
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 164

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 165



INTRODUCTORY SECTION




This page was intentionally left blank.



November 29, 2021

To the Board of Trustees and Citizens of
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

State law requires that all school districts publish within six months of the close of each fiscal year a
complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties (the
District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the District.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
the management of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the District’s assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the District’s
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, School District Five of Lexington and Richiand Counties’ comprehensive
framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance
that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is compiete and reliable in all material
respects.

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes the transmittal letter, the list of principal
officials, and the organizational chart. The financial section includes the basic financial statements, the
combining and individual fund financial statements, and schedules, as well as required supplementary
information. Also included in the financial section is the independent auditor’s report on these financial
statements. The statistical section reflects social and economic data, financial trends, and the fiscal
capacity of the District. The final section is the single audit section.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties’ financial statements have been audited by
Burkett, Burkett & Burkett, Certified Public Accountants, P.A. The goa! of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,



evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering the unmodified opinion that School District Five of Lexington and
Richland Counties’ financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the
financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of School District Five of Lexington and Richland
Counties was a part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs
of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the
independent auditor to report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on
the audited government’s internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special
emphasis on internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards.
These reports are available in the single audit section of this annual comprehensive financial report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the formm of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
{MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties’ MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties is widely recognized as one of the top academic
school systems in South Carolina, recently being named the #2 K-12 Public School District in the state
by Niche. The District was organized by action of the Lexington County Board of Education in 1951 and
the Richland County Board of Education in 1952. The actions of the Boards of Education consolidated
several smaller school districts in the Counties. In addition to School District Five of Lexington and
Richiand Counties, there are four other school districts in Lexington County and two other school
districts in Richland County.

The District encompasses a land area of approximately 196 square miles, of which approximately one-
half is situated in each of Lexington and Richland Counties. The District consists of the northern portion
of Lexington County lying north of Lake Murray and the Saluda River, and the northwestern portion of
Richland County lying south of the Broad River. The District is primarily a residential suburb located to
the northwest of the City of Columbia, the State Capital. The towns of Irmo and Chapin are included in
the District. The District has three attendance areas: irmo, Dutch Fork, and Chapin.

The District has thirteen elementary schools, two intermediate schools, three middle schools, four high
schools, a career and technology center, and an alternative learning academy that serves students
located in the District.

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties is governed by a seven-member Board of
Trustees {the Board). All members of the Board are required to be residents of the District as well as
the county they represent. Four trustees represent the portion of the District located within Lexington
County and three represent the portion of the District located in Richland County. Each trustee is
elected to a four-year term by the registered voters in their respective county. The Board conducts



yearly elections in November to elect a Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary.

The Board of Trustees is the District’s official policy-making entity. The Board formulates policies to
enhance educational opportunities in the District by interpreting the needs and goals of the
community. The Board also seeks to develop and maintain communication among the various
constituencies served by the schools. The Board of Trustees normally holds two regular monthly
meetings, on the second and fourth Mondays of each month.

Guided by the policies of the Board, the District provides a broad spectrum of elementary and
secondary programs to meet the needs of the District’s diverse student population. These programs
complement each other to provide a total program that is comprehensive, highly cost-effective, and
that meets the mission statement of the District. The mission, stated as follows from the strategic plan,
was developed by a committee of citizens and school district personnel; and was adopted by the Board
of Trustees of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties.

The mission of Schoof District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties, in
partnership with the community, is to provide challenging curricula
with high expectations for learning that develop productive citizens who
can solve problems and contribute to a global society.

In fiscal year 2020-2021, the District provided comprehensive educational services for 16,444 students
grade kindergarten through twelve. These District educational services range from child development
(3 and 4 year olds) to a full program of instruction including continuing education for adults. Included in
the programs are: academically gifted and talented classes for students in grades three through twelve;
fourteen magnet programs at eleven sites; three-year old preschool classes for children with
developmental delays; child development classes that provide interventions for four-year-old children
to better prepare them for school; a full day five-year-old kindergarten program; early intervention
services for students who need more instruction or re-teaching of basic skills in the areas of reading,
English language arts, and mathematics; instructional opportunities in the visual and performing arts;
instruction in world languages; special education programs for all students who meet the criteria for the
recognized areas of disability; an alternative learning center for middle and high school students; at risk
programs to reduce the potential for students dropping out of school; and a variety of elective courses
in order for high school students to complete their Individual Graduation Plans. All high schools and The
Center for Advanced Technical Studies offer career and technical courses. Also, for faculty and staff,
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties offers extensive professional development
related to effective teacher collaboration, use of classroom, state and benchmark assessment data,
differentiation of instruction to meet students’ individual needs, and the infusion of technology into
the instructional programs in all schools.

Each year School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties uses an extensive budgeting process
to develop an annual budget for the District. The appropriated budget is prepared by function {(e.g.,
student instruction), object {e.g., supplies), school and department (e.g., Irmo High School).

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for the general fund as noted in the table of
contents as required supplementary information. This annual budget for the general fund serves as the
foundation for the District’s financial planning and control. The District’s management then presents
the proposed budget to the Board for study and review during the months of March, April, May, and
June. The Board conducts two public readings of the proposed budget and holds at least one public



hearing advertised for public input on the proposed budget before adopting the budget no later than
June 30, the close of the fiscal year.

Factors Affecting Financial Conditions

Infarmation presented in the financial statements is best understood when considered from a broader
perspective of the specific environment within which School District Five of Lexington and Richland
Counties operates.

Economic conditions and outlook. School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties enjoys a
relatively favorable economic environment. Local indicators continue to give a positive outlook for
stability. The District is located within the Columbia Metropolitan Statistical Area {MSA}, which includes
Richland County and Lexington County. The 2020 estimated populations of Richland County and
Lexington County were 416,147 and 293,991, respectively. In 2018, the total population in School
District Five of Lexington and Richiand Counties was estimated at 100,406. The District is a suburban
school district located near the City of Columbia, the State Capital.

Residential subdivisions and commercial/business areas of the District are stable with continued
evidence of growth. Many of the residential subdivisions are located on or around the shores of Lake
Murray that continue to attract upscale residential housing and commercial development. The
Harbison area of the District continues to be one of the fastest growing business areas as is evidenced
by the location of additional businesses in and around the Columbiana Mall area. Growth continues
away from the mall area along Dutch Fork Road.

A number of major corporate enterprises, which contribute to a stable economy, are located in or near
the District in Lexington and Richland Counties. Included among the larger corporate enterprises in
Lexington County are Lexington Medical Center, Dominion Energy, Amazon.com, Inc., Michelin North
America, Inc., United Parcel Service, Nephron Pharmaceuticals, Spectrum, HireRight, Walter P. Rawl &
Sons, Inc. Included among the larger corporate enterprises in Richland County are Prisma Health,
BlueCross BlueShield of SC, AT&T South Carolina, Providence Health, TRANE — Columbia Center of
Excellence, Colonial Life & Accident Insurance, Palmetto GBA, LLC, Westinghouse Electric Co. LLC, Allied
Universal Security and Teleperformance (TPUSA).

Based on information from Lexington and Richland County, both counties continue to attract industry
as well as residential developers. Factors that influence that growth are the central location in South
Carolina and the access to transportation infrastructure. Based on this growth and the additional job
opportunities, long-term economic growth is expected to continue for the foreseeable future in
Lexington and Richland Counties and the District.

The median family income for 2019, the last year available, was $62,059 for Lexington County and
$52,905 for Richland County.  Per capita personal income for 2019, the last year available, was

$47,992 for Lexington County and $47,299 for Richland County. The state per capita income for this
same period was $52,360, and in the United States was $66,060. As the economy has recovered from
the COVID-19 shutdown, the unemployment rates have improved. The unemployment rate for
Lexington County as of June 2021 was 3.5 percent and for Richland County was 4.6 percent. The state
and national unemployment rates for the same period were 4.5 percent and 5.9 percent, respectively.



Long-term financial planning. Student enroliment in the District is recovering from the dip due to the
COVID-19 virus. We are returning to our pre-pandemic enroliment levels and expect to see the growth
continue as it was in 2019-2020. In order to accommodate future growth in the northwest portion of the
District and to eliminate the use of portable classrooms at two elementary schools, the District opened
a new elementary school, Piney Woods Elementary, in August of 2021, In order to accomplish this, on
May 20, 2019 the Board of Trustees of the District approved a $30 million bond issuance to be repaid in
three years. These bonds are being financed with the addition of 20.6 mills of taxes added to the
District’s debt service levy, effective on property tax bills issued for calendar year 2019. The millage
increase is within the limit of district bonded indebtedness as established in Article X of the South
Carolina Constitution. In reviewing the District’s debt liabilities for 2021-2022, the Board approved
lowering the debt service levy to 69.5 mills. Richland and Lexington Counties continue to levy an
additional one-cent tax which gives taxpayers a credit on their property tax bills.

During the 1977 session of the S. C. General Assembly, the State Legislature adopted an amendment,
Section 59-71-155, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, which provides for the
establishment of a mechanism for the timely advance of funds from the State’s General Fund to pay
directly to school district paying agents amounts needed for debt service on general obligation bonds.

Moody's and Standard & Poor’s have issued public statements indicating the statutory amendment as
significantly strengthening to the legal structure of the State’s credit enhancement for school districts
in the State. This credit enhancement has been identified as a factor in the recent reports from the
Rating Agencies that school districts in this State may qualify for enhanced rating of Aal and AA,
respectively by these rating agencies.

As evidenced by the financial statements contained in this report, capital projects are one of the main
areas of focus in financial planning. The District’s oldest buildings were constructed in 1933, 1953, 1955
and 1964, and have undergone major renovations. Other facilities were constructed from 1966 through
2021. A complete listing of school sites with ages, square footage, capacity and enrollment can be found
on Table 21 of the statistical section of this report as referenced in the table of contents.

Relevant financial policies. Board Policy requires that the District maintain an undesignated reserve
fund consistent with the medial average of school districts that maintain “AA” ratings. This amount
generally ranges from 15% to 18% of the general fund budgeted expenditures. The District’s total
reserve fund exceeds that amount and meets the unreserved fund requirement without funds that have
been designated for other purposes.

Major Initiatives. In April 2015, the District completed a comprehensive accreditation review by
AdvancED, now known as Cognia, a world-wide external accreditation system. As a part of that review
process, the District completed an in-depth study and review of all major operations within the District.
The process included an internal and external review of the five AdvanceED (Cognia) standards, the
District's Strategic Plan, and the goals of the District included in the Standards Assessment Report.
Following a visit and report by the External Review Team, the District’s accreditation was affirmed and
approved on April 22, 2015. The plan included major goals in the areas of student achievement,
teacher/administrator quality, school climate, and District priorities. Continued instructional initiatives
for the District include the multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS) 4K - Sth grade and Middle Level
Intervention (MLI) 6th - 8th grade Programs; Positive Behavioral Interventions and Support (PBIS); iFive
Technology Integration; Professional Learning Committees (PLCs); and Classroom Mosaic. The District
will continue to focus upon these goals and initiatives, reviewing the strategic plan each year. Necessary



funding to carry out these goals and initiatives and for the accreditation process has been included in
the District’s budget. Details for each of the major goals referenced above are included in the District’s
Strategic Plan.

Awards and Acknowledgements

o The district was recognized as a National Board Accomplished District by the National Board for
Professional teaching Standards, a national nonprofit arganization that certifies teachers based on a
rigorous set of evaluations and standards. The program recognizes school districts across the country
that have 20% or more of its teachers that have achieved National Board certification. There are
290 National Board Certified Teachers {NBCT) in School District Five.

e The district had 108 students named South Caroclina Junior Scholars for the 2020-2021 school year.
Developed by the South Carolina Department of Education during the 1985-1986 school year the SC
Junior Scholars program is designed to identify eighth grade students with exceptional academic talent
based on PSAT scores and other measures.

s A School District Five Teacher was selected as the 2022 South Carolina Teacher of the Year. Amy
Carter receives a total of $25,000 and is provided with a brand new BMW to use while serving for
one year as a roving ambassador providing mentoring, attending speaking engagements, working
with teacher cadets and teaching fellows, leading the State Teacher Forum, and serving as the state
spokespersan for over 50,000 educators.

¢ Sixteen students from School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties have been announced
as semifinalists in the 2021-2022 National Merit Scholarship program. These academically
talented high school students from the District are represented in the nationwide pool of
semifinalists which represents less than one percent of U.S. high school seniors.

e A School District Five High School Principal, Dr. Gerald Gary, was named by the South
Carolina Association of School Administrators (SCASA) as the 2021 South Carolina Secondary Level
Principal of the Year. Under the leadership of Gary, Dutch Fork High School was named a Palmetto’s
Finest School in May 2020. Gary was also named South Carolina’s 2017 Middle Level Principal of
the Year by SC Association of School Administrators (SCASA).

* The District’s SkillsUSA Chapter was named as a National Models of Excellence school for 2021 by
SkillsUSA. The Center for Advanced Technical Studies (The Center) is one of 24 schools nationwide
to receive this honor and the only school in South Carolina to receive it. This is the second year in
a row that the SkillsUSA chapter at the The Center has been recognized for this honor.

e A School District Five junior was named the 2021 United States Senate Youth Program Scholarship
winner by the South Carolina Department of Education. He was one of two delegates selected to
represent South Carolina in the merit- based program that brings students together for an
extensive week-long study of the federal government. Student delegates also receive a $10,000
scholarship

¢ The District serves more than 2,500 students with disabilities annually, providing a variety of
programs for K-12 students. The Department of Special Services provides leadership in the planning



and improvement of services for students with disabilities in the District. Award-winning initiatives
for these students include Project SEARCH and BOOM (Building Occupational Opportunities in the
Midlands). Project SEARCH is a business-led school-to-work transition model with demonstrated
success in developing internships for students with intellectual and developmental disabilities who
are in their last year of high school. The program helps lead the interns into integrated and
competitive employment with prevailing wages. BOOM, {Building Occupational Opportunities in
the Midlands), features students with disabilities from School District Five, Richland One and
Richland Two in a semester-long course where they learn construction at Midlands Technical
College’s airport campus.

+ The Government Finance Officers Association {GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {(CAFR) for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. This is the
seventeenth consecutive year that the District has received this prestigious award.

e The District was also awarded The Association of School Business Officials (ASBO) International
Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting. This is the eighteenth consecutive year that the
District has received this prestigiousaward.

A Certificate of Achievement anda Certificate of Excellence arevalid for a period ofoneyearonly. We
believe our current report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement and Certificate of
Excellence program requirements. We planto submititto GFOA and ASBO for consideration.

The preparation of this report on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Office of Finance. All members of the
department as well as members of other various departments have our sincere appreciation for
their contributions made in the preparation of thisreport.

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Board of Trustees, preparation of this report
would not have been possible.

Respectfully submitted,

it Lt L —

Marty Rawls Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.,
Chief Finance Officer Interim Superintendent




Community
|
Board of
Trustees
|
Dr. Christina Melton . Katrina Goggins
District Superintendent Director of Communications
I 1 1 1 ]
Michael Guliano Martv Rawl Dr. Michael Harris Dr. Tamara Turner Todd Bedenbaugh
Chief Instructional Chief I?' y awosff_ Chief Planning & Administrative Chief Human Resources Executive Director
Officer Ief Finance Lthcer Officer Officer of Operations
<chool - Alvin Pressley Connie Frick Paula Wright Dr. Reggie Wicker Dave Weissman
choo . j— — )
b Principals " DIEER0 & Director of | DUCIEE] € Director of Personnel ' Director of
. Secondary Education Finance SerrTer Eaika] AUl IEap e Transportation
Dr. Al Gates . Tina McCaskill Lynda Robinson Coordi . e Dr. Elizabeth Fisher Melanie Cohen Harold Williams
R - . 5 t_oorgin;tor cI)W ’ Assistant Coordinator . '
Director of Director of Coordinator of Arenting & >0cIaL Wor of Adult Education Coordinator of Coordinator of
CATE Elementary Education pr— Purchasing Davida Price Personnel Transportation
Dr_Andie SI - Vann Holden
. . r. Angie Slatton [
Instructional Coordinators g v fOOFrd'“‘f’}tor of [ _ e
ELA — Dr. Robin Cox e . outh & Family Services Director of Planning & —_— _
: Director of A tabilit Director of
Math — Amy Taylor . : ccountability U _
. . Special Services Kelly Brown Facilities Operations
Social Studies — Melony Sanford Dr. Lais Zachary
Science — Elizabeth Boland Jinni Friend SEE Sendezs W Jenny Garris
Gifted / Talented / Fine Arts — | Officer - CaariTieie G
. Virginia Tate Coordinator of Assessment & Eval. T Director of
Acad. ASSIStanCG_f_PBI’Sf. Dev. — Special Services Technology
Safety Officers :
i - Sara Wheel . Justin Thomas
Instructional Tech — Carol Lunsford ara vvheeler e
e Magnet Grant Area 2 Dutch. Fork:.Ross Wise Coordinator of
Project Director Area 3 Irmo: Curtis Cannon "= Student Information
Systems

June 30, 2021

10



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON & RICHLAND COUNTIES
PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

Year Ended June 30, 2021

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Ms. Jan Hammond
Mr. Ken Loveless
Ms. Nikki Gardner

Ms. Rebecca Blackburn Hines

Mr. Matt Hogan
Ms. Catherine Huddle
Mr. Ed White

Dr. Christina Melton
Ms. Katrina Goggins
Dr. Michael Harris

Dr. Tamara D. Turner
Mr. Michael Guliano
Ms. Marty Rawls

Mr. Todd Bedenbaugh

EXECUTIVE STAFF

1"

Chairman

Vice Chairman
Secretary

Board Member
Board Member
Board Member
Board Member

Superintendent

Director of Communications

Chief Planning & Administrative Officer
Chief Human Resources Officer

Chief Instructional Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Executive Director of Operations



P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

School District Five
of Lexington and Richland Counties
South Carolina

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2020

Chectopbo. P- Horniel

Executive Director/CEO

12



ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS

INTERNATIONAL

The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting
is presented to

School District Five of Lexington and
Richland Counties

for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020.

The district report meets the criteria established for
ASBO International’s Certificate of Excellence.

M 4Sh CERTIFICATE
-% EXCELLENCE

. . IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

W. Edward Chabal David J. Lewis
President Executive Director




FINANCIAL SECTION

14




This page was intentionally left blank.

15



BURKETT
BURKETT&BURKETT

Certified Public Accountants, PA.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Board Chair and Members of the Board of Trustees
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Irmo, South Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, and each major fund of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
(“the School District”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the School District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

WEST COLUMBIA ROCK HILL
3101 SUNSET BLVD. - WEST COLUMBIA, SC 29169 128 EAST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
PosT OFFICE BOX 2044 - WEST COLUMBIA, SC 29171 ROCK HiLL, SC 29730
MAIN LINE: 803.794.3712 - MAIN FAX: 803.739.4394 16 MAIN LINE: 803.325.1660 - FAX LINE: 803.325.1665

WWW.BURKETTCPAS.COM WWW.BURKETTCPAS.COM



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Page 2 of 3

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each
major fund of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties, as of June 30, 2021, and
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary information for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the pension schedules and the OPEB schedules, as listed in
the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the School District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
supplementary information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

17



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Page 3 of 3

The supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information
and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November
29, 2021 on our consideration of the School District’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the School District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

BVA/M-H/ BJL(H”& 7/32\//"%1"/’

Burkett Burkett & Burkett
Certified Public Accountants, P.A.
West Columbia, South Carolina
November 29, 2021

18



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counies
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

As management of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties (District), we offer readers of the District's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended.
June 30, 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional informatior
that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 3-9 of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Major financial highlights for 2021 include:

0 The District’s total net position increased $9,833,287 for the 2020-2021 fiscal year. Net position of
governmental activities increased by $9,862,374 and net position of business-type activities decreased
by $29,087. Total revenues were $281,616,377 while total expenses were $276,486,495.

0 Total revenues increased $9,373,883 (3.4%) from $272,242,494 in fiscal year 2020 to $281,616,377 in
fiscal year 2021. Total expenses increased $18,487,698 (7.2%), from $257,998,797 in fiscal year 2020
to $276,486,495 in fiscal year2021.

o Governmental funds reported a total decrease of $6,671,849 in the fund balance, which included a
$4,686,549 increase to the general fund, a $222,930 increase to the special revenue-special project
funds, a $985,464 increase to the food service fund, a $5,230,428 increase to the debt service fund, anc
a $17,797,509 decrease to the capital projects fund.

0 The General Fund total fund balance is $51,205,387 as of June 30, 2021, an increase of 10.1% from
June 30, 2020.

o Total revenue for the District’s principal operating fund, the general fund, was $194,993,617, with an
additional $6,177,484, consisting of transfers from the special revenue and EIA funds for teacher salary
supplement increases and sale of capital assests. Total expenditures in the general fund were
$196,277,170 including $119,119,737 for instruction, $77,042,322 for support, $36,899 for
intergovernmental expenditures, and $78,212 in capital outlay.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial
statements. The District's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) the notes to financial statements. This report also includes
supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements
themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents financial information on all of the District’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave).

19



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counies
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the District include instruction, support services, and community services. The business-type activities
of the District include food service and after school operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 29-30 of this report.

Fund Financial StatementsThe remaining financial statements focus on individual parts of the District, reporting

its operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The District, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds. In accordance with GASB 84, as of July 1, 2020, the
student (pupil) activity fund has been reported in the Special Revenue Fund — Special Projects rather than classified
as an agency fund.

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Suct
information may be useful in assessing a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. The District
maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for
the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund-Special Projects, Special Revenue Fund — Education Improvement Act
(EIA), Debt Service Fund and the Capital Projects Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has bee
provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 31-35 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the
same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The District uses
enterprise funds to account for its after school operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information
as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36-38 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the
government. The District had no Fiduciary Funds for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Notes to the Financial StatementsThe notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full

understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 39-73 of this report.

20



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counies
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Other Information. The combining statements and individual fund financial schedules are included in the
supplementary section. The pension and OPEB schedules are provided in the required supplementary information
section.

Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In

the case of the District, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources exceeded assets and deferred outflows of
resources by $171,503,018, at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The following table provides a summary of the District’s net position for 2021 compared to 2020.

Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Current and Other Assets  $ 130,597,928 $ 136,493,207 $ 356,262 S 365,677 $ 130,954,190 S 136,858,884
Net Capital Assets 373,778,294 369,549,527 - - 373,778,294 369,549,527
Total Assets 504,376,222 506,042,734 356,262 365,677 504,732,484 506,408,411
Deferred Outflows of
Resources 98,093,233 52,167,519 359,960 313,026 98,453,193 52,480,545
Current and Other
Liabilities 65,543,914 70,201,016 86 81 65,544,000 70,201,097
Long-term Liabilities 685,816,639 640,743,895 3,027,475 2,954,737 688,844,114 643,698,632
Total Liabilities 751,360,553 710,944,911 3,027,561 2,954,818 754,388,114 713,899,729
Deferred Inflows of
Resources 20,135,988 26,154,802 164,593 170,730 20,300,581 26,325,532
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital
Assets 210,468,717 198,474,597 - - 210,468,717 198,474,597
Restricted 23,451,956 11,770,036 - - 23,451,956 11,770,036
Unrestricted (402,947,759) (389,134,093) (2,475,932) (2,446,845) (405,423,691) (391,580,938)
Total Net Position $ (169,027,086) S (178,889,460) $ (2,475,932) S (2,446,845) $ (171,503,018) S (181,336,305)

The District’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities,
the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital
assets. By far the largest portion of the District’'s net position reflects investment in capital assets (e.g., land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment, and construction in progress); less
any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The District uses these capital assets to provide services
its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must |
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The District’s overall net position increased by $9,833,287 during 2020-2021. Significant current year transactions,
such as the addition of $21,695,126 in capital assets through construction of school improvements, and purchase:
of furniture, equipment and vehicles less the additional accumulated depreciation of $18,617,700 have had an
impact on the Statement of Net Position.

21



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Government-wide Overall Financial Analysis (Continued)
The following table shows the changes in the District’s net position for 2021 compared to 2020:

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Revenue
Program Revenue:

Charges for Services $ 755,618 S 2,568,627 $ 277,899 S 797,358 $ 1,033,517 S 3,365,985

Operating Grants 115,282,993 108,659,709 - - 115,282,993 108,659,709
General Revenue:

Ad Valorem Taxes and Fees 116,485,200 111,736,561 - - 116,485,200 111,736,561

Unrestricted Grants 47,158,361 46,275,478 - - 47,158,361 46,275,478

Investment Earnings & Disposals 176,054 1,510,401 - - 176,054 1,510,401

Other General Revenue 1,480,252 631,132 - 63,228 1,480,252 694,360
Total Revenue 281,338,478 271,381,908 277,899 860,586 281,616,377 272,242,494
Instruction Services 144,866,989 134,277,651 - B 144,866,989 134,277,651
Support Services 124,262,434 116,540,697 - - 124,262,434 116,540,697
Community Services 56,171 24,515 - - 56,171 24,515
Interest on Long-Term Debt 6,993,915 6,159,923 - - 6,993,915 6,159,923
After School - - 306,986 996,011 306,986 996,011
Total Expenses 276,179,509 257,002,786 306,986 996,011 276,486,495 257,998,797
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 5,158,969 14,379,122 (29,087) (135,425) 5,129,882 14,243,697
Net Position , Beginning of Year (178,889,460) (193,268,582) (2,446,845) (2,311,420) (181,336,305) (195,580,002)
Cumulative Change in Accounting
Principle - GASB #84 4,703,405 - 4,703,405
Net Position, End of Year $ (169,027,086) S (178,889,460) $ (2,475,932) $ (2,446,845) $ (171,503,018) S (181,336,305)

Governmental Activities. The following table presents the cost of the District’s four major functional
activities: instruction service, support service, community service, and interest on long-term debt. The table
also shows each function's net cost (total cost less charges for services generated by the activities and
intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The net cost shows the financial burden that was
placed on the State and the District's taxpayers by each of these functions. In other words, it shows the amount
supported by tax revenue and unrestricted funds.

Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2021 2020 2021 2020
Instruction Services $ 144,866,989 S 134,277,651 $ (39,878,753) S (33,423,766)
Support Services 124,262,434 116,540,697 (113,212,059) (106,166,246)
Community Services 56,171 24,515 (56,171) (24,515)
Interest (Long-Term Debt) 6,993,915 6,159,923 (6,993,915) (6,159,923)
Totals $ 276,179,509 S 257,002,786 $ (160,140,898) S (145,774,450)

Business-Type ActivitiesBusiness-type activities include the District’'s after school programs. These programs
had revenues of $277,899, expenses of $306,986. This resulted in net decrease of $29,087.

22



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

Financial Analysis of Governmental Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental Funds The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's ne
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At June 30, 2021, the District’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $87,168,241, a decrease of
$1,968,444 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 40.7% of this amount ($35,469,778) constitutes
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of the fund
balance is either non-spendable or restricted to indicate that it is 1) not in spendable form ($5,137,669) or

2) restricted for particular purposes ($35,756,079) or 3) assigned for a specific purpose ($10,804,715).

The general fund is the principal operating fund of the District. The increase in fund balance in the general fund for

the fiscal year was $4,686,838. This increase is primarily due to increased property tax revenue. Both Lexington

and Richland counties reassessed their properties in 2020. The growth in taxable values of property and high
collection rates accounted for actual receipts of 4.9% over budgeted amounts in property tax revenue. After

nonspendable fund balances for inventories and prepaid expenditures, and funds assigned for special purposes, th
unassigned fund balance was $35,469,778. The Board of Trustees has a policy to provide for sound fiscal
management and stability. The policy requires that the District maintain an undesignated operating reserve fund of
approximately 15 to 18 percent of the general fund budgeted expenditures.

The special revenue fund — special projects fund and special revenue fund — EIA funds are used to account for
revenues derived from the state of South Carolina and the federal government and student activity funds. Other thar
student activity funds, the District’'s special revenue funds do not typically have fund balances as revenues should be
expended, deferred, or returned to the grantor. The student activity funds carried a fund balance of $4,926,335
which are shown as restricted in the District’s financial statements. The net increase in fund balance is due to
student activity funds being classified as special revenue instead of agency funds beginning with fiscal year 2021,
due to the implementation of GASB No. 84.

The food service fund had a total fund balance of $4,048,856, of which $206,775 is non-spendable and $3,842,081
is restricted.

The debt service fund had a total fund balance of $15,030,658, all of which is restricted for the payment of debt
service. This is an increase of $5,230,428 from the prior year. The District maintains sufficient fund balance in the
debt service fund to pay the ensuing six-month principal and interest payments on general obligation debt.

The capital projects fund showed a fund balance decrease of $17,797,509. The ending balance is $11,957,005. Th
change was attributable to the completion of capital projects.

Proprietary Funds. The District’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. The proprietary funds (after school programs) showed
a decrease in net position of $29,087.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to South Carolina law. The District amended the general fund budget
for decreases in total budgeted revenues. Minor categorical budget amendments were made during the year to
insure expenditures were recorded in the proper account codes as defined by the South Carolina Department of
Education. Budgeted general fund revenue and expenditures for the 2020-2021 fiscal year increased by 0.3% and
0.4% respectively. Revenue has a positive variance of $4,666,035. Actual expenditures resulted in a negative
variance of $20,395.

23



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets
At June 30, 2021, the District had $373,778,294 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land,
buildings, site improvements, furniture, equipment, vehicles, and library books. This represents a net increase
of $4,228,767 (1.1%) for the 2020 - 2021 fiscal year. For more detailed information on capital asset activity see
Note 4 - Capital Assets.

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

2021 2020
Land S 8,844,166 S 8,844,166
Buildings 487,960,646 479,157,379
Site Improvements 37,073,510 36,385,753
Furniture and Equipment 27,379,209 26,730,444
Construction in Progress 28,286,097 16,730,760
Total Before Accumulated Depreciation 589,543,628 567,848,502
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 215,765,334 198,298,975
Net Capital Assets $ 373,778,294 S 369,549,527

Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2021, the District had total outstanding long-term debt of $168,546,000. The general obligation
debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the District as well as the State of South Carolina. The District’s
total long-term debt as of June 30, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Long-Term Debt at June 30

Governmental Activities

2021 2020
November 19, 2013 Issue $ 23,066,000 S 25,698,000
November 9, 2015 Issue 48,030,000 51,890,000
June 9, 2010 Issue 10,000,000 10,000,000
August 21, 2012 Issue 76,855,000 83,120,000
September 1, 2019 Issue 10,595,000 20,930,000
Lease Acquisition - April 3, 2017 Issue - 487,441
Totals $ 168,546,000 S 192,125,441

24



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2021

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)

Moody’s Investors Service has assigned an Aal enhanced rating with a stable outlook and an Aa2 underlying
rating to the District’'s General Obligation Bonds. Standard & Poor’s rates the District’'s bonds AA/Stable long-
term and AA/Stable School Issuer. The Aal enhanced rating and AA/Stable rating are based on the additional
security provided by the South Carolina School District Credit Enhancement Program (SCSDCEP). The program
assures timely debt service payment through county and state government coordination. The SCSDCEP is a
state-backed enhancement program that shadows the state’s rating and consequently carries the stable outlook
that is assigned to the state’s AAA general obligation rating. School districts in South Carolina may issue up to
8% of their assessed value without voter approval. On June 30, 2021, the District's debt capacity was
approximately $46,750,320. The District issued Series 2021A $10,228,200 SCAGO general obligation bonds
leaving the legal debt limit margin of $25,927,120 at year end.

Other obligations include accrued obligations such as annual leave accumulated. More detailed information on
these obligations is available in Note 7 - Long-Term Debt of the financial statements (page 67).

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’ S BUDGET AND RATES

The District's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the District’s budget and tax
rates for 2021 - 2022. The most important factor affecting the budget for the near future is the General Assembly
struggles with allocating the State’s limited resources and fully funding the education funding formula as
established in law.

When setting the 2021-2022 fiscal year budget, the District focused on mental health services, security,
maintaining quality instructional programs in the classrooms and pupil teacher ratios in all schools at the ratio
set in Board Policy. The District’s original general fund budget for fiscal year 2021-2022 was approved by the
Board of Trustees on June 14, 2021 for $201,694,166.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Office of Finance, School
District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties, 1020 Dutch Fork Road, Irmo, SC, 29063. In addition, this
financial report may be found on the District’s websii@atv.lexrich5.org

25



This page was intentionally left blank.

26



BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a summary overview of the financial position of all funds and account
groups and the operating results of all funds. They also serve as an introduction to the more detailed
statements and schedules that follow.

27




This page was intentionally left blank.

28



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
June 30, 2021

Assets

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments

Property Tax Receivable, Net
Accrued Interest

Internal Balances

Due From County Government
Prepaid Expenses

Inventories - Supply & Materials
Other Receivables

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation):

Land

Buildings

Site Improvements

Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles
Construction in Progress

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net Pension Deferred Outflows
Net OPEB Deferred Outflows
Unamortized Loss on Refunding - Debt Defeasance

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Payroll Related Liabilities
Due to State Department of Education
Bonds Payable
Retainage Payable
Unearned Revenue
Arbitrage Rebate Liability
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Pension Deferred Inflows
Net OPEB Deferred Inflows

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position (Deficit)

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted For:
Special Revenue - Student Activities
Special Revenue - Food Service
Debt Service

Net Position (Deficit) - Unrestricted

Total Net Position (Deficit)

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Totals
$ 8,033,231 $ - $ 8,033,231
61,545,053 - 61,545,053
7,556,122 - 7,556,122
38,853 - 38,853
(356,262) 356,262 -
41,342,914 - 41,342,914
4,928,134 - 4,928,134
209,535 - 209,535
7,300,348 - 7,300,348
8,844,166 - 8,844,166
306,416,183 - 306,416,183
20,736,708 - 20,736,708
9,495,140 - 9,495,140
28,286,097 - 28,286,097
504,376,222 356,262 504,732,484
44,042,137 214,375 44,256,512
53,649,068 145,585 53,794,653
402,028 - 402,028
98,093,233 359,960 98,453,193
2,445,047 86 2,445,133
13,464,733 - 13,464,733
3,942,730 - 3,942,730
26,783 - 26,783
10,228,200 - 10,228,200
96,796 - 96,796
6,626,771 - 6,626,771
91,253 - 91,253
1,949,335 - 1,949,335
26,672,266 - 26,672,266
150,184,899 - 150,184,899
252,505,923 1,392,562 253,898,485
283,125,817 1,634,913 284,760,730
751,360,553 3,027,561 754,388,114
2,571,173 38,074 2,609,247
17,564,815 126,519 17,691,334
20,135,988 164,593 20,300,581
210,468,717 - 210,468,717
4,926,335 - 4,926,335
4,048,856 - 4,048,856
14,476,765 - 14,476,765
(402,947,759) (2,475,932) (405,423,691)
$ (169,027,086) $ (2,475,932) $ (171,503,018)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

29



Functions/Programs
Governmental Activities:
Instruction
Support Services

Community Services
Interest and Other Charges

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
After School

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Charges Operating Capital Primary Government
For Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
$ 144,866,989 $ 4,149 $ 104,984,087 $ $ (39,878,753) $ - $ (39,878,753)
124,262,434 751,469 10,298,906 (113,212,059) - (113,212,059)
56,171 - - (56,171) - (56,171)
6,993,915 - - (6,993,915) - (6,993,915)
276,179,509 755,618 115,282,993 (160,140,898) - (160,140,898)
306,986 277,899 - - (29,087) (29,087)
306,986 277,899 - - (29,087) (29,087)
$ 276,486,495 $ 1,033,517 $ 115,282,993 $ (160,140,898) (29,087) (160,169,985)
General Revenues:
Property Taxes Levied for:
General Purposes 71,964,850 - 71,964,850
Debt Service 42,410,560 - 42,410,560
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 2,109,790 - 2,109,790
Unrestricted State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 47,158,361 - 47,158,361
Unrestricted Investment Earnings 176,054 - 176,054
Miscellaneous 1,480,252 - 1,480,252
Total General Revenues 165,299,867 - 165,299,867
Change in Net Position 5,158,969 (29,087) 5,129,882
Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning (178,889,460) (2,446,845) (181,336,305)
Cumulative Change in Accounting Principle - GASB #84 4,703,405 - 4,703,405
Net Position (Deficit) - Ending $ (169,027,086) $  (2,475,932) $ (171,503,018)




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2021

Special Revenue Funds

Education Total
Special Improvement Food Debt Capital Governmental
General Projects Act Service Service Projects Funds

Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 7,980,319 - % - $ 52,912 $ - % -8 8,033,231
Investments 59,370,169 - - 2,174,884 - - 61,545,053
Property Tax Receivable, Net 5,854,474 - - - 1,701,648 - 7,556,122
Due From Other Funds - 4,445,968 3,726,075 1,197,366 144,505 23,942,310 33,456,224
Due From County Government 26,801,820 - - - 14,541,094 - 41,342,914
Prepaid Iltems 4,928,134 - - - - - 4,928,134
Inventories - Supplies & Materials 2,760 - - 206,775 - - 209,535
Other Receivables 3,370,578 3,093,085 220,928 615,757 - - 7,300,348
Total Assets $ 108,308,254 7,539,053 % 3,947,003 _$ 4,247,694 $ 16,387,247 _$ 23,942,310 _$ 164,371,561
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 770,986 43,027 $ 23031 $ 38,947 % - % 1,569,056 $ 2,445,047
Accrued Salaries 13,464,733 - - - - - 13,464,733
Accrued Payroll Related Liabilities 3,942,730 - - - - - 3,942,730
Due To Other Funds 33,812,486 - - - - - 33,812,486
Due To State Government - 6,244 20,539 - - 26,783
Bonds Payable - - - - - 10,228,200 10,228,200
Retainage Payable - - - - - 96,796 96,796
Unearned Revenue - 2,563,447 3,903,433 159,891 - - 6,626,771
Arbitrage Rebate Liability - - - - - 91,253 91,253

Total Liabilities 51,990,935 2,612,718 3,947,003 198,838 - 11,985,305 70,734,799

Deferred Inflows
Unavailable Tax Revenues 5,111,932 - - - 1,356,589 - 6,468,521
Total Deferred Inflows 5,111,932 - - - 1,356,589 - 6,468,521

Fund Balances
Non-Spendable 4,930,894 - - 206,775 - - 5,137,669
Restricted - 4,926,335 - 3,842,081 15,030,658 11,957,005 35,756,079
Assigned 10,804,715 - - - - - 10,804,715
Unassigned 35,469,778 - - - - - 35,469,778

Total Fund Balances 51,205,387 4,926,335 - 4,048,856 15,030,658 11,957,005 87,168,241

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 108,308,254 7,539,053 % 3,947,003 % 4,247,694 $ 16,387,247 $ 23,942310 $ 164,371,561

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

31



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (deficit) are different because:
Total Governmental Fund Balances

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds. This is the amount that the cost of the

assets exceeds the accumulated depreciation.

Cost of Assets $ 589,543,628
Accumulated Depreciation (215,765,334)

Interest subsidy receivable on outstanding bonds in governmental accounting is not
receivable in current period and, therefore, has not been reported as an asset in the
funds.

Deferred Outflows (Inflows) resulting from the recognition of the employer's share
of the state's net pension and OPEB liability are not current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred charges from loss on refunding bonds (net of amortization) are not reported
in the funds because they are not current financial resources, but they are reported
in the statement of net position.

Certain unearned revenues reported in the governmental funds are recognized
subject to a reserve for uncollectible amounts in the statement of activities. This is
the additional amount of taxes receivable recognized under the accrual basis.

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Long-Term Debt (168,546,000)
Net Pension Liability (283,125,817)
Net OPEB Liability (252,505,923)
Bond Premiums, Net of Amortization (7,122,610)
Compensated Absences (1,188,555)
Accrued Interest Payable (1,949,335)

87,168,241

373,778,294

38,853

77,555,217

402,028

6,468,521

(714,438,240)

Net Position (Deficit) of Governmental Activities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

32

(169,027,086)




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Special Revenue

Education Total
Special Improvement Food Debt Capital Governmental
General Projects Act Service Service Projects Funds

Revenues
Taxes Levied/Assessed by the LEA $ 71,285,133 $ - $ - $ - $ 42,196,546 $ - $ 113,481,679
Revenue From Local Governmental Units Other Than LEAs 1,724,029 - - - 385,761 - 2,109,790
Tuition 4,149 - - - - - 4,149
Earnings on Investments 81,438 - - 5,094 19,057 70,465 176,054
Pupil Activities - 2,261,951 - - - - 2,261,951
Other Revenue from Local Sources 1,189,879 495,574 - 510,223 - - 2,195,676
Total Local 74,284,628 2,757,525 - 515,317 42,601,364 70,465 120,229,299
State Sources 120,708,989 7,122,702 12,100,406 - 1,698,761 - 141,630,858
Federal Sources - 9,163,005 - 8,676,210 745,375 - 18,584,590
Total Revenues 194,993,617 19,043,232 12,100,406 9,191,527 45,045,500 70,465 280,444,747
Expenditures
Current:

Instruction 119,119,737 8,133,176 5,096,118 - - - 132,349,031

Support Services 77,042,322 8,162,239 1,115,113 8,413,156 - 8,957,197 103,690,027

Community Services - 56,171 - - - - 56,171

Intergovernmental 36,899 1,913,699 - - - - 1,950,598
Debt Service:

Other Professional and Technical Services - - - - 1,750 - 1,750

Redemption of Principal - - - - 23,092,000 487,441 23,579,441

Interest - - - - 7,359,322 12,559 7,371,881

Other Objects - - - - - 53,873 53,873
Capital Outlay 78,212 118,540 223,255 - - 17,718,904 18,138,911
Total Expenditures 196,277,170 18,383,825 6,434,486 8,413,156 30,453,072 27,229,974 287,191,683
Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures (1,283,553) 659,407 5,665,920 778,371 14,592,428 (27,159,509) (6,746,936)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets 75,087 - - - - - 75,087
Transfers In 6,102,397 - - 207,093 - 9,362,000 15,671,490
Transfers Out (207,093) (436,477) (5,665,920) - (9,362,000) - (15,671,490)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,970,391 (436,477) (5,665,920) 207,093 (9,362,000) 9,362,000 75,087
Net Change in Fund Balances 4,686,838 222,930 - 985,464 5,230,428 (17,797,509) (6,671,849)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 46,518,549 - - 3,063,392 9,800,230 29,754,514 89,136,685
Cumulative Change in Accounting Principle - GASB #84 - 4,703,405 - - - - 4,703,405
Fund Balance, Ending of Year $ 51,205,387 $ 4,926,335 $ - $ 4,048,856 $ 15,030,658 $ 11,957,005 $ 87,168,241

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

33



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Amounts reported for the Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and

reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense

exceeded capital outlays in the current period.

Depreciation Expense $ (18,617,700)

Capital Outlay 22,846,467

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, lease purchase) provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction,
however, has any effect on net position. This is the amount that principal repaid during
the year exceeds the amount of debt issued during the year.

Redemption of Principal 23,579,441

Issuance of Long-Term Debt -

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This is the change in loss on refunding bonds amortization and
change in bond premium amortization.

Change in Amortization of Loss on Refunding Bonds (101,510)

Change in Amortization of Bond Premiums 2,084,931

Certain unavailable tax revenues reported in the governmental funds are recognized in
the statement of activities, net of a reserve for uncollectible amounts. This is the
change in the amount of taxes receivable recognized under the accrual basis.

The change in compensated absences reported in the statement of activities does not
require the use of current financial resources, and therefore, is not reported as an
expenditure/revenue in the governmental funds. This is the amount that compensated
absences at the end of the prior year exceeded the compensated absences at the end
of the current year.

Compensated Absences - End of Current Year (1,188,555)

Compensated Absences - End of Prior Year 1,296,878

Retirement and pension expense in the statement of activities is measured by the
District's proportionate share of the SCRS and PORS pension and SCRHITF and

SC LTDITF OPEB total expense. In the governmental funds, however, the expenditure is
measured by the current contributions to the retirement and pension system. This is the
difference between the Current Contributions and the District's proportionate share.

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported
in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the
funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the
statement of activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues,
regardless of when it is due.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

34

$

(6,671,849)

4,228,767

23,579,441

1,983,421

893,731

108,323

(19,288,544)

325,679

5,158,969



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Local $ 70,619,600 $ 70,619,600 $ 74,284,628 $ 3,665,028
State 121,045,056 119,707,982 120,708,989 1,001,007
Total Revenues 191,664,656 190,327,582 194,993,617 4,666,035
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 120,249,361 118,655,614 119,137,778 (482,164)
Support Services 78,325,365 77,560,311 77,102,493 457,818
Community Services 20,850 20,850 - 20,850
Intergovernmental 20,000 20,000 36,899 (16,899)
Total Expenditures 198,615,576 196,256,775 196,277,170 (20,395)
Excess Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (6,950,920) (5,929,193) (1,283,553) 4,645,640
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of Capital Assets - - 75,087 75,087
Transfers from (to) Other Funds 5,929,193 5,929,193 5,895,304 (33,889)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,929,193 5,929,193 5,970,391 41,198
Excess Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses $ (1,021,727) $ - 4,686,838 $ 4,686,838
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 46,518,549
Fund Balance, Ending of Year $ 51,205,387

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

35



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUND

Assets

Current Assets:
Due From Other Funds

Total Current Assets
Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net Pension Deferred Outflows
Net OPEB Deferred Outflows

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Net OPEB Liability
Net Pension Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Pension Deferred Inflows
Net OPEB Deferred Inflows

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position (Deficit)
Unrestricted

Total Net Position (Deficit)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

JUNE 30, 2021

36

After School Program

356,262

356,262

356,262

214,375
145,585

359,960

86

86

1,392,562
1,634,913

3,027,475

3,027,561

38,074
126,519

164,593

(2,475,932)

(2,475,932)




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

After School Program

Operating Revenues

Proceeds of Tuition $ 277,899
Total Operating Revenues 277,899
Operating Expenses

Salaries and Employee Benefits 234,444

Purchased Services 14,048

Supplies and Materials 58,020

Other Operating Costs 474
Total Operating Expenses 306,986
Operating Income (Loss) (29,087)
Change in Net Position (29,087)
Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year (2,446,845)
Net Position (Deficit), End of Year $ (2,475,932)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

37



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

After School Program

Cash Flows from Operation Activities

Received from Patrons $ 277,899

Payments to Employees for Services (214,777)

Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (72,537)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (9,415)
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Transfers from Other Funds 9,415
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 9,415

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents -

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning -

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending $ -

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Net Operating Income (LosS) $ (29,087)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:

Pension Expense 10,372
OPEB Expense 9,295
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
(Decrease) in Accounts Payable 5
Total Adjustments 19,672
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (9,415)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

38



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of
the more significant accounting policies:

Reporting Entity

School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties (the District) is a Local Education Agency empowered by State
law with the responsibility to oversee and control all activities related to public school education in Lexington and
Richland Counties, South Carolina. The Board receives state, local and federal government funding and must adhere
to the legal requirements of each funding entity. The District operates under the direction of an elected seven member
Board of Trustees, with a superintendent serving as the chief administrative officer, and provides education services
to 16,444 students pre-kindergarten through grade twelve.

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance to their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion could cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.
Based on the following criteria, the District has determined it has no component units and it is not a component unit
of any other organization. Therefore, the District reports as a primary entity.

The primary entity is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body including
situations in which the voting majority consists of the primary entity’s officials serving as required by law and (1) it is
able to impose its will on that organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary entity. The primary entity also may be financially
accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on it even if it does not appoint a voting majority of the board. An
organization is fiscally dependent on the primary entity that holds one or more of the following powers: determine its
budget without another government having the authority to approve and modify that budget, levy taxes or set rates or
charges without approval by another government, and issue bonded debt without approval by another government.

Basis of presentation: The financial statement presentation for the District meets the requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The financial statement presentation provides a comprehensive entity- wide
perspective of the District’'s net position, revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows that replaces
the fund-group perspective previously required.

Government-wide Statements : The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-
type activities of the District. Governmental activities generally are financed through intergovernmental revenues,
and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for the different business-type activities of the District and each function of the District's governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function, and, therefore,
are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the funds
have been eliminated for the statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by
the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not program
revenues are presented as general revenues.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund activities,

payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except
those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type

39



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of presentation (continued)

activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total column. Interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated.

Fund Financial Statements : The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds.
Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and proprietary — are presented. The emphasis of
fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column.
All of the District’s governmental and enterprise funds are reported as major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary services.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund : The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. The General Fund accounts for
all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. All property taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, Education Finance Act revenues, and miscellaneous
revenues are recorded in this fund except amounts which are specifically collected to service debt or for which
the District collects in a fiduciary capacity. Operational expenditures for general instruction, support services,
general administration and other departments of the District are paid through the General Fund.

Special Revenue Fund — Special Projects Fund : The Special Revenue Projects Fund accounts for the
financial transactions of the various special projects in which the District participates. All special projects
supported in whole or in part with federal, state and local resources (other than expendable trust, Education
Improvement Act proceeds or major capital projects) are accounted for in this fund. These funds primarily come
from or are passed through the South Carolina Department of Education.

Special Revenue Fund — Education Improvement Act  : The Education Improvement Act (EIA) fund accounts
for the proceeds of the additional one percent sales and use tax that are restricted to expenditures of the
Education Improvement Act strategies. The purpose of the EIA, in general, is to provide additional funding to
local school districts for the purpose of raising academic standards by providing for, among other purposes,
basic skills remediation, teacher salary increases and the modernization of equipment and instructional
facilities.

Special Revenue Fund — Food Service Fund : The Food Service Fund accounts for the financial resources
received that are restricted for the cafeteria operations at school locations. These resources primarily consist
of revenues received from (a) breakfast, lunch and other food sales and (b) the United States Department of
Agriculture’s (“USDA”") approved school breakfast and lunch programs.

Debt Service Fund : Accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of general long-term debt,
principal and interest. The primary financing source for the fund is Counties property taxes.

School Building Fund : The School Building Fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition and construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds. Capital projects are funded by proceeds of bonds issued for public school construction and from certain
State assistance and grants.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:

40



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of presentation (continued)

After School Fund : The After School Fund, an enterprise fund, is used to account for operations of the after
school programs, which are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where
the intent of the Board is that the costs of providing the services be recovered primarily through user charges.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting

Government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements . The government-wide and proprietary fund
financial statements are reported using the economic resource measurement focus and the accrual basis,
wherein revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange transactions, in which the District
gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include grants and
donations. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.

Proprietary funds : Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.

Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental fund financial statements : Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. The District considers all revenues reported in governmental funds
to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after year end. These include federal and state
grants, some charges for services, and ad-valorem property taxes.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for claims and judgments and
compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital
asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and
acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources. Funds received but not yet earned
are reflected as unearned revenues.

Under the terms of grant agreements, the District funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-
reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both
restricted and unrestricted resources available to finance the program. It is the District’s policy to first apply
cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs and then general revenues.

Use of resources : When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

41



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Budgets and budgetary accounting : The District’s sole legally adopted budget is for the general fund as approved
by the Board of Trustees prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. The adopted budget specified total expenditure
limits.

The School Board for any expenditure exceeding total appropriations makes supplemental budget appropriations.
Unexpended appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Budget amounts reflected in the accompanying financial
statements represent the adopted budget and any revisions during the fiscal year. The administration has
discretionary authority to make transfers between appropriation accounts and the Chief Financial Services Officer
approves all transfers.

The budget is prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and consistent with actual financial statement presentation to provide meaningful comparisons. The
following procedures are used in establishing the general fund budget:

1. Prior to the May meeting of the Board, the Superintendent submits a budget for the operation of the entire
school system of the District. This budget, at the discretion of the Board, is based upon proposed budgets
submitted by the administrators and advisory board of the various schools of the District.

A public hearing is held before the 25" day of June to obtain taxpayer comments.
Following the public hearing and before July first of each year the Board takes final action on the budget.

Upon final action by the Board on the budget, the Chairman of the Board notifies the auditor and treasurer
of the Counties of the amount of money required for the operation of the District during the next fiscal year.
Upon receipt of this notice, the auditor levies taxes on all the taxable property of the Counties.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. Encumbrances
are recorded at the time a good or service is ordered and the remaining budget appropriation is reduced by
the same amount. When the good or service is received, the encumbrance is reversed in the budgetary
accounts and an expenditure is recorded in the general ledger accounts. Encumbered appropriations lapse
at year-end and all outstanding encumbrances are cancelled.

The Board authorized the Superintendent or his/her designee to approve general fund line item transfers in the
aggregate totaling no more than $10,000. General fund budget transfers over $10,000 will be presented to the
Board for approval. All line item transfers, regardless of the amount, will appear in the monthly financial report to
the Board.

Cash and cash equivalents : For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid
investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments : The District investment policy is designed to operate within existing state statutes that authorize the
District to invest in the following:

a. Obligations of the United States, its agencies, andinstrumentalities;

b. Obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development, the African Development Bank, and the Asian Development Bank;

c. Obligations of a corporation, state, or political subdivision denominated in United States dollars, if the
obligations bear investment grade ratings of at least two nationally recognized rating services;

d. Certificates of Deposit - if the certificates are secured collaterally by securities of the type described in a. or
c. above, held by a third party as escrow agent or custodian, and are of a market value not less than the
amount of the certificates of deposits so secured, including interest, except that this collateral is not required
to the extent the certificates of deposit are insured by an agency of the federal government;

42



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments (continued)

e. Repurchase agreements if collateralized by securities of the types described in a. and c. above and held
by a third party as escrow agent or custodian and of a market value not less than the amount of the
repurchase agreement so collateralized, including interest;

f.  Guaranteed investment contracts issued by a domestic or foreign insurance company or other financial
institution, whose long-term unsecured debt rating bears the two highest ratings of at least two nationally
recognized rating services.

The District accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools. Changes in unrealized gain or loss
on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.

Accounts receivable : Accounts receivable consists of amounts due from the Federal government, state and local
governments or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to the
District’s grants and contracts. Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectibleamounts.

Allowance for doubtful accounts : All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. This amount is determined by analyzing the percentage of receivables
that were not collected in prior years.

Inventories : Inventory items are valued at cost, based on the “Average Cost” method of accounting, determined
using the first-in, first-out method, and are subsequently charged to expenditure/expenses when consumed rather
than when purchased. Inventories include plant maintenance and operating supplies. Inventories recorded in the
Food Service Fund are valued at the lower of cost or market determined on a first-in, first-out basis except for
commodities received from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), which are recorded at fair market
value at the time of receipt but have not been consumed as of June 30, 2021.

Prepaid items : Payments made to vendors for services benefitting future periods are recorded as prepaid items in
both government-wide and fund financial statements using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid
amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services
are consumed.

Capital assets : Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Where cost could not be
determined from the available records, estimated historical cost was used to record the estimated value of the
assets. All land is capitalized, regardless of cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the
date of donation.

Qualifying improvements that rest in or on the land itself are recorded as depreciable land improvements. Qualifying
improvements include major additions and renovations; improvements that add to the usable space; or
improvements that extend the useful life of an existing building are capitalized. The District capitalizes movable
personal property with a unit value in excess of $5,000 and a useful life in excess of one year. Routine repairs and
maintenance are charged to expenses in the year in which the expense was incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the assets, generally 10 to 50
years for buildings and improvements, 5 to 8 years for vehicles, 10 to 20 years for site improvements, and 3 to 15
years for machinery and equipment. Depreciation is prorated the year the asset is placed in service and in the year
of disposition. The District allocates depreciation expense to programs/functions based on the ratio of
program/functional expenses to total expenses with certain modifications.

43



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred outflows/inflows of resources  : In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. The separate financial statement element, deferred
outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government has three items that
qualify for reporting in this category. They are the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide
statement of net position, and outflows related to pensions and OPEB. A deferred charge on refunding results from
the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. The outflows related to pensions and OPEB
are described in Notes 5 and 6.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The government has two types of items which arise only under a modified accrual basis
of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category. Accordingly, they are, unavailable revenue, reported only in
the governmental funds balance sheet, and the inflows related to pensions and OPEB. The governmental funds
report unavailable revenues from two sources: property taxes and special assessments. These amounts are
deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The inflows
related to pensions are described in Note 5 and inflows related to OPEB are described in Note 6.

Unearned revenues : Unearned revenues in the governmental funds include amounts received from grant and
contract sponsors that have not yet been earned, and USDA commaodities included in inventory at year-end, but not
reflected as revenue until the commodities are consumed.

Long-term obligations : In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums
and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as an
expense during the period incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Compensated absences : The majority of School District employees are employed under 190-day contracts.
Therefore, these employees do not earn vacation as part of their benefits package. Leave is granted to all full-time
employees at a rate of one and one-fourth days of leave for every twenty days of active service up to a maximum
of fifteen days total personal and sick leave. Leave can be accumulated up to ninety days. Administrative and other
personnel employed for twelve months are granted up to ten days of vacation at the rate of one day for every twenty-
four working days. An employee may use vacation days during the fiscal year in which they are earned, but no later
than the end of the following fiscal year.

Compensated absences for vacation and leave and other salary related payments are recorded as a liability when
earned by administrative employees if the following conditions are met:

1. The compensated absence is earned on the basis of services already performed by the employee.

2. ltis probable that the compensated absence will be paid in a future period.

44



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Compensated absences (continued)

No accrual is made for compensated absences that are dependent upon the occurrence of specific future events
that are outside the control of the employer or the employee. Compensated absences are reported in governmental
funds only if they have matured.

The School District has recorded the amount of accumulated employee vacation and other salary related payments
of the governmental fund types that are and are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial
resources. No expenditure is reported for these amounts.

Pension : For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about fiduciary net position of the South Carolina
Retirement System (SCRS) and the South Carolina Police Officer's Retirement System (PORS) and additions
to/deductions from SCRS’s and PORS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by SCRS and PORS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB):

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, and
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB Trusts, and additions to and deductions
from the OPEB Trusts’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
OPEB Trusts. For this purpose, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Therefore, benefit and administrative expenses are recognized when due and payable. Investments are
reported at fair value.

Non-exchange transactions : The District generally has two types of non-exchange transactions: government-
mandated non-exchange transactions (which occur when a government at one level provides resources to a
government at another level and requires the recipient to use the resources for a specific purpose), and voluntary
non-exchange transactions (which result from legislative or contractual agreements other than exchanges, entered
into willingly by the parties to the agreement). The District recognizes non-exchange transactions when they are
both measurable and probable for collections. For government-mandated non-exchange transactions and voluntary
non-exchange transactions, the District recognizes assets when all applicable eligibility requirements are met or
resources are received, whichever is first, and revenue when all applicable eligibility requirements are met.

Fund balances : In accordance with GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, the District's governmental fund balances are classified as follows:

Non-spendable : Includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or
(b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items
that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example, inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted : Represents amounts that are (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (b) are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislations.

Committed : Represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority (Board of Trustees) before the
end of the reporting period. Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously
commit those amounts. Committed amounts for the School District would consist of amounts approved by
resolution by the Board of Trustees of the School District.

45



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Fund balances (continued)

Assigned : Amounts are constrained by the government'’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither
restricted nor committed; such assignments are made before the report issuance date. Assigned fund balance
for the District consists of (a) motions approved by the Board of Trustees that are for a specific purpose or (b)
appropriations of current fund balance (made in the annual budget process) for the succeeding budget year.

Unassigned : Fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all spendable
amounts not contained in the other classifications. In the other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which
amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used, the District's general practice is to first reduce committed resources, followed by
assigned resources, and then unassigned resources.

Net position : The District’s net position in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial
statements are classified as follows:

Net investment in capital assets : This represents the District’s total investment in capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding liabilities that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended for
capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of investment in capital assets, but rather as a
restricted net position.

Restricted : This represents amounts restricted when the District is legally or contractually obligated by external
parties such as lenders, grantors or contributors or by laws or regulations to spend in accordance with the
restrictions imposed.

Unrestricted : This represents the remainder of the District’s net position not included in the above categories.

The District’s policy for applying expenses that can be both restricted and unrestricted resources is designated to
the program administrative level. General practice is to first apply the expense to the restricted resource then to the
unrestricted resources.

Income Taxes : The District, as a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina, is excluded from Federal
income taxes under Section 115(1) of the Internal Revenue code.

Classification of revenues : The District has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues
according to the following criteria:

Operating revenues : Operating revenues generally result from exchange transactions related to the District’s
principal ongoing operations. These revenues include (1) student tuition and fees received in exchange for
providing educational services or (2) grants and contracts that are essentially the same as contracts for services
that finance programs the District would not otherwise undertake.

Non-operating revenues : Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-
exchange transactions. These revenues include gifts and contributions, investment income, and any grants or
contracts that are not classified as operating revenue or restricted by the grantor to be used exclusively for
capital purposes.

46



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All cash and investments are stated at fair value with accrued interest shown on the statement of net position. The
District is authorized to invest funds received from the Counties’ Treasurers which are not needed for immediate
disbursement by the District, in interest bearing accounts or certificates of deposit issued by banking institutions or
savings and loan associations licensed to do business in this state or in securities issued by the United States
Government.

At June 30, 2021, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits and investments held by the various funds was as
follows:

Fund Types
General Fund $ 67,350,488
Food Service Fund 2,227,796
$ 69,578,284
Cash on hand $ 92,680
Deposits 7,940,551
Investments 61,545,053
Carrying amount at June 30, 2021 $ 69,578,284

Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits might not be
recovered. The District does not have a written policy related to custodial credit risk but does have an agreement with
its banking institution that securities be pledged to cover any deposits in excess of federal depository insurance
coverage.

At June 30, 2021, the bank balance of the District's deposits totaled $18,673,130 of which $250,000 was insured by
Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance and $18,423,130 was secured by collateral held by the
bank’s trust department in the District's name.

Investments
Credit risk : The District adheres to the State of South Carolina’s investment policy and invests in primarily Certificates

of Deposit and U.S. Government-backed obligations. There are no investments in commercial paper or corporate
bonds and equities. At June 30, 2021, the District had the following investments:

Fair
Value Credit Fair
Investment Type Level Maturities Rating Value
SC Local Government Investment Pool N/A Various Unrated $ 61,545,053
Total Investments $ 61,545,053

47



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
Investments (continued)

The local government investment pool is a 2a7-like pool which is not registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) as an investment company, but has a policy that it will operate in a manner consistent with the
SEC’s Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The South Carolina State Treasurer oversees the pool. The
fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. The Pool is included as an investment
trust fund in the State of South Carolina Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. At June 30, 2021, the underlying
security rates of the District’s investment in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is classified in risk category
“A” and may be obtained from the LGIP’s complete financial statements by writing to the following address:

Office of the State Treasurer

Local Government Investment Pool
Post Office Box 11778

Columbia, South Carolina 29211

Interest rate risk : In accordance with its investment policy, the District manages its exposure to declines in fair values
by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investment portfolio to less than twelve months. It is the policy of the
State Treasurer’s office that no derivatives of the U.S. Government Securities or Federal Agency Securities or A1/P1
Commercial Paper be purchased by or for the S.C. Local Government Investment Pool. It is the policy of the State
Treasurer’s Office that the weighted average maturity (WAM) of the LGIP portfolio not exceed 60 days.

Concentration of creditrisk : The District’s investment policy does not allow for an investment in any one issuer that
is in excess of 5 percent (5%) of the total investments. Most investments are U.S. governmental obligations.

Foreign currency risk : The District has no foreign currency investments.

Custodial credit risk : This is the risk that the District will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the counter party to the investment transaction fails. There
are no uninsured investments.

NOTE 3 — RECEIVABLES

Property taxes are levied by Lexington and Richland Counties (the Counties) on the assessed value for all real and
personal property (except vehicles) owned on the preceding December 315 Liens are attached to the property at the
time the taxes are levied, which usually occurs in November of each year. These taxes are due without penalty through
January 15™. Penalties are added to taxes depending upon the date paid as follows:

January 16" —February 1% 3% oftax
February 2" —March 15" 10% oftax
March 16" — Collection Date 15% of tax plus collectioncosts

The Counties levy taxes on vehicles in the month prior to the renewal of annual vehicle registration through the State
Highway Department. These taxes are due by the last day of the same month.

The District is given an appropriation for property taxes by the County at the beginning of each fiscal year.

South Carolina Code Section 12-37-251(A) provides a property tax exemption for property classified pursuant to
Section 12-43-220(C) (homestead exemption) from property taxes levied for other than bonded indebtedness and
payments pursuant to lease purchase agreements for capital construction.

48



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 — RECEIVABLES (continued)

The exemption applies against millage imposed for school operations and the amount of fair market value of the
homestead that is exempt from such millage must be set by the Department of Revenue and Taxation based on the
amount available in the State Property Tax Relief Fund.

Act No. 388, which was adopted by the South Carolina General Assembly on June 1, 2006, limits future increases in
the rate of millage levied for operational purposes by school districts. As of July 2, 2007, the annual millage rate for
operations may increase only at a rate equal to the sum of (a) the increase in the consumer price index, plus (b) the
rate of population growth of the school district. Act 388 created a new homestead exemption equal to 100 percent of the
fair market value of owner-occupied residential property for ad valorem taxes imposed for school operating purposes.
Act 388 imposed an additional state-wide one percent sales tax, beginning June 1, 2007, the collections of which are
deposited in the Homestead Exemption Fund. Proceeds of the sales tax deposited in the Homestead Exemption Fund
are distributed to the school districts of the State in substitution for the ad valorem property taxes not collected as a
consequence of the New Homestead Exemption.

Taxes receivable as reported in the statement of net position are net of the following allowance for uncollectible
amounts:

Delinquent taxes receivable $ 9,649,129
Less: Allowance for uncollectible amounts (2,093,007)
Taxes receivable $ 7,556,122

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land $ 8,844,166 $ -$ - $ 8,844,166
Construction-in-Progress 16,730,760 21,201,614 (9,646,277) 28,286,097
Total Capital Assets, Not being Depreciated 25,574,926 21,201,614 (9,646,277) 37,130,263
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 479,157,379 9,504,413 (701,146) 487,960,646
Site Improvements 36,385,753 876,645 (188,888) 37,073,510
Furniture and Equipment 26,730,444 1,267,233 (618,468) 27,379,209
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 542,273,576 11,648,291 (1,508,502) 552,413,365
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Buildings (168,078,787) (14,034,042) 568,366 (181,544,463)
Site Improvements (14,304,185) (2,101,640) 69,023 (16,336,802)
Furniture and Equipment (15,916,003) (2,482,018) 513,952 (17,884,069)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (198,298,975) (18,617,700) 1,151,341 (215,765,334)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 343,974,601  (6,969,409) (357,161) 336,648,031

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

$ 369,549,527 $ 14,232,205 $(10,003,438) $ 373,778,294

49



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction $ -
Support 18,617,700
Total Depreciation —

Governmental Activities $ 18,617,700

Construction Commitments : The District has active construction projects at June 30, 2021. At June 30, 2021,
the District's commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining

Project Spent to Date Commitment
Chapin Elementary School:

Wheelchair Lift $ 18,263 $ 125,014
Chapin High School:

Athletic Training Room Renovation 137,005 266,511
Irmo High School:

Baseball Backstop 66,637 53,416

Restroom Renovation, HVAC Fan

Coil Replacement, West Wing Roof

Replacement 447,590 1,297,762
Irmo Middle School:

Gym (HVAC, Ceiling, Lights, Roof),

Kitchen Roof 876,355 1,666,092
Piney Woods Elementary School 26,130,543 1,954,204
Total Government Activities $ 27,676,393 $ 5,362,999

50



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS
General Information about the Pension Plans

The District participates in the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), and the South Carolina Police Officers
Retirement System (PORS). The South Carolina Public Employee Benefit Authority (PEBA), which was created
July 1, 2012, administers the various retirement systems and retirement programs of the state of South Carolina,
as well as the state’s employee insurance programs. As such, PEBA is responsible for administering the South
Carolina Retirement Systems’ five defined benefit pension plans. PEBA has an 11-member Board of Directors,
appointed by the Governor and General Assembly leadership, which serves as custodian, co-trustee and co-
fiduciary of the systems and the assets of the trust funds. The Retirement System Investment Commission
(Commission as the governing body, RSIC as the agency), created by the General Assembly in 2005, has exclusive
authority to invest and manage the retirement trust funds’ assets. The Commission, an eight-member board, serves
as co-trustee and co-fiduciary for the assets of the retirement trust funds. By law, the State Fiscal Accountability
Authority (SFAA), which consists of five elected officials, also reviews certain PEBA Board decisions regarding the
actuary of the South Carolina Retirement Systems (Systems).

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Systems and additions to/deductions from
the Systems fiduciary net position have been determined on the accrual basis of accounting as they are reported
by the Systems in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). For this purpose, revenues
are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Benefit and refund expenses are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

PEBA issues an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) containing financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Systems’ Pension Trust Funds. The ACFR is publicly available through the
Retirement Benefits’ link on PEBA’s website at www.peba.sc.gov, or a copy may be obtained by submitting a
request to PEBA, 202 Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary
government of the state of South Carolina and therefore, retirement trust fund financial information is also included
in the annual comprehensive financial report of the state.

Plan Descriptions

e The South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan, was established effective July 1, 1945, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-1-20 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for teachers and
employees of the state, and political subdivisions. SCRS covers employees of state agencies, public school
districts, higher education institutions, other participating local subdivisions of government and individuals
newly elected to the South Carolina General Assembly at or after the 2012 general election.

e The State Optional Retirement Program (State ORP) is a defined contribution plan that is offered as an
alternative to SCRS to certain newly hired employees of state, institutions of higher education, public school
districts and individuals first elected to the S.C. General Assembly at or after the general election in
November 2012. State ORP participants direct the investment of their funds into an account administered
by one of four third-party service providers. For this reason, State ORP assets are not part of the retirement
systems’ trust funds for financial statement purposes.

e The South Carolina Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan, was established effective July 1, 1962, pursuant to the provisions of Section 9-11-20
of the South Carolina Code of Laws for the purpose of providing retirement and other benefits for police
officers and firefighters. PORS also covers peace officers, coroners, probate judges, and magistrates.

In addition to the plans described above, PEBA also administers three single employer defined benefit pension
plans, which are not covered in this report. They are the Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly
of the State of South Carolina (GARS), the Retirement System for Judges and Solicitors of the State of South
Carolina (JSRS), and the South Carolina National Guard Supplemental Retirement Plan (SCNG).

51



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Membership

Membership requirements are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. A brief summary of the
requirements under each system is presented below.

SCRS - Generally, all employees of covered employers are required to participate in and contribute to the
system as a condition of employment. This plan covers general employees and teachers and individuals newly
elected to the South Carolina General Assembly beginning with the November 2012 general election. An
employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a Class Two
member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July 1, 2012, is
a Class Three member.

State ORP — As an alternative to membership in SCRS, certain newly hired state, public school, and higher
education employees and individuals first elected to the S.C. General Assembly beginning with the November
2012 general election have the option to participate in the State ORP. Contributions to the State ORP are at
the same rates as SCRS. A direct remittance is required from the employer to the member’s account with the
ORP service provider for the employee contribution and a portion of the employer contribution (5 percent). A
direct remittance is also required to SCRS for the remaining portion of the employer contribution and an
incidental death benefit contribution, if applicable, which is retained by SCRS.

PORS - To be eligible for PORS membership, an employee must be required by the terms of his employment,
by election or appointment, to preserve public order, protect life and property, and detect crimes in the state; to
prevent and control property destruction by fire; be a coroner in a full-time permanent position; or to be a peace
officer employed by the Department of Corrections, the Department of Juvenile Justice, or the Department of
Mental Health. Probate judges and coroners may elect membership in PORS. Magistrates are required to
participate in PORS for service as a magistrate. PORS members, other than magistrates and probate judges,
must also earn at least $2,000 per year and devote at least 1,600 hours per year to this work, unless exempted
by statute. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership prior to July 1, 2012, is a
Class Two member. An employee member of the system with an effective date of membership on or after July
1, 2012, is a Class Three member.

Benefits

Benefit terms are prescribed in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. PEBA does not have the authority to
establish or amend benefit terms without legislative change in the Code of Laws. Key elements of the benefit
calculation include the benefit multiplier, years of service, and average final compensation/current annual salary. A
brief summary of benefit terms for each system is presented below.

SCRS — A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned service
is eligible for a monthly pension at age 65 or with 28 years credited service regardless of age. A member may
elect early retirement with reduced pension benefits payable at age 55 with 25 years of service credit. A Class
Three member who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible
for a monthly pension upon satisfying the Rule of 90 requirement that the total of the member's age and the
member’s creditable service equals at least 90 years. Both Class Two and Class Three members are eligible
to receive a reduced deferred annuity at age 60 if they satisfy the five- or eight-year earned service requirement,
respectively. An incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of
employers who participate in the death benefit program.

The annual retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of
one percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the
preceding year are eligible to receive the increase. Members who retire under the early retirement provisions
at age 55 with 25 years of service are not eligible for the benefit adjustment until the second July 1 after reaching
age 60 or the second July 1 after the date they would have had 28 years of service credit had they not retired.

52



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)
Benefits (continued)

¢ PORS - A Class Two member who has separated from service with at least five or more years of earned service
is eligible for a monthly pension at age 55 or with 25 years of service regardless of age. A Class Three member
who has separated from service with at least eight or more years of earned service is eligible for a monthly
pension at age 55 or with 27 years of service regardless of age. Both Class Two and Class Three members are
eligible to receive a deferred annuity at age 55 with five or eight years of earned service, respectively. An
incidental death benefit is also available to beneficiaries of active and retired members of employers who
participate in the death benefit program. Accidental death benefits are also provided upon the death of an active
member working for a covered employer whose death was a natural and proximate result of an injury incurred
while in the performance of duty.

The retirement allowance of eligible retirees or their surviving annuitants is increased by the lesser of one
percent or five hundred dollars every July 1. Only those annuitants in receipt of a benefit on July 1 of the
preceding year are eligible to receive the increase.

Contributions

Actuarial valuations are performed annually by an external consulting actuary to ensure applicable contribution
rates satisfy the funding parameters specified in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws. Under these provisions,
SCRS and PORS contribution requirements must be sufficient to maintain an amortization period for the financing
of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) over a period that does not exceed the number of years scheduled
in state statute. Legislation in 2017 increased, but also established a ceiling for SCRS and PORS employee
contribution rates. Effective July 1, 2017, employee rates were increased to a capped rate of 9.00 percent for SCRS
and 9.75 percent for PORS. The legislation also increased employer contribution rates beginning July 1, 2017 for
both SCRS and PORS by two percentage points and further scheduled employer contribution rates to increase by
a minimum of one percentage point each year in accordance with state statute. However, the General Assembly
postponed the one percent increase in the SCRS and PORS employer contribution rates that was scheduled to go
into effect beginning July 1, 2020. If the scheduled contributions are not sufficient to meet the funding periods set
in state statute, the board shall increase the employer contribution rates as necessary to meet the funding periods
set for the applicable year. The maximum funding period of SCRS and PORS is scheduled to be reduced over a
ten-year schedule from 30 years beginning fiscal year 2018 to 20 years by fiscal year 2028.

Additionally, the Board is prohibited from decreasing the SCRS and PORS contribution rates until the funded ratio
is at least 85 percent. If the most recent annual actuarial valuation of the Systems for funding purposes shows a
ratio of the actuarial value of system assets to the actuarial accrued liability of the system (the funded ratio) that is
equal to or greater than 85 percent, then the board, effective on the following July first, may decrease the then
current contribution rates upon making a finding that the decrease will not result in a funded ratio of less than 85
percent. If contribution rates are decreased pursuant to this provision, and the most recent annual actuarial valuation
of the system shows a funded ratio of less than 85 percent, then effective on the following July first, and annually
thereafter as necessary, the board shall increase the then current contribution rates until a subsequent annual
actuarial valuation of the system shows a funded ratio that is equal to or greater than 85 percent.

53



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Contributions (continued)

1
Required employee contribution rates are as follows:

SCRS

Employee Class Two 9.00% 9.00%
Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00%
State ORP.

Employee Class Three 9.00% 9.00%
PORS

Employee Class Two 9.75% 9.75%
Employee Class Three 9.75% 9.75%

1
Required employer contribution rates are as follows (based on retirement plan’s fiscal year):

1/1/20 t0 6/30/21 Z/1/19 t0 6/30/20

SCRS

Employer Class Two 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Class Three 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
State ORP

Employer Contribution? 15.41% 15.41%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.15% 0.15%
PORS

Employer Class Two 17.84% 17.84%
Employer Class Three 17.84% 17.84%
Employer Incidental Death Benefit 0.20% 0.20%
Employer Accidental Death Program 0.20% 0.20%

1 calculated on earnable compensation as defined in Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

2Of this employer contribution, 5% of earnable compensation must be remitted by the employer directly to the
ORP vendor to be allocated to the member’s account with the remainder of the employer contribution remitted
to the SCRS.

54



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)
Contributions (continued)

The District’s contributions to the SCRS and PORS for their last four fiscal years were as follows:

SCRS o 2021 2020 2019 2018

Employee Contributions $ 10,258,391 $ 10,170,775 $ 9,691,030 $ 9,706,891
Employer Contributions 19,431,025 19,136,030 16,940,308 15,608,714
Employer Group Life Contributions 197,865 194,317 184,215 182,212
Totals $ 20,887,281 $ 29,501,122 $ 26,815,553 $ 25,497,817
PORS o 2021 2020 2019 2018

Employee Contributions $ 9,884 $ 11,826 $ 14,340 $ 12,927
Employer Contributions 18,085 18,724 24,768 21,002
Employer Group Life Contributions 203 419 588 530
Totals $ 28,172 $ 30,969 $ 39,696 $ 34,459

The governmental unit contributed 100% of the required contributions for the current year and each of the three
proceeding years.

Eligible payrolls of the District covered under the Plans for the past four fiscal years were as follows:

Year
ended State ORP

June 30, SCRS Payroll Payroll PORS Payroll Total Payroll
2021 $ 113,983,586 $ 17,926,560 $ 101,373 $ 132,011,519
2020 113,008,610 15,536,052 104,955 128,649,617
2019 107,678,115 15,131,687 147,076 122,956,878
2018 $ 107,854,375 $ 13,620,002 $ 132,586 $ 121,606,963

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred O utflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $284,530,330 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability for SCRS and a liability of $230,400 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability for PORS, for a
total net pension liability of $284,760,730. The net pension liability of the defined benefit plan was determined based
on the most recent actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, using membership as of that date projected forward to the
end of the retirement plan’s fiscal year, and financial information of the pension trust funds as of June 30, 2020.
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating governmental units,
actuarially determined. The net pension liability is generally liquidated by the general fund.

At the retirement plan’s year end of June 30, 2020, the District's proportion was 1.113545% and 0.006948% for
SCRS and PORS, respectively.

55



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized pension expense of $29,829,515, including $29,800,929
for SCRS and $28,586 for PORS, respectively. At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows

_of Resources =~ _of Resources

SCRO
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 3,283,103 $ 1,075,930
Assumption changes 348,595 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan

investments 20,929,591 -
Deferred amounts from changes in proportionate share and differences

between District contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 1,467,277
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 19.628.890 .

Total SCRS $ 44,190,179 $ 2,543,207
PORS
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 4,896 $ 1,014
Assumption changes 2,812 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan

investments 23,593 -
Deferred amounts from changes in proportionate share and differences

between District contributions and proportionate share of contributions 16,743 65,026
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 18,288 -

Total PORS $ 66,332 $ 66,040

Total SCRS and PORS $ 44,256,511 $ 2,609,247

The amount of $19,628,890 for SCRS and $18,288 for PORS reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction
of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the SCRS
and PORS will increase (decrease) pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30, SCRS PORS Total
2021 $ 3,397,497 $ 226 $ 3,397,723
2022 6,030,628 (8,561) 6,022,067
2023 7,249,179 (12,152) 7,237,027
2024 5,340,778 2,491 5,343,269
Totals $ 22,018,082 $ (17,996) $ 22,000,086

Actuarial Assumptions and Methods

Actuarial valuations of the plan involve estimates of the reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
future salary increases. Amounts determined regarding the net pension liability are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. South Carolina
state statute requires that an actuarial experience study be completed at least once in each five-year period. An
experience report on the Systems was most recently issued for the period ending June 30, 2019 for first use in the

July 1, 2021 actuarial valuation.
56



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)
Actuarial Assumptions and Methods (continued)

The June 30, 2019, total pension liability (TPL), net pension liability (NPL), and sensitivity information shown in this
report were determined by the Systems’ consulting actuary, Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company (GRS) and are
based on an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2019. The total pension liability was rolled-forward from the
valuation date to the plans’ fiscal year end, June 30, 2020, using generally accepted actuarial principles.

The following table provides a summary of the actuarial assumptions and methods used to calculate the TPL as of
June 30, 2020.

SCRS PORS
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Entry Age Normal
Investment rate of return1 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases 3.0% to 12.5% (varies by service)1 3.5% to 9.5% (varies by service)l
Benefit adjustments Lesser of 1% or $500 annually Lesser of 1% or $500 annually
' Includes inflation at 2.25%

The post-retiree mortality assumption is dependent upon the member’s job category and gender. The base mortality
assumptions, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality table (2016 PRSC), was developed using the
Systems’ mortality experience. These base rates are adjusted for future improvement in mortality using published
Scale AA projected from the year 2016.

Assumptions used in the determination of the June 30, 2019, TPL are as follows:

Former Job Class Males Females

Educators 2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 92% 2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 98%

General Employees
and Members of the | 2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 100% | 2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 111%
General Assembly
Public Safety and
Firefighters

2016 PRSC Males multiplied by 125% | 2016 PRSC Females multiplied by 111%

Net Pension Liability

The NPL is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system’s TPL determined in
accordance with GASB No. 67 less that System’s fiduciary net position. NPL totals, as of June 30, 2020, for SCRS
and PORS are presented below.

Total _Plan Employers’ Plan Fiduciary
Pension Fiduciary Net Pension Net Position as a Percentage
System Liability Net Position Liability (Asset) Of the Total Pension Liability
SCRS $ 51,844,187,763  $26,292,418,682 $ 25,551,769,081 50.7%
PORS 8,046,386,629 4,730,174,642 3,316,211,987 58.8%

57



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Net Pension Liability (continued)

The TPL is calculated by the Systems’ actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in the Systems’
financial statements. The NPL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB 67 in the Systems’ notes to
the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability calculations performed by the Systems’
actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Nos. 67 and 68 are not applicable for other purposes,
such as determining the plans’ funding requirements.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is based upon 20-year capital market assumptions.
The long-term expected rates of return represent assumptions developed using an arithmetic building block approach
primarily based on consensus expectations and market based inputs. Expected returns are net of investment fees.

The expected returns, along with the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted at
the beginning of the 2020 fiscal year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation and is summarized in the
table below. For actuarial purposes, the 7.25 percent assumed annual investment rate of return used in the calculation
of the TPL includes a 5.00 percent real rate of return and a 2.25 percent inflation component.

Expected Arithmetic Long Term Expected
Target Asset Real Rate Portfolio
Asset Class Allocation of Return Real Rate of Return
Global Equity 51.0%
Global Public Equity 35.0% 7.81% 2.73%
Private Equity 9.0% 8.91% 0.80%
Equity Options Strategies 7.0% 5.23% 0.36%
Real Assets 12.0%
Real Estate (Private) 8.0% 5.55% 0.44%
Real Estate (REITS) 1.0% 7.78% 0.08%
Infrastructure (Private) 2.0% 4.88% 0.10%
Infrastructure (Public) 1.0% 7.05% 0.07%
Opportunistic 8.0%
GTAA/Risk Parity 7.0% 3.56% 0.25%
Other Opportunistic Strategies 1.0% 4.41% 0.04%
Diversified Credit 15.0%
Mixed Credit 4.0% 4.21% 0.17%
Emerging Markets Debt 4.0% 3.44% 0.14%
Private Debt 7.0% 5.79% 0.40%
Conservative Fixed Income 14.0%
Core Fixed Income 13.0% 1.60% 0.21%
Cash and Short Duration (Net) 1.0% 0.56% 0.01%
Total Expected Return 100.0% 5.80%
Inflation for Actuarial Purposes 2.25%
Total Expected Nominal Return 8.05%

58



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the TPL was 7.25 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers in SCRS and PORS will be made based on
the actuarially determined rates based on provisions in the South Carolina Code of Laws. Based on those
assumptions, the System’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all the projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the collective NPL calculated using the discount
rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the District’'s proportionate share of the employers’ NPL would look like were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percent lower (6.25 percent) or 1.00 percent higher (8.25 percent) than
the current rate:

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
1.00% Decrease Current Discount 1.00% Increase
System (6.25%) Rate (7.25%) (8.25%)
SCRS $ 352,640,455 $ 284,530,330 $ 227,657,555
PORS $ 305,011 $ 230,400 $ 170,493

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information

Information contained in these Notes to the Basic Financial Statements was compiled from the Systems’ audited
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the accounting valuation report as of June 30,
2020. Additional financial information supporting the preparation of the Schedules (including the unmodified audit
opinion on the financial statements and required supplementary information) is available on the Systems’ ACFR.

Payables to the Pension Plan

As of June 30, 2021, the District had $3,386,167 in payables outstanding to the pension plans for its legally required
contributions.

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
Plan Descriptions

The Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds (OPEB Trusts), collectively refers to the South Carolina Retiree
Health Insurance Trust Fund (SCRHITF) and the South Carolina Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Fund
(SCLTDITF), were established by the State of South Carolina as Act 195, which became effective in May, 2008.
The SCRHITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the State’s retiree health and dental plans.
The SCLTDITF was created to fund and account for the employer costs of the State’s Basic Long- Term Disability
Income Benefit Plan.

In accordance with Act 195, the OPEB Trusts are administered by the PEBA - Insurance Benefits and the State

Treasurer is the custodian of the funds held in trust. The Board of Directors of PEBA has been designated as the
Trustee.

59



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

The OPEB Trusts are cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plans. Article 5 of the State Code of
Laws defines the two plans and authorizes the Trustee to at any time adjust the plans, including its benefits and
contributions, as necessary to insure the fiscal stability of the plans. In accordance with the South Carolina Code of
Laws and the annual Appropriations Act, the State provides post-employment health and dental and long-term
disability benefits to retired State and school district employees and their covered dependents.

PEBA, Insurance Benefits issues audited financial statements and required supplementary information for the
OPEB Trust Funds. This information is publicly available through the Insurance Benefits’ link on PEBA’s website at
www.peba.sc.qgov or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA — Insurance Benefits, 202 Arbor
Lake Drive, Columbia, SC, 29223.

Benefits Provided

The SCRHITF is a healthcare plan that covers retired employees of the State of South Carolina, including all
agencies, and public school districts. The SCRHITF provides health and dental insurance benefits to eligible
retirees. Generally, retirees are eligible for health and dental benefits if they have established at least ten years of
retirement service credit. For new hires beginning employment May 2, 2008 and after, retirees are eligible for
benefits if they have established 25 years of service for 100% employer funding and 15-24 years of service for 50%
employer funding.

The SCLTDITF is a long-term disability plan that covers employees of the State of South Carolina, including all
agencies and public school districts and all participating local government entities. The SCLTDITF provides
disability payments to eligible employees that have been approved for disability.

Contributions and Funding Policies

Section 1-11-710 of the South Carolina Code of Laws of 1976, as amended, requires these post-employment and
long-term disability benefits to be funded through non-employer and employer contributions for active employees
and retirees to the PEBA — Insurance Benefits. Non-employer contributions consist of an annual appropriation
by the General Assembly and the statutorily required transfer from PEBA — Insurance Benefits reserves.

The SCRHITF is funded through participating employers that are mandated by State statute to contribute at a rate
assessed each year by the Department of Administration Executive Budget Office on active employee covered
payroll. The District’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 6.25 percent.
The South Carolina Retirement System collects the monthly covered payroll surcharge for all participating
employers and remits it directly to the SCRHITF. Other sources of funding for the SCRHITF also include the implicit
subsidy, or age-related subsidy inherent in the healthcare premiums structure. The implicit subsidy represents a
portion of the health care expenditures paid on behalf of the employer’s active employees. For purposes of GASB
Statement No. 75, this expenditure on behalf of the active employee is reclassified as a retiree health care
expenditure so that the employer’s contributions towards the plan reflect the underlying age-adjusted, retiree benefit
costs. Non-employer contributions include the mandatory transfer of accumulated PEBA — Insurance Benefits’
reserves and the annual appropriation budgeted by the General Assembly. It is also funded through investment
income.

The SCLTDITF is funded through employer contributions for active employees that elect health insurance coverage.
For this group of active employees, PEBA — Insurance Benefits bills and collects premiums charged to State
agencies, public school districts and other participating local governments. The monthly premium per active
employee was $3.22 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The SCLTDITF premium is billed monthly by PEBA
— Insurance Benefits and transferred monthly to the SCLTDITF. It is also funded through investment income.

The allocation percentage of the OPEB amounts are calculated differently for each OPEB Trust. For the SCRHITF,
the allocation percentage is based on the covered payroll surcharge contribution for each employer. Please note
that actual covered payroll contributions received from SCRS for the fiscal year 2020 totaled $578,838,884.
However, the covered payroll contributions total includes prior year covered payroll contribution adjustments and
true-ups that net to a total of $2,724,225.

60



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

In accordance with part (b) of paragraph 69 of GASB Statement No. 75, participating employers should recognize
revenue in an amount equal to the employer’s proportionate share of the change in the collective net OPEB liability
arising from contributions to the OPEB plan during the measurement period from non-employer contributing entities
for purposes other than the separate financing of specific liabilities to the OPEB plan. Therefore, employers should
classify this revenue in the same manner as it classifies grants from other entities.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, and
OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the OPEB Trusts, and additions to and deductions
from the OPEB Trusts fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported by the
OPEB Trusts. For this purpose, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred. Therefore, benefit and administrative expenses are recognized when due and payable. Investments are
reported at fair value.

PEBA - Insurance Benefits issues audited financial statements and required supplementary information for the
OPEB Trust Funds. This information is publicly available through the PEBA — Insurance Benefits’ link on PEBA’s
website at www.peba.sc.gov or a copy may be obtained by submitting a request to PEBA — Insurance Benefits, 202
Arbor Lake Drive, Columbia, SC 29223. PEBA is considered a division of the primary government of the state of
South Carolina and therefore, OPEB Trust fund financial information is also included in the annual comprehensive
financial report of the state.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflow s of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2021, the District reported a liability of $253,895,039 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability
for SCRHITF and a liability of $3,445 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability for SCLTDITF, for a total
net OPEB liability of $253,898,484. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
District’'s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially
determined. At June 30, 2021, the District’s proportion was 1.406508% for SCRHITF and 1.136292% for SCLTDITF.
The net OPEB liability is generally liquidated by the general fund.

61



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the District recognized OPEB expense of $19,246,041, including $19,153,626
for SCRHITF and $92,415 for SCLTDITF, respectively. At June 30, 2021, the District reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

SCRHITE Of Resources Of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 7,261,630 $ 5,782,100
Changes in assumptions 37,782,750 10,111,398
Net difference between projected and actual

investment experience 341,198 933,398
Changes in proportionate share and differences between

District contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 48,512 807,219
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 8,250,720 -
Total SCRHITF $ 53,684,810 $ 17,634,115
SCLTDITF
Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 14,303
Changes in assumptions 14,438 1,720
Net difference between projected and actual investment

experience 8,863 37,579
Changes in proportionate share and differences between

District contributions and proportionate share of

contributions - 3,617
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 86,542 -
Total SCLTDITF $ 109,843 $ 57,219
Total SCRHITF and SCLTDITF $ 53,794,653 $ 17,691,334

$8,250,720 (SCRHITF) and $86,542 (SCLTDITF) reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as reductions of the
net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2022.

62



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will
be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30, SCRHITF SCLTDITF Total

2021 $ 3,469,564 $ (5,384) $ 3,464,180

2022 3,387,727 (7,865) 3,379,862

2023 3,258,046 (11,056) 3,246,990

2024 5,508,326 (7,572) 5,500,754

2025 6,226,248 (790) 6,225,458
Thereafter 5,950,064 (1,251) 5,948,813
Totals $ 27,799,975 $ (33,918) $ 27,766,057

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trends. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plans (as understood by the
employer and plan participants) and include the types of benefits provided at the time the valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for

SCRHITF: Valuation Date: June 30, 2019

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal

Inflation: 2.25%

Investment Rate of Return: 2.75%, net of OPEB Plan investment expense; including inflation.
Single Discount Rate: 2.75% as of June 30, 2020

Demographic Assumptions: Based on the experience study performed for the South Carolina

Retirement Systems for the 5-year period ending June 30, 2015.

Mortality: For healthy retirees, the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality
Table for Males and the 2016 Public Retirees of South Carolina Mortality
Table for Females are used with fully generational mortality projections
based on Scale AA from the year 2016. Multipliers are applied to the base
tables based on gender and employment type.

Health Care Trend Rate: Initial trend starting at 6.40% and gradually decreasing to an
ultimate trend of 4.00% over a period of 15 years.
Aging Factors: Based on plan specific experience.
Retiree Participation: 79% for retirees who are eligible for funded premiums. 59% participation for

retirees who are eligible for Partial Funded Premiums. 20% patrticipation for
retirees who are eligible for Non-Funded Premiums

Notes: The discount rate changed from 3.13% as of June 30, 2019 to 2.45% as
of June 30, 2020; updates were also made to the healthcare trend rate
assumption, including an adjustment to reflect the repeal of the “Cadillac
Tax".

63



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation for SCLTDITF:

Valuation Date:

Actuarial Cost Method:
Inflation:

Investment Rate of Return:
Single Discount Rate:

Salary, Termination and
Retirement Rates:

Disability Incidence:

Disability Recovery:

Offsets:

Expenses:

Notes:

Roll Forward Disclosure

June 30, 2019

Entry Age Normal

2.25%

3.00%, net of Plan investment expense; including inflation.
2.83% as of June 30, 2020

Based on the experience study performed for the South Carolina
Retirement Systems for the 5-year period ending June 30, 2015.

The rates used in the valuation are based on the rates developed for the
South Carolina Retirement Systems pension plans.

For participants in payment, 1987 CGDT Group Disability; for active
employees, 60% were assumed to recover after the first year and 92%
were assumed to recover after the first two years.

40% are assumed to be eligible for Social Security benefits; assumed
percentage who will be eligible for a pension plan offset varies based on
employee group.

Third party administrative expenses were included in the benefit
projections.

The discount rate changed from 3.04% as of June 30, 2019 to 2.83% as
of June 30, 2020

The actuarial valuation was performed as of June 30, 2019. Update procedures were used to roll forward the total

OPERB liability to June 30, 2020.

The Net OPEB Liability (NOL) is calculated separately for each OPEB Trust Fund and represents that particular
Trusts’ Total OPEB Liability (TOL) determined in accordance with GASB No. 74 less that Trust's fiduciary net
position. The allocation of each employer’s proportionate share of the collective Net OPEB Liability and collective
OPEB Expense was determined using the employer’s payroll-related contributions over the measurement period.
This method is expected to be reflective of the employer’s long-term contribution effort as well as be transparent to
individual employers and their external auditors.

The following table represents the components of the net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2020:

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position as

Plan Fiduciary Net Net OPEB a % of Total

iabili o bl iahil
SCRHITF $ 19,703,745,672 $1,652,299,185 $ 18,051,446,487 8.39%
SCLTDITF $ 42,782,316 $ 42,479,106 $ 303,210 99.29%

64



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Net OPEB Ljability (continued)

The TOL is calculated by the Trusts’ actuary, and each Trust’s fiduciary net position is reported in the Trust's
financial statements. The NOL is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB No. 74 in the Trusts’
notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. Liability calculations performed by the
Trusts’ actuary for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of GASB Nos. 74 and 75 and are not applicable for
other purposes, such as determining the Trusts’ funding requirements.

, ,

The Single Discount Rate of 2.45% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCRHITF. The accounting
policy for this plan is to set the Single Discount Rate equal to the prevailing municipal bond rate. Due to the plan’s
investment and funding policies, the difference between a blended discount rate and the municipal bond rate would
be less than several basis points (several hundredths of one percent).

A Single Discount Rate of 2.83% was used to measure the total OPEB liability for the SCLTDITF. This Single
Discount Rate was based on an expected rate of return on plan investments of 3.00% and a municipal bond rate of
2.45%. The projection of cash flows to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed that employer contributions
will remain $38.64 per year for each covered active employee. Based on these assumptions, the plan’s Fiduciary
Net Position and future contributions were sufficient to finance the benefit payments through the year 2041. As a
result, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to project benefit payments through
the year 2041, and the municipal bond rate was applied to all benefit payments after that date.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of returns represents assumptions developed using an arithmetic building block
approach primarily based on consensus expectations and market-based inputs. The expected returns, along with
the expected inflation rate, form the basis for the target asset allocation adopted at the beginning of the 2018 fiscal
year. The long-term expected rate of return is produced by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target allocation percentage and adding expected inflation. This information is summarized in the following table:

SOUTH CAROLINA RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE TRUST FUND

Allocation-
Weighted Long-
Target Asset Arithmetic Real Term Expected Real
Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Asset Class

U.S. Domestic Fixed Income 80.00% 0.60% 0.48%
Cash equivalents 20.00% 0.35% 0.07%
Total 100.00% 0.55%
Expected Inflation 2.25%
Total Return 2.80%
Investment Return Assumption 2.75%

65



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

SOUTH CAROLINA LONG -TERM DISABILITY INSURANCE TRUST FUND

Allocation-
Weighted Long-
Target Asset Arithmetic Real Term Expected Real
Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return
Asset Class

U.S. Domestic Fixed Income 80.00% 0.95% 0.76%
Cash equivalents 20.00% 0.35% 0.07%
Total 100.00% 0.83%
Expected Inflation 2.25%
Total Return 3.08%
Investment Return Assumption 3.00%

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table presents the District’'s SCRHITF net OPEB liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate of
2.45% as well as what the District’'s SCHRITF net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single
Discount Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.45% 2.45% 3.45%
SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability $ 302,947,746 $ 253,895,039 $ 214,698,258

Regarding the sensitivity of the District's SCRHITF net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates,
the following table presents the District’'s SCRHITF net OPEB liability, calculated using the assumed trend rates as
well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a trend rate that is one percent lower
or one percent higher:

Current Healthcare
1% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1% Increase
SCRHITF Net OPEB Liability $ 205,503,664 $ 253,895,039 $ 317,446,842

The following table represents the District's SCLTDITF's net OPEB liability calculated using a Single Discount Rate
of 2.83%, as well as what the District's SCLTDITF's net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a Single
Discount Rate that is one percent lower or one percent higher:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.83% 2.83% 3.83%
SCLTDITF Net OPEB Liability $ 20,301 $ 3,445 $ (13,293)

The District’'s SCLTDITF net OPEB liability is not affected by changes in the healthcare cost trend rates due to the
method used to calculate benefit payments. Therefore, the sensitivity to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates
have not been calculated.

66



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Additional Financial and Actuarial Information

Information in this note was compiled from the OPEB Trusts Funds audited financial statement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020, and the accounting and financial reporting actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. Additional
financial information supporting the preparation of the Schedules (including the unmodified audit opinion on the
financial statements and required supplementary information) is available in the OPEB Trusts Funds’ audited
financial statements.

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2021, was as follows:

Amounts Amounts Amounts
Outstanding Outstanding Due in
June 30, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021 One Year
Governmental Activities
Current Refunding General Obligation
Bonds
Series 2013A — Issued
November 19, 2013 $ 25,698,000 $ - $ (2,632,000) $ 23,066,000 $ 2,786,000
Series 2015B — Issued
November 9, 2015 51,890,000 - (3,860,000) 48,030,000 4,760,000
General Obligation Bonds:
Series 2010A — Issued
June 9, 2010 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 -
Series 2012B — Issued
August 21, 2012 83,120,000 - (6,265,000) 76,855,000 6,280,000
Series 2019B — Issued
September 1, 2019 20,930,000 - (10,335,000) 10,595,000 10,595,000
191,638,000 - (23,092,000) 168,546,000 24,421,000
Deferred Amounts:
Unamortized Premium on Bonds 9,207,541 - (2,084,931) 7,122,610 1,775,844
Total Bonds Payable 200,845,541 - (25,176,931) 175,668,610 26,196,844
Net Acquisition Lease Purchase -
Issued April 3, 2017 487,441 - (487,441) - -
Compensated Absences 1,296,878 949,293 (1,057,616) 1,188,555 475,422
Long-Term Liabilities $ 202,629,860 $ 949,293 $(26,721,988) $ 176,857,165 $ 26,672,266

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.
Details for each debt issue are as follows:

On June 9, 2010, the District issued Taxable Series 2010A, $10,000,000, general obligations bonds (Qualified School
Construction Bonds — Direct Payment) referendum debt with an interest rate of 5.25 percent. The American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009 allowed governments to issue taxable bonds to finance capital expenditures and to elect
to receive a subsidy payment for the United States Treasury equal to 100 percent of the amount of each interest payment
on such bonds. The available subsidy (“Interest Subsidy”) received on these bonds is included as revenue of the Debt
Service Fund. The net proceeds were $9,878,300 after a bid premium of $78,200 less costs of issuance of $199,900.
Bonds are due in a single installment on June 1, 2027. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on December 1
and June 1 beginning December 1, 2010, through June 1, 2027. The proceeds will be used for the purpose of providing
funds for capital improvements, equipment and technology, and paying the costs of issuance of the bonds and such
other lawful purposes as determined by the District.

67



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

On August 21, 2012, the District issued Series 2012B, $115,655,000 general obligation bonds (Bond Referendum debt).
The net proceeds were $125,788,107 after a bid premium of $10,413,885 less costs of issuance of $280,778. Principal
payments are payable annually beginning on March 1, 2014, through March 1, 2032, ranging from $125,000 to
$12,615,000. The bonds have variable interest rates which range from 3.0 percent to 5.0 percent. Interest payments are
payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 beginning March 1, 2013, through March 1, 2032. The proceeds
will be used for purposes of funding capital projects approved in the Referendum, paying costs of issuance of the bonds,
and such other lawful purposes as may be determined by the School District.

On November 19, 2013, the District issued Series 2013A, $40,444,000 general obligation current refunding bonds (Bond
Referendum debt) with an interest rate of 2.21 percent. The proceeds were used to refund the outstanding balance of
$39,850,000 of the Series 2009B Build America Bonds which had interest rates ranging from 2.4 percent to 5.9 percent
along with an interest credit subsidy equal to 35 percent of the amount of each interest payment on the bonds. The net
proceeds of $40,320,941 (after payment of $123,059 for costs of issuance) were disbursed to discharge the Series
2009B Build America Bonds.

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $470,941; this amount is being amortized
over the life of the new debt. The District entered into this refunding to take advantage of lower interest rates, resulting
in a reduction of total debt service payments of $6,008,119 and an economic gain (difference between the present
values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $4,531,246. Bonds are due in annual installments
beginning March 1, 2014, through March 1, 2028, ranging from $1,819,000 to $3,838,000. Interest payments are payable
semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 beginning March 1, 2014, through March 1, 2028. The deferred loss on
refunding at June 30, 2021 was $136,273.

On November 9, 2015, the District issued Series 2015B, $62,025,000 general obligation current refunding bonds (Bond
Referendum debt) with variable interest rates which range from 3 percent to 5 percent. The proceeds were used to
refund the outstanding balance of $68,500,000 of the Series 2010B2 Build America Bonds which had interest rates
ranging from 2.75 percent to 5 percent along with an interest credit subsidy equal to 35 percent of the amount of each
interest payment on the bonds. The net proceeds of $69,159,618 (after premium of $7,360,409 and issuance costs of
$225,791) were disbursed to discharge the Series 2010B2 Build AmericaBonds.

The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $659,618; this amount is being amortized
over the life of the new debt. The District entered into this refunding to take advantage of lower interest rates, resulting
in a reduction of total debt service payments of $4,170,746 and an economic gain (difference between the present
values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $3,438,817. Bonds are due in annual installments
beginning March 1, 2017 through March 1, 2029, ranging from $1,805,000 to $12,975,000. Interest payments are
payable semi-annually on March 1 and September 1 beginning March 1, 2016 through March 2, 2029. The deferred
loss on refunding at June 30, 2021 was $265,755.

On April 3, 2017, the District entered into a Tax-Exempt Lease/Purchase Agreement, for $2,428,901. The net proceeds
of the agreement, after a promotional contribution from the vendor of $131,907, were $2,296,994. Principal payments
are payable annually beginning on June 1, 2017, through June 1, 2021, ranging from $419,467 to $487,441. The interest
rate is 2.5466 percent. Interest payments are payable annually on June 1 beginning June 1, 2017, through June 1,
2021. The proceeds were used for the purchase of technology equipment. The proceeds were held in an escrow
account and drawn as equipment was purchased. Equipment items of $1,057,284 met the capitalization threshold and
are included in the furniture and equipment category of the District's governmental activities’ capital assets. ltems not
meeting the requirement to be capitalized were $1,317,094. An unspent balance of $54,523 was applied towards the
first debt service payment.

On September 4, 2019, the District issued Series 2019B, $30,000,000 general obligation bonds (Bond Referendum
debt). The net proceeds were $31,673,774 after a bid premium of $1,839,203 less costs of issuance of $165,430.
Principal payments are payable annually beginning on March 1, 2021, through March 1, 2022, ranging from $9,070,000
to $10,595,000. The bonds have an interest rate of 5.0 percent. Interest payments are payable semi-annually on March
1 and September 1 beginning March 1, 2021, through March 1, 2022. The proceeds will be used for purposes of funding
capital projects approved in the Referendum, paying costs of issuance of the bonds, and such other lawful purposes as
may be determined by the School District.

68



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)
Bond premium and deferred loss on refunding are amortized using the effective interest method over the life of the debt.

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for the District’s long-term general obligation bonds as of June

30, 2021 are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2022 $ 24,421,000 $ 6,166,133 $ 30,587,133
2023 14,660,000 5,022,813 19,682,813
2024 15,206,000 4,487,139 19,693,139
2025 15,773,000 3,932,436 19,705,436
2026 16,289,000 3,357,782 19,646,782
2027 - 2031 71,402,000 8,786,835 80,188,835
2032 10,795,000 431,800 11,226,800
$ 168,546,000 $ 32,184,938 $ 200,730,938

The South Carolina Constitution limits local borrowing power to 8 percent of its assessed property value. The Limitation
excludes bonded indebtedness existing on December 1, 1977, (date of the Constitutional amendment), certain special
levies assessed on properties located in an area receiving special benefits, and other prescribed indebtedness approved
by the voters. Based on the December 31, 2020 assessed property valuation of $584,379,004 (unaudited), the legal
debt limit is $46,750,320, with $20,823,200 of applicable general obligation debt outstanding, leaving a legal debt
margin of $25,927,120 at June 30, 2021.

NOTE 8 — SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Summary of Changes in Short-term Debt : During the year ended June 30, 2021, the following transactions
occurred in short-term liabilities:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2020 Additions Deductions June 30, 2021
SCAGO - Series 2020A $ 9,362,000 $ - $ (9,362,000) $ -
SCAGO - Series 2021A _ 10,228,200 . 10,228,200

$ 9,362,000 $ 10,228,200 ~$ (9,362,000) $ 10,228,200

Capital Projects Funds:

On April 22, 2021, the District issued Series 2021A, $10,000,000 SCAGO general obligation bonds (8% debt) with
an interest rate of 0.14 percent for the purpose of providing funds for capital improvements, equipment, and
technology. The net proceeds were $10,174,327 after bid premium of $228,200 less cost of issuance of $53,873.
These bonds, including interest of $240,000, are due March 1, 2022 and are scheduled to be repaid utilizing debt
service fund property tax revenues.

69



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 — UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenues (those where asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria
have not been met) consist of the following:

Special Projects Fund EIA Fund Food Service
Unexpended Carryover Amounts $ 2,563,447 $ 3,903,433 $ 159,891

NOTE 10 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Interfund transfers, receivables and payables for fiscal year 2021 consisted of the following:

Interfund Transfers :

Fund Category Transfers In Transfers Out
General Fund $ 6,102,397 $ 207,093
Special Revenue Funds - 436,477
Combined EIA Funds - 5,665,920
Food Service Fund 207,093 -
Debt Service Fund - 9,362,000
Capital Projects Fund 9,362,000 -

Totals $ 15,671,490 $ 15,671,490

Interfund Receivables and Payables :

Fund Category Interfund Receivables Interfund Payables
General Fund $ - $ 33,812,486
Special Revenue Funds 4,445,968 -
Combined EIA Funds 3,726,075 -
Food Service Fund 1,197,366 -
Debt Service Fund 144,505 -
Capital Projects Fund 23,942,310 -
Enterprise Fund — After School 356,262 -

Totals $ 33,812,486 $ 33,812,486

Interfund transfers include funding allowed for indirect costs, required matches, supplemental funding, state cuts, and
accounting practice.

70



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Due to General Fund from Special Revenue Funds : The District participates in various federally funded projects,
many of which operate on a cost reimbursement basis. That is, the expenditure must be incurred prior to submitting a
claim for reimbursement. Accordingly, the District must temporarily provide funds for these project expenditures until
such time as the related reimbursement from the grantor agency is received. All interfund balances are expected to
be repaid within one year from the date of the financial statements.

Due to and from Other Funds : The District used one bank account to hold deposits and to issue checks which
results in the interfund receivables and payables for each of the funds. All interfund balances are expected to be
repaid within one year from the date of the financial statements.

NOTE 11 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District pays an annual premium to the South Carolina
School Board Insurance Trust for its general insurance. The South Carolina School Board Insurance Trust reinsures
through commercial companies.

The District acquires insurance from the South Carolina School Board Insurance Trust for job related injury and illness
(workers’ compensation) for its employees. Workers’ compensation is insured under a retrospectively rated policy where
premiums are estimated throughout the year and adjusted subsequent to the policy period based on actual experience.

General blanket fidelity bond insurance from a private insurer was also maintained for the District's employees as well
as athletic catastrophic insurance.

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and no settlements have exceeded
insurance coverage for the past three years ended June 30, 2021, 2020, and 2019.

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 a pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic and
resulting global disruptions have caused significant economic uncertainty and volatility in financial markets. The impact
of COVID-19 continues to evolve rapidly, and the District is not able at this time to estimate its full impact on its financial
statements.

NOTE 12 — OPERATING LEASES

The School District is obligated to account for certain leases as operating leases. Current rental expenditures for the
year ended June 30, 2021 were $ 510,143. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments
required under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of
June 30, 2021:

Year Ended
June 30 Totals

2022 $ 171,079
2023 40,880
2024 31,363
2025 31,363
2026 2,908

Total payments $ 277,593

71



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13 — FUND BALANCES
The District uses the following governmental fund balance accounts:

Nonspendable for Inventory — An account used to segregate a portion of fund balance to indicate inventory is
“not in spendable form” even though it is a component of current assets.

Nonspendable for Prepaid Items — An account used to segregate a portion of fund balances to indicate that
prepaid items are “not in spendable form” even though it is a component of current assets.

Restricted for Food Service — This amount represents the Food Service Fund balance that has been restricted
due to contractual obligations for food service and is not an expendable, available resource.

Restricted for Debt Service — This represents the Debt Service Fund balance that is not available for appropriation
because it represents the year-end fund balance that is legally restricted for future debt service on general obligation
bonds and is not an expendable, available resource.

Restricted for Capital Projects — This amount represents the School Building Fund balance that has been
restricted due to contractual obligations for approved building projects and is not an expendable, available resource.

Assigned — This represents the amount set aside by the District for special purposes. As of June 30, 2021,
the District has set aside $1,304,715 for start-up costs associated with Piney Woods Elementary School,
$3,000,000 as a one-time employee appreciation gift to be paid in fiscal year 2022, $3,000,000 for “$50 Fridays”
to reward permanent staff for perfect attendance on a weekly basis, and $3,500,000 for potential future capital
needs. The total assigned fund balance as of June 30, 2021 is $10,804,715.

Unassigned — This represents and includes all spendable amounts of the general fund not contained in the other
classifications.

District policy is to maintain an unassigned fund balance consistent with the medial averages for issuers that retain
at least an Aa2/AA credit rating. This average may change from time to time but generally ranges from 15 percent —
18 percent of the general fund budgeted expenditures. The required range as of June 30, 2021 is $30,254,125 to
$36,304,950 based on the 2021/2022 general fund budget. The unassigned amount at June 30, 2021 is $40,396,113.

NOTE 14 — CONTINGENCIES AND LITIGATION

The District is party to various lawsuits arising out of the normal conduct of its operations. In the opinion of the District's
management, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect of the District’s financial
position.

The District participates in certain federal and state grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the
grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant. Management believes disallowances, if any, will
not be material.

72



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 15 - TAX ABATEMENTS

The District’'s boundaries encompass areas in both the County of Lexington and the County of Richland.

The District is subject to the following property tax abatement agreements entered into by the County of Lexington:

State of South

Amount of Taxes Carolina Revenue
Abated during the Reimbursement
Fiscal Year Amount
County of Lexington:

Fee-in-lieu of Taxes Program (FILOT) $ 137,907 $ 59,535

Fee-in-lieu of Tax Infrastructure Program (FILOT & IP) 388,820 90,325

Fee-in-lieu of Tax, Special Source Revenue Credit and

Infrastructure Program (FILOT & SSRC & IP) 1,196,055 -

$ 1,722,782 $ 149,860

Richland County:

Richland County, South Carolina (“County”) has developed a multicounty industrial or business park (“MCIP") and
located certain taxpayers’ property within the MCIP. The location of certain taxpayers within the MCIP has had the
effect of abating District Five of Lexington & Richland Counties’ (“School District”) property tax revenues from those
taxpayers because the County shares a portion of the property tax revenues generated from the MCIP with its
partner county and distributes the property tax revenues generated from the MCIP pursuant to the agreement
governing the MCIP.

For tax year 2020, the gross dollar amount by which the School District’s property tax revenues were abated as a
result of the MCIP agreement was $16,139.

For tax year 2020, the gross dollar amount of property tax revenues the School District received as a result of the
MCIP agreement was $301,698.

NOTE 16 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events through November 29, 2021, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

On October 11, 2021, School District 5 of Lexington and Richland Counties Board approved a Resolution to refund
the 2012B Callable bonds. These bonds are callable as of March 1, 2022.

On November 17, 2021, the District's financial advisor and bond counsel recommended awarding the bid to JP

Morgan who provided the lowest True Interest Cost. The final sale resulted in $9,154,225 of net present value debt
services savings of the refunded bonds’ par amount. This bond sale will close on December 15, 2021.

73



This page was intentionally left blank.

74



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

75




This page was intentionally left blank.

76



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - SCRS AND PORS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2011* 2012* 2013* 2014* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
SCRS
District's Proportion of Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 209,898,245 $ 225,910,185 $ 245,665,857 $ 253,980,016 $ 251,892,870 $ 254,346,648 $ 284,530,330
District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 1.219156% 1.191165% 1.150129% 1.128218% 1.124180% 1.113887% 1.113545%
District's Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A 115,524,407 116,847,519 116,562,170 119,132,897 121,474,377 122,809,802 128,544,662
District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 181.69% 193.34% 210.76% 213.19% 207.36% 207.11% 221.35%
as a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the N/A N/A N/A N/A 59.90% 57.00% 52.90% 53.30% 54.10% 54.40% 50.71%
Total Pension Liability
PORS
District's Proportion of Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 130,009 $ 153,589 $ 179,709 $ 246,533 $ 271,422 $ 290,606 $ 230,400
District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.00679% 0.00705% 0.00709% 0.00900% 0.00958% 0.01014% 0.00695%
District's Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A 81,765 87,304 92,530 121,191 132,586 132,586 147,076
District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 159.00% 175.92% 194.22% 203.43% 204.71% 219.18% 156.65%
as a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the N/A N/A N/A N/A 67.50% 64.60% 60.40% 60.90% 61.73% 62.70% 58.79%

Total Pension Liability

* Note: Not Available
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten (10) years. However, until a full ten year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years
for which information is available.

Source:

Audit report of employer allocations of the South Carolina Retirement System (SCRS) and Police Officers Retirement System (PORS), as administered by the SC Public Employee
Benefit Authority for the year ended June 30, 2020.

77



SCRS
Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

District's Covered Payroll
Contributions as a percentage of
Covered Payroll

PORS
Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
District's Covered Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Payroll

* Note: Not Available

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS - SCRS AND PORS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2011*  2012*  2013* 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

N/A N/A N/A $ 11,732,446 $ 12,173,782 $ 12,318,034 $ 13,159,144 $ 15796,894 $ 17,124,523 $ 19,330,347 $ 19,628,890
N/A N/A N/A (11,732,446) (12,173,782) (12,318,034) (13,159,144) (15,796,894) (17,124,523) (19,330,347) (19,628,890)
N/A N/A N/A $ - 8 -3 - % - $ -8 -8 -8 -
N/A N/A N/A $ 115,524,407 $ 116,847,519 $ 116,562,170 $ 119,132,897 $ 121,474,377 $ 122,809,802 $ 128,544,662 $ 131,910,146
N/A N/A N/A 10.16% 10.42% 10.57% 11.05% 13.00% 13.94% 15.04% 14.88%
N/A N/A N/A $ 10,487 $ 11,707 $ 12,411 $ 17,258 $ 21532 $ 25356 $ 19,143 $ 18,288
N/A N/A N/A (10,487) (11,707) (12,411) (17,258) (21,532) (25,356) (19,143) (18,288)
N/A N/A N/A $ - 8 -3 - % - $ -8 -8 -8 -
N/A N/A N/A $ 81,675 $ 87,304 $ 92,530 $ 121,191 $ 132,586 $ 147,076 $ 104,955 $ 101,373
N/A N/A N/A 12.84% 13.41% 13.41% 14.24% 16.24% 17.24% 18.24% 18.04%

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten (10) years. However, until a full ten year trend is compiled, information is presented for those years for which

information is available.

Sources:

District Quarterly Retirement Contribution Reports

78



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY - SCRHITF AND SCLTDITF
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2011* 2012* 2013* 2014* 2015* _2016* 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

SCRHITF

District's Net OPEB Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 204,609,880 $ 191,545,927 $ 199,825,937 $ 212,592,153 $ 253,895,039

District's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1.414162% 1.414162% 1.410146% 1.405891% 1.406508%

District's Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 116,654,699 119,254,088 121,606,963 122,956,878 128,649,617

District's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability

as a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 175.40% 160.62% 164.32% 172.90% 197.35%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the

Total OPEB Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 7.60% 7.91% 8.44% 8.39%
SCLTDITF

District's Net OPEB Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 7,908 $ 20,655 $ 35205 $ 22,487 % 3,445

District's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1.13923% 1.13928% 1.15004% 1.14248% 1.13629%

District's Covered Payroll (1)

District's Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll (1)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 95.29% 92.20% 95.17% 99.29%

Total OPEB Liability

* Note: Not Available
This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten (10) years. However, until a full ten year trend is compiled, information is presented
for those years for which information is available.

(1): Long-term Disability is assessed per covered individual, not as a percentage of covered payroll.
Source:
Audit report on the Schedules of Employer and Non-Employer Entity Allocations and Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) Amounts by Employer for the South

Carolina Retiree Health Insurance and Long-Term Disability Insurance Trust Funds, as administered by the SC Public Employee Benefit Authority for the year ended
June 30, 2020.

79



SCRHITF
Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

District's Covered Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll

SCLTDITF
Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the
Contractually Required Contribution

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
District's Covered Payroll (1)
Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Payroll (1)

* Note: Not Available

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS - SCRHITF AND SCLTDITF
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year

2011* 2012* 2013* 2014* 2015* 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 6,217,696 $ 6,356,243 $ 6,688,383 $ 7,438,891 $ 8,103,101 $ 8,250,720
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A (6,356,243) (6,688,383) (7,438,891) (8,103,101) (8,250,720)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 116,654,699 $ 119,254,088 $ 121,606,963 $ 122,956,878 $ 128,649,617 $ 132,011,519
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 5.33% 5.33% 5.50% 6.05% 6.30% 6.25%
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ 81,595 $ 82,467 $ 83,627 $ 84,174 $ 85,857 $ 86,542
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A (82,467) (83,627) (84,174) (85,857) (86,542)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten (10) years. However, until a full ten year trend is compiled, information is

presented for those years for which

(1): Long-term Disability is assessed per covered individual, not as a percentage of covered payroll.

Sources:

District Quarterly Retirement Contribution Reports and Health Insurance Reports

80



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

81




This page was intentionally left blank.

82



GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the School District. It is used to account for all financial
resources except for those required to be accounted for in another fund. All property taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and miscellaneous revenues are recorded in this fund except amounts which are specifically
collected to service debt or capacity. Operational expenditures for general education, support services and
other departments of the District are paid through the General Fund. Any unassigned fund balance may be
appropriated to support operating expenditures in subsequent years.

The following Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
for the General Fund has been prepared in the format mandated by the South Carolina Department

of Education. The account numbers shown on the schedule are also mandated by the South Carolina
Department of Education.

83



This page was intentionally left blank.

84



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenues
1000 Revenues from Local Sources

1100 Taxes Levied/Assessed by the LEA:
1110 Ad Valorem Taxes - Including Delinquent (Independent)
1140 Penalties and Interest on Taxes (Independent)

1200 Revenue From Local Governmental Units Other Than LEAs:
1280 Revenue in Lieu of Taxes (Independent and Dependent)

1300 Tuition:
1310 Tuition from Patrons for Regular Day School

1500 Earnings on Investments:
1510 Interest on Investments

1900 Other Revenue from Local Sources:
1910 Rentals
1930 Special Needs Transportation - Medicaid
1950 Refund of Prior Year's Expenditures
1960 Printing Revenue

1990 Miscellaneous Local Revenue:

1992 Canteen Operations
1993 Receipt of Insurance Proceeds
1999 Revenue from Other Local Sources

Total Local Sources
3000 Revenue from State Sources

3100 Restricted State Funding:
3130 Special Programs:

3131 Handicapped Transportation
3160 School Bus Driver Salary (Includes Hazardous Condition Transportation)
3161 EAA Bus Driver Salary and Fringe
3162 Transportation Workers' Compensation
3180 Fringe Benefits Employer Contributions (No Carryover Provision)
3181 Retiree Insurance (No Carryover Provision)
3186 State Aid to Classrooms - Teacher Salary Increase
3189 Teacher Step

3300 State Aid to Classrooms - Education Finance Act (EFA):
3310 Full-Time Programs:
3311 Kindergarten
3312 Primary
3313 Elementary
3314 High School
3315 Trainable Mentally Handicapped
3316 Speech Handicapped (Part-Time)
3317 Homebound
3320 Part-Time Programs:
3321 Emotionally Handicapped
3322 Educable Mentally Handicapped
3323 Learning Disabilities
3324 Hearing Handicapped
3325 Visually Handicapped
3326 Orthopedically Handicapped
3327 Pre-Career and Career Technology

85

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

67,831,628 70,870,120 $ 3,038,492
415,632 415,013 (619)
1,552,340 1,724,029 171,689
5,000 4,149 (851)
350,000 81,438 (268,562)
120,000 64,870 (55,130)
105,000 213,756 108,756
15,000 217,510 202,510

- 20,428 20,428

- 286,253 286,253

25,000 190,228 165,228
200,000 196,834 (3,166)
70,619,600 74,284,628 3,665,028
- 2,540 2,540
1,213,333 1,339,503 126,170
- 2,397 2,397

61,727 64,500 2,773
20,097,971 19,828,402 (269,569)
5,440,985 5,456,118 15,133
4,124,175 4,087,263 (36,912)
- 923,743 923,743
1,730,583 1,732,733 2,150
5,174,712 5,181,139 6,427
10,677,052 10,690,312 13,260
2,850,091 2,853,630 3,539
65,436 65,517 81
3,114,873 3,118,741 3,868
18,176 18,198 22
131,608 131,771 163
61,983 62,060 77
3,034,889 3,038,658 3,769
184,459 184,688 229
87,720 87,829 109
50,851 50,914 63
8,346,398 8,356,764 10,366



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

3300 Miscellaneous EFA Programs:

3331 Autism

3332 High Achieving Students
3334 Limited English Proficiency

3351 Academic Assistance
3352 Pupils in Poverty

3353 Dual Credit Enroliment
3392 NBC Excess EFA Formula

3800 State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes:

3810 Reimbursement for Local Residential Property Tax Relief (Tier 1)
3820 Homestead Exemption (Tier 2)

3825 Reimbursement for Property Tax Relief (Tier 3)

3830 Merchant's Inventory Tax

3840 Manufacturer's Depreciation Reimbursement

3890 Other State Property Tax Revenues (Includes Motor Carrier Tax)

3900 Other State Revenue:

3992 State Forest Commission Revenues
3993 PEBA on-Behalf

Total State Sources

Total Revenues All Sources

Expenditures

100 Instruction:

110 General Instruction:

111 Kindergarten Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

112 Primary Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

113 Elementary Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay
600 Other Objects

114 High School Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay
600 Other Objects

115 Career and Technology Education Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay

118 Montessori Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

86

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
1,180,057 1,181,522 1,465
1,264,644 1,266,215 1,571
165,628 165,834 206
1,270,701 1,272,279 1,578
2,707,426 2,710,789 3,363
46,964 47,022 58
125,358 125,513 155
10,580,071 10,580,071 -
1,758,200 1,758,200 -
32,145,086 32,149,315 4,229
213,955 220,531 6,576
296,231 358,122 61,891
276,229 393,361 117,132
20,000 12,385 (7,615)
1,190,410 1,190,410 -
119,707,982 120,708,989 1,001,007
190,327,582 194,993,617 4,666,035
4,621,322 4,902,855 (281,533)
2,196,181 2,273,891 (77,710)
3,151 47,210 (44,059)
60,143 77,332 (17,189)
13,033,021 13,187,591 (154,570)
5,836,559 5,738,389 98,170
5,621 394,452 (388,831)
297,344 300,669 (3,325)
23,486,181 23,573,081 (86,900)
10,143,754 10,009,202 134,552
16,725 764,167 (747,442)
505,142 358,567 146,575
3,700 3,698 2
- 646 (646)
18,935,753 18,734,018 201,735
7,970,052 7,804,216 165,836
397,067 779,708 (382,641)
746,342 500,534 245,808
- 5,929 (5,929)
885 835 50
2,581,469 2,614,264 (32,795)
1,106,655 1,100,438 6,217
10,600 37,277 (26,677)
125,000 113,318 11,682
- 8,414 (8,414)
217,960 306,239 (88,279)
120,104 153,898 (33,794)
- 1,214 (1,214)



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

120 Exceptional Programs:

121 Educable Mentally Handicapped:

100 Salaries

200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

122 Trainable Mentally Handicapped:

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
123 Orthopedically Handicapped:
400 Supplies and Materials
124 Visually Handicapped:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
400 Supplies and Materials
125 Hearing Handicapped:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
126 Speech Handicapped:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
127 Learning Disabilities:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
128 Emotionally Handicapped:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

GENERAL FUND

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

129 Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS):

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

130 Pre-School Programs:

135 Preschool Handicapped Speech (3- and 4-Yr. Olds):

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
400 Supplies and Materials

136 Preschool Handicapped Itinerant (3- and 4-Yr.-Olds):

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

137 Pre-School Handicapped-Self-Contained (3- and 4-Yr. Olds):

100 Salaries

200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

87

Final
Budget

1,068,698

493,032

2,854

437,787
189,462

2,306
1,659

114,615
45,942
2,029

288,135
117,329

3,761

1,799,201

798,401
81,900
81,935

4,458,434
1,957,410

100,218

804,642
367,464

3,724

794,680
331,494

90

8,195
3,582

1,122,415

502,762

540

Actual

1,558,773
680,173
27,860
29,985

427,053
180,003
5,147
1,989

620

62,285
23,478
494

238,619
92,729
40,366

810

1,835,538
781,115
102,959

38,936

4,230,070
1,810,061
89,240
104,091

657,576
297,239
1,713
4,773

696,423
295,117
160

1,000
1,100

24,346
7,894
3,049

1,113,383
494,875
8,426

537

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

$ (490,075)
(187,141)
(27,860)
(27,131)

10,734
9,459
(5,147)

317

1,039

52,330
22,464
1,535

49,516
24,600
(40,366)

2,951

(36,337)
17,286
(21,059)
42,999

228,364

147,349

(89,240)
(3.873)

147,066
70,225
(1,713)
(1,049)

98,257
36,377
(160)

(1,000)
(1,100)
90

(16,151)
(4,312)
(3,049)

9,032
7,887
(8,426)

3



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

138 Pre-School Handicapped-Homebased (3- and 4-Yr. Olds):

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
139 Early Childhood Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

140 Special Programs:

141 Gifted and Talented - Academic:

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

143 Advanced Placement:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

144 International Baccalaureate:
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

145 Homebound:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

148 Gifted and Talented - Artistic:

100 Salaries

200 Employee Benefits

300 Purchased Services

400 Supplies and Materials
149 Other Special Programs:

100 Salaries

140 Terminal Leave
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

160 Other Exceptional Programs:

161 Autism:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

170 Summer School Programs:

172 Elementary Summer School:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

173 High School Summer School:

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits

175 Instruction Programs Beyond Regular School Day:

400 Supplies and Materials

Final
Budget

$ 5,637
2,202

1,055,669
500,549
18,224
32,299
1,500

1,435,807
626,782
1,388
12,725

322,988
132,363

8,300
50,000
11,775

193,937
49,433
16,000

149,649
59,311
7,020
2,875

581,721

276,275
2,320,870

805,158
397,622

25,549

40,000
12,052

88

Actual

4,825
2,297
2

1,096,647
505,307
22,535
22,771
375

1,338,499
555,136
3,081
1,795

176

308,467
126,700
10,610

11,280
11,749

98,803
33,764

160,408
63,073

(1,022)
91

763,898
1,279,159
595,983
52,466

689,171
344,114
4,505
12,573

16,966
5,170
6,625

81,781
24,915

132

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

812
(95)
@

(40,978)
(4,758)
(4,311)

9,528
1,125

97,308
71,646
(1,693)
10,930
(176)

14,521
5,663
(10,610)

8,300
38,720
26

95,134
15,669
16,000

(10,759)

(3.762)
8,042
2,784

(182,177)

(1,279,159)

(319,708)
2,268,404

115,987
53,508
(4,505)
12,976

23,034
6,882
(6,625)

(81,781)
(24,915)

(132)



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
180 Adult/Continuing Educational Programs:
181 Adult Basic Education Programs:
100 Salaries $ 114,933 $ 134,900 $ (19,967)
200 Employee Benefits 39,666 45,988 (6,322)
300 Purchased Services 3,916 225 3,691
400 Supplies and Materials 575 370 205
600 Other Objects 351 451 (100)
182 Adult Secondary Education Programs:
100 Salaries - 2,000 (2,000)
200 Employee Benefits - 166 (166)
300 Purchased Services 50 - 50
400 Supplies and Materials 3,974 3,681 293
183 Adult English Literacy:
100 Salaries - 6,210 (6,210)
200 Employee Benefits - 1,632 (1,632)
188 Parenting/Family Literacy:
100 Salaries 38,142 40,327 (2,185)
200 Employee Benefits 19,113 18,500 613
190 Instructional Pupil Activity:
100 Salaries (optional) 655,488 663,454 (7,966)
200 Employee Benefits (optional) 197,499 197,536 37)
660 Pupil Activity (optional) 20,800 5,454 15,346
Total Instruction 118,655,614 119,137,778 (482,164)
200 Support Services:
210 Pupil Services:
211 Attendance and Social Work Services:
100 Salaries 1,013,765 996,104 17,661
200 Employee Benefits 517,462 462,362 55,100
300 Purchased Services 120,000 4,983 115,017
400 Supplies and Materials 4,000 24,569 (20,569)
212 Guidance Services:
100 Salaries 3,426,345 3,509,703 (83,358)
200 Employee Benefits 1,477,262 1,472,873 4,389
300 Purchased Services 2,240 22,148 (19,908)
400 Supplies and Materials 35,757 24,723 11,034
213 Health Services:
100 Salaries 1,810,188 2,036,077 (225,889)
200 Employee Benefits 806,979 865,913 (58,934)
300 Purchased Services 1,430 39,361 (37,931)
400 Supplies and Materials 34,040 40,545 (6,505)
600 Other Objects 116 - 116
214 Psychological Services:
100 Salaries 1,198,300 1,297,359 (99,059)
200 Employee Benefits 481,094 503,496 (22,402)
300 Purchased Services 6,000 7,453 (1,453)
400 Supplies and Materials 5,850 4,343 1,507
217 Career Specialist Services:
100 Salaries 84,053 94,053 (10,000)
200 Employee Benefits 35,102 35,587 (485)
400 Supplies and Materials 1,035 775 260

89



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

220 Instructional Staff Services:

221 Improvement of Instruction-Curriculum Development:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects
222 Library and Media Services:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects
223 Supervision of Special Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

224 Improvement of Instruction Inservice and Staff Training:

100 Salaries

200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

230 General Administration Services:

231 Board of Education:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
318 Audit Services
600 Other Objects

232 Office of the Superintendent:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

233 School Administration:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay
600 Other Objects

250 Finance and Operations Services:

251 Student Transportation (Federal/District Mandated):
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
252 Fiscal Services:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

Final
Budget

$ 1,876,358
723,901

607,203

92,350

31,463

1,866,810
895,072
922
339,669
175

895,459
339,722
13,749
2,146
280

1,957
590
83,072
14,180
351

59,076
17,682
390,500
40,000
503,370

269,673
96,066
43,419

6,723
7,100

10,914,968
4,578,151
178,215
293,998
3,700
21,336

101,161
57,295
374,000

940,460
378,775
202,691
53,955
5,938

90

Actual

1,987,156
762,875
490,367

30,586
29,800

1,891,644
833,107
3,854
327,333
175

921,480
344,709
468
1,332
4,880

9,470
21
17,499
9,916

59,076
17,796
338,994
45,856
488,659

286,353
95,420
3,380
6,348
2,409

11,272,231
4,601,779
237,490
308,096
16,909
17,033

74,173
38,297
131,885
92,798

978,758
397,208
76,070
28,889
3,205

$

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

(110,798)

(38,974)
116,836
61,764
1,663

(24,834)
61,965
(2,932)
12,336

(26,021)
(4,987)
13,281

814
(4,600)

(7,513)
569
65,573
4,264
351

(114)
51,506
(5,856)
14,711

(16,680)
646
40,039
375
4,691

(357,263)
(23,628)
(59,275)
(14,098)
(13,209)

4,303

26,988
18,998

242,115

(92,798)

(38,298)

(18,433)
126,621
25,066
2,733



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
254 Operation and Maintenance of Plant:
100 Salaries $ 6,948,455 6,818,905 129,550
200 Employee Benefits 3,389,377 3,270,235 119,142
300 Purchased Services 4,266,143 3,988,878 277,265
321 Public Utility Services (Excludes gas, oil, elec. & heating fuels) 799,000 848,674 (49,674)
400 Supplies and Materials 1,159,803 1,075,755 84,048
470 Energy (Includes gas, oil, elec. & heating fuels) 4,010,505 3,896,551 113,954
500 Capital Outlay 35,356 38,282 (2,926)
255 Student Transportation (State Mandated):
100 Salaries 3,760,605 3,690,565 70,040
200 Employee Benefits 1,760,532 1,642,508 118,024
300 Purchased Services 177,130 95,439 81,691
400 Supplies and Materials 56,500 41,539 14,961
600 Other Objects 1,000 380 620
256 Food Services:
100 Salaries - 120,000 (120,000)
200 Employee Benefits - 12,287 (12,287)
400 Supplies and Materials - 22,072 (22,072)
257 Internal Services:
100 Salaries 286,889 259,807 27,082
200 Employee Benefits 125,023 105,867 19,156
300 Purchased Services 657,465 520,934 136,531
400 Supplies and Materials 42,973 11,653 31,320
258 Security:
100 Salaries 185,058 189,766 (4,708)
200 Employee Benefits 68,581 72,570 (3,989)
300 Purchased Services 1,964,725 1,812,406 152,319
400 Supplies and Materials 22,810 10,071 12,739
500 Capital Outlay - 4,980 (4,980)
600 Other Objects 410 255 155
260 Central Support Services:
262 Planning:
100 Salaries 709,198 779,494 (70,296)
200 Employee Benefits 280,054 302,184 (22,130)
300 Purchased Services - 65,677 (65,677)
263 Information Services:
100 Salaries 409,480 417,977 (8,497)
200 Employee Benefits 173,241 171,098 2,143
300 Purchased Services 179,500 72,440 107,060
400 Supplies and Materials 30,000 18,066 11,934
600 Other Objects 12,000 12,032 (32)
264 Staff Services:
100 Salaries 784,201 742,460 41,741
200 Employee Benefits 300,639 470,290 (169,651)
300 Purchased Services 28,743 29,871 (1,128)
400 Supplies and Materials 30,402 19,193 11,209
600 Other Objects 125 1,296 (1,171)
266 Technology and Data Processing Services:
100 Salaries 1,743,554 1,790,123 (46,569)
200 Employee Benefits 699,846 700,283 (437)
300 Purchased Services 1,001,471 1,070,606 (69,135)
400 Supplies and Materials 160,519 17,503 143,016
600 Other Objects - 176 (176)
270 Support Services - Pupil Activity:
271 Pupil Service Activities:
100 Salaries 1,670,263 1,889,123 (218,860)
200 Employee Benefits 593,849 626,091 (32,242)
300 Purchased Services 237,769 146,305 91,464
400 Supplies and Materials (6,810) 10,921 (17,731)
660 Pupil Activity 419,228 470,694 (51,466)
Total Support Services 77,560,311 77,102,493 457,818

91



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Variance
Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
300 Community Services:
390 Other Community Services:
300 Purchased Services $ 15,000 $ - $ 15,000
400 Supplies and Materials 5,850 - 5,850
Total Community Services 20,850 - 20,850
400 Other Charges:
410 Intergovernmental Expenditures:
412 Payments to Other Governmental Units:
720 Transits 20,000 36,899 (16,899)
Total Intergovernmental Expenditures 20,000 36,899 (16,899)
Total Expenditures 196,256,775 196,277,170 (20,395)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
5300 Sale of Fixed Assets - 75,087 75,087
Interfund Transfers, From (To) Other Funds:
5230 Transfer from Special Revenue EIA Fund 5,717,090 5,665,920 (51,170)
5280 Transfer from Other Funds Indirect Costs 480,000 436,477 (43,523)
425-710 Transfer to Food Service Fund (267,897) (207,093) 60,804
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5,929,193 5,970,391 41,198
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures $ - 4,686,838 $ 4,686,838
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 46,518,549
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 51,205,387

92



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable

trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The School
District has the following Special Revenue Funds.

1. The_Special Projects Fund consists of multiple special revenue subfunds used to account for all federal,
state and local projects and grants except for those subject to EIA.

2. The_Education Improvement Act (EIA) Fund was passed in 1984 by the South Carolina State Legislature
to upgrade the quality of education in South Carolina. The fund accounts for the proceeds of the additional
one percent Sales and Use Tax which is restricted to expenditures for the Education Improvement Act
standards. Because of the categorical nature of the funding, the state requires that revenues and

expenditures be accounted for in a separate fund. Accordingly, the EIA Fund is reported as a Special
Revenue.

3. The School Food Services Fund'’s purpose is to provide balanced nutritious meals to the School District's
students, some of which are free and reduced meals under the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) school breakfast and lunch programs.

The following schedules for the Special Revenue Funds have been prepared in the format mandated by the
South Carolina Department of Education. The account numbers shown on the schedules are also mandated
by the South Carolina Department of Education.

93



This page was intentionally left blank.

94



Revenues
1000 Revenue from Local Sources

1700 Pupil Activities
1740 Student Fees
1790 Other Pupil Activity Income

1900 Other Revenue from Local Sources:
1920 Contributions & Donations Private Sources
1930 Special Needs Transportation - Medicaid

Total Local Sources
3000 Revenue from State Sources

3110 Occupation Education:
3118 EEDA Career Specialists
3120 General Education:
3127 Student Health and Fitness - PE Teachers
3130 Special Programs:
3135 Reading Coaches
3136 Student Health and Fitness-Nurses
3155 DDS SNAP & E&T Program
3156 Adult Education
3190 Miscellaneous Restricted State Grants:
3193 Education License Plates
3199 Other Restricted State Grants
3600 Education Lottery Act Revenue:

3670 School Safety - Facility and Infrastructure Safety Upgrades

3699 Other State Lottery Programs
3900 Other State Revenue:

3994 PEBA Nonemployer Contributions

3995 CRF Per Pupil Funding

Total State Sources
4000 Revenue from Federal Sources

4100 Federally Impacted Areas
4200 Occupational Education:

4210 Perkins Aid, Title | - Career and Technology Education - Basic Grants to State

4300 Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (ESEA):
4310 Title I, Basic State Grant Programs (Carryover Provision)
4341 Language Instruction for Limited English Proficient and Immigrant Students, Title Il
4343 McKinney-Vento Education for Homeless Children and Youth Program

4351 Supporting Effective Instruction
4400 Adult Education:

4410 Basic Adult Education

4430 State Literacy Resource
4500 Programs for Children with Disabilities:

4510 Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)
4520 Preschool Grants for Children with Disabilities (IDEA)

4900 Other Federal Sources:

4924 21st Century Community Learning Centers Program
4975 Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act)

4977 ESSER Il
4990 Other Federal Revenue:
4997 Title IV - SSAE
4999 Revenue from Other Federal Sources

Total Federal Sources

Total Revenues All Sources

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER
DESIGNATED OTHER
PRESCHOOL ADULT RESTRICTED SPECIAL STUDENT
TITLE | IDEA HANDICAPPED CATE EDUCATION STATE REVENUE ACTIVITY
(BA Projects) (CA Projects) (CG Projects) (VA Projects) (EA Projects) GRANTS PROGRAMS FUNDS
(201/202) (203/204) (205/206) (207/208) (243) (900s) (200s/800s) (700s) TOTAL

$ - - - - - $ - - 4,040 $ 4,040
- N - - - - - 2,257,911 2,257,911

- - - - - - 260,076 273 260,349

- - - - - - 235,225 - 235,225

- N - - - - 495,301 2,262,224 2,757,525

- N - - - 670,325 - - 670,325

- N - - - 120,259 - - 120,259

- N - - - 605,441 - - 605,441

- N - - - 281,010 - - 281,010

- N - - - 2,909 - - 2,909

- N - - - 3,670 - - 3,670

- - - - - 2,618 - - 2,618

- - - - - - 21,013 - 21,013

- - - - - 1,195 - - 1,195

- - - - - 48 48

- - - - - 1,875,729 - - 1,875,729

- - - - - - 3,538,485 - 3,538,485

- - - - - 3,563,204 3,559,498 - 7,122,702

- - - 164,165 - - - - 164,165

1,943,831 - - - - - 332,093 - 2,275,924

R - - - - - 29,163 - 29,163

- - - - - - 64,424 - 64,424

- - - - - - 208,030 - 208,030

- - - - 89,444 - - - 89,444

- - - - 25,284 - - - 25,284

- 3,353,100 - - - - - - 3,353,100

- - 176,365 - - - - - 176,365

- - - - - - 13,089 - 13,089

- - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000

R - - - - - 28,805 - 28,805

- - - - - - 218,967 - 218,967

- - - - - - 2,466,245 - 2,466,245

1,943,831 3,353,100 176,365 164,165 114,728 - 3,410,816 - 9,163,005
1,943,831 3,353,100 176,365 164,165 114,728 3,563,204 7,465,615 2,262,224 19,043,232

95



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER
DESIGNATED OTHER
PRESCHOOL ADULT RESTRICTED SPECIAL STUDENT
TITLE | IDEA HANDICAPPED CATE EDUCATION STATE REVENUE ACTIVITY
(BA Projects) (CA Projects) (CG Projects) (VA Projects) (EA Projects) GRANTS PROGRAMS FUNDS
(201/202) (203/204) (205/206) (207/208) (243) (900s) (200s/800s) (700s) TOTAL
Expenditures
100 Instruction
110 General Instruction:
111 Kindergarten Programs:
100 Salaries $ - $ - - 15,891 119,602 - $ 135,493
200 Employee Benefits - - - 6,262 37,434 - 43,696
300 Purchased Services - - - - 674 - 674
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - 4,778 - 4,778
112 Primary Programs:
100 Salaries 968,274 - - 36,163 635,190 - 1,639,627
200 Employee Benefits 401,723 - - 12,583 209,539 - 623,845
300 Purchased Services 2,085 - - - 35,569 - 37,654
400 Supplies and Materials 188,809 - - - 114,055 - 302,864
113 Elementary Programs:
100 Salaries 122,729 - - 35,288 524,783 - 682,800
200 Employee Benefits 47,556 - - 14,072 174,688 - 236,316
300 Purchased Services - - - - 8,228 - 8,228
400 Supplies and Materials - - - 2,618 182,906 - 185,524
114 High School Programs:
100 Salaries - - - - 328,721 - 328,721
200 Employee Benefits - - - - 35,046 - 35,046
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - 63,280 - 63,280
115 Career and Technology Education Programs:
300 Purchased Services - - 24,250 - - - 24,250
400 Supplies and Materials - - 110,185 - 13,815 316 124,316
118 Montessori Programs:
100 Salaries - - - - 87,509 - 87,509
200 Employee Benefits - - - - 33,872 - 33,872
300 Purchased Services - - - - 7,621 - 7,621
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - 23,971 - 23,971
120 Exceptional Programs:
121 Educable Mentally Handicapped:
100 Salaries - 622,865 - - 54,128 - 676,993
200 Employee Benefits - 312,477 - - 27,314 - 339,791
300 Purchased Services - 2,613 - - - - 2,613
400 Supplies and Materials - 2,684 - - 1,861 - 4,545
122 Trainable Mentally Handicapped:
100 Salaries - 100,708 - - - - 100,708
200 Employee Benefits - 51,850 - - - - 51,850
124 Visually Handicapped:
100 Salaries - 193 - - 2,093 - 2,286
200 Employee Benefits - 58 - - 631 - 689
300 Purchased Services - 12,762 - - - - 12,762
400 Supplies and Materials - 2,177 - - - - 2,177
125 Hearing Handicapped:
100 Salaries - 193 - - 1,529 - 1,722
200 Employee Benefits - 58 - - 461 - 519
300 Purchased Services - 6,362 - - 578 - 6,940
400 Supplies and Materials - 4,906 - - - - 4,906
126 Speech Handicapped:
100 Salaries - 14,506 - - 32,068 - 46,574
200 Employee Benefits - 6,267 - - 9,662 - 15,929
300 Purchased Services - 832 - - 2,304 - 3,136
400 Supplies and Materials - 1,082 - - 2,289 - 3,371
127 Learning Disabilities:
100 Salaries - 204,439 - - 182,672 - 387,111
200 Employee Benefits - 105,349 - - 58,505 - 163,854
300 Purchased Services - 311 - - - - 311
400 Supplies and Materials - 584 - - 337 - 921
128 Emotionally Handicapped:
100 Salaries - 21,523 - - 10,167 - 31,690
200 Employee Benefits - 11,425 - - 3,063 - 14,488
129 Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS):
100 Salaries 54,415 265,794 - - 29,077 - 349,286
200 Employee Benefits 24,233 123,051 - - 8,761 - 156,045

96



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER
DESIGNATED OTHER
PRESCHOOL ADULT RESTRICTED SPECIAL STUDENT
TITLE | IDEA HANDICAPPED CATE EDUCATION STATE REVENUE ACTIVITY
(BA Projects) (CA Projects) (CG Projects) (VA Projects) (EA Projects) GRANTS PROGRAMS FUNDS
(201/202) (203/204) (205/206) (207/208) (243) (900s) (200s/800s) (700s) TOTAL
130 Preschool Programs:
135 Preschool Handicapped Speech (3- and 4-Yr. Olds):
100 Salaries $ - $ - $ 76,936 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,715 $ - $ 78,651
200 Employee Benefits - - 35,558 - - - 517 - 36,075
136 Preschool Handicapped Itinerant (3 & 4-Yr. Olds):
100 Salaries - - - - - - 2,807 - 2,807
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 846 - 846
137 Preschool Handicapped Self-Contained (3- and 4-Yr. Olds):
100 Salaries - 247,288 28,701 - - - 13,450 - 289,439
200 Employee Benefits - 143,648 18,051 - - - 4,052 - 165,751
300 Purchased Services - 348 1,831 - - - - - 2,179
400 Supplies and Materials - - 5,967 - - - - - 5,967
139 Early Childhood Programs:
100 Salaries - - - - - - 57,252 - 57,252
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 19,718 - 19,718
300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 6,484 - 6,484
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 3,019 - 3,019
140 Special Programs:
141 Gifted and Talented - Academic
100 Salaries 19,661 - 19,661
200 Employee Benefits 5,923 - 5,923
144 International Baccalaureate:
100 Salaries - - - - - - 15,600 - 15,600
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 4,634 - 4,634
300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 2,213 - 2,213
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 33,603 - 33,603
600 Other Objects - - - - - - 5,117 - 5,117
148 Gifted and Talented Artistic:
100 Salaries 1,575 - 1,575
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 475 - 475
149 Other Special Programs:
100 Salaries - 10,543 - - - - 5,344 - 15,887
200 Employee Benefits - 5,071 - - - - 1,610 - 6,681
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 15,402 - 15,402
160 Other Exceptional Programs:
161 Autism:
100 Salaries - 78,427 - - - - 8,628 - 87,055
200 Employee Benefits - 45,089 - - - - 2,599 - 47,688
400 Supplies and Materials - 428 - - - - - - 428
170 Summer School Programs:
175 Instructional Programs Beyond Regular School Day:
100 Salaries - - - - - - 6,745 - 6,745
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 693 - 693
180 Adult/Continuing Education Programs:
181 Adult Basic Education Programs:
100 Salaries - - - - 22,254 - - - 22,254
200 Employee Benefits - - - - 6,178 1,339 - - 7,517
182 Adult Secondary Education Programs:
100 Salaries - - - - 23,650 - - - 23,650
200 Employee Benefits - - - - 7,363 - - - 7,363
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - 266 - - 266
183 Adult English Literacy (ESL):
100 Salaries - - - - 19,675 - - - 19,675
200 Employee Benefits - - - - 5,256 - - - 5,256
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - 352 - - - 352
188 Parenting/Family Literacy:
100 Salaries - - - - 19,414 - 36,180 - 55,594
200 Employee Benefits - - - - 8,586 279 25,900 - 34,765
300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 1,027 - 1,027
400 Supplies and Materials 207 - - - - - 4,326 - 4,533
190 Instructional Pupil Activity:
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - - 1,134 1,134
600 Other Objects - - - - - - - 920 920
Total Instruction 1,810,031 2,405,911 167,044 134,435 112,728 124,761 3,375,896 2,370 8,133,176

97



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER
DESIGNATED OTHER
PRESCHOOL ADULT RESTRICTED SPECIAL STUDENT
TITLE | IDEA HANDICAPPED CATE EDUCATION STATE REVENUE ACTIVITY
(BA Projects) (CA Projects) (CG Projects) (VA Projects) (EA Projects) GRANTS PROGRAMS FUNDS
(201/202) (203/204) (205/206) (207/208) (243) (900s) (200s/800s) (700s) TOTAL
200 Support Services
210 Pupil Services:
211 Attendance and Social Work Services
100 Salaries $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 7,526 $ - $ 7,526
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 2,293 - 2,293
300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 5,245 - 5,245
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 5,033 - 5,033
212 Guidance Services:
100 Salaries - - - - - 128,662 34,337 - 162,999
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - 43,812 10,345 - 54,157
213 Health Services:
100 Salaries - 12,254 - - - 193,336 75,834 - 281,424
200 Employee Benefits - 6,275 - - - 87,673 21,130 - 115,078
300 Purchased Services - 2,259 - - - - 2,540 - 4,799
400 Supplies and Materials - 4,409 - - - - 7,899 - 12,308
214 Psychological Services:
100 Salaries - 384,557 - - - - 37,926 - 422,483
200 Employee Benefits - 147,862 - - - - 6,334 - 154,196
300 Purchased Services - 2,597 - - - - - - 2,597
400 Supplies and Materials - 16,289 - - - - - - 16,289
217 Career Specialist Services:
100 Salaries - - - - - 338,913 2,139 - 341,052
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - 158,938 644 - 159,582
220 Instructional Staff Services:
221 Improvement of Instruction - Curriculum Development:
100 Salaries - 23,829 - - - 423,800 54,110 - 501,739
200 Employee Benefits - 10,803 - - - 181,641 18,418 - 210,862
300 Purchased Services - 6,328 - - 2,000 - 70,805 - 79,133
400 Supplies and Materials - 6,046 - - - 661 7,216 - 13,923
600 Other Objects - - - - - - 13,070 - 13,070
222 Library and Media:
100 Salaries 21,608 - 21,608
200 Employee Benefits 6,512 - 6,512
223 Supervision of Special Programs:
100 Salaries - 87,762 - - - - 341,520 - 429,282
200 Employee Benefits - 35,609 - - - - 145,200 - 180,809
300 Purchased Services - 8,390 - - - - 365,158 - 373,548
400 Supplies and Materials - 1,984 - - - 4,083 196,621 - 202,688
600 Other Objects - - - - - - 5,260 - 5,260
224 Improvement of Instruction Inservice and Staff Training:
100 Salaries - - - - - - 127,677 - 127,677
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 41,177 - 41,177
300 Purchased Services 27,144 917 - 7,200 - - 222,016 - 257,277
400 Supplies and Materials - 6,058 - - - - 93,935 - 99,993
600 Other Objects - - - - - - 222 - 222
230 General Administration Services:
232 Office of the Superintendent: -
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 1,142 1,142
233 School Administration:
100 Salaries - - - - - - 113,582 - 113,582
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 50,776 - 50,776
300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 15,728 - 15,728
250 Finance and Operations Services:
251 Student Transportation (Federal/District Mandated):
100 Salaries - - - - - - 88,066 - 88,066
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 48,525 - 48,525
300 Purchased Services - 5,843 - - - - 60,218 - 66,061
500 Capital Outlay - - - - - - 67,506 - 67,506
253 Facilities Acquisition and Construction:
540 Equipment - - - - - - 37,379 - 37,379
254 Operations and Maintenance of Plant:
300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 18,919 - 18,919
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 298,536 - 298,536
500 Capital Outlay - - - - - - 13,655 - 13,655

98



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER
DESIGNATED OTHER
PRESCHOOL ADULT RESTRICTED SPECIAL STUDENT
TITLE | IDEA HANDICAPPED CATE EDUCATION STATE REVENUE ACTIVITY
(BA Projects) (CA Projects) (CG Projects) (VA Projects) (EA Projects) GRANTS PROGRAMS FUNDS
(201/202) (203/204) (205/206) (207/208) (243) (900s) (200s/800s) (700s) TOTAL

256 Food Services:

100 Salaries $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 11,104 $ - $ 11,104
200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - 3,477 - 3,477
400 Supplies and Materials (Includes gas, oil, electricity, and other heating fuels) - - - - - - 9,591 - 9,591

258 Security:

400 Supplies and Materials 1,195 - - 1,195
260 Central Support Services"

264 Staff Services:

300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 3,609 - 3,609

266 Technology and Data Processing Services:

300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 24,581 - 24,581
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 1,029,597 - 1,029,597
270 Support Services Pupil Activity:

271 Pupil Service Activities:

100 Salaries - - - - - - - 118,572 118,572

200 Employee Benefits - - - - - - - 37,857 37,857

300 Purchased Services - - - 22,530 - - 3,918 265,670 292,118

400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 1,775 217,288 219,063

660 Pupil Activity - - - - - - 762 1,397,537 1,398,299
Total Support Services 27,144 770,071 - 29,730 2,000 1,562,714 3,852,196 2,036,924 8,280,779
300 Community Services

360 Welfare Services:

300 Purchased Services - - - - - - 44,493 - 44,493
400 Supplies and Materials - - - - - - 11,678 - 11,678
Total Community Services - - - - - - 56,171 - 56,171
400 Other Charges
410 Intergovernmental Expenditures:

411 Payments to the State Department of Education:

720 Transits $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 37,970 $ - $ 37970

419 Payments from PEBA Nonemployer Contributions:

720 Transits - - - - - 1,875,729 - - 1,875,729
Total Intergovernmental Expenditures - - - - - 1,875,729 37,970 - 1,913,699
Total Expenditures 1,837,175 3,175,982 167,044 164,165 114,728 3,563,204 7,322,233 2,039,294 18,383,825
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Interfund Transfer, From (To) Other Funds:

431-791 Special Revenue Fund Indirect Costs (106,656) (177,118) (9.321) - - - (143,382) - (436,477)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (106,656) (177,118) (9.321) - - - (143,382) - (436,477)
Excess/Deficiency of Revenues over Expenditures - - - - - - - 222,930 222,930
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year - - - - - - - - -
Cumulative Change in Accounting Principle - GASB #84 - - - - - - - 4,703,405 4,703,405
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 4,926,335 $ 4,926,335

99



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - SPECIAL PROJECTS FUNDS
SUMMARY SCHEDULE FOR DESIGNATED STATE RESTRICTED GRANTS AND OTHER SPECIAL PROJECTS PROGRAMS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

District District Interfund
Subfund Revenue Transfers Unearned
Code Code Program Revenues Expenditures In/(Out) Revenue
Other State Restricted Grants:
919 3193 Education License Plates $ 2,618 $ 2,618 $ - $ -
928 3118 EEDA Career Specialists 670,325 670,325 - 1,041,076
935 3135 Reading Coaches 605,441 605,441 - 561,649
936 3136 Student Health and Fitness 281,010 281,010 - 573,369
937 3127 Student Health and Fitness - PE Teachers 120,259 120,259 - 100,942
955 3155 DSS SNAP & E&T Program 2,909 2,909 - 8,117
956 3156 Adult Education 3,670 3,670 - 2,073
969 3699 Misc. Lottery 48 48 - -
970 3670 School Safety Upgrades 1,195 1,195 - -
994 3994 PEBA Nonemployer Contributions 1,875,729 1,875,729 - -
$ 3,563,204 $ 3,563,204 $ - $ 2,287,226
Other Special:
210 4997 Title IV SSAE $ 218,967 $ 207,319 $ (11,648) $ -
217 3995 Corona Relief 3,538,485 3,538,485 -
220 4975 ESSER Fund 50,000 50,000 - -
224 4924 21st Century 13,089 13,089 - -
225 4977 ESSER Il Fund 28,805 28,805 -
232 4343 McKinney-Vento 64,424 62,714 (1,710) -
237 4310 Title | - School Improvement 196,026 185,666 (10,360) -
239 4310 Title | - School Improvement 136,067 128,876 (7,191) -
264 4341 Title Il - English Language Acquisition 29,163 28,541 (622) -
267 4351 Supporting Effective Instruction 208,030 196,534 (11,496) -
804 4999 Magnet School Grant - Discover Five 2,247,619 2,147,266 (100,353) -
831 4999 CHS NJROTC 82,350 82,350 - 16,008
832 4999 IHS, DJHS AF ROTC 136,004 136,004 - 814
838 4999 Student Health Profiles YRBS/YTS Admin 272 272 - 328
868 1920 Lexington County First Steps 66,139 66,139 - -
890 1930/3199 Medicaid 256,238 256,238 - 102,933
898 1920 Mini Grants 193,937 193,937 - 141,125
$ 7,465,615 $ 7,322,235 $ (143,380) $ 261,208

100



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Revenues

3000 Revenue from State Sources

3500 Education Improvement Act:

3502 ADEPT $ 6,369
3507 Aid to Districts - Technology 3,238
3509 Arts in Education 9,487
3518 Adoption List of Formative Assessment 82,785
3519 Grade 10 Assessments 108,016
3526 Refurbishment of Science Kits 60,837
3528 Industry Certifications/Credentials 115,984
3529 Career and Technology Education 436,713
3532 National Board Salary Supplement (No Carryover Provision) 2,484,134
3533 Teacher of the Year Awards 53,825
3538 Students at Risk of School Failure 1,373,762
3540 Early Childhood Program (4K Programs Serving Four-Year-Old Children) 379,567
3550 Teacher Salary Increase (No Carryover Provision) 4,557,067
3555 Teacher Salary Fringe (No Carryover Provision) 1,108,853
3556 Adult Education 212,183
3557 Summer Reading Program 59,033
3571 CSl and State Priority Schools 248,750
3577 Teacher Supplies (No Carryover Provision) 386,650
3594 EEDA Supplemental Programs 220,737
3595 EEDA - Supplies and Materials 29,474
3597 Aid to Districts 60,263
3599 Other EIA 102,679
Total State Sources 12,100,406
Total Revenues All Sources 12,100,406
Expenditures
100 Instruction:
110 General Instruction:
111 Kindergarten Programs:
100 Salaries 97,250
200 Employee Benefits 28,405
400 Supplies and Materials 3,357
112 Primary Programs:
100 Salaries 948,444
200 Employee Benefits 334,753
400 Supplies and Materials 224,400
113 Elementary Programs:
100 Salaries 632,595
200 Employee Benefits 216,527
400 Supplies and Materials 17,956

101



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

114 High School Programs:

100 Salaries $ 590,597

200 Employee Benefits 162,127
115 Career and Technology Education Programs:

100 Salaries 79,131

200 Employee Benefits 22,846

300 Purchased Services 104,207

400 Supplies and Materials 197,904

500 Capital Outlay 216,762
118 Montessori Programs:

100 Salaries 7,500

200 Employee Benefits 2,197

120 Exceptional Programs:

121 Educable Mentally Handicapped:

100 Salaries 39,224

200 Employee Benefits 11,442
126 Speech Handicapped:

100 Salaries 19,942

200 Employee Benefits 5,660
127 Learning Disabilities:

100 Salaries 38,750

200 Employee Benefits 11,247

300 Purchased Services -
129 Coordinated Early Intervening Services (CEIS):

100 Salaries 40,313

200 Employee Benefits 11,751

130 Preschool Programs:

137 Preschool Handicapped Self-Contained (3- and 4-Yr. Olds):

100 Salaries 6,776

200 Employee Benefits 1,979
139 Early Childhood Programs:

100 Salaries 228,174

200 Employee Benefits 100,432

400 Supplies and Materials 70,344

140 Special Programs:

141 Gifted and Talented Academic:
100 Salaries 46,250
200 Employee Benefits 13,533

102



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

143 Advanced Placement:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
149 Other Special Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
400 Supplies and Materials

170 Summer School Programs:

175 Instructional Programs Beyond Regular School Day:

100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
400 Supplies and Materials

180 Adult/Continuing Education Programs:

181 Adult Education Basic Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
182 Adult Secondary Education Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
188 Parenting/Family Literacy:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services

190 Instructional Pupil Activity:
400 Supplies and Materials

Total Instruction

200 Supporting Services:
210 Pupil Services:

211 Attendance and Social Work Services:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay

212 Guidance Services:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
213 Health Services:

103

13,903
4,079

204
(135)
386,650

34,690
10,490
2,952

30,197
10,320

120,745
50,921

84,575

27,886
918

1,710

5,312,880

50,307
18,182
12,925
41,977

6,493

88,229
25,821

2,097
27,377



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

100 Salaries $
200 Employee Benefits

220 Instructional Staff Services:

221 Improvement of Instruction Curriculum Development:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
222 Library and Media Services:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
223 Supervision of Special Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
224 Improvement of Instruction Inservice and Staff Training:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

250 Finance and Operations Services:

251 Student Transportation (Federal/District Mandated):
300 Purchased Services

254 Operation and Maintenance of Plant:
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

260 Central Support Services:
266 Technology & Data Processing Services
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials

270 Support Services - Pupil Activity:

271 Pupil Service Activities:
300 Purchased Services

2,412
746

207,699
74,589
108,516

38,194
11,200

21,550
6,410
15,395
1,660

7,000
2,109

180,981
21,143

24,738

15,919
2,151

3,238
102,679

(131)

Total Support Services

1,121,606

Total Expenditures

6,434,486

104



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS - EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Interfund Transfers, From (To) Other Funds:

420-710 Transfer to General Fund (Exclude Indirect Costs) $ (5,665,920)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (5,665,920)

Excess/Deficiency of Revenues over Expenditures -

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance, End of Year $ -

Note: This schedule is presented as prescribed by the South Carolina State Department of Education.

105



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - EDUCATION IMPROVEMENT ACT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE BY PROGRAM
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Other Fund
Transfers Unearned
Program Revenues Expenditures In/(Out) Revenue
3500 Education Improvement Act:
3502 ADEPT 6,369 $ 6,369 $ - $ 10,599
3507 Aid to District Technology 3,238 3,238 - -
3509 Arts in Education 9,487 9,487 - -
3518 Adoption List of Formative Assessment 82,785 82,785 - 66,318
3519 Grade 10 Assessments 108,016 108,016 - 77,776
3526 Refurbishment of Science Kits 60,837 60,837 - 52,339
3528 Industry Certifications/Credentials 115,984 115,984 - 122,787
3529 Career and Technology Education 436,713 436,713 - 400,800
3532 National Board Salary Supplement (No Carryover Provision) 2,484,134 2,484,134 - -
3533 Teacher of the Year Awards 53,825 53,825 - -
3535 Reading Coaches - - - 176,395
3538 Students at Risk of School Failure 1,373,762 1,373,762 - 1,141,790
3540 Early Childhood Program (4K Programs Serving Four-Year-Old Children) 379,567 379,567 - 463,067
3550 Teacher Salary Increase (No Carryover Provision) 4,557,067 - (4,557,067) -
3555 Teacher Salary Fringe (No Carryover Provision) 1,108,853 - (1,108,853) -
3556 Adult Education 212,183 212,183 - -
3557 Summer Reading Program 59,033 59,033 - 179,519
3571 CSl and State Priority Schools 248,750 248,750 - 509,184
3577 Teacher Supplies (No Carryover Provision) 386,650 386,650 - -
3594 EEDA Supplemental Programs 220,737 220,737 - -
3395 EEDA Supplies and Materials 29,474 29,474 - 11,143
3597 Aid to Districts 60,263 60,263 - 596,956
3599 Other EIA 102,679 102,679 - 94,760
Total 12,100,406 $ 6,434,486 $ (5,665,920) $ 3,903,433

106



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - FOOD SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Actual

Revenues
1000 Revenues from Local Sources

1500 Earnings on Investments:
1510 Interest on Investments $

1600 Food Services:
1610 Lunch Sales to Pupils
1620 Breakfast Sales to Pupils
1630 Special Sales to Pupils
1640 Lunch Sales to Adults
1650 Breakfast Sales to Adults
1660 Special Sales to Adults

1900 Other Revenue from Local Sources:
1999 Revenue from Other Local Sources

5,094

10,697
2
320,381
43,245
428
25,593

109,877

Total Local Sources

515,317

4000 Revenue from Federal Sources:

4800 USDA Reimbursement:
4810 School Lunch and After School Snacks Program, and Special Milk Program
4830 School Breakfast Program (Carryover Provision)
4860 Fresh Fruit & Vegetable Program (FFVP) Carryover Provision
4900 Other Federal Sources:
4991 USDA Commodities (Food Distribution Program) (Carryover Provision)

5,749,764
2,270,809
34,836

620,801

Total Federal Sources

8,676,210

Total Revenue - All Sources

9,191,527

Expenditures
200 Support Services

250 Finance and Operation Services:
256 Food Services:
100 Salaries $
200 Employee Benefits
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

2,681,625
1,411,089
134,142
4,179,386
6,914

Total Support Services

8,413,156

107



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - FOOD SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Actual
Total Expenditures $ 8,413,156
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund Transfers, From (To) Other Funds:

5210 Transfer from General Fund (Exclude Indirect Costs) 207,093
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 207,093
Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 985,464
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 3,063,392

Fund Balance - End of Year $ 4,048,856

108



DEBT SERVICE FUND

The Debt Service Funds account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of the District's
general long-term debt principal and interest. The resources of this fund are generated by a tax levy based
upon property values.

The following individual fund schedule has been prepared in the format mandated by the South Carolina
Department of Education. The account numbers shown on the schedule are also mandated by the South
Carolina Department of Education.

109




This page was intentionally left blank.

110



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenues
1000 Revenue from Local Sources
1100 Taxes Levied/Assessed by the LEA:
1110 Ad Valorem Taxes - Including Delinquent (Independent) $

1140 Penalties & Interest on Taxes (Independent)

1200 Revenue from Local Governmental Units Other than LEAs:
1280 Revenue in Lieu of Taxes (Independent and Dependent)

1500 Earnings on Investments:
1510 Interest on Investments

42,071,686
124,860

385,761

19,057

Total Local Sources

42,601,364

3000 Revenue from State Sources

3800 State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes:
3820 Homestead Exemption (Tier 2)
3830 Merchant's Inventory Tax
3840 Manufacturer's Depreciation Reimbursement
3890 Other State Property Tax Revenues (includes Motor Carrier Vehicle Tax)

1,411,143
71,317
111,736
104,565

Total State Sources

1,698,761

4000 Revenue from Federal Sources

4900 Other Federal Revenue:
4999 Revenue from Other Federal Sources

745,375

Total Federal Sources

745,375

Total Revenues All Sources

45,045,500

Expenditures
500 Debt Service
395 Other Professional and Technical Services

610 Redemption of Principal
620 Interest

1,750
23,092,000
7,359,322

Total Debt Service

30,453,072

Total Expenditures

30,453,072

111



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Interfund Transfers, From (To) Other Funds:

424-710 Transfer to Capital Projects Fund $ (9,362,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (9,362,000)
Excess/Deficiency of Revenues over Expenditures 5,230,428
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 9,800,230

Fund Balance, Ending of Year $ 15,030,658

112



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund, also referred to as the "School Building Fund", is used to record proceeds
from the sale of long-term general obligation bonds and other revenues used to acquire or construct
major capital facilities (other than those of proprietary and trust funds).

The following individual fund schedule has been prepared in the format mandated by the South
Department of Education. The account numbers shown on the schedule are also mandated
by the South Carolina Department of Education.

113



This page was intentionally left blank.

114



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SCHOOL BUILDING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenues

1000 Revenue from Local Sources

1500 Earnings on Investments:
1510 Interest on Investments $

70,465

Total Local Sources

70,465

Total Revenues All Sources

70,465

Expenditures

200 Support Services

220 Instructional Staff Services:

221 Improvement of Instruction Curriculum Development:
400 Supplies and Materials

250 Finance and Operations Services:

253 Facilities Acquisition and Construction:
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay
520 Construction Services
530 Improvements Other Than Buildings
540 Equipment
550 Vehicles
600 Other Objects
254 Operations and Maintenance of Plant:
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay
600 Other Objects
256 Food Services:
500 Capital Outlay

260 Central Support Services:

266 Technology and Data Processing Services:
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
500 Capital Outlay

551,216
1,523

15,425,664
109,412
874,389
144,958

(68,181)

6,946,067
71,312
29,525

(18,032)

2,739

475,850
996,534
1,132,217

Total Support Services

26,676,101

115



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SCHOOL BUILDING FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

500 Debt Service

610 Redemption of Principal $ 487,441

620 Interest 12,559

690 Other Objects (Including Fees For Servicing Bonds) 53,873

Total Debt Service 553,873
Total Expenditures 27,229,974

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Interfund Transfers, From (To) Other Funds:

5240 Transfer from Debt Service Fund 9,362,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 9,362,000
Excess/Deficiency of Revenues over Expenditures (17,797,509)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 29,754,514
Fund Balance, Ending of Year $ 11,957,005

Note: This schedule is presented as prescribed by the South Carolina State Department of Education.

116



ENTERPRISE FUND

The Enterprise Fund accounts for operations that are financed and operating in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the stated intent is that the costs (expenses, depreciation and
indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the students or general public on a continuing basis
are financed or recovered through user fees.

After School Program Enterprise Fund’s purpose is to provide after normal school hours programs
for elementary students at some of the elementary schools.

The following individual fund schedules have been prepared in the format mandated by the South
Department of Education. The account numbers shown on various schedules are also
mandated by the South Carolina Department of Education.

117



This page was intentionally left blank.

118



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
ENTERPRISE FUND - AFTERSCHOOL PROGRAM

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Revenues

1000 Revenues from Local Sources:

1300 Tuition:

1310 From Patrons for Regular Day School

Total Revenues from Local Sources

Total Revenue All Sources

Expenditures
100 Instruction
110 General Instruction:
112 Primary Programs:
300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
130 Pre-School Programs:
139 Early Childhood Programs:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits

Total Instruction

200 Support Services

220 Instructional Staff Services:

224 Improvement of Instruction Inservice and Staff Training:

300 Purchased Services
400 Supplies and Materials
600 Other Objects

230 General Administrative Services:
233 School Administration:
100 Salaries
200 Employee Benefits
400 Supplies and Materials

250 Finance and Operation Services:

254 Operation and Maintenance of Plant:

300 Purchased Services

Total Support Services

119

Actual

277,899

277,899

277,899

4,001
18,978

76,744
42,873

142,596

2,785
17,996
474

1,230
380
2,461

3,041

$

28,367




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
ENTERPRISE FUND - AFTERSCHOOL PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Actual
300 Community Services
350 Custody and Care of Children Services:
100 Salaries $ 74,729
200 Employee Benefits 38,488
300 Purchased Services 4,221
400 Supplies and Materials 18,585
Total Community Services 136,023
Total Expenditures 306,986
Excess/Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (29,087)
Total Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning of Year (2,446,845)

Total Net Position (Deficit) - Ending of Year $ (2,475,932)

120



This page was intentionally left blank.

121



SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
REQUIRED BY THE
SOUTH CAROLINA STATE
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

122




This page was intentionally left blank.

123



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
LOCATION RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Location Location Education Cost Total
I.D. Description Level Type Expenditures
000 Districtwide Non-Schools Central $ 73,606,198
038 Chapin High School High School School 14,830,375
039 Irmo High School High School School 17,278,531
040 Irmo Middle School Middle School School 11,949,541
041 Chapin Elementary School Elementary School School 8,630,935
042 Dutch Fork Elementary School Elementary School School 5,947,700
043 Irmo Elementary School Elementary School School 6,080,185
044 Leaphart Elementary School Elementary School School 6,049,664
045 Seven Oaks Elementary School Elementary School School 6,526,741
046 Crossroads Intermediate School Intermediate School School 7,627,750
047 Nursery Road Elementary School Elementary School School 7,585,660
048 Harbison West Elementary School Elementary School School 8,661,815
049 H.E. Corley Elementary School Elementary School School 8,196,850
050 Chapin Intermediate School Intermediate School School 7,383,762
051 Dutch Fork High School High School School 18,170,987
052 Lake Murray Elementary School Elementary School School 7,831,014
053 River Springs Elementary School Elementary School School 5,569,614
054 Dutch Fork Middle School Middle School School 9,453,186
055 Ballentine Elementary School Elementary School School 6,770,118
056 Oak Pointe Elementary School Elementary School School 6,991,588
057 Spring Hill High School High School School 10,198,276
058 Chapin Middle School Middle School School 8,637,654
059 New Elementary School #13 Elementary School School 17,317,490
750 Academy For Success Other Schools School 1,890,506
995 Center for Advanced Technical Studies Other Schools School 4,312,529
Total Expenditures/Disbursements for All Funds $ 287,498,669

Above expenditures are reconciled to the District's Audit Statements as follows:

General Fund $ 196,277,170
Special Revenue Fund - Special Projects 18,383,825
Special Revenue Fund - EIA Fund 6,434,486
Special Revenue Fund - Food Service 8,413,156
Debt Service Fund 30,453,072
Capital Projects Fund 27,229,974
Proprietary Fund 306,986

Total Expenditures/Disbursements for All Funds $ 287,498,669

124



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF DUE TO STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION/FEDERAL GOVERNMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Amount Due Status of

Revenue & to SDE or Amount

Project/Grant Subfund Federal Due To

Program Number Code Description Government Grantors
National Board Salary Supplement EIA 332/3532 Unexpended Funds $ 18,889 Outstanding
Teacher Supplies (No Carryover Provision) EIA 377/3577 Unexpended Funds 1,650 QOutstanding
IDEA SRF 203/4510 Unexpended Funds 561 QOutstanding
CRF Per Pupil Funding SRF 217/3995 Unexpended Funds 5,683 QOutstanding

S 26783

125



STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

This section of the District's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context for
Iunderstanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the District's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.............cccccevceeeninen. 128 - 134

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s
Imost significant local revenue source, the Property taX...........coueeeeriieeeiiiee e 135-142

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability

of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to

lissue additional debt in the fULUFE. .........cccoiiiiiii e 143 - 146

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
Junderstand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place....................... 147 — 149

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

Jhow the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the

District provides and the activities it PerformS..........ooii i 150 — 155

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual comprehensive
financial reports for the relevant year. This District implemented GASB Statement 63 with the fiscal year
[beginning July 1, 2012; therefore, schedules presenting government-wide fund balance information reflect

the new fund balance terminology.

126



This page was intentionally left blank.

127



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities

Primary government
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

TABLE 1

2012 2013 2014 2015* 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 175518572  $ 174,275,981 174598,030 $ 171,553,790 $ 150,048473  $ 152,302,772 163,073,794  $ 183,790,644 $ 198,474,597 210,468,717
6,477,810 6,934,331 4,642,905 3,583,875 13,101,641 16,984,735 19,729,707 10,730,020 11,770,036 23,451,956
27,967,938 29,979,061 29,050,873 (178,291,876) (169,132,831) (172,480,387) (377,452,293) (387,789,246) (389,134,093) (402,947,759)
209,964,320 211,189,373 208,291,808 (3,154,211) (5,982,717) (3,192,880) (194,648,792) (193,268,582) (178,889,460) (169,027,086)
544,780 554,085 553,912 565,844 2,925,150 2,558,825 2,271,933 - - -
2,569,413 2,311,351 1,860,712 1,890,783 (3,447,859) (3,605,841) (8,584,213) (2,311,420) (2,446,845) (2,475,932)
3,114,193 2,865,436 2,414,624 2,456,627 (522,709) (1,047,016) (6,312,280) (2,311,420) (2,446,845) (2,475,932)
176,063,352 174,830,066 175,151,942 172,119,634 152,973,623 154,861,597 165,345,727 183,790,644 198,474,597 210,468,717
6,477,810 6,934,331 4,642,905 3,583,875 13,101,641 16,984,735 19,729,707 10,730,020 11,770,036 23,451,956
30,537,351 32,290,412 30,911,585 (176,401,093) (172,580,690) (176,086,228) (386,036,506) (390,100,666) (391,580,938) (405,423,691)
$ 213078513 _$ 214,054,809 210,706,432 § (697,584) $  (6505426) _$  (4,239,896) (200,961,072) _$ (195580,002) _$  (181,336,305) (171,503,018)

*The district implemented GASB 68 and GASB 71 on July 1, 2014.

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle decreased beginning net position by $207,070,939.

**During fiscal year 2015-16, the District restated its net position for June 30, 2015 by allocating correct portion of net pension liability to business-type activities, and making corrections to
capital asset balances and compensated absences payable for both governmental and business-type activities. The cumulative effect of these corrections included an increase of net

position by $3,944,178 to the governmental activities and decrease by $3,011,728 to the business-type activities.

***During fiscal year 2017-18, the District restated its net position for June 30, 2017 by increasing its cash balance of $312,212 for an escrow account not reflect in the financials at year end.

The prior year's expenditures were overstated by this amount and were subsequently expensed in the current fiscal year. The effect of this correction increased the net position of the District by $312,232.

**The district implemented GASB 75 effective July 1, 2017, resulting in a total net OPEB liability in the amount of $204,617,788.

The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle decreased beginning net position by $198,179,078.

***The district reclassified the Food Service program from a business-type activity to a governmental-type entity effective for the 2018-19 fiscal year.
This reclassification is reflected in the financial statements.

128



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

EXPENSES, PROGRAM REVENUES, AND NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

Expenses

Government activities:
Instruction
Support service
Community service
Interest and other charges

Total governmental expenses

Business-type activities:
Food service
After school
Total business-type expenses

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Government activities:
Charges for services
Instruction Services
Support Services
Community Services

Operating grants and contributions

Total governmental revenues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Total business-type revenues

Total primary government revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue

Total primary government net expense

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

TABLE 2

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
$ 101998583  $ 108,242,761 $ 115,863,958 $ 124,800,258 $ 120,506,839 $ 127,992,580 $ 135,172,741 $ 127,229,632 $ 134,277,651 $ 144,866,989
71,146,133 74,983,257 78,213,038 79,879,481 91,001,448 85,010,739 89,069,070 110,128,101 116,540,697 124,262,434
76,339 50,377 59,029 65,869 63,034 78,703 101,009 48,594 24,515 56,171
4,312,025 9,120,703 9,782,790 8,150,714 7,265,870 6,213,712 6,165,827 7,121,552 6,159,923 6,993,915
177,533,080 192,397,098 203,918,815 212,896,322 218,837,191 219,295,734 230,508,647 244,527,879 257,002,786 276,179,509
7,614,547 7,843,171 8,899,748 8,886,303 8,745,796 10,156,891 8,869,617 - - -
1,033,685 1,197,571 1,315,160 1,393,372 1,442,488 1,056,307 1,537,405 1,477,717 996,011 306,986
8,648,232 9,040,742 10,214,908 10,279,675 10,188,284 11,213,198 10,407,022 1,477,717 996,011 306,986
186,181,312 201,437,840 214,133,723 223,175,997 229,025,475 230,508,932 240,915,669 246,005,596 257,998,797 276,486,495
633,584 30,864 20,206 43,311 16,401 3,839 2,350 1,648 3,162 4,149
263,966 19,428 13,365 9,912 13,263 2,863 1,845 3,405,782 2,565,465 751,469

- - - 25 9 2 2 - - -

67,207,775 73,559,278 77,171,071 79,696,829 79,547,616 85,992,887 90,902,260 101,783,326 108,659,709 115,282,993
68,105,325 73,609,570 77,204,642 79,750,077 79,577,289 85,999,591 90,906,457 105,190,756 111,228,336 116,038,611
5,327,592 5,278,078 5,535,223 5,550,294 5,147,509 5,158,902 4,894,353 1,134,491 797,358 277,899
3,654,464 3,534,109 3,866,388 4,309,458 4,869,015 5,201,429 5,509,028 - - -
8,982,056 8,812,187 9,401,611 9,859,752 10,016,524 10,360,331 10,403,381 1,134,491 797,358 277,899
77,087,381 82,421,757 86,606,253 89,609,829 89,593,813 96,359,922 101,309,838 106,325,247 112,025,694 116,316,510

$ (109,093931) $ (119,016,083)  $(127,527.470)  $(133,566,168)  $(139,431662) _$(134,149,010)  $(139,605831)  $(139,680,349)  $(145973,103) _$(160,169,985)

129



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GENERAL REVENUES AND TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

TABLE 3

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Total primary government net expense $ (109,093,931) _$ (119,016,083) $ (127,527,470) _$ (133,566,168) _$ (139,431,662) _$ (134,149,010) $ (139,605831) $ (139,680,349) _$ (145973,103) $ (160,169,985)
General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position
Governmental activities:
Taxes
Property taxes levied for general purposes 51,096,858 51,408,125 54,408,077 58,538,094 62,449,554 64,236,308 66,740,797 68,468,602 70,383,209 71,964,850
Property taxes levied for debt service 23,732,876 23,899,135 24,390,363 24,426,849 24,441,196 25,665,085 26,280,631 27,027,998 39,318,096 42,410,560
Payment in lieu of taxes 1,085,626 1,030,578 1,294,119 1,208,483 1,165,976 1,625,146 1,781,093 1,763,289 2,035,256 2,109,790
Unrestricted state revenue in lieu of taxes 41,932,359 42,603,890 43,083,852 43,560,260 43,941,177 44,215,110 44,676,344 45,326,074 46,275,478 47,158,361
Investment earnings 354,198 501,042 395,295 227,716 182,439 421,937 790,998 1,552,620 1,510,401 176,054
Miscellaneous 856,805 430,263 485,910 1,271,689 306,876 190,291 433,678 914,692 631,132 1,480,252
Transfers (267,897) (239,431)
Total governmental revenues 119,058,722 119,873,033 124,057,616 129,233,091 132,487,218 136,085,980 140,464,110 145,053,275 160,153,572 165,299,867
Business-type activities:
Investment earnings 8,337 7,485 4,111 4,835 58,866 60,663 47,960 - - -
Miscellaneous - 111,861 117,366 208,191 145,286 - - 8,144 63,228 -
Transfers - - - - - 267,897 239,431 - - -
Total business-type revenues 8,337 119,346 121,477 213,026 204,152 328,560 287,391 8,144 63,228 -
Total primary government 119,067,059 119,992,379 124,179,093 129,446,117 132,691,370 136,414,540 140,751,501 145,061,419 160,216,800 165,299,867
Change in Net Position
Governmental activities 9,530,066 1,225,053 (2,897,565) (4,375,080) (6,772,684) 2,789,837 861,920 5,716,152 14,379,122 5,158,969
Business-type activities 443,062 (248,757) (450,812) 42,003 32,392 (524,307) 283,750 (335,082) (135,425) (29,087)
Total primary government $ 9,973,128 $ 976,296 $ (3,348377) % (4,333,077) $ (6,740,292) $ 2,265,530 $ 1,145,670 $ 5,381,070 $ 14,243,697 $ 5,129,882

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

130



TABLE 4
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019%**+ 020 2021
General Fund
Nonspendable for Inventory $ 159516 $ 9,083 $ 12,574 % 12,574 % 12574 % 4751 % 4934 % 5400 $ 3645 $ 2,760
Nonspendable for Prepaid ltems 2,893,816 3,118,702 712,139 788,406 1,005,634 4,283,690 1,299,021 1,005,685 1,170,720 4,928,134
Assigned for Special Purposes 4,574,852 10,749,175 7,467,714 6,800,000 7,470,385 6,976,603 2,898,273 - 2,000,000 10,804,715
Unassigned 23,115,911 19,252,097 23,971,686 26,786,336 28,584,179 27,071,193 32,453,103 39,521,963 43,344,184 35,469,778
Total General Fund $30,744,095 $ 33,129,057 $ 32,164,113 $ 34,387,316 $ 37,072,772 $ 38,336,237 $ 36,655331 $ 40,533,048 $ 46,518549 $ 51,205,387
All Other Governmental Funds
Nonspendable for Inventory - Food Service $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 206,775
Restricted- Special Projects $ 4,926,335
Restricted- Food Service - - - - - - - 2,996,925 3,063,392 3,842,081
Restricted- Debt Service 5,715,026 7,500,378 6,509,558 5,228,679 4,640,228 5,451,625 6,003,256 6,772,925 9,800,230 15,030,658
Restricted- Building Fund - - - - 8,461,413 11,533,110 12,813,804 13,184,023 29,754,514 11,957,005
Committed- Building Fund 45,581,375 93,048,799 39,182,854 15,301,929 - - - - - -
Assigned for Special Purposes 218,930
Total All Other Governmental Funds $51,296,401  $ 100,549,177 $ 45911,342 $ 20,530,608 $ 13,101,641 $ 16,984,735 $ 18,817,060 $ 22,953,873 $ 42,618,136 $ 35,962,854

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

****The district reclassified the Food Service program from a business-type activity to a governmental-type entity effective for the 2018-19 fiscal year.
This reclassification is reflected in the financial statements.

131



TABLE 5
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS REVENUES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

012 2013 201 2015 016 2017 018 2019 020 2021
Local sources $ 77,787518 $ 78,404,569 $ 81,824,431 $ 85064866 $ 89,493,199 $ 94178480 $ 97,146,924 $ 103,488,957 $ 116,893,261 $ 120,229,299
State sources 102,513,220 106,307,556 108,709,486 112,210,851 111,883,766 119,854,432 124,406,632 130,747,411 136,664,371 141,630,858
Federal sources 6,537,246 9,075,000 10,761,981 10,752,713 10,238,943 8,579,347 9,398,914 15,731,877 17,316,822 18,584,590
Total revenues $ 186,837,984 $ 193,787,125 $ 201,295898 $ 208,028,430 $ 211,615908 $ 222,612,259 $ 230,952,470 $ 249,968,245 $ 270,874,454 $ 280,444,747

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

132



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION AND DEBT SERVICE RATIOS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

TABLE 6

2013

$ 102,390,616
69,059,636
50,377

54,980
89,416,159

2,225,000
8,347,424

2014

$ 107,109,102
72,333,714
59,029

268,694
59,355,151

47,959,000
10,025,119

2015

$ 108,507,061
74,627,436
65,869

239,460
29,533,420

8,770,000
9,195,781

2016

$ 110,123,458

74,840,186
57,414
264,744
14,269,756

77,284,000
9,024,963

2017

$ 115,560,600
78,981,671
70,958

188,347
7,368,065

9,426,467
8,083,082

2018

$ 118,751,391
82,901,879
88,555
216,508
10,821,297

10,319,626
7,952,641

2019

$ 122,986,803
96,461,960
48,594
1,308,176
4,828,207

11,239,805
7,517,895

2020

$ 128,297,869
106,187,995
24,515

157,147
13,304,795

21,288,198
7,857,656

2021

$ 132,349,031
103,690,027
56,171
1,950,598
18,138,911

23,579,441
7,427,504

$ 271,544,192

$ 297,109,809

$ 230,939,027

$ 285,864,521

$ 219,679,190

$ 231,051,897

$ 244,391,440

$ 277,118,175

$ 287,191,683

2012

Instruction $ 96,528,377
Support services 64,126,752
Community services 76,339
Intergovernmental 75,805
Capital outlay 60,084,729
Debt service

Principal 2,455,000

Interest and other fees 4,336,154
Total expenditures $ 227,683,156
Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures 4.0%

5.7%

24.3%

9.0%

30.9%

8.4%

8.6%

8.1%

11.5%

11.7%

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

Note: Beginning 2012, noncapital expenditures equals total expenditures less capital outlays (from Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance of the Governmental funds to the Statement of Activities.)

133



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES AND

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting - unaudited)

TABLE 7

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Excess of revenues over

(under) expenditures $ (40,845172) $ (77,757,067) $ (95,813,911) $ (22,910,597) $ (74,248,613) $ 2,933,069 $ (99,427) $ 5576,805 $ (6,243,721) $ (6,746,936)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
General long-term debt issued - - - - - - - - 30,000,000 -
Premiums on bonds sold - - - - 7,456,021 151,900 90,377 - 1,839,203 -
Sale of capital assets 2,995 33,072 8,140 1,966 24,081 32,493 86,663 61,393 54,282 75,087
Other Financing Sources - - - - - - 1,007 - - -
Lease Purchases - 2,970,000 - - - 2,296,994 - - - -
Proceeds from long-term notes - 126,252,185 - - - - - - - -
Issurance of Refunding Debt - - 40,444,000 - 62,025,000 - - - - -
Transfers in 20,613,737 19,573,565 17,297,379 16,637,903 15,631,908 19,721,195 20,112,694 16,036,450 19,371,684 15,671,490
Transfers out (20,714,638) (19,434,017) (17,538,387) (16,886,803) (15,631,908) (19,989,092) (20,352,125) (16,403,327) (19,371,684) (15,671,490)
Total other financing sources (uses) (97,906) 129,394,805 40,211,132 (246,934) 69,505,102 2,213,490 (61,384) (305,484) 31,893,485 75,087
Net change in fund balances $ (40,943078) $ 51,637,738 $ (55,602,779) $ (23,157531) $ (4,743511) $ 5146559 $ (160,811) $ 5271321 $ 25649764 $ (6,671,849)

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

134



TABLE 8

Page 1 of 2
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)
Lexington County:
Ratio Of
Real Property Personal Property Total Total Assessed
Estimated Estimated Estimated Total Value To Total
Fiscal Tax Year Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Direct Estimated
Year December 31 Value Value Value Value Value Value Rate Actual Value
2012 2011 220,046,380 4,714,594,672 68,234,275 778,824,881 288,280,655 5,493,419,553 274.47 5.2%
2013 2012 220,925,130 4,735,947,204 71,226,190 821,124,737 292,151,320 5,557,071,941 274.47 5.3%
2014 2013 222,309,960 4,771,760,716 74,403,610 836,607,381 296,713,570 5,608,368,097 281.77 5.3%
2015 2014 218,291,070 4,717,054,338 79,430,980 921,143,809 297,722,050 5,638,198,147 288.30 5.3%
2016 2015 214,676,690 4,624,830,605 80,599,160 940,202,500 295,275,850 5,565,033,105 304.00 5.3%
2017 2016 217,167,910 4,690,040,315 84,769,970 983,252,760 301,937,880 5,673,293,075 306.30 5.3%
2018 2017 222,507,660 4,804,084,343 90,539,510 1,076,360,040 313,047,170 5,880,444,383 311.70 5.3%
2019 2018 227,510,610 4,925,960,056 91,436,670 1,076,003,910 318,947,280 6,001,963,966 311.70 5.3%
2020 2019 234,169,700 5,056,062,299 91,000,200 1,102,158,240 325,169,900 6,158,220,539 332.30 5.3%
2021 2020 262,796,050 5,705,579,092 91,614,050 1,094,340,580 354,410,100 6,799,919,672 321.50 5.2%

Note: Property tax rates per $1,000 of the assessed valuation.

Source: Lexington County Auditor's Office

135



TABLE 8

Page 2 of 2
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)
Richland County:
Ratio Of
Real Property Personal Property Total Total Assessed
Estimated Estimated Estimated Total Value To Total
Fiscal Tax Year Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Direct Estimated
Year December 31 Value Value Value Value Value Value Rate Actual Value
2012 2011 148,038,250 3,363,604,130 30,867,650 407,473,050 178,905,900 3,771,077,180 274.40 4.7%
2013 2012 149,209,870 3,398,316,900 34,298,412 462,019,334 183,508,282 3,860,336,234 221.90 4.8%
2014 2013 151,507,630 3,451,657,009 36,619,405 501,232,157 188,127,035 3,952,889,166 229.30 4.8%
2015 2014 143,158,920 3,225,050,100 38,851,430 533,672,468 182,010,350 3,758,722,568 235.80 4.8%
2016 2015 147,025,490 3,317,914,710 40,734,589 561,278,432 187,760,079 3,879,193,142 304.00 4.8%
2017 2016 151,399,200 3,421,280,693 42,377,120 580,420,150 193,776,320 4,001,700,843 304.00 4.8%
2018 2017 158,606,520 3,571,114,660 41,670,560 567,519,999 200,277,080 4,138,634,659 309.40 4.8%
2019 2018 163,927,800 3,689,939,590 42,934,050 580,609,937 206,861,850 4,270,549,527 309.40 4.8%
2020 2019 180,212,860 4,056,703,270 43,651,185 587,318,515 223,864,045 4,644,021,785 332.30 4.8%
2021 2020 184,298,220 4,148,925,979 45,670,684 612,945,482 229,968,904 4,761,871,461 321.50 4.8%

Note: Property tax rates per $1,000 of the assessed valuation.

Source: Richland County Auditor's Office

136



TABLE 9

Page 1 of 2

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)

Lexington County:

Overlapping Rates
District Direct Rates Midlands

Fiscal Tax Year General Capital Lexington Recreation Technical Riverbanks Town Of City Of City Of Irmo Fire
Year December 31  Purposes Purposes Total County District College Zoo Chapin Irmo Columbia District Bond
2012 2011 221.970 52.500 274.470 88.253 16.054 4.374 1.793 11.900 - 98.100 -
2013 2012 221.970 52.500 274.470 90.759 18.604 4.374 1.793 11.505 - 98.100 2.970
2014 2013 229.270 52.500 281.770 94.296 18.604 4.374 1.893 11.505 - 98.100 2.900
2015 2014 235.800 52.500 288.300 94.746 20.604 4.374 2.393 11.505 - 98.100 2.900
2016 2015 251.500 52.500 304.000 94.441 20.604 4.353 2.088 11.505 - 96.100 2.500
2017 2016 251.500 54.800 306.300 94.973 20.604 4.353 2.088 11.505 - 96.100 1.460
2018 2017 256.900 54.800 311.700 94.689 20.604 4.353 2.088 11.505 - 98.100 17.675
2019 2018 256.900 54.800 311.700 97.160 20.604 4.353 2.088 12.884 - 98.100 18.945
2020 2019 256.900 75.400 332.300 98.348 20.604 4.353 1.000 12.884 - 93.800 19.682
2021 2020 246.100 75.400 321.500 96.661 19.932 4.172 1.000 13.070 - 93.800 19.325

Note: Property tax rates per $1,000 of the assessed valuation.
Includes levies for operating and debt service.

Source: Lexington County Auditor's Office

As of July 1, 2007, the annual millage rate for operations (general purposes) may increase only at a rate equal to
the sum of (a) the increase in the consumer price index, plus (b) the rate of population growth of the school district.

137



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)

Richland County:

Overlapping Rates

District Direct Rates Midlands

Fiscal Tax Year General Capital Richland Recreation Technical Riverbanks City Of City Of

Year December 31  Purposes Purposes Total County District College Zoo Irmo Columbia
2012 2011 221.900 52.500 274.400 49.200 10.700 2.900 1.300 98.100
2013 2012 221.900 52.500 274.400 106.500 14.100 4.500 2.000 98.100
2014 2013 229.300 52.500 281.800 109.400 11.400 3.100 1.300 98.100
2015 2014 235.800 52.500 288.300 118.800 12.600 3.400 1.400 98.100
2016 2015 251.500 52.500 304.000 120.900 12.800 3.500 1.400 96.100
2017 2016 251.500 52.500 304.000 121.600 12.800 3.500 1.400 96.100
2018 2017 256.900 52.500 309.400 121.300 13.100 3.600 1.400 98.100
2019 2018 256.900 52.500 309.400 125.100 13.500 3.700 1.400 98.100
2020 2019 256.900 75.400 332.300 121.900 13.500 3.700 1.400 93.800
2021 2020 246.100 75.400 321.500 121.700 12.500 3.700 1.400 93.800

Note: Property tax rates per $1,000 of the assessed valuation.
Includes levies for operating and debt service.

Source: Richland County Auditor's Office

As of July 1, 2007, the annual millage rate for operations (general purposes) may increase only at a rate equal to
the sum of (a) the increase in the consumer price index, plus (b) the rate of population growth of the school district.

138

TABLE 9
Page 2 of 2



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

TABLE 10

(unaudited)
2021
Percentage
Taxable of Total
Assessed Taxable
Lexington Taxpayer: Value Rank Value
Dominion Energy South Carolina $ 28,323,370 1 7.99%
Shaw Industries Group, Inc. 7,566,740 2 2.14%
GGP Columbiana Trust 3,837,900 3 1.08%
AT&T Mobility F/K/A Cingular 3,569,780 4 1.01%
Blue Granite Water FKA 2,429,170 5 0.69%
DDRTC Columbiana Station |, LLC 1,709,430 6 0.48%
BVA Harbison Court LLC 1,642,500 7 0.46%
North Lake Drive Apts, LLC 1,924,780 8 0.54%
Mid-Carolina Electric Coop. 1,609,670 9 0.45%
Columbiana Station (E & A) LLC 1,326,760 10 0.37%
South Carolina Electric & Gas
BVA Harbison Court LLC
DDR MDT Harbison Court, LLC
AVR Columbia LLC
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business
Total Assessed Value of Ten Principal Taxpayers $ 53,940,100 15.22%
Total Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers 300,470,000 84.78%
Total Assessed Value of All Taxpayers $ 354,410,100 100.00%

Sources: Lexington County Auditor's Office
Lexington County Treasurer's Office

139

Page 1 of 2
2012
Percentage
Taxable of Total
Assessed Taxable
Value Rank Value

$ -
6,521,220 2 2.26%
2,988,360 4 1.04%
4,101,970 3 1.42%
0.00%
1,459,650 5 0.51%
0.00%
0.00%
1,380,100 9 0.48%
1,128,950 8 0.39%
24,197,410 1 8.39%
0.00%
1,194,710 6 0.41%
1,485,000 7 0.52%
921,490 10 0.32%
$ 45,378,860 15.74%
242,901,795 84.26%
$ 288,280,655 100.00%




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

TABLE 10

(unaudited)
2021
Percentage
Taxable of Total
Assessed Taxable
Richland Taxpayer: Value Rank Value
Dominion Energy South Carolina $ 3,775,650 1 1.64%
Mid-Carolina Electric Coop. 2,446,600 2 1.06%
AVR-Lake Murray, LLC 1,814,080 3 0.79%
1600 Marina Road, LLC 1,306,260 4 0.57%
Lake Murray Drive Apts LLC 1,106,800 5 0.48%
Ballentine Crossing, LLC 1,094,360 6 0.48%
Paces Brook Apartments LP 1,051,740 7 0.46%
Crestmont Apartments, LLC 830,700 8 0.36%
EEA Wellspring, LLC 753,750 9 0.33%
SFR JV-1 Property LLC 681,090 10 0.30%
Bellsouth Telecommunications, Inc.
Harpaw LLC
Franklin Pineridge Associates
Century Heights Partners, LLC
South Carolina Electric & Gas
Southland Log Homes
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business
LHC Realty Trust
Home Depot USA Inc
Total Assessed Value of Ten Principal Taxpayers 14,861,030 6.46%
Total Assessed Value of Other Taxpayers 215,107,874 93.54%
Total Assessed Value of All Taxpayers $ 229,968,904 100.00%

Sources: Richland County Auditor's Office
Richland County Treasurer's Office

140

Page 2 of 2
2012

Percentage

Taxable of Total

Assessed Taxable

Value Rank Value

2,031,580 1 1.14%
782,980 6 0.44%
1,054,890 3 0.59%
822,700 5 0.46%
644,020 7 0.36%
840,510 4 0.47%
1,916,860 2 1.07%
582,570 8 0.33%
445,520 9 0.25%
429,690 10 0.24%
9,551,320 5.34%
169,354,580 94.66%
$ 178,905,900 100.00%




SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)

Lexington County:

Collected within the

TABLE 11
Page 1 of 2

Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Tax Year for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year December 31 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2012 2011 113,740,321 111,549,859 98.07% 2,053,374 113,603,233 99.88%
2013 2012 116,612,365 114,123,980 97.87% 2,197,464 116,321,444 99.75%
2014 2013 121,418,747 118,742,250 97.80% 2,302,466 121,044,716 99.69%
2015 2014 126,081,192 123,390,291 97.87% 2,224,171 125,614,462 99.63%
2016 2015 129,203,098 126,511,241 97.92% 2,178,583 128,689,824 99.60%
2017 2016 133,388,986 130,885,264 98.12% 1,899,160 132,784,424 99.55%
2018 2017 137,496,484 134,889,253 98.10% 1,908,910 136,798,163 99.49%
2019 2018 142,316,606 138,964,787 97.64% 2,197,781 141,162,568 99.19%
2020 2019 152,036,533 147,886,907 97.27% 2,340,456 150,227,363 98.81%
2021 2020 163,133,181 158,400,532 97.10% - 158,400,532 97.10%

Note: Levies and Collections updated for each fiscal year as of 6/30/21 per Lexington County Treasurer's Office.

Sources:

Lexington County Auditor's Office
Lexington County Treasurer's Office

141



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)

Richland County:

Collected within the

TABLE 11
Page 2 of 2

Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections Total Collections to Date
Fiscal Tax Year for the Percentage in Subsequent Percentage
Year December 31 Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy
2012 2011 45,074,021 43,710,463 96.97% 897,219 44,607,682 98.97%
2013 2012 46,216,599 44,651,273 96.61% 1,018,066 45,669,339 98.82%
2014 2013 47,657,973 46,316,828 97.19% 562,370 46,879,198 98.37%
2015 2014 49,471,459 48,430,437 97.90% 952,197 49,382,634 99.82%
2016 2015 52,038,893 50,488,324 97.02% 638,950 51,127,274 98.25%
2017 2016 52,932,549 51,950,725 98.15% 452,004 52,402,729 99.00%
2018 2017 54,708,568 53,232,891 97.30% 1,019,431 54,252,322 99.17%
2019 2018 56,230,247 54,122,238 96.25% 513,750 54,635,988 97.16%
2020 2019 65,221,306 62,545,763 95.90% 556,426 63,102,189 96.75%
2021 2020 65,029,216 62,471,526 96.07% - 62,471,526 96.07%
Sources: Richland County Auditor's Office

Richland County Treasurer's Office

142



TABLE 12

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)

Governmental
Activities Percentage
General Total of Estimated Percentage
Fiscal Obligation Lease Primary Actual Value of of Personal Per

Year Bonds Purchase Government Taxable Property Income Capita
2012 127,250,000 127,250,000 1.37% 3.65% 1,377
2013 254,018,653 254,018,653 2.70% 7.28% 2,765
2014 245,431,641 * 245,431,641 * 2.57% 7.06% 2,779
2015 235,647,636 235,647,636 2.51% 6.17% 2,554
2016 236,098,370 236,098,370 2.50% 5.72% 2,431
2017 215,789,488 1,877,527 217,667,015 2.25% 4.96% 2,193
2018 204,253,408 1,425,901 205,679,309 2.05% 4.45% 2,048
2019 191,899,887 962,639 192,862,526 1.88% not available not available
2020 200,845,541 487,441 201,332,982 1.86% not available not available
2021 175,668,610 - 175,668,610 1.60% not available not available

Notes:

Details of the district's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes
to the Basic Financial Statements.

Personal income and population data can be found in Table 16.
The ratios are calculated using personal income and population
for the prior calendar year.

* Correction to 6/30/14 CAFR (GASB 65)

143



TABLE 13

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)
Percentage

General Less: Amounts Net General of Estimated
Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Bonded Actual Taxable Per
Year Bonds Service Fund Debt Value of Property Capita
2012 127,250,000 5,715,026 121,534,974 1.31% 1,315
2013 254,018,653 7,500,378 246,518,275 2.62% 2,684
2014 245,431,641 6,509,558 238,922,083 2.50% 2,705
2015 235,647,636 5,228,679 230,418,957 2.45% 2,373
2016 236,098,370 4,640,228 231,458,142 2.45% 2,357
2017 225,608,448 5,451,624 220,156,824 2.28% 2,218
2018 213,971,408 6,915,903 * 207,055,505 2.07% 2,062
2019 201,904,887 7,733,095 * 194,171,792 1.96% Not available
2020 210,207,541 8,706,644 * 201,500,897 1.59% Not available
2021 185,896,810 14,476,765 * 171,420,045 1.48% Not available

Notes: Details of the district's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes
to the Basic Financial Statements.

Population data can be found in Table 16.
The ratios are calculated using population
for the prior calendar year.

The Estimated Actual Taxable Value of Property can be found in Table 8.

* Correction, GASB 34 adjustment

144



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
(unaudited)

Direct:

School District Five of Lexington
and Richland Counties

Total direct debt

Overlapping:

Lexington County:

Lexington County

Irmo-Chapin Recreation District
Riverbanks Park District

City of Columbia

Richland County:

Richland County

Richland Co Recreation District
Riverbanks Park District

City of Columbia

Total overlapping debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Sources: Lexington County Treasurer's Office
Richland County Treasurer's Office

TABLE 14

Estimated
District
Estimated Share of
Percentage Direct and
Debt Applicable Overlapping
Outstanding To District Debt
$ 175,668,610 100.00% $ 175,668,610
175,668,610 175,668,610
20,415,000 28.20% 5,757,030
16,985,000 100.00% 16,985,000
29,311,000 18.20% 5,334,602
138,034,319 4.10% 5,659,407
4,765,000 11.60% 552,740
29,245,000 14.90% 4,357,505
29,311,000 18.20% 5,334,602
138,034,319 4.10% 5,659,407
406,100,638 49,640,293

$ 581,769,248

$ 225,308,903

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable property values. Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxable value
that is within the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.

145



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 15

(unaudited)
Legal Debt Margin Calculation For Fiscal Year 2021
Assessed Value 584,379,004
Debt limit (8% of assessed value) 46,750,320
Debt applicable to limit* 20,823,200
Legal debt margin 25,927,120
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2019 2020 2021
Debt limit $ 37,374,924 $ 38,052,768 $ 38,787,248 $ 38,378,592 $ 38,642,874 $ 39,657,136 $ 42,064,730 $ 43,922,716 46,750,321
Total net debt applicable to limit 15,183,300 - - - 9,550,000 9,819,000 10,005,000 30,292,000 20,823,200
Legal debt margin $ 22,191,624 $ 38,052,768 $ 38,787,248 $ 38,378,592 $ 29,092,874 $ 29,838,136 $ 32,059,730 $ 13,630,716 25,927,121
Total net debt applicable to the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 40.62% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 24.71% 24.76% 23.78% 68.97% 44.54%

Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, empowers each school
district of the State to incur general obligation debt in such manner and upon such terms and
conditions as the General Assembly shall prescribe by law. After November 30, 1977, each
school district may incur general obligation debt, without an election and upon such terms and
conditions as the General Assembly may prescribe, in an amount not exceeding 8 percent of the
assessed value of all taxable property of such school district. Bonded indebtedness existing on
November 30, 1977, and bonded indebtedness authorized by a majority vote of the qualified
electors of the School District voting in a referendum will not be considered in the computation
of the 8 percent limitation.

*Note: Debt applicable to limit of $20,823,200 represents the District's short-term SCAGO
general obligation bonds in the amount of $10,228,200 and Regions general obligation bonds
in the amount of $10,595,000 payable as of June 30, 2021. All other long-term general
obligation bonds are referendum debt and are not applicable to the legal debt margin
calculation.

Sources: Lexington County Auditor's Office
Richland County Auditor's Office

146



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 16

(unaudited)
Per Per
Personal Capita Capita
Income Personal Personal Unemployment Unemployment
Fiscal Calendar Estimated (thousands Income Income Rate Rate
Year Year Population of dollars) Lexington County Richland County Lexington County Richland County
2012 2011 92,401 3,306,015 35,211 36,347 7.8% 9.2%
2013 2012 91,853 3,463,731 37,224 38,195 6.9% 8.4%
2014 2013 88,313 3,477,148 39,935 38,811 4.8% 6.0%
2015 2014 92,800 3,841,410 41,764 41,025 5.3% 6.4%
2016 2015 97,101 4,131,065 42,843 42,245 4.7% 5.6%
2017 2016 98,184 4,337,769 44,497 43,863 3.6% 4.2%
2018 2017 99,248 4,567,492 46,513 45,529 3.1% 3.7%
2019 2018 100,406 not available 47,992 47,299 3.0% 3.6%
2020 2019 not available not available not available not available 6.5% 8.7%
2021 2020 not available not available not available not available 3.5% 4.6%
Sources: South Carolina Revenue and Fiscal Affairs Office

South Carolina Employment Security Commission, Labor Market Information Division

Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

2011 Estimated Population from Proximity - Demographic - Economic 2010 Census

2012 & 2013 Estimated Population from Proximityone.com - ACS 2012 General Demographics
2012 Per Capita Personal Income - SC Department of Commerce Labor Profile

147



TABLE 17

Page 1 of 2
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(unaudited)

2021 2012
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

Lexington Employer: Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Lexington Medical Center 7,893 1 5.38%
Dominion Energy (formerly SCANA) 3,066 2 2.09% 1,000 4 0.78%
Amazon.com 2,500 3 1.71% 1,000 4 0.78%
Michelin North America Inc.(US #5) 1,470 4 1.00%
UPS 1,329 5 0.91% 1,425 3 1.12%
Nephron Pharmceuticals 1,135 6 0.77%
Spectrum 1,076 7 0.73%
Michelin North America Inc.(US #7) 770 8 0.53% 1,835 2 1.44%
HireRight 700 9 0.48%
Walter P. Rawl & Sons, Inc. 650 10 0.44%
Flextronics 600 7 0.47%
Walmart Stores 2,010 1 1.58%
Allied Air Enterprises Inc. 500 10 0.39%
DHL Global Forwarding North America 519 9 0.41%
Prysmian Power Cables & Systems USA 650 6 0.51%
Harsco Track Technologies 560 8 0.44%

20,589 14.04% 10,099 7.92%

2021 Top Employers from Central Alliance website at www.centralsc.org
2021 Total Employment from Bureau of Labor Statistics, SC Dept of Employment & Workfoce
2012 Data from Department of Commerce

148



TABLE 17

Page 2 of 2
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(unaudited)

2021 2012
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

Richland Employer: Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Prisma Health Midlands 15,000 1 7.86%
Blue Cross Blue Shield of SC 10,597 2 5.55% 6,900 1 3.95%
AT&T South Carolina 2,100 3 1.10%
Providence Health 1,625 4 0.85%
TRANE - Columbia Center of Excellence 1,345 5 0.70%
Colonial Life & Accident Insurance 1,300 6 0.68% 1,100 7 0.63%
Palmetto GBA 1,300 6 0.68% 1,900 3 1.09%
Allied Universal Security 1,200 7 0.63%
Westinghouse Electric Company 1,093 8 0.57% 1,300 6 0.74%
Teleperformance (TPUSA) 1,000 9 0.52%
Wells Fargo Bank 800 10 0.42%
First Citizens Bancorporation, Inc 1,588 4 0.91%
Verizon Communications 1,500 5 0.86%
Humana Military Healthcare/TriCare 2,210 2 1.27%
Computer Sciences Corp World Sourcing Services 1,100 8 0.63%
Wilbur Smith Associates 925 9 0.53%
International Paper 726 10 0.42%

37,360 19.56% 19,249 11.03%

2021 Top Employers from Central Alliance website at www.centralsc.org
2021 Total Employment from Bureau of Labor Statistics, SC Dept of Employment & Workfoce
2012Data from Department of Commerce

149



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
FULL-TIME-EQUIVALENTS PERSONNEL ALLOCATIONS BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

School Allocations:

Teachers

Guidance

Media specialists

Psychologists and social
workers

Speech therapists

Nurses, occupational and
physical therapists

Secretaries, bookkeepers,
and receptionists

Teacher assistants and
media assistants

Food service personnel and
cafeteria monitors

Custodians, maintenance
and transportation

Technology services and
and other specialized

Principal/assistant and
principal/coordinators

Total

District Office Allocations:
Superintendent
Instruction
Human resources services
Financial services
Community services
Technology
Facilities/Maintenance
Total

Total

TABLE 18

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
1,175.52 1,203.55 1,245.00 1,271.00 1,261.31 1,274.40 1,270.60 1,264.93 1,284.99 1,308.52
46.50 46.50 21.00 50.00 49.60 50.10 50.30 61.80 64.50 64.00
24.00 24.00 19.00 21.00 22.00 21.00 21.00 20.00 21.00 21.00
27.00 27.00 22.00 26.00 27.50 25.90 26.81 26.81 26.35 27.60
31.00 31.00 32.00 28.00 30.20 31.30 32.30 32.30 34.30 33.50
37.00 37.00 29.00 40.00 35.25 34.80 37.30 38.80 36.50 40.40
113.00 116.00 139.00 151.00 130.00 127.00 132.50 126.00 127.33 132.00
292.92 296.92 300.00 289.00 296.68 317.42 307.19 301.39 302.35 309.35
143.58 143.58 149.00 146.00 129.71 132.73 122.70 116.49 118.14 102.85
271.42 272.42 272.00 233.00 277.23 291.08 290.97 285.84 294.15 284.06

6.00 12.00 17.00 10.00 5.00 5.00 - 1.00 - -
69.84 71.84 83.00 79.00 76.50 73.00 76.00 74.00 74.00 84.00
2,237.78 2,281.81 2,328.00 2,344.00 2,340.98 2,383.73 2,367.67 2,349.36 2,383.61 2,407.28
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 4.00 3.00 2.00 2.00
37.50 37.50 35.00 33.00 29.50 33.00 34.00 35.00 34.00 33.90
7.80 7.80 10.00 11.00 10.40 10.40 10.50 10.50 10.00 10.00
30.00 30.00 33.00 15.00 30.73 17.00 17.00 17.00 18.00 17.00
4.73 5.73 10.00 26.00 25.75 27.75 28.18 26.75 28.50 29.25
15.00 15.00 28.00 18.00 18.00 22.00 23.00 24.00 25.00 25.00
20.00 20.00 24.00 25.00 19.00 23.00 23.00 22.00 22.25 22.00
117.03 118.03 142.00 130.00 135.38 135.15 139.68 138.25 139.75 139.15
2,354.81 2,399.84 2,470.00 2,474.00 2,476.36 2,518.88 2,507.35 2,487.61 2,523.36 2,546.43

Source: Records maintained by the School District Human Resources Department

150



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 19

(unaudited)
Percentage
of Students
Receiving
Cost Cost Pupil- Free or

Fiscal Operating per Percentage per Percentage Teaching Teacher Reduced -Price
Year Enrollment Expenditures Pupil Change Expenses Pupil Change Staff Ratio Meals
2012 16,339 160,807,273 9,842 -1.15% 186,181,312 11,395 2.52% 1,176 13.9 34.7%
2013 16,238 171,555,609 10,565 7.35% 201,437,840 12,405 8.87% 1,204 135 34.0%
2014 16,321 179,770,539 11,015 4.26% 214,133,723 13,120 5.76% 1,245 131 36.3%
2015 16,463 183,439,826 11,143 1.16% 223,175,997 13,556 3.32% 1,271 13.0 34.7%
2016 16,622 185,285,802 11,147 0.04% 229,025,475 13,778 1.64% 1,261 13.2 34.5%
2017 16,822 194,801,576 11,580 3.89% 230,508,932 13,703 -0.55% 1,274 13.2 30.1%
2018 16,724 201,958,333 12,076 4.28% 240,915,669 14,405 5.13% 1,271 13.2 35.7%
2019 16,899 220,805,533 13,066 8.20% 246,005,596 14,557 1.06% 1,265 13.4 37.4%
2020 16,976 234,667,526 13,823 5.80% 257,998,797 15,198 4.40% 1,285 13.2 42.1%
2021 16,444 238,045,827 14,476 4.72% 276,486,495 16,814 10.63% 1,309 12.6 100.0%

Source: Records maintained by the School District Finance Department

Operating expenditures are total expenditures less debt service and capital outlays from Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental

Funds.

Expenses are total expenses from Statement of Activities.
N/A = Not available

151



TABLE 20

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
TEACHER BASE SALARIES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(unaudited)
Statewide
Fiscal Minimum Maximum Average
Year Salary Salary Salary
2012 32,406 72,256 47,428
2013 33,054 73,701 47,428
2014 33,054 73,701 48,430
2015 33,054 73,701 48,561
2016 33,054 73,701 48,469
2017 33,715 75,175 50,050
2018 33,715 75,175 50,182
2019 34,389 76,679 50,882
2020 38,746 79,746 53,329

2021 38,746 79,746 53,185

152



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

School

Elementary

Ballentine Elementary (2002)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Chapin Elementary (1977)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Dutch Fork Elementary (1953)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

H. E. Corley Elementary (1990)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Harbison West Elementary (1982)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Irmo Elementary (1933)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Lake Murray Elementary (1997)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Leaphart Elementary (1975)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Nursery Road Elementary (1980)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

TABLE 21

Page 1 of 3

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731 106,731
819 819 819 819 819 819 819 819 819 819
752 720 718 716 668 623 585 617 678 641
131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950 131,950
916 916 916 916 916 916 916 916 916 916
811 820 854 843 686 651 663 786 779 793
95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182 95,182
657 657 657 657 657 657 657 657 657 657
519 514 511 504 498 506 462 495 481 443
105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944 105,944
733 733 733 733 733 733 733 733 733 733
514 511 467 486 486 495 476 479 505 460
115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000
710 710 710 710 710 710 710 710 710 710
502 479 487 518 559 592 579 551 543 503
121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000 121,000
640 640 640 640 640 640 640 640 640 640
468 511 478 474 505 486 524 520 538 527
102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842 102,842
849 849 849 849 849 849 849 849 849 849
847 874 926 992 872 994 966 916 933 903
120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500 120,500
814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814
430 429 452 432 435 427 459 461 465 424
110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000 110,000
777 777 777 777 777 777 777 777 777 777
519 491 477 454 401 418 421 419 416 397

153



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)

School

Elementary (Continued)

Oak Pointe Elementary (2007)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

River Springs Elementary (1997)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Seven Oaks Elementary (1966)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Middle

Chapin Intermediate (1991)

<3> Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Chapin Middle (2015)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Cross Roads Intermediate (1971)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Dutch Fork Middle (1998)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

Irmo Middle (1977)
Square feet
Capacity
Enroliment

TABLE 21

Page 2 of 3

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396 110,396
756 756 756 756 756 756 756 756 756 756
647 645 627 636 635 615 615 573 557 523
99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899 99,899
925 925 925 925 925 925 925 925 925 925
641 633 598 568 556 541 520 489 479 443
103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756 103,756
640 640 640 640 640 640 640 640 640 640
465 438 486 534 588 593 542 517 505 441
177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433 177,433
1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018 1,018
1,103 1,121 1,111 1,172 718 759 852 867 794 803
122,000 122,000 122,000 122,000 122,000 122,000
1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
808 866 842 903 1,008 976
148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194 148,194
1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098 1,098
988 946 943 917 793 803 745 823 727 708
142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901 142,901
1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149 1,149
1,054 1,045 1,092 1,089 1,061 1,034 1,067 1,031 1,017 971
233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000 233,000
1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181 1,181
879 909 897 843 926 891 891 920 1,016 966

154



TABLE 21

Page 3 of 3
SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(unaudited)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
School
High
Chapin High (1971)
Square feet 187,288 187,288 252,288 375,500 375,500 375,500 375,500 375,500 375,500 375,500
Capacity 1,239 1,239 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700
Enrollment 1,341 1,346 1,206 1,152 1,238 1,315 1,371 1,475 1,484 1,542
Dutch Fork High (1993)
Square feet 316,788 316,788 316,788 368,788 368,788 368,788 368,788 368,788 368,788 368,788
Capacity 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207 2,207
Enrollment 2,031 2,097 1,894 1,833 1,766 1,708 1,754 1,698 1,684 1,641
Irmo High (1964)
Square feet 343,121 343,121 343,121 396,121 396,121 396,121 396,121 396,121 396,121 396,121
Capacity 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141 2,141
Enrollment 1,829 1,707 1,540 1,508 1,436 1,413 1,344 1,302 1,252 1,206
Center for Advanced Technical Studies (2012)
Square feet 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000 115,000
Capacity 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200
<1> Enrollment
Spring Hill High School (2013)
Square feet 287,000 287,000 287,000 287,000 287,000 287,000 287,000 287,000
Capacity 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700
Enrollment 556 792 987 1,092 1,046 1,057 1,118 1,133
Other
Academy for Success (1955)
Square feet 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961 20,961
Capacity 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99 99
<2> Enrollment 127 95 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Source: Records maintained by the School District
Note: Capacity stated as Core Capacity as developed by the Southern Management Group, Columbia, SC
2010 - Capacity is "current as-used program capacity" as reported in District and School Level Program Capacity Study prepared by H. Dale Holden & Associates.
Enroliment as of the 135-day Average Daily Attendance report
<1> Students enrolled in programs at this facility are included in their home-based school.
<2> Facility is no longer used for instructional purposes. This program is housed at Spring Hill High School beginning with the 13/14 school year.
<3> Facility was site of Chapin Middle School until the fiscal year 2015-16. Chapin Intermediate includes only 5th and 6th grades. Chapin Middle School includes only
7th and 8th grades beginning with the 15-16 school year.
16,463 16,622 16,822 16,724 16,899 16,979 16,444

155



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

The following information is related to the annual single audit including the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, findings and recommendations, and auditor’s reports on internal control and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

156




This page was intentionally left blank.

157



URKETT
BURKETT&BURKETT

Certified Public Accountants, PA.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Board Chair and Members of

the Board of Trustees of
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Irmo, South Carolina

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of School District Five
of Lexington and Richland Counties (“the School District™), as of and for the year ended June 30,
2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the School
District’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School
District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. ’

WEST COLUMBIA ROCK HILL
3101 SUNSET BLVD. - WEST COLUMBIA, SC 29169 128 EAST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
POST OFFICE BOX 2044 - WEST COLUMBIA, SC 29171 ROCK HiLL, SC 29730
MAIN LINE: 803.794.3712 - MAIN Fax: 803.739.4394 158 MAIN LINE: 803.325.1660 - FAX LINE: 803.325.1665

WWw.BURKETTCPAS.COM WWW.BURKETTCPAS.COM



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Page 2 of 2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School District’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing
an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bodet Budet & Butet—

Burkett Burkett & Burkett
Certified Public Accountants, P.A.
West Columbia, South Carolina
November 29, 2021

159



BURKETT
BURKE’I‘T&BURKETT

Certified Public Accountants, PA.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR THE MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTRCL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Honorable Board Chair and Members of

the Board of Trustees of
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Irmo, South Carolina

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties (“the School District™)’s
compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on the School District’s major federal program for the year
ended June 30, 2021. The School District’s major federal program is identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the School District’s major federal
program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit
Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School District’s
compliance.

WEST COLUMBIA ROCK HILL
3101 SUNSET BLVD. - WEST COLUMBIA, SC 29169 128 EAST MAIN STREET, SUITE 201
POST OFFICE BOX 2044 - WeST COLUMBIA, SC 29171 Rock HILL, SC 29730
MAIN LINE: 803.794.3712 - MAIN Fax: 803.739.4394 160 MAIN LINE: 803.325.1660 - FAX LINE: 803.325.1665

WwWw.BURKETTCPAS.COM WWW.BURKETTCPAS.COM



School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties
Page 2 of 2

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program
for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the School District’s internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report
on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

B ettt 3 et &R obet—

Burkett Burkett & Burkett
Certified Public Accountants, P.A.
West Columbia, South Carolina
November 29, 2021

161



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Pass-
LEA Federal Grantor Federal Through
Subfund Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Grantor's Total
Fund Code Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U. S. Department of Education
Pass-Through S.C. Department of Education:
203 Handicapped Disabilities Act 84.027 H63010100920 & ESY $ 348,756
204 Handicapped Disabilities Act 84.027 H63010100921 2,816,479
204 Handicapped Disabilities Act 84.027 H63010100919 187,865
205 Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 H63010100820 11,510
206 Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 H63010100819 6,992
206 Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 H63010100821 157,863
Special Education (IDEA) Cluster 3,529,465
201 Title | Regular 84.010 H63010100120 139,455
201 Title | Regular 84.010 H63010100121 1,804,376
237 Targeted School Improvement 84.010A H63010100119 79,168
237 Targeted School Improvement 84.010A H63010100120 116,858
238 Title | Comprehensive School Improvement 84.010A H63010100119 37,794
239 Title | Comprehensive School Improvement 84.010A H63010100120 98,273
Title | Part A Cluster 2,275,924
210 Title IV SSAE 84.424A H63010100319 46,282
210 Title IV SSAE 84.424A H63010100320 138,954
210 Title IV SSAE 84.424A H63010100321 33,731
207 Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 H63010107121 53,348
207 Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 H63010107120 110,817
224 21st Century Community Learning Centers 84.287 H63010006920 13,089
232 McKinney Vento Homeless Assistance 84.196A H63010108921 21,659
232 McKinney Vento Homeless Assistance 84.196A H63010108920 24,249
232 McKinney Vento Homeless Assistance 84.196A H63010108919 18,516
243 Adult Education Federal Grant Program 84.002 H63010101021 55,666
243 Adult Education Federal Grant Program - Civics 84.002 H63010101021 25,284
243 Adult Education Federal Grant Program - Generational Family Services 84.002 H63010101021 30,000
243 Adult Education Federal Grant Program - Reverted 84.002 H63010101019 3,778
264 Title 11l - English Language Acquisition 84.365A H63010006720 22,812
264 Title 11l - English Language Acquisition 84.365A H63010006719 6,351
267 Title Il Part A - Improving Teacher Quality 84.367 H63010006821 64,876
267 Title Il Part A - Improving Teacher Quality 84.367 H63010006820 143,154
220 COVID-19 Education Stabilization Fund 84.425D H63010497520 50,000
225 COVID-19 Education Stabilization Fund 11 84.425D H63010497522 28,805
891,371
Direct Programs:
804 MSAP Grant - Discover Five 84.165A N/A 2,247,619
Total U. S. Department of Education 8,944,379
U. S. Department of Agriculture
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Pass-Through S.C. Department of Education:
Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities):
600 **  National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 620,801
Cash Assistance
600 **  School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A 2,270,809
600 **  National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A 5,749,764
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 8,641,374
600 Fresh Fruit and Vegetable Program 10.582 N/A 34,836
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 8,676,210

162

(Continued)



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Pass-
LEA Federal Grantor Federal Through
Subfund Pass-Through Grantor CFDA Grantor's Total
Fund Code Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Defense
Direct Programs:
831 Navy JROTC 12.000 N/A 82,350
832 Air Force JROTC 12.000 N/A 136,004
Total U.S. Department of Defense 218,354
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services
Pass-Through S.C. Department of Education:
838 Youth Risk Behavior Surveys 93.079 N/A 272
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 272
Total Federal Awards Expended $ 17,839,215

** Denotes Major Program
Notes
(1) Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity of
School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2020. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Office of
Management and Budget's (OMB) Uniform Guidance. Because the schedule presents only a selection portion of the
operations of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of School District Five of Lexington and Richland Counties.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are
recognized following the cost principles contained in OMB Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.
Also, the District has not elected to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate.

(3) Reconciliation of SEFA to Financial Statements:

Federal Assistance:

Government Funds $ 18,584,590
Total Federal Assistance Per Financial Statements 18,584,590
Less: Federal Interest Subsidy - Debt Service Fund (745,375)
Total Federal Assistance Per SEFA $ 17,839,215

ARRA Funded Programs Not Subject to Single Audit:

Build America Bonds
Qualified School Construction Bonds

The federal interest subsidy assistance received from these bond programs is excluded from the SEFA reporting.

163



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Part | Summary of Auditor's Results
Financial Statements
Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

Material Weakness(es) Identified? Yes X

Significant Deficiencies Identified That Are Not
Considered to Be Material Weaknesses Yes X

Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements Noted Yes X

Federal Awards
Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:

Material Weakness(es) Identified? Yes X

Significant Deficiencies Identified That Are Not
Considered to Be Material Weaknesses Yes X

Type of Auditor's Report Issued on Compliance for Major
Federal Programs: Unmodified

Programs Tested as Major Programs:

Program: CEDA #
Child Nutrition Cluster 10.553, 10.555

Dollar Threshold used to Distinguish Between
Type A and Type B Programs $750,000

Auditee Qualify as a Low-Risk Auditee? X Yes

Any Audit Findings Disclosed That are Required To Be
Reported in Accordance With Government Auditing
Standards 2 CFR 200.516(a) Yes X

Part Il Findings - Financial Statements Audit
None
Part 1l Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Programs Audit

None

164

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

No

No



SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE OF LEXINGTON AND RICHLAND COUNTIES
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Part Il Findings - Financial Statements Audit
None
Part 1l Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Programs Audit

None

165



EXHIBIT F

Memorandum
To: Members of the Board of Trustees
From: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Interim Superintendent
Date: December 9, 2021
Re: December 13, 2021 Board Meeting

Discussion ltem
Appointment to Richland County Board of Assessment of Appeals

| recommend that Mr. Jeffrey Herring be appointed to serve as District Five of Lexington & Richland
Counties appointee to the Richland County Board of Assessment Appeals. Mr. Herring has a wealth of
experience and knowledge concerning District Five, our community, and the real estate market.

Mr. Herring has graciously agreed to serve. This position does not receive compensation except
for travel reimbursement. Mr. Herring's professional vita is attached for your consideration.

The administration supports this recommendation and requests the Board of Trustees’ approval.
AERsr:aw

Attachment - Resume/Mr. Jeffrey Herring

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road * Irmo, South Carolina 29063 - (803) 476-8000
“Pursuing Excellence for Tomorrow’s Challenges”



JEFFREY HERRING

129 Lakeport Dr Chapin, SC 29036 - 803-609-0919
Sherring317@msn.com

EXPERIENCE

MARCH 1992 - MAY 2002
FINANCIAL REPRESENTATIVE, BRANCH MANAGER, CORPORATE TRAINER,
ECONOMIC ANALYST, aiG

Worked on branch level lending, collections and business development until promoted. Lead
trainer in Southeast for Branch Manager Trainees. Developed economic analysis for branch,
region and companywide operations. Won BEST Operator for branch growth and ROI.

MAY 2002 - JUNE 2012
BRANCH MANAGER, DIRECTOR BRANCH OPERATIONS, ALLOUTH Fcu

Managed branch operations, trained newly hired Managers. Promoted to analyze and write
policies and procedures for branch operations. Corporate trainer for new procedures and
technologies.

JUNE 2012 - PRESENT
CFO, SOVEREIGN CONSULTING

EDUCATION

DECEMBER 1991
BS ECONOMICS, UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAOLINA
Multiple semesters on President’s List

SKILLS

e Real estate abstracting e Training

e Financial Analyst e Policy writing, analyst
PERSONAL

| have been married to my wife, Stephanie, for 27 years. We have 1 daughter, Lauren, that attends
Spring Hill High School. | have lived in District 5 for 50 years.



EXHIBIT G

wn
w
JE
/5
<

2 Q
O P‘&
& RICHM

MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Board of Trustees

Through: Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

From: Marty Rawls,
Chief Finance Officer MW
Date: December 2, 2021

Re: ACTION ITEM
Approval of 2021-2022 General Fund Budget Amendment

Attached is a presentation providing information for the justification of a General Fund Budget
Amendment. The increase is based on the 45" day ADM (Average Daily Membership) enrollment and
the base student cost as finalized in the South Carolina Appropriations Act as ratified by the General
Assembly on June 25, 2021. The School Board approved the 2" reading of the District’s current General
Fund Budget on June 14, 2021.

This amendment allows for the available revenue to be allocated at 100% of the budgeted expenditures.
The original budget included categories that were budgeted between 50%-75% of the anticipated

expenditures for the year.

Recommendation: It is the recommendation of Administration to approve this amendment to the
2021-2022 General Fund Budget.

Attachment

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road ¢ Irmo, South Carolina 29063 ¢ 803-476-8000



To:

Through:

From:

Date:

Re:

EXHIBIT H

MEMORANDUM

Members of the Board of Trustees

Dr. Akil E. Ross, Sr.
Superintendent

Marty Rawls,

Chief Finance Officer Ml‘ta’ [Qw)‘)eo
December 7, 2021

ACTION ITEM

Approval of Adoption of the 2021 South Carolina Model School Procurement Code &
Exemptions

Attached is the 2021 South Carolina Model School Procurement Code and Exemptions.

RECOMMENDATION

It is the recommendation of Administration to adopt the 2021 South Carolina Model School
Procurement Code and Exemptions as presented.

Attachment

www.lexrich5.org
1020 Dutch Fork Road e Irmo, South Carolina 29063 « 803-476-8000



11/9/21, 3:09 PM Lexington/Richland School Dist. 5 Mail - New Procurement Code

r
) Marty Rawls <mrawls@lexrich5.org>
» COU

New Procurement Code
1 message

Lynda Robinson <ljrobins@lexrich5.org> Mon, Nov 8, 2021 at 4:35 PM

To: Marty Rawls <mrawls@lexrich5.org>

Marty,
It is my recommendation that we adopt the 2021 South Carolina Model School District
Procurement code as written. The benefits of the Model Code include:

*  Consistency for all funds (local, state, federal)

*  Uniformity across state

*  Aligns with federal regulations — 2 CFR Part 200
*  QGives clear guidance or “rules”

*  Provides basis for transparency

| have attached a draft copy of the exemptions for your review. Thanks!

Lynda Robinson

Coordinator of Purchasing

School District Five of Lexington & Richland
Counties

1020 Dutch Fork Road, Irmo, SC 29063
office: 803.476.8140

www.lexrich5.org

@ Exemptions.docx
25K

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=dbeefbf72a&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1715897479976013585%7Cmsg-f%3A17158974799760...

7


https://www.google.com/maps/search/School+District+Five+of+Lexington++Richland+Counties+1020+Dutch+Fork+Road,+Irmo,+SC+29063+office?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/School+District+Five+of+Lexington++Richland+Counties+1020+Dutch+Fork+Road,+Irmo,+SC+29063+office?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/School+District+Five+of+Lexington++Richland+Counties+1020+Dutch+Fork+Road,+Irmo,+SC+29063+office?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.google.com/maps/search/School+District+Five+of+Lexington++Richland+Counties+1020+Dutch+Fork+Road,+Irmo,+SC+29063+office?entry=gmail&source=g
http://www.lexrich5.org/
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=dbeefbf72a&view=att&th=17d017aab4f54f11&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_kvr6nlgq0&safe=1&zw

HENRY MCMASTER, CHAIR HUGH K. LEATHERMAN, SR.
GOVERNOR CHAIRMAN, SENATE FINANCE COMMITTEE
CURTIS M. LOFTIS, JR. G. MURRELL SMITH, JR.

STATE TREASURER State Fiscal Accountability Authority CHAIRMAN, HOUSE WAYS AND MEANS COMMITTEE
RICHARD ECKSTROM, CPA GRANT GILLESPIE
COMPTROLLER GENERAL THE DIVISION OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DELBERT H. SINGLETON, JR.
DIVISION DIRECTOR

(803) 734-8018

JOHN ST. C. WHITE
MATERIALS MANAGEMENT OFFICER

(803) 737-0600
FAX: (803) 737-0639

To: Superintendents of School Districts Affected by SC. Code § 11-35-5340
From: Delbert H. Singleton, Jr.

Director of the Division of Procurement Services

State Fiscal Accountability Authority
Re: 2021 Model School District Code

Date: 9/15/2021

Please find enclosed the final version of the 2021 South Carolina Model School District Procurement Code.
All school districts subject to Section 11-35-5340 are encouraged to consider adopting this version.

This version amends and supersedes the 2011 Model School District Procurement Code (effective Aug. 15,
2011). Since the adoption of the 2011 Model Code, the General Assembly has made several changes to the
South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and regulations, including significant changes in 2019 and
2020. To the extent those changes are relevant to school districts, the 2021 Model Code incorporates those
changes. A redline comparison of the 2011 and 2021 Model Codes is found at the following link:
https://www.procurement.sc.gov/schoolscodes. In updating the model code, the Division of Procurement
Services has been guided by the regulations that authorize such a model code. To that end, this model code
“is designed to serve and comply with the purpose and policies enumerated in Section 11-35-20 in the
specific context of local school district operations, with due regard for minimizing administrative costs of
compliance with the model code.”

As you are aware, a school district is largely exempt from the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement
Code and regulations if this Division determines in writing that the school district’s code and regulations
are “substantially similar” to South Carolina law as of the date of approval. This process is simple if a
school district simply adopts the 2021 Model Code as written. If the school district, however, wants to
make additional changes to the 2021 Model Code, this Division must use its judgment and determine
whether those changes result in a code that is substantially similar to South Carolina law. Forms for
submitting a code for approval are found at Attachment A to this document.

Finally, a school district may continue to operate under a previously approved code and is not required to
adopt the 2021 Model Code. But if a school district wishes to amend a previously approved code, this
Division will not approve of a partial amendment that adopts some recent changes in the law while ignoring
others. A school district, in other words, must adopt all or none of the recent changes in the law.


https://www.procurement.sc.gov/schoolscodes

SOUTH CAROLINA MODEL
SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROCUREMENT CODE

Current through the 2020 Regular Session of the South Carolina General Assembly. Current through State
Register Volume 44, Issue No. 10 (October 23, 2020). Any changes approved by the General Assembly
will be incorporated as soon as possible.

(Effective 9/15/2021)



WRITTEN DETERMINATION
OPINION OF SUBSTANTIAL SIMILARITY

Regulation 19-445.3000E provides that "[p]rior to publishing a model code, the Materials
Management Officer must determine in writing that the model code is substantially similar to the
provisions of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and these procurement
regulations." In my opinion, this Model School District Procurement Code, dated 9/17/2021 1is
substantially similar to the provisions of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and
regulations in effect on the date reflected below.

M% &//% 9/15/2021

{ohn St. C. White Date
Materials Management Officer




See attached Statement of Rights to Administrative Review.



STATEMENT OF RIGHT TO FURTHER ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW
Written Determinations Appeal Notice (Revised May 2020)

The South Carolina Procurement Code, in Section 11-35-4410, subsection (1)(b), states:

(1) Creation. There is hereby created the South Carolina Procurement Review Panel
which shall be charged with the responsibility to review and determine de novo:

(b) requests for review of other written determinations, decisions, policies, and
procedures arising from or concerning the procurement of supplies, services, information
technology, or construction procured in accordance with the provisions of this code and
the ensuing regulations; except that a matter which could have been brought before the
chief procurement officers in a timely and appropriate manner pursuant to Sections 11-
35-4210, 11-35-4220, or 11-35-4230, but was not, must not be the subject of review
under this paragraph. Requests for review pursuant to this paragraph must be submitted to
the Procurement Review Panel in writing, setting forth the grounds, within fifteen days of
the date of the written determinations, decisions, policies, and procedures.

(Emphasis added.) See generally Protest of Three Rivers Solid Waste Authority by Chambers
Development Co., Inc., Case Nos. 1996-4 & 1996-5, Protest of Charleston County School District, Case
No. 1985-5, Charleston County School Dist. v. Leatherman, 295 S.C. 264, 368 S.E.2d 76 (Ct.App.1988).

Copies of the Panel's decisions and other additional information regarding the protest process is available
on the internet at the following web site: http://procurement.sc.gov

FILING FEE: Pursuant to Proviso 111.1 of the 2020 General Appropriations Act, "[r]equests for
administrative review before the South Carolina Procurement Review Panel shall be accompanied by a
filing fee of two hundred and fifty dollars ($250.00), payable to the SC Procurement Review Panel. The
panel is authorized to charge the party requesting an administrative review under the South Carolina Code
Sections 11-35-4210(6), 11-35-4220(5), 11-35-4230(6) and/or 11-35-4410.... Withdrawal of an appeal
will result in the filing fee being forfeited to the panel. If a party desiring to file an appeal is unable to pay
the filing fee because of financial hardship, the party shall submit a completed Request for Filing Fee
Waiver form at the same time the request for review is filed. [The Request for Filing Fee Waiver form is
attached to this Decision.] If the filing fee is not waived, the party must pay the filing fee within fifteen
days of the date of receipt of the order denying waiver of the filing fee. Requests for administrative
review will not be accepted unless accompanied by the filing fee or a completed Request for Filing Fee
Waiver form at the time of filing." PLEASE MAKE YOUR CHECK PAYABLE TO THE "SC
PROCUREMENT REVIEW PANEL."

LEGAL REPRESENTATION: In order to prosecute an appeal before the Panel, business entities organized
and registered as corporations, limited liability companies, and limited partnerships must be represented by
a lawyer. Failure to obtain counsel will result in dismissal of your appeal. Protest of Lighting Services, Case
No. 2002-10 (Proc. Rev. Panel Nov. 6, 2002) and Protest of The Kardon Corporation, Case No. 2002-13
(Proc. Rev. Panel Jan. 31, 2003); and Protest of PC&C Enterprises, LLC, Case No. 2012-1 (Proc. Rev.
Panel April 2, 2012).



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1. General Provisions

Section 10. Citation.

Section 20. Purpose and policies.

Section 25. Supersession of conflicting laws.

Section 30. Obligation of good faith.

Section 40. Application of this Code.

Section 45. Payment for goods and services received by District.
Section 210. Determinations; exemption.

Section 310. Definitions.

Section 410. Public access to procurement information.

Section 450. Reporting purchases.

Article 3. Procurement Organization

Section 510. Centralization of materials management authority.
Section 540. Authority and duties of the Board.

Section 710. Exemptions.

Section 840. Delegation of authority

Section 1030.
Section 1250.
Section 1260.

Section 1410.
Section 1510.
Section 1520.
Section 1524.
Section 1525.
Section 1528.
Section 1529.
Section 1530.
. Negotiations after unsuccessful competitive sealed bidding.
Section 1550.
Section 1560.
Section 1570.
Section 1575.
Section 1710.
Section 1810.
Section 1820.
Section 1830.
Section 2010.
Section 2015.
Section 2020.
Section 2030.
Section 2040.
Section 2050.
Section 2060.

Section 1540

Procurement training and certification.
Authority to contract for auditing services.
Authority to contract for legal services.

Article 5. Source Selection and Contract Formation

Definitions of terms used in this article.
Methods of source selection.
Competitive sealed bidding.

Resident vendor preference.
Competitive fixed price bidding.
Competitive best value bidding.
Competitive online bidding.
Competitive sealed proposals.

Small purchase procedures; when competitive bidding required.
Sole source procurement; public notice.

Emergency procurements; public notice.

Participation in auction or sale of supplies from bankruptcy.
Cancellation of invitation for bids or request for proposals.
Responsibility of bidders and offerors.

Prequalification of supplies and suppliers.

Cost or pricing data.

Types of contracts.

Effect of contract or amendment.

Approval of accounting system.

Multiterm contracts.

Inapplicable laws.

Void contract terms or conditions.

Material changes prohibited.



Section 2210.
Section 2220.
Section 2410.
Section 2420.
Section 2430.
Section 2440.

Section 2610.
Section 2710.
Section 2730.
Section 2740.
Section 2750.

Section 2910.
Section 3005.
Section 3010.
Section 3015.
Section 3020.
Section 3021.
Section 3023.
Section 3024.
Section 3030.
Section 3035.
Section 3037.
Section 3040.
Section 3050.

Right to inspect plant.

Right to audit records.

Finality of determinations.

Reporting of anticompetitive practices.
Retention of procurement records.
Records of procurement actions.

Article 7. Specifications

Definitions of terms used in this article.

Issuance of specifications; duties of the Board.
Assuring competition.

Relationship with using agencies.

Specifications prepared by architects and engineers.

Article 9. Construction, Architect-Engineer, Construction Management, and Land Surveying Services

Definitions of terms used in this article.

Project delivery methods authorized.

Choice of project delivery method.

Source selection methods assigned to project delivery methods.
Additional bidding procedures for construction procurement.
Subcontractor substitution.

Prequalification on District construction.

Additional procedures applicable to procurement of certain project delivery methods.
Bond and security.

Errors and omissions insurance.

Other forms of security.

Contract clauses and their administration.

Cost principles regulations for construction contractors.

Section 3070. Approval of architectural, engineering or construction changes which do not alter scope or
intent or exceed approved budget.

Section 3210.
Section 3215.
Section 3220.

Policy.
Preference for resident design service; definitions; exceptions.
Qualifications based selection procedures.

Section 3230. Exception for small architect engineer, construction management and land surveying
services contract.

Section 3245.

Section 3305.
Section 3310.

Section 3320.
Section 3410.

Architect, engineer, or construction manager; performance of other work.

Article 10. Indefinite Delivery Contracts

Establishment of indefinite quantity contracts.
Indefinite quantity contracts.

Article 11. Modifications and Termination of Contracts for Supplies and Services.

Task order contracts.
Contract clauses and their administration.

Article 13. Cost Principles



Section 3510. Cost principles required for supplies and services contracts.
Article 15. Supply Management

Section 3810. Regulations for sale, lease, transfer and disposal.

Section 3820. Allocation of proceeds for sale or disposal of surplus supplies.
Section 3830. Trade-in sales.

Section 3850. Sale of unserviceable supplies.

Article 17. Legal and Contractual Remedies

Section 4210. Right to protest; procedure; duty and authority to attempt to settle; administrative review;
stay of procurement.

Section 4215. Posting of bond or irrevocable letter of credit.

Section 4220. Authority to debar or suspend.

Section 4230. Authority to resolve contract and breach of contract controversies.
Section 4310. Solicitations or awards in violation of the law.

Section 4315 Unauthorized award or modification of a contract.

Section 4320. Contract controversies.

Section 4330. Frivolous protests.

Section 4340. Rights and remedies.

Section 4410. Procurement Review Panel.

Section 4425. Final order not appealed.

Section 4430. Communication of panel members.

Article 19. Intergovernmental Relations
Article 21. Assistance to Minority Businesses

Section 5010. Definitions of terms used in this article.

Section 5210. Statement of policy and its implementation.

Section 5220. Duties of the chief procurement officer.

Section 5230. Regulations for negotiation with District minority firms.
Section 5240. Minority business enterprise (MBE) utilization plan.
Section 5250. Progress payments and letter of credit.

Article 23. Statewide Provisions
District Procurement Regulations

2000. District Procurement Regulations.

2005. Internal Procurement Procedures; Procurement Records.
2010. Disclosure of Procurement Information.

2015. Unauthorized or Illegal Procurements.

2017. Pre-solicitation Procedures.

2025. Authority to Contract for Certain Services; Definitions.
2027. Electronic Commerce.

2030. Competitive Sealed Bidding; The Invitation for Bids.
2040. Publication of District Business Opportunities.

2042. Pre Bid Conferences.

2045. Receipt, Safeguarding, and Disposition of Bids.



2050. Bid Opening.

2055. Bid Acceptance and Bid Evaluation.

2060. [Repealed]

2065. Rejection of Bids.

2070. Rejection of Individual Bids.

2075. All or None Qualifications.

2077. Bid Samples and Descriptive Literature.

2080. Bid Reductions.

2085. Correction or Withdrawal of Bids; Cancellation of Awards.
2090. Award.

2095. Competitive Sealed Proposals.

2097. Rejection of Proposals.

2098. Rejection of Individual Proposals.

2100. Small Purchases and Other Simplified Purchasing Procedures.
2105. Sole Source Procurements.

2110. Emergency Procurements.

2115. Information Technology Procurements.

2120. Cost or Pricing Data.

2122. Price Reasonableness.

2125. Responsibility of Bidders and Ofterors.

2127. Organizational Conflicts of Interest

2130. Prequalification of Supplies and Suppliers.

2132. Prequalification for a Single Solicitation.

2135. Conditions for Use of Multi term Contracts.

2140. Specifications.

2141. Commercial Products.

2143. Contract clauses and administration.

2145. Construction, Architect Engineer, Construction Management, and Land Surveying Services.
2150. Surplus Property Management.

2152. Leases, Lease/Payment, Installment Purchase, and Rental of Personal Property.
2160. Assistance to Minority Businesses.

2165. Gifts

2180. Assignment, Novation, and Change of Name.

2200. Administrative Review Protective Orders.

District Internal Operating Procedures

Appendix I of the Office of State Engineer’s 2020 Manual for Planning and Execution of State Permanent
Improvements. See also Competitive Sealed Proposals, Required Procedures and Guidance for
Communications After Opening but Prior to Award (eff. Sept. 2021), found at
https://procurement.sc.gov.

Chapter 3.5 of the Office of State Engineer’s 2020 Manual for Planning and Execution of State
Permanent Improvements.

Office of State Engineer’s 2020 Manual for Planning and Execution of State Permanent Improvements,
Chapters 9.3 and 9.4, Indefinite Quantity contracts for professional services; and Chapters 9.5 and 9.6,
Task Order Contracts for construction services.



PROCUREMENT CODE & REGULATIONS
[INAME OF SCHOOL DISTRICT)

ARTICLE 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
SECTION 10. Citation. (S.C. Code § 11-35-10)

(1) Adoption. This document is adopted pursuant to the mandate of Section 11-35-5340 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws, is intended to have the force and effect of law, and shall be known and may be
cited as the “[insert district name] Consolidated Procurement Code.” Section 11-35-5340 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws provides as follows: " Irrespective of the source of funds, any school district whose
budget of total expenditures, including debt service, exceeds seventy-five million dollars annually is subject
to the provisions of Chapter 35, Title 11, and shall notify the Director of the Division of Procurement
Services of the State Fiscal Accountability Authority of its expenditures within ninety days after the close
of its fiscal year. However, if a District has its own procurement code which is, in the written opinion of
the Division of Procurement Services of the State Fiscal Accountability Authority, substantially similar to
the provisions of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code, the District is exempt from the
provisions of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code except for a procurement audit which
must be performed every three years by an audit firm approved by the Division of Procurement Services.
Costs associated with the internal review and audits are the responsibility of the school district and will be
paid to the entity performing the audit.”

[Model Comment:

1. This 2021 Model School District Code is the first revision of the 2011 Model School District Code. Although a few
new statutes and regulations (e.g. competitive negotiations, S.C. Code § 11-35-1535 and Regulation 19-446.2099)
were inappropriate for or not relevant to school districts and not included in this version, most of the statutory and
regulatory amendments since 2011 have been tailored for school districts and incorporated into this 2021 version. A
redline comparison between the 2011 and 2021 codes is found here: https://www.procurement.sc.gov/schoolscodes

2. Section 11-35-5340 provides for the Division of Procurement Services of the State Fiscal Accountability Authority
to provide a written opinion. Regulation 19-445.3000(B), a regulation promulgated by the State Fiscal Accountability
Authority, provides that "[t]he authority and responsibilities under Section 11-35-5340 [have been] delegated to the
Materials Management Officer.”

3. Section 11-35-5340 is implemented by a regulation, which reads as follows:
A. Application.
Under Section 11-35-5340, a school district is exempt from the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement
Code (except for a procurement audit) if the District has its own procurement code which is, in the written
opinion of the Division of Procurement Services of the State Fiscal Accountability Authority, substantially
similar to the provisions of the Consolidated Procurement Code and regulations in effect at the time the opinion
is issued.
B. Delegation.
The authority and responsibilities under Section 11-35-5340 are hereby delegated to the Materials
Management Officer.
C. Substantially Similar.
To qualify for approval, a District code should largely mirror, but need not be identical to, the Consolidated
Procurement Code. Because a District code needs only to be substantially similar to the consolidated
procurement code and regulations, a District code may accommodate the differing context of school districts
(e.g., differences between state government and local school district operations, including size, purchasing
staff resources, volume and type of procurements, and structure of its governing body and executive hierarchy)
as long as it preserves the sound procurement policies and practices underlying the rules found in the
consolidated procurement code and regulations.
D. Definitions.
Covered District means a school district subject to the requirements of Section 11-35-5340. Model code means
a model school district procurement code and any subsequent modifications to the model code, including


https://www.procurement.sc.gov/schoolscodes
https://www.procurement.sc.gov/schoolscodes

instructions regarding how each District may customize the model code to an individual District’s
organizational structure.
E. Guidelines, Model Code.
By requiring a written opinion, Section 11-35-5340 provides for an exercise of judgment. The best interest of
the state is served by exercising this judgment in a consistent manner. Accordingly, the Materials Management
Office may publish guidance regarding its exercise of this judgment, including publication of a model code. In
developing a model code, the Materials Management Officer should consult with all covered Districts and the
State Department of Education. Any model should be designed to serve and comply with the purposes and
policies enumerated in Section 11-35-20 in the specific context of local school district operations, with due
regard for minimizing administrative costs of compliance with the model code. Prior to publishing a model
code, the Materials Management Officer must determine in writing that the model code is substantially similar
to the provisions of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and these procurement regulations.
Any school district may adopt the model code.
F. Duration of Written Opinion.
A written opinion issued pursuant to Section 11-35-5340 remains valid for a covered District’s procurement
code until the covered District seeks and receives a written opinion for modifications to its procurement code.
G. Effect of Adoption.
A procurement code adopted by a school district in accordance with all applicable law shall have the full force
and effect of law

23 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 19-445.3000.]

(2) Prior District Rules Superseded. This code and the accompanying procurement regulations supersede
all other prior codes, regulations, ordinances, policies, procedures, or other rules of this District regarding
procurement. To the extent of any conflict, this code and the accompanying procurement regulations take
precedence over any other codes, regulations, ordinances, policies, procedures, or other rules of this
District.

(3) Approval of Code. By letter dated [enter date], the District received a written opinion from the
Division of Procurement Services to the effect that this code and the accompanying procurement regulations
are substantially similar to the provisions of the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and the
regulations promulgated thereunder, as required by Section 11-35-5340 and Regulation 19-445.3000 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws and Regulations.

(4) Updating of Code. The Board intends that this code be updated in conjunction with changes to the
South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder; accordingly,
whenever the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code or the regulations promulgated thereunder
are updated, the Superintendent shall submit conforming updates for approval to both Division of
Procurement Services and the Board of Trustees of the District.

[Model Comments.

1. Function of Comments. Commentary has been added throughout this document to provide cross references with
other laws and to provide assorted helpful information. Model Comments are not intended to be part of the code or
regulation, but rather, are offered only as guidance. These comments will appear in brackets after the section to which
they apply.

2. Public Notice. This code adopts South Carolina Business Opportunities (SCBO) as the standard method of providing
public notice regarding contract opportunities; use of SCBO is mandatory. Publication of a notice in SCBO is free for
school districts. Likewise, SCBO is free for vendors. In addition to publishing notices in SCBO, the District may elect
to also publish notices in any other periodical or publication it deems appropriate.

3. Cross Reference to State Code. This code adopts a numbering system that closely parallels the numbering system
used in the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code and the State Fiscal Accountability Authority’s
Procurement Regulations. This numbering system is maintained in order to promote consolidating, clarifying, and
modernizing the law of procurement in this state, one of the General Assembly's expressly stated goals for the
Procurement Code. § 11-35-20(d). As a resource, the Division of Procurement Services has a document showing
exactly how the model school code differs from the state code. That document is available at the following link:
https://www.procurement.sc.gov/schoolscodes

4. Interplay of Code & Regulations: Rather than adopt a model code that integrates the code and regulations into one
seamless document, this office has chosen to maintain the distinction between a code and separate regulations. Under
state law, statutes and regulations have important differences from one another, and the only way to maintain these
differences is to maintain the distinction by keeping the two separate. Nevertheless, to help explain the interplay of the
two, please see the Official Comment to Section 540. Finally, R.2000A4 provides that (a) to the extent there is conflict

10



between the code and regulations, the code take precedence, and (b) the regulations herein have the same relationship
to the District’s code as regulations promulgated under the administrative procedures act have to statutes enacted by
the General Assembly.

5. Organization Structure & Assignment of Authority: In the state code, responsibilities and authority are assigned
either to specific officials or to an entity in general. For example, the State Fiscal Accountability Authority must grant
exemptions, while an agency head can approve sole source awards. This dispersion of authority is carefully crafted to
maintain the integrity of the procurement process and to limit the use of methods that should be used rarely rather than
routinely. Some of these roles have no ready parallel at the District level. Nevertheless, it is important to assign such
authority in a manner that fosters both integrity and the use of sound procurement practices. In drafting this model,
Division of Procurement Services has used its best efforts to assign responsibility and authority in a manner that
facilitates the purpose behind the structure established by the state code. In order to understand Division of
Procurement Services' approach to this critical issue, please review Attachment B and refer to it as you review this
model.

6. Resources: To assist those seeking additional guidance regarding various procurement issues, the Division of
Procurement Services will post a document showing the differences between the latest version of this model school
code and the South Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code. You can find Division of Procurement Services' website
by clicking on www.procurement.sc.gov]

SECTION 20. Purpose and policies. (S.C. Code § 11-35-20)

(1) This code must be construed and applied to promote underlying purposes and policies.
(2) The underlying purposes and policies of this code are:

(a) to provide increased economy in District procurement activities and to maximize to the fullest
extent practicable the purchasing values of funds while ensuring that procurements are the most
advantageous to the District and in compliance with the provisions of the Ethics Government
Accountability and Campaign Reform Act;

(b) to foster effective broad-based competition for public procurement within the free enterprise
system;

(c) to develop procurement capability responsive to appropriate user needs;

(d) to consolidate, clarify, and modernize the law governing procurement in this District and permit
the continued development of explicit and thoroughly considered procurement policies and practices;

(e) to require the adoption of competitive procurement laws and practices by units of the District;

(f) to ensure the fair and equitable treatment of all persons who deal with the procurement system
which will promote increased public confidence in the procedures followed in public procurement;

(g) to provide safeguards for the maintenance of a procurement system of quality and integrity with
clearly defined rules for ethical behavior on the part of all persons engaged in the public procurement
process;

(h) to develop an efficient and effective means of delegating roles and responsibilities to the District
officials; and

(i) to promote consistency, certainty, and efficiency, it is the intent of the District to have this code
interpreted as consistently as possible with official interpretations of parallel provisions of the South
Carolina Consolidated Procurement Code.

SECTION 25. Supersession of conflicting laws. (S.C. Code § 11-35-25)

If this code applies to a procurement, the provisions of this code supersede all laws or parts of laws in
conflict with it to the extent of the conflict including, but not limited to, the principles of law and equity,
the common law, and the Uniform Commercial Code of this State.

SECTION 30. Obligation of good faith. (S.C. Code § 11-35-30)

Every contract or duty within this code imposes an obligation of good faith in its negotiation, performance
or enforcement. “Good faith” means honesty in fact in the conduct or transaction concerned and the
observance of reasonable commercial standards of fair dealing.

11


http://www.procurement.sc.gov/

SECTION 40. Application of this Code. (S.C. Code § 11-35-40)

(1) General Application. This code applies only to contracts solicited or entered into after the effective
date of this code unless the parties agree to its application to a contract entered into prior to its effective
date.

(2) Application to District Procurement. This code applies to every procurement or expenditure of funds
by this District under contract irrespective of the source of the funds, including federal assistance monies,
except as specified in Section 40(3) (Compliance with Federal Requirements) and except that this code
does not apply to gifts, to the issuance of grants, or to contracts between public procurement units, except
as provided in Article 19 (Intergovernmental Relations). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of
Article 23 (Statewide Provisions) apply as provided therein. It also shall apply to the disposal of District
supplies as provided in Article 15 (Supply Management).

[Model Comment:

1. The last sentence of Section 11-35-40 was added by Section 5 of 2007 Act No. 110. That sentence inapplicable to
school districts, so it is omitted.

2. By its terms, this code is inapplicable to contracts between the District and other public procurement units, except
as provided in Article 19 (Intergovernmental Relations). However, as emphasized by Section 11-35-4810(2), if the
District wants to participate in a cooperative procurement conducted by another public procurement unit, the
procurement must comply with this code and all its procedures. An intergovernmental contract, however, cannot be
used to circumvent the code’s requirements. See § 11-35-4880]

(3) Compliance with Federal Requirements. Where a procurement involves the expenditure of federal
assistance, grant, or contract funds, the District also shall comply with federal laws (including authorized
regulations) as are mandatorily applicable and which are not presently reflected in this code; however,
failure to comply with the foregoing is not subject to review under Article 17. Notwithstanding, where
federal assistance, grant, or contract funds are used in a procurement by the District, this code, including
any requirements that are more restrictive than federal requirements, must be followed, except to the extent
such action would render the District ineligible to receive federal funds whose receipt is conditioned on
compliance with mandatorily applicable federal law. In those circumstances, the solicitation must identify
and explain the impact of such federal laws on the procurement process, including any required deviation
from this code.

(4) The acquisition of a facility or capital improvement by a foundation or eleemosynary organization on
behalf of or for the use of the District which involves the use of public funds in the acquisition, financing,
construction, or current or subsequent leasing of the facility or capital improvement is subject to the
provisions of this code in the same manner as the District. The definition and application of the terms
“acquisition,” “financing,” “construction,” and “leasing” are governed by generally accepted accounting
principles.

[Model Comment: Paragraph (5) of Section 11-35-40 was added by 2008 Act No. 208, which regarded the use of the
Educational Broadband Service spectrum. In light of this Act's purposes and its specific application to Greenville
Technical College and Trident Technical College, this paragraph is deleted as inapplicable to school districts.]

SECTION 45. Payment for goods and services received by District. (S.C. Code § 11-35-45)

(A) The District is responsible for the payment of all supplies, services, or information technology within
thirty work days after the acceptance of the goods or services and proper invoice, whichever is received
later, and shall pay an amount not to exceed fifteen percent per annum, as established by the South Carolina
Comptroller General for state agencies, on any unpaid balance which exceeds the thirty work-day period,
if the vendor specifies on the statement or the invoice submitted to the District that a late penalty is
applicable if not paid within thirty work days after the acceptance of goods or services.

12



(B) The thirty-day period shall not begin until the District certifies its satisfaction with the received goods
or services and proper invoice.

[Model Comment:

1. Reference is made to the South Carolina Comptroller General (CG) because, in the opinion of this office, allowing
Districts to establish their own interest rate is not substantially similar to the Consolidated Procurement Code. On
March 28, 1994, the CG set the interest rate at 6.25%. As of September 2020, that rate has not been changed. The
current interest rate, and the CG's rules regarding application of this section to state agencies, is posted at the following
URL provided below.

2. The CG exempts some late payments from application of this section by effectively establishing an interest rate of
zero. For additional information regarding application of this section, see the “Disbursement Regulations” on the
CG’s website.

SECTION 210. Determinations; exemption. (S.C. Code § 11-35-210)

Written determinations expressly required by the code or regulations must be retained in an official contract
file of the District. These determinations must be documented in sufficient detail to satisfy the requirements
of audit as provided in Section 11-35-1230.

[Model Comment: Section 11-35-1230 has no application to school districts. The applicable audit requirement appears
in Section 11-35-5340.]

SECTION 310. Definitions. (S.C. Code § 11-35-310)

Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:
"Information Technology (IT)" means information resources, telecommunications, and information
services:

(a) "Information resources" means any equipment including interconnected systems or subsystems of
equipment that is used in the automatic acquisition, creation, conversion, duplication, storage, analysis,
evaluation, manipulation, management, movement, control, display, switching, interchange, transmission,
or reception of data or information by the using agency.

(i) "Information resources" includes, but is not limited to, computers, ancillary equipment, including
imaging peripherals, input, output, and storage devices and devices necessary for security and surveillance,
peripheral equipment designed to be controlled by the central processing unit of a computer, databases,
software, firmware, middleware, and application and application development software; whether owned,
leased, licensed, or accessed as a service; and routine maintenance and support.

(i1) "Database" means a collection of recorded information in a form capable of, and for the purpose
of, being stored in, processed, and operated on by a computer.

(ii1) "Software" means computer programs that comprise a series of instructions, rules, routines, or
statements, regardless of the media in which recorded, that allow or cause a computer to perform a specific
operation or series of operations.

(iv) For purposes of this definition, equipment is used by a District if the equipment is used by the
District directly or is used by a contractor under a contract with the District that requires its use.

(b) "Telecommunications" means voice, data, message, and video transmissions, and includes the
transmission and switching facilities of public telecommunications systems, as well as operating and
network software.

(c) "Information Services" means services provided by a contractor associated with any aspect of
information resources or telecommunications, except that information services does not include information
resources or telecommunications.

"Board" means the Board of [Education / Trustees] of [the] School District [No. ] of [Name] County.
"Business" means any corporation, partnership, individual, sole proprietorship, joint stock company,
joint venture, or any other legal entity.

13



"Business day" means a day that is neither a Saturday, Sunday, nor a state or federal holiday.

"Change order" means any written alteration in specifications, delivery point, rate of delivery, period of
performance, price, quantity, or other provisions of any contract accomplished by mutual agreement of the
parties to the contract.

"Chief Business Official" means a District employee, above the level of procurement officer and
reporting directly to the superintendent, designated in writing by the Superintendent as having primary
management responsibility for District business operations or finance. Unless otherwise provided by the
Superintendent, the "Chief Business Official" shall also serve as the "Chief Procurement Officer." The
name and official District title of the person currently serving as the District's chief business official must
be published in the internal procurement procedures issued pursuant to Section 540.

[Model Comment: (1) In order to accommodate Districts with limited staff, the person appointed as the CBO also
serves as the CPO, by default. The preference is to separate these functions by having the Superintendent appoint
different people to each. The intent is to elevate the role of the CBO to a person at least one step removed from the
purchasing office, hopefully more. (2) Unlike the CPO, the CBO is not authorized to delegate authority to others. If the
same person serves both functions, responsibilities assigned to the CBO may not be delegated. Those assigned to the
CPO may be delegated. (3) The wording of this definition is critical and should not be modified. 1t is carefully tied to
numerous decisions regarding how best to adapt the Consolidated Procurement Code to the school district context.)

“Chief procurement officer” means a District employee, above the level of procurement officer,
designated in writing by the Superintendent as having primary management responsibility for supervising
procurement or disposal by the District. The Superintendent may provide for the division or sharing of
duties and powers assigned by this code to the chief procurement officer to more than one person. Unless
otherwise designated in writing by the Superintendent, the chief business official serves as the chief
procurement officer. The name and official District title of the person currently serving as the District's
chief procurement officer must be published in the internal procurement procedures issued pursuant to
Section 540.

[Model Comment: (1) This CPO must be a person above the level of procurement officer and below the level of
superintendent. Preferably someone outside the procurement office. By default, the person serving as the CPO is also
the CBO. While this approach may be necessary for smaller Districts, it tends to undermine the level of independence
the code envisions for a CPO. (2) The District should identify the District's position title for the person serving as the
chief procurement officer in its published internal procurement procedures. See § 540(2). (3) Subject to the
organizational relationship outlined in Comment No. 1 above, a District may elect to have more than one chief
procurement officer. For example, a District may have one chief procurement officer for supplies and services, one for
construction related services, and another for disposal of surplus property.]

“Construction" means the process of building, altering, repairing, remodeling, improving, or demolishing
a public infrastructure facility, including any public structure, public building, or other public improvements
of any kind to real property. It does not include the routine operation, routine repair, or routine maintenance
of an existing public infrastructure facility, including structures, buildings, or real property.

[Model Comment: For a discussion of "routine operation, routine repair, or routine maintenance"” and how to
determine whether an acquisition is one for construction, you may wish to consult with the OSE Manual.]

“Contract” means all types of agreements, regardless of what they may be called, for the procurement or
disposal of supplies, services, information technology, or construction.

“Contract modification” means a written order signed by the procurement officer, directing the contractor
to make changes which the changes clause of the contract authorizes the procurement officer to order
without the consent of the contractor.

“Contractor” means any person having a contract with the District.

“Cost effectiveness” means the ability of a particular product or service to efficiently provide goods or
services to the District. In determining the cost effectiveness of a particular product or service, the

14



procurement officer shall list the relevant factors in the bid notice or solicitation and use only those listed
relevant factors in determining the award.

“Data” means recorded information, regardless of form or characteristics.

“Days” means calendar days. In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed by this code or the
regulations, or by any order of the Procurement Review Panel, the day of the act, event, or default from
which the designated period of time begins to run is not to be included. The last day of the period computed
is to be included, unless it is a Saturday, Sunday, or a legal holiday for the District or federal holiday, in
which event the period runs to the end of the next day which is neither a Saturday, Sunday, nor such holiday.

“Debarment” means the disqualification of a person to receive invitations for bids, or requests for
proposals, or the award of a contract by the District, for a specified period of time commensurate with the
seriousness of the offense or the failure or inadequacy of performance.

“Designee” means a duly authorized representative of a person with formal responsibilities under the
code.

"District" means [insert full name of school district].

“Employee” means an individual drawing a salary from the District, whether elected or not, and any
nonsalaried individual performing personal services for the District.

“Grant” means the furnishing by the District, State or the United States government of assistance,
whether financial or otherwise, to a person to support a program authorized by law. It does not include an
award, the primary purpose of which is to procure specified end products, whether in the form of supplies,
services, information technology, or construction. A contract resulting from such an award must not be
considered a grant but a procurement contract.

“Invitation for bids” means a written or published solicitation issued by an authorized procurement
officer for bids to contract for the procurement or disposal of District supplies, services, information
technology, or construction, which will ordinarily result in the award of the contract to the responsible
bidder making the lowest responsive bid.

"Person" means any business, individual, union, committee, club, other organization, or group of
individuals.

"Procurement” means buying, purchasing, renting, leasing, or otherwise acquiring any supplies, services,
information technology, or construction. It also includes all functions that pertain to the obtaining of any
supply, service, information technology, or construction, including description of requirements, selection,
and solicitation of sources, preparation and award of contracts, and all phases of contract administration.

“Procurement officer” means any person duly authorized by the District, in accordance with procedures
prescribed by regulation, to enter into and administer contracts and make written determinations and
findings with respect thereto. The term also includes an authorized representative of the governmental body
within the scope of his authority.

“Public funds” means any money or property owned by the State or a political subdivision thereof,
regardless of form and whether in specie or otherwise.

“Real property” means any land, all things growing on or attached thereto, and all improvements made
thereto including buildings and structures located thereon.

“Request for proposals (RFP)” means a written or published solicitation issued by an authorized
procurement officer for proposals to provide supplies, services, information technology, or construction
which ordinarily result in the award of the contract to the responsible offeror making the proposal
determined to be most advantageous to the District. The award of the contract must be made on the basis
of evaluation factors that must be stated in the RFP.

“Services” means the furnishing of labor, time, or effort by a contractor not required to deliver a specific
end product, other than reports which are merely incidental to required performance. This term includes
consultant services other than architectural, engineering, land surveying, construction management, and
related services. This term does not include employment agreements or information services as defined
above.

“Subcontractor” means any person having a contract to perform work or render service to a prime
contractor as a part of the prime contractor’s agreement with the District.

15



“Supplies” means all personal property including, but not limited to, equipment, materials, printing, and
insurance.

“State” means state government.

“State Engineer” means the person holding the position as head of the state engineer’s office.

"Superintendent" means the District's chief executive official, usually known as the Superintendent.

“Suspension” means the disqualification of a person to receive invitations for bids, requests for proposals,
or the award of a contract by the District, for a temporary period pending the completion of an investigation
and any legal proceedings that may ensue because a person is suspected upon probable cause of engaging
in criminal, fraudulent, or seriously improper conduct or failure or inadequacy of performance which may
lead to debarment.

[Drafting Note: The definition of "Term Contract" has no application to school districts.]
SECTION 410. Public access to procurement information. (S.C. Code § 11-35-410)

(A) Procurement information must be a public record to the extent required by Chapter 4, Title 30 (The
Freedom of Information Act), except as otherwise provided by this code, and with the exception that,
pursuant to the authority granted by Section 11-35-5340 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, commercial
or financial information obtained in response to a request for proposals or any type of bid solicitation that
is privileged and confidential need not be disclosed.

[Model Comment: (1) The South Carolina Freedom of Information Act applies to school districts. (2) The added
language reflects the argument that the District code, as a document expressly sanctioned by state law, can be read as
an extra "exemption" from the disclosure obligation of FOIA, just as Section 11-35-410 creates an exemption. See
D.W. Flowe & Sons, Inc. v. Christopher Const. Co., 327 S.C. 17,482 S.E.2d 558 (1997), overruled on other grounds
by Evins v. Richland County Historic Preservation Comm’n, 341 S.C. 15, 532 S.E.2d 876 (2000)]

(B) Privileged and confidential information is information in specific detail not customarily released to
the general public, the release of which might cause harm to the competitive position of the party supplying
the information. Examples of this type of information include:

(1) customer lists;

(2) design recommendations and identification of prospective problem areas under an RFP;
(3) design concepts, including methods and procedures;

(4) biographical data on key employees of the bidder.

(C) For all documents submitted in response or with regard to a solicitation or other request, the
documents need not be disclosed if an award is not made.

(D) For all documents submitted in response or with regard to any solicitation or other request, the person
submitting the documents shall comply with instructions provided in the solicitation for marking
information exempt from public disclosure. Information not marked as required by the applicable
instructions may be disclosed to the public.

[Model Comment: Division of Procurement Services has published a standard set of bidding instructions for state
agencies regarding how offerors should mark their bids and offers. Those instructions are available at
www.procurement.sc.gov.]

(E) The District, with the approval of the chief procurement officer, may keep portions of a solicitation
confidential and release the information to prospective offerors only upon execution of a nondisclosure
agreement, provided the information is otherwise exempted from disclosure by law.

(F) If requested in writing before a final award by an actual bidder, offeror, contractor, or subcontractor
with regard to a specific intended award or award of a contract, the procurement officer shall, within five
days of the receipt of any such request, make documents directly connected to the procurement activity and
not otherwise exempt from disclosure available for inspection at an office of the responsible procurement
officer. Without otherwise limiting any other exemptions granted by law, and except as provided herein,

16



documents of and documents incidental to proposed contractual arrangements, including those used for
contract negotiations, are not exempt from disclosure after the date notice of intent to award is posted,
unless the notice is subsequently canceled.

[Model Comment: Obligating procurement officers to respond to document requests within five days helps to
ameliorate the consequences of the short deadlines in Section 4210 and helps ensure that an interested party may
review relevant materials in a timely matter. This section also provides that the FOIA exemption dealing with proposed
contractual relations does not apply after the date of the notice of intent to award is posted, unless the notice is
subsequently cancelled.]

SECTION 450. Reporting purchases. (S.C. Code § 11-35-450)

(A) The purchase of furniture, floor coverings, wall coverings, or other decorative or ornamental items
by the District must be reported to the Board before the purchase, when the cost of the furniture, covering,
or item exceeds one thousand dollars and it is to be used in:

(1) an office or adjoining reception area utilized by the Superintendent or assistant Superintendent; or
(2) aboard room or a conference room used as a board room.

(B) The reports required in subsection (A) must include the item to be purchased and its price. Upon

receiving the reports, the Board formally shall approve or disapprove the purchase.

ARTICLE 3.
PROCUREMENT ORGANIZATION
SECTION 510. Centralization of materials management authority. (S.C. Code § 11-35-510)

Except as otherwise provided herein, all rights, powers, duties, and authority of the District relating to the
procurement of supplies, services, information technology, and construction and to the management,
control, warehousing, sale and disposal of supplies, construction, information technology, and services,
regardless of source of funding, are hereby delegated to the chief procurement officer by the Board.

SECTION 540. Authority and duties of the board. (S.C. Code § 11-35-540)

(1) Regulations. The District's procurement regulations, which are adopted in conjunction with this code,
are binding in all procurements made by the District; provided, however, that the code takes precedence
over the regulations to the extent of any conflict between them. The procurement regulations shall have the
same relationship to this code as regulations promulgated under the administrative procedures act have to
statutes enacted by the General Assembly.

[Model Comment: South Carolina courts have explained the relationship between statutes and regulations as follows:
Regulations authorized by the legislature have the force of law. Faile v. S.C. Employment Security Commission, 230
S.E.2d 219 (S.C. 1976). However, a regulation may not alter or add to a statute. U.S. Qutdoor Advertising, Inc. v.
South Carolina Dept. of Transp., 481 S.E.2d 112, 113 (S.C. 1997). As stated by our Supreme Court in 1943, "a rule
cannot be made by an administrative body which would materially alter or add to the law; a rule to be valid may only
implement the law." Banks v. Batesburg Hauling Co., 24 S.E.2d 496, 499 (S.C. 1943).]

(2) Approval of Procurement Procedures. The District shall develop internal procurement procedures
consistent with this code and the procurement regulations; except, that the procurement procedures must be
approved in writing by the Superintendent.

[Model Comment: The following list identifies most of the items that must appear in such procedures:

o § 310 — the name and official District title of the people that serve as CBO and CPO
a § 710 — exemptions granted by the Board

17



a § 1520(3) — identify newspaper of general circulation (if elected by District's board)
a § 3030(1)(a) — extra circumstances requiring bid security

O R. 2145 — forms: contract, bond, letters of credit, guarantees

O R. 2145(K)(5) — guidelines for proposal development docs]

(3) The board shall consider and decide matters of policy within the provisions of this code including
those referred to it by the chief procurement officers. The board has the power to audit and monitor the
implementation of its regulations and the requirements of this code.

SECTION 710. Exemptions. (S.C. Code § 11-35-710)

The Board may exempt specific supplies, services, information technology, or construction from the
purchasing procedures required in this code. Exemptions granted by the Board shall appear in any internal
operating protocols or procedures adopted pursuant to Section 540.

[Model Comment:

(1) At the state level, exemptions granted by the State Fiscal Accountability Authority do not form part of the
Consolidated Procurement Code. Similarly, exemptions granted by a school board may not be included in the District's
procurement code. A District may wish to include such exemptions in the District's internal operating protocols or
procedures adopted pursuant to Section 540.

(2) Any exemption from a District's procurement code must be approved by the Board through an act of equal dignity.

Such exemptions cannot be approved simply by including them in the procedures adopted under Section 540.

(3) Pursuant to Section 11-35-710, the Division of Procurement Services must approve the District's procurement code
as substantially similar to the Consolidated Procurement Code. Given this limitation, Division of Procurement Services
cannot approve exemptions other than those appearing in Section 11-35-710 of the Consolidated Procurement Code.

Accordingly, Districts are encouraged to adopt the Section 710 as it appears in this model. However, Division of
Procurement Services will approve a version of Section 710 that mirrors Section 11-35-710.

(4) Division of Procurement Services will not offer a written opinion approving or disapproving a school board's
exemptions. The determination of which procurements should be exempt belongs to the elected officials. See, generally,

Glasscock Company, Inc. v. Sumter County, 361 S.C. 483, 604 S.E.2d 718 (Ct. App. 2004) (rejecting argument that 11-
35-50 (now 11-35-5320) prevents local government from exercising the flexibility provided to the state by section 11-
35-710). Caveat: Division of Procurement Services advises school districts to avoid granting excessive or overly broad
exemptions. At some point, exemptions could so undermine the purposes of the law as to be inconsistent with the
General Assembly's mandates in Sections 11-35-5320 and 11-35-5340. As part of its approval process, Division of
Procurement Services offers no official opinion as to individual exemptions.

(5) Since 1981, the South Carolina Budget & Control Board and the State Fiscal Accountability Authority have granted
a number of exemptions for state agencies. A comprehensive list of the currently available exemptions is available at
the following URL: www.procurement.sc.gov |

SECTION 840. Delegation of authority. (S.C. Code § 11-35-840)

Subject to this code and the regulations, the chief procurement officers may delegate authority to designees.
A delegation of authority by the chief procurement officers must be in writing and available upon request
by the public to the chief procurement officer.

[Model Comment: The Consolidated Procurement Code creates three chief procurement officers with broad, statewide
authority. These officials work for an agency other than the using agency, giving them both a high level of independence
and substantial authority. School districts have no easy parallel to the state's CPOs. At best, their powers can be
divided between different school officials, such as the District superintendent, the school board, and the school’s
procurement staff. Accordingly, this provision is drafted to apply only to a CPO.]

SECTION 1030. Procurement training and certification. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1030)

The chief procurement officers develop a system of training for procurement in accordance with
regulations. The training must encompass the latest techniques and methods of public procurement. If
considered appropriate by the chief procurement officers, the training must include a requirement for the
certification of the procurement officer of the District.

18


http://www.procurement.sc.gov/

SECTION 1250. Authority to contract for auditing services. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1250)

No contract for auditing or accounting services shall be awarded without the approval of the Board.
[Alternative Text: In the alternative, Districts may specify the Superintendent as the official appropriate to
approve such contracts. If the District uses alternative language, the alternative text must also be used for
R. 2025(E).]

SECTION 1260. Authority to contract for legal services. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1260)

No contract for the services of attorneys shall be awarded without the approval of the Board.

[Alternative Text: In the alternative, Districts may specify the Superintendent as the official appropriate to
approve such contracts. If the District uses alternative language, the alternative text must also be used for
R. 2025D.]

ARTICLE 5.
SOURCE SELECTION AND CONTRACT FORMATION
SECTION 1410. Definitions of terms used in this article. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1410)

Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) “"Commercial product" means supplies, other than printing, or information resources:

(a) that is of a type customarily used by the general public and that has been sold, leased, or licensed
to the general public;

(b) that would satisfy the criteria in subitem (a) were it not for modifications of a type customarily
available in the commercial marketplace, or minor modifications made to meet state requirements; or

(c) that is a combination of products meeting the requirements of subitem (a) or (b) that are of a type
customarily combined and sold in combination to the general public.

(2) "Commercially available off-the-shelf product" means supplies, other than printing, or information
resources: that is a commercial product, as defined herein, that is sold in substantial quantities in the
commercial marketplace; and is offered to the State, without modification, in the same form in which it is
sold in the commercial marketplace. It does not include agricultural products, petroleum products, and other
items customarily sold in bulk.

(3) "Cost-reimbursement contract” means a contract under which a contractor is reimbursed for costs
which are allowable and allocable in accordance with the contract terms and the provisions of this code,
and paid a fee, if any.

(4) "Established catalog price” means the price included in a catalog, price list, schedule, or other form
that:

(a) is regularly maintained by a manufacturer or vendor of an item;

(b) is either published or otherwise available for inspection by customers;

(c) states prices at which sales are currently or were last made to a significant number of buyers
constituting the general buying public for the supplies, services, or information technology involved.

(5) “Invitation for bids” means all documents, whether attached or incorporated by reference, utilized for
soliciting bids in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 1520.

(6) "Purchase description” means specifications or other document describing the supplies, services,
information technology, or construction to be procured.

(7) "Request for proposals” means all documents, whether attached or incorporated by reference, utilized
for soliciting proposals.

19



(8) "Responsible bidder or offeror” means a person who has the capability in all respects to perform fully
the contract requirements and the integrity and reliability which will assure good faith performance which
may be substantiated by past performance.

(9) "Responsive bidder or offeror” means a person who has submitted a bid or proposal which conforms
in all material aspects to the invitation for bids or request for proposals.

SECTION 1510. Methods of source selection. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1510)

Unless otherwise provided by law, all District contracts must be awarded by competitive sealed bidding,
pursuant to Section 1520, except as provided in:

(1) Section 1250 (Authority to Contract for Auditing Services);

(2) Section 1260 (Authority to Contract for Legal Services);

(3) Section 1525 (Fixed Priced Bidding);

(4) Section 1528 (Competitive Best Value Bidding);

(5) Section 1529 (Competitive Online Bidding);

(6) Section 1530 (Competitive Sealed Proposals);

(7) Section 1540 (Negotiations After Unsuccessful Competitive Sealed Bidding);

(8) Section 1550 (Small Purchases);

(9) Section 1560 (Sole Source Procurements);

(10) Section 1570 (Emergency Procurements);

(11) Section 1575 (Participation in Auction or Bankruptcy Sale);

(12) (Reserved)

(13) Section 3015 (Source Selection Methods Assigned to Project Delivery Methods);

(14) Section 3220 (Architect Engineer, Construction Management and Land Surveying Services

Procurement Procedures); and

(15) Section 3230 (Exception for Small Architect-Engineer and Land Surveying Services Contracts).

SECTION 1520. Competitive sealed bidding. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1520)

(1) Condition for Use. Contracts must be awarded by competitive sealed bidding except as otherwise
provided in Section 1510.

(2) Invitation for Bids. An invitation for bids must be issued in an efficient and economical manner and
must include specifications and all contractual terms and conditions applicable to the procurement.

(3) Notice. Adequate notice of the invitation for bids must be given at a reasonable time before the date
set forth in it for the opening of bids. The notice must include publications in “South Carolina Business
Opportunities.” Governmental bodies may charge vendors the cost incurred for copying and mailing bid
or proposal documents requested in response to a procurement.

[Alternative Text: Districts are advised that, except for some procurements for COTS or construction, the
Consolidated Procurement Code requires advertisement in South Carolina Business Opportunities for all
procurements valued above $25,000. See S.C. Code § 11-35-1550. Nevertheless, if requested, Division of
Procurement Services will approve the following language in lieu of the second sentence above:

"The notice must include publications in the newspaper of general circulation, as selected by the Board
and identified in the District's internal procurement procedures (§ 540) and should include publications in
'South Carolina Business Opportunities.’ For a procurement with a total potential value over two hundred
and fifty thousand dollars, the notice must include publications in ‘South Carolina Business Opportunities.’
The District may give additional or wider public notice in any other media."

If the District uses the alternative language, the alternative text for R. 2040 must also be used. ]

20



[Model Comment: Cross reference Section 1550 and Section 3020.]

(4) Receipt and Safeguarding of Bids. All bids, including modifications, received before the time of
opening must be kept secure and unopened, except as provided by regulation.

(5) Bid Opening. Bids must be opened publicly in the presence of one or more witnesses, at the time and
place designated in the invitation for bids and in the manner prescribed by regulation. The amount of each
bid, and other relevant information as may be specified by regulation, together with the name of each bidder,
must be tabulated. The tabulation must be open to public inspection at that time.

(6) Bid Acceptance and Bid Evaluation. Bids must be accepted unconditionally without alteration or
correction, except as otherwise authorized in this code. The invitation for bids must set forth the evaluation
criteria to be used. Criteria must not be used in bid evaluation that are not in the invitation for bids. Bids
must be evaluated based on the requirements in the invitation for bids and in accordance with the
regulations.

(7) Correction or Withdrawal of Bids; Cancellation of Awards. Correction or withdrawal of inadvertently
erroneous bids before or after award, or cancellation and re-award of awards or contracts, after award but
before performance, may be permitted in accordance with regulations. After bid opening, changes in bid
prices or other provisions of bids prejudicial to the interest of the District or fair competition must not be
permitted. After opening, bids must not be corrected or withdrawn except in accordance with the provisions
of this code and the regulations. Except as otherwise provided by regulation, all decisions to permit the
correction or withdrawal of bids, or to cancel awards or contracts, after award but before performance, must
be supported by a written determination of appropriateness made by the chief business official.

[Model Comment: (1) The authority granted in this paragraph must be exercised in compliance with Regulation 2085.
(2) The authority to cancel awards or contracts after award but prior to performance is tantamount to revoking a
contract and should not be used as a normal administrative solution to defective procurement practices. After opening,
the correction or withdrawal of bids can undermine the integrity of the procurement process. Given these concerns,
such authority should be exercised by an official one step removed from procurement. Accordingly, this section places
the final authority over these actions with the chief business official.]

(8) Reserved.

[Model Comment: “Discussions” with bidders is no longer part of Section 1520. In the past, this section was often
applied inconsistently, and this inconsistent application frustrated the purpose of this Code when it was used to allow
non-responsive bidders to cure their bids through discussions.]

(9) Tie Bids. If two or more bidders are tied in price while otherwise meeting all of the required
conditions, awards are determined in the following order of priority:

(a) If there is a South Carolina firm tied with an out-of-state firm, the award must be made
automatically to the South Carolina firm.

(b) Tie bids involving South Carolina produced or manufactured products, when known, and items
produced or manufactured out of the State must be resolved in favor of the South Carolina commodity.

(¢) Tie bids involving a business certified by the South Carolina Office of Small and Minority Business
Assistance as a Minority Business Enterprise must be resolved in favor of the Minority Business Enterprise.

(d) Tie bids involving South Carolina firms must be resolved in favor of the South Carolina firm
located in the District.

(e) In all other situations in which bids are tied, the award must be made to the tied bidder offering the
quickest delivery time, or if the tied bidders have offered the same delivery time, the tie must be resolved
by the flip of a coin witnessed by the procurement officer. All responding vendors must be invited to attend.

(10) Award. Unless there is a compelling reason to reject bids as prescribed by regulation, notice of an
award or an intended award of a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidders whose bid meets
the requirements set forth in the invitation for bids must be given by posting the notice on the date and at a
location specified in the invitation for bids. For contracts with a total or potential value in excess of one
hundred thousand dollars, notice of an intended award of a contract must be given by posting the notice for

21



seven business days before entering into a contract and must be sent electronically to all bidders responding
to the solicitation on the same day that the notice is posted in accordance with this section. The posting date
shall appear on the face of all these notices. If a change to the posting date is necessary, notice of the revised
posting date must be given by posting the notice for three business days at the location identified in the
solicitation and must be sent electronically to all bidders responding to the solicitation on the same day that
the notice is posted in accordance with this section. The invitation for bids and a notice of award or notice
of intent to award must contain a statement of a bidder's right to protest pursuant to Section 4210(1). When
only one response is received, the notice of intent to award and the delay of award may be waived.

[Model Comment: Regarding reject of bids or proposals, cross reference Regulation 2065 and 2097.]

(11) Request for Qualifications.

(a) Before soliciting bids, the procurement officer, may issue a request for qualifications from
prospective bidders. The request must contain, at a minimum, a description of the scope of work to be
solicited by the invitation for bids, the deadline for submission of information, and how prospective bidders
may apply for consideration. The request must require information concerning the prospective bidders’
product specifications, qualifications, experience, and ability to perform the requirements of the contract.
Adequate public notice of the request for qualifications must be given in the manner provided in Section
152003).

(b) After receipt of the responses to the request for qualifications from prospective bidders, the rank
of the prospective bidders must be determined in writing from most qualified to least qualified on the basis
of the information provided. Bids then must be solicited from at least the top two prospective bidders by
means of an invitation for bids. The determination regarding how many bids to solicit is not subject to
review under Article 17.

(12) (Reserved)

(13) Minor Informalities and Irregularities in Bids. A minor informality or irregularity is one which is
merely a matter of form or is some immaterial variation from the exact requirements of the invitation for
bids having no effect or merely a trivial or negligible effect on total bid price, quality, quantity, or delivery
of the supplies or performance of the contract, and the correction or waiver of which would not be
prejudicial to bidders. The procurement officer shall either give the bidder an opportunity to cure any
deficiency resulting from a minor informality or irregularity in a bid or waive any such deficiency when it
is to the advantage of the District. Such communication or determination shall be in writing. Examples of
minor informalities or irregularities include, but are not limited to:

(a) failure of a bidder to return the number of copies of signed bids required by the solicitation;

(b) failure of a bidder to furnish the required information concerning the number of the bidder’s
employees or failure to make a representation concerning its size;

(c) failure of a bidder to sign its bid, but only if the firm submitting the bid has formally adopted or
authorized the execution of documents by typewritten, printed, or rubber stamped signature and submits
evidence of that authorization, and the bid carries that signature or the unsigned bid is accompanied by
other material indicating the bidder’s intention to be bound by the unsigned document, such as the
submission of a bid guarantee with the bid or a letter signed by the bidder with the bid referring to and
identifying the bid itself;

(d) failure of a bidder to acknowledge receipt of an amendment to a solicitation, but only if:

(i) the bid received indicates in some way that the bidder received the amendment, such as where
the amendment added another item to the solicitation and the bidder submitted a bid, on it, if the bidder
states under oath that it received the amendment before bidding and that the bidder will stand by its bid
price; or

(i1) the amendment has no effect on price or quantity or merely a trivial or negligible effect on
quality or delivery, and is not prejudicial to bidders, such as an amendment correcting a typographical
mistake in the name of the District;

(e) failure of a bidder to furnish an affidavit concerning affiliates;

22



(f) failure of a bidder to execute the certifications with respect to equal opportunity and affirmative
action programs;

(g) failure of a bidder to furnish cut sheets or product literature;

(h) failure of a bidder to furnish certificates of insurance;

(i) failure of a bidder to furnish financial statements;

(j) failure of a bidder to furnish references;

(k) failure of a bidder to furnish its bidder number; and

(1) notwithstanding Title 40 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, the failure of a bidder to indicate his
contractor’s license number or other evidence of licensure, except that a contract must not be awarded to
the bidder unless and until the bidder is properly licensed under the laws of South Carolina.

SECTION 1524. Resident vendor preference. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1524)

(A) For purposes of this section:

(1) ‘End product’ means the tangible product described in the solicitation including all component
parts and in final form and ready for the District's intended use.

(2) ‘Grown’ means to produce, cultivate, raise, or harvest timber, agricultural produce, or livestock on
the land, or to cultivate, raise, catch, or harvest products or food from the water which results in an end
product that is locally derived from the product cultivated, raised, caught, or harvested.

(3) ‘Labor cost’ means salary and fringe benefits.

(4) ‘Made’ means to assemble, fabricate, or process component parts into an end product, the value of
which, assembly, fabrication, or processing is a substantial portion of the price of the end product.

(5) ‘Manufactured’ means to make or process raw materials into an end product.

(6) ‘Office’ means a nonmobile place for the regular transaction of business or performance of a
particular service which has been operated as such by the bidder for at least one year before the bid opening
and during that year the place has been staffed for at least fifty weeks by at least two employees for at least
thirty five hours a week each.

(7) ‘Services’ means services as defined by Section 310 and also includes services as defined in the
definition of Information Technology.

(8) ‘South Carolina end product’ means an end product made, manufactured, or grown in South
Carolina.

(9) ‘United States end product’ means an end product made, manufactured, or grown in the United
States of America.

(B)(1) When evaluating pricing for purposes of making an award determination, the procurement officer
shall decrease by seven percent the price of any offer for a South Carolina end product.

(2) When evaluating pricing for purposes of making an award determination, the procurement officer
shall decrease by two percent the price of any offer for a United States end product. This preference does
not apply to an item to which the South Carolina end product preference has been applied.

(3) Whether award is to be made by item or lot, the preferences must be applied to the price of each
line item of end product. A preference must not be applied to an item for which a bidder does not qualify.

(4) If a contract is awarded to a bidder that received the award as a result of the South Carolina end
product or United States end product preference, the contractor may not substitute a nonqualifying end
product for a qualified end product. A substitution in violation of this item is grounds for debarment
pursuant to Section 4220. If a contractor violates this provision, the District may terminate the contract for
cause and, in addition, the contractor shall pay to the District an amount equal to twice the difference
between the price paid by the District and the bidder’s evaluated price for a substituted item.

(5) If a bidder is requesting this preference, the bidder, upon request of the procurement officer, must
provide documentation that establishes the bidder’s qualifications for the preference. Bidder’s failure to
provide this information promptly is grounds to deny the preference and for enforcement pursuant to
subsection (E)(6).

23



(C)(1) When evaluating pricing for purposes of making an award determination, the procurement officer
shall decrease a bidder’s price by seven percent if the bidder maintains an office in this State and either: (i)
maintains at a location in South Carolina at the time of the bid an inventory of expendable items which are
representative of the general type of commodities on which the award will be made and which have a
minimum total value, based on the bid price, equal to the lesser of fifty thousand dollars or the annual
amount of the contract; (ii) is a manufacturer headquartered and having an annual payroll of at least one
million dollars in South Carolina and the end product is made or processed from raw materials into a
finished end product by that manufacturer or its affiliate (as defined in Section 1563 of the Internal Revenue
Code); or (iii) at the time of bidding, directly employs or has a documented commitment with individuals
domiciled in South Carolina that will perform services expressly required by the solicitation and the total
direct labor cost to bidder for those individuals to provide those services exceeds fifty percent of the bidder’s
total bid price.

(2) Whether award is to be made by item or lot, the preferences must be applied to the price of each
line item of end product or work, as applicable. A preference must not be applied to an item for which a
bidder does not qualify.

(3) If a bidder is requesting this preference, the bidder, upon request by the procurement officer, must
provide documentation that establishes the bidder’s qualifications for the preference and, for the preference
claimed pursuant to subsection (C)(1)(iii), must identify the persons domiciled in South Carolina that will
perform the services involved in the procurement upon which bidder relies in qualifying for the preference,
the services those individuals are to perform, and documentation of the bidder’s labor cost for each person
identified. Bidder’s failure to provide this information promptly is grounds to deny the preference and for
enforcement under subsection (E)(6) below.

(D)(1) When evaluating pricing for purposes of making an award determination, the procurement officer
shall decrease a bidder’s price by two percent if:

(a) the bidder has a documented commitment from a single proposed first tier subcontractor to
perform some portion of the services expressly required by the solicitation; and

(b) at the time of the bidding, the subcontractor directly employs or has a documented commitment
with individuals domiciled in South Carolina that will perform services expressly required by the
solicitation and the total direct labor cost to the subcontractor for those individuals to provide those services
exceeds twenty percent of bidder’s total bid price.

(2) When evaluating pricing for purposes of making an award determination, the procurement officer
shall decrease a bidder’s price by four percent if:

(a) the bidder has a documented commitment from a single proposed first tier subcontractor to
perform some portion of the services expressly required by the solicitation; and

(b) at the time of the bidding, the subcontractor directly employs or has a documented commitment
with individuals domiciled in South Carolina that will perform services expressly required by the
solicitation and the total direct labor cost to the subcontractor for those individuals to provide those services
exceeds forty percent of bidder’s total bid price.

(3) Whether award is to be made by item or lot, the preferences must be applied to the price of each
line item of work. A preference must not be applied to an item for which a bidder does not qualify.

(4) Subject to other limits in this section, an offeror may benefit from applying for more than one of,
or from multiple applications of, the preferences allowed by items (1) and (2).

(5)(a) In its bid, a bidder requesting any of the preferences allowed by items (1) and (2) must identify
the subcontractor to perform the work, the work the subcontractor is to perform, and the bidder’s factual
basis for concluding that the subcontractor’s work constitutes the required percentage of the work to be
performed in the procurement.

(b) If a bidder is requesting a preference allowed by items (1) or (2), upon request by the
procurement officer, the bidder shall identify the persons domiciled in South Carolina that are to perform
the services involved in the procurement upon which the bidder relies in qualifying for the preference, the
services those individuals are to perform, the employer of those persons, the bidder’s relationship with the
employer, and documentation of the subcontractor’s labor cost for each person identified. Bidder’s failure

24



to provide this information promptly will be grounds to deny the preference and for enforcement pursuant
to subsection (E)(6) below.

(c) If a contract is awarded to a bidder that received the award as a result of a preference allowed by
items (1) or (2), the contractor may not substitute any business for the subcontractor on which the bidder
relied to qualify for the preference, unless first approved in writing by the procurement officer. A
substitution in violation of this subitem is grounds for debarment pursuant to Section 11-35-4220. If a
contractor violates this provision, the procurement officer may terminate the contract for cause. If the
contract is not terminated, the procurement officer may require the contractor to pay the State an amount
equal to twice the difference between the price paid by the State and the price offered by the next lowest
bidder, unless the substituted subcontractor qualifies for the preference.

(E)(1) A business is not entitled to any preferences unless the business, to the extent required by law,
has:

(a) paid all taxes assessed by the State; and

(b) registered with the South Carolina Secretary of State and the South Carolina Department of
Revenue.

(2) The preferences provided in subsections (B) and (C)(1)(i) and (ii) do not apply to a single unit of
an item with a price in excess of fifty thousand dollars or a single award with a total potential value in
excess of five hundred thousand dollars.

(3) The preferences provided in subsections (C)(1)(iii) and (D) do not apply to a bid for an item of
work by the bidder if the annual price of the bidder’s work exceeds fifty thousand dollars or the total
potential price of the bidder’s work exceeds five hundred thousand dollars.

(4) A solicitation must provide potential bidders an opportunity to request the preferences that apply
to a procurement. By submitting a bid and requesting that a preference be applied to that bid, a business
certifies that its bid qualifies for the preference for that procurement. For purposes of applying this section,
a bidder is not qualified for a preference unless the bidder makes a request for the preference as required in
the solicitation. If a solicitation specifies which preferences, if any, apply to a procurement, the applicability
of preferences to that procurement is conclusively determined by the solicitation unless the solicitation
document is timely protested as provided in Section 4210. If two or more bidders are tied after the
application of the preferences allowed by this section, the tie must be resolved as provided in Section
1520(9). Price adjustments required by this section for purposes of evaluation and application of the
preferences do not change the actual price offered by the bidder.

(5) This section does not apply to an acquisition of motor vehicles as defined in Section 56-15-10 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws or an acquisition of supplies or services relating to construction. This
section does not apply to a procurement conducted pursuant to Section 1550(2)(a) or (b), Section 1530, or
Article 9 of this code.

[Model Comment: In addition to the exclusions provided here, see 1529(4), which provides that the preferences do not
apply to reverse auctions.)

(6) Pursuant to Section 4220, a business may be debarred if: (i) the business certified that it qualified
for a preference, (ii) the business is not qualified for the preference claimed, and (iii) the certification was
made in bad faith or under false pretenses. If a contractor has invalidly certified that a preference is
applicable, the chief business official may terminate the contract for cause, and the chief business official
may require the contractor to pay the District an amount equal to twice the difference between the price
paid by the District and the price offered by the next lowest bidder.

(7) The sum of all preferences allowed by items (D)(1) and (D)(2), when applied to the price of a line
item of work, may not exceed six percent unless the bidder maintains an office in this State. Under no
circumstances may the cumulative preferences applied to the price of a line item exceed ten percent.

(8) As used in items (C)(1)(iii), (D)(1)(b), and (D)(2)(b), the term ‘documented commitment’ means
a written commitment by the bidder to employ directly an individual, and by the individual to be employed
by the bidder, both contingent on the bidder receiving the award.

25



(9) The remedies available in this section are cumulative of and in addition to all other remedies
available at law and equity.

SECTION 1525. Competitive fixed price bidding. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1525)

(1) Conditions for Use. When the District determines in writing that the use of competitive sealed bidding
is either not practicable or not advantageous to the District, a contract may be entered into by competitive
fixed price bidding subject to the provisions of Section 1520 and the regulations, unless otherwise provided
for in this section.

(2) Fixed Price Bidding. The purpose of fixed price bidding is to provide multiple sources of supply for
specific services, supplies, or information technology based on a preset maximum price which the District
will pay for such services, supplies, or information technology.

(3) Public Notice. Adequate public notice of the solicitation shall be given in the same manner as
provided in Section 1520(3).

(4) Pricing. The District shall establish, before issuance of the fixed price bid, a maximum amount the
District will pay for the services, supplies, or information technology desired.

(5) Evaluation. Vendors’ responses to the fixed price bid will be reviewed to determine if they are
responsive and responsible.

(6) Reserved.

(7) Award. Award must be made to all responsive and responsible bidders to the District’s request for
competitive fixed price bidding. The contract file shall contain the basis on which the award is made and
must be sufficient to satisfy external audit.

(8) Bids Received After Award. As provided in the solicitation, bidders not responding to the initial
fixed price bid may be added to the awarded vendors' list provided the bidder furnishes evidence of
responsibility and responsiveness to the District’s original fixed price bid as required by the solicitation.

[Model Comment: The deletion of Section 1525(9) may not be interpreted as an indication that the failure of a specific
offeror to receive business is grounds for a dispute. See Editor’s Note to § 11-35-1525(9) of the South Carolina
Procurement Code, Act41 of 2019.]

SECTION 1528. Competitive best value bidding. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1528)

(1) Conditions for Use. When the District determines in writing that the use of competitive sealed bidding
is either not practicable or not advantageous to the District, a contract may be entered into by competitive
best value bidding subject to the provisions of Section 1520 and the regulations, unless otherwise provided
for in this section.

(2) Best Value Bidding. The purpose of best value bidding is to allow factors other than price to be
considered in the determination of award for specific supplies, services, or information technology based
on pre-determined criteria identified by the District.

(3) Public Notice. Adequate public notice of the request for the solicitation shall be given in the same
manner as provided in Section 1520(3).

(4) Bid Opening. At bid opening, the only information that will be released is the names of the
participating bidders. Price information will be provided after the ranking of bidders and the issuance of
award.

(5) Evaluation Factors. The best value bid must state the factors to be used in determination of award and
the numerical weighting for each factor. Price must be a factor in determination of award and cannot be
weighted at less than sixty percent. Best value bid evaluation factors may include, but are not limited to,
any of the following:

(a) operational costs the District would incur if the bid is accepted,
(b) quality of the product or service or its technical competency;

26



(c) reliability of delivery and implementation schedules;

(d) maximum facilitation of data exchange and systems integration;

(e) warranties, guarantees, and return policy;

(f) vendor financial stability;

(g) consistency of the proposed solution with the District’s planning documents and announced
strategic program direction;

(h) quality and effectiveness of business solution and approach;

(1) industry and program experience;

(j) prior record of vendor performance;

(k) vendor expertise with engagement of similar scope and complexity;

(1) extent and quality of the proposed participation and acceptance by all user groups;

(m) proven development methodologies and tools; and

(n) innovative use of current technologies and quality results.

(6) Clarification of Responsive Bid. The procurement officer may ask a responsive bidder to clarify an

ambiguity in its bid; however, no material modification of the bid is allowed.

[Model Comment: Cross reference Regulation 2080.]

(7) Selection and Ranking. Bids shall be evaluated by using only the criteria and weightings stated in the
invitation for best value bids. All evaluation factors, other than price, will be considered independent of and
prior to determining the effect of price on the score for each participating bidder. Once the evaluation is
complete, all responsive bidders must be ranked from most advantageous to least advantageous to the
District, considering only the evaluation factors stated in the invitation for best value bids.

(8) Award. Award must be made to the responsive and responsible bidder whose bid is determined, in
writing, to be most advantageous to the District, taking into consideration all evaluation factors set forth in
the best value bid. The contract file shall contain the basis on which the award is made and must be
sufficient to satisfy external audit.

SECTION 1529. Competitive online bidding. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1529)

(1) Conditions for Use. When the District determines in writing that on-line bidding is more advantageous
than competitive sealed bidding, a contract may be entered into by competitive on-line bidding, subject to
the provisions of Section 1520 and the regulations, unless otherwise provided in this section.

(2) Public Notice. Adequate public notice of the request for the solicitation must be given in the same
manner as provided in Section 1520(3).

(3) Bidding Process. The solicitation must designate both an Opening Date and Time and a Closing Date
and Time. The Closing Date and Time need not be a fixed point in time, but may remain dependent on a
variable specified in the solicitation. At the Opening Date and Time, the District must begin accepting
real-time electronic bids. The solicitation must remain open until the Closing Date and Time. Before the
Opening Date and Time, the District shall require bidders to register, shall register only responsible bidders,
and, as a part of that registration, require bidders to agree to any terms, conditions, or other requirements
of the solicitation. If less than two bidders are registered, the solicitation must be canceled. Following
receipt of the first bid after the Opening Date and Time, the lowest bid price must be posted electronically
to the Internet and updated on a real-time basis. At any time before the Closing Date and Time, a bidder
may lower the price of its bid, except that after Opening Date and Time, a bidder may not lower its price
unless that price is below the then lowest bid. Bid prices may not be increased after Opening Date and
Time. Except for bid prices, bids may be modified only as otherwise allowed by this code. A bid may be
withdrawn only in compliance with Section 1520. If a bid is withdrawn, a later bid submitted by the same
bidder may not be for a higher price. If the lowest responsive bid is withdrawn after the Closing Date and
Time, the District may cancel the solicitation in accordance with this code or reopen electronic bidding to
all pre-existing bidders by giving notice to all pre-existing bidders of both the new Opening Date and Time

27



and the new Closing Date and Time. Notice that electronic bidding will be reopened must be given as
specified in the solicitation.

(4) Receipt and Safeguarding of Bids. Other than price, any information provided to the District by a
bidder must be safeguarded as required by Section 1520(4).

(5) Provisions Not to Apply. Section 1524 (Resident Vendor Preference) and paragraph (5) (Bid
Opening) of Section 1520 (Competitive Sealed Bidding) do not apply to solicitations issued pursuant to this
section.

SECTION 1530. Competitive sealed proposals. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1530)

(1) Conditions for Use.

(a) If a District determines in writing that the use of competitive sealed bidding is either not practicable
or not advantageous to the District, a contract may be entered into by competitive sealed proposals subject
to the provisions of Section 1520 and the regulations, unless otherwise provided in this section.

(b) The regulations may provide that it is either not practicable or not advantageous to the District to
procure specified types of supplies, services, information technology, or construction by competitive sealed
bidding.

(2) Public Notice. Adequate public notice of the request for proposals must be given in the same manner
as provided in Section 1520(3).

(3) Receipt of Proposals. Proposals must be opened publicly in accordance with regulations. A tabulation
of proposals must be prepared in accordance with regulations promulgated by the board and must be open
for public inspection after contract award.

(4) Request for Qualifications.

(a) Before soliciting proposals, the procurement officer may issue a request for qualifications from
prospective offerors. The request must contain at a minimum a description of the scope of the work to be
solicited by the request for proposals and must state the deadline for submission of information and how
prospective offerors may apply for consideration. The request must require information only on their
qualifications, experience, and ability to perform the requirements of the contract.

(b) After receipt of the responses to the request for qualifications from prospective offerors, rank of
the prospective offerors must be determined in writing from most qualified to least qualified on the basis
of the information provided. Proposals then must be solicited from at least the top two prospective offerors
by means of a request for proposals. The determination regarding how many proposals to solicit is not
subject to review pursuant to Article 17.

(5) Evaluation Factors. The request for proposals must state the relative importance of the factors to be
considered in evaluating proposals but may not require a numerical weighting for each factor. Price may,
but need not, be an evaluation factor.

(6) Discussion with Offerors. As provided in the request for proposals, and under regulations, discussions
may be conducted with offerors who submit proposals determined to be reasonably susceptible of being
selected for award for the purpose of clarification to assure full understanding of, and responsiveness to,
the solicitation requirements. Offerors must be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any
opportunity for discussions. In conducting discussions, there must be no disclosure of confidential
information derived from proposals submitted by competing offerors. The board shall promulgate
regulations governing discussions.

[Model Comment: (1) Cross reference Regulation 2095(1). (2) Communications pursuant to this subsection (6) must
be conducted in accordance with the guidance appearing in the District's internal operating procedures. See attached.]

[Alternative Text: The Division of Procurement Services will not provide an affirmative written opinion
for a school's code that contains [1] subsection (6) above and [2] R. 20951 unless it includes the following
document, which is incorporated by reference into the District's internal operating procedures: Competitive
Sealed Proposals, Required Procedures and Guidance for Communications After Opening but Prior to

28



Award (eff. Sept. 2021), found at https://procurement.sc.gov. In the alternative, a District may elect to mark
both 1530(6) and R. 21951 as "[reserved]". {Also see note to R. 2095(J)(b).} ]

(7) Selection and Ranking. Proposals must be evaluated using only the criteria stated in the request for
proposals and there must be adherence to weightings that have been assigned previously. Once evaluation
is complete, all responsive offerors must be ranked from most advantageous to least advantageous to the
District, considering only the evaluation factors stated in the request for proposals.

(8) Negotiations. After proposals have been ranked pursuant to Section 1530(7), the procurement officer,
in his sole discretion and not subject to review under Article 17, may proceed in any of the manners
indicated below, except that in no case may confidential information derived from proposals and
negotiations submitted by competing offerors be disclosed:

(a) negotiate with the highest ranking offeror on price, on matters affecting the scope of the contract,
so long as the changes are within the general scope of the request for proposals, or on both. If a satisfactory
contract cannot be negotiated with the highest ranking offeror, negotiations may be conducted, in the sole
discretion of the procurement officer, with the second, and then the third, and so on, ranked offerors to the
level of ranking determined by the procurement officer in his sole discretion;

(b) during the negotiation process as outlined in item (a) above, if the procurement officer is
unsuccessful in his first round of negotiations, he may reopen negotiations with any offeror with whom he
previously negotiated; or

(c) before or after negotiations pursuant to Section 1530(8), the procurement officer may make changes
to the request for proposals within the general scope of the request for proposals and may provide all
responsive offerors an opportunity to submit their best and final offers, which must be reevaluated and
ranked pursuant to Section 1530(7).

(9) Award. Award must be made to the responsible offeror whose proposal is determined in writing to
be the most advantageous to the District, taking into consideration the evaluation factors set forth in the
request for proposals, unless the procurement officer determines to utilize one of the options provided in
Section 1530(8). The award of the contract must be made on the basis of evaluation factors that must be
stated in the RFP. The contract file must contain the basis on which the award is made and must be sufficient
to satisfy external audit. Procedures and requirements for the notification of intent to award the contract
must be the same as those provided in Section 1520(10).

[Model Comment: Division of Procurement Services's three chief procurement officers have jointly issued guidance to
assist procurement officers in conducting negotiations and in requesting best-and-final offers. Issued as Competitive
Sealed Proposals, Required Procedures and Guidance for Communications After Opening but Prior to Award (eff.
Sept. 2021), found at https://procurement.sc.gov]

SECTION 1540. Negotiations after unsuccessful competitive sealed bidding. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1540)

When bids received pursuant to an invitation for bids under Section 1520 are considered unreasonable by
the District, or are not independently reached in open competition, or the low bid exceeds available funds
as certified by the appropriate fiscal officer, and it is determined in writing by the chief business official,
that time or other circumstances will not permit the delay required to resolicit competitive sealed bids, a
contract may be negotiated pursuant to this section, provided that:

(1) each responsible bidder who submitted a bid under the original solicitation is notified of the
determination and is given reasonable opportunity to negotiate;

(2) the negotiated price is lower than the lowest rejected bid by any responsible and responsive bidder
under the original solicitation;

(3) the negotiated price is the lowest negotiated price offered by any responsible and responsive offeror.

[Model Comment: Contrast with negotiations under 3020(d).]

29


https://procurement.sc.gov/

SECTION 1550. Small purchase procedures; when competitive bidding required. (S.C. Code § 11-35-
1550)

(1) Authority. The following small purchase procedures may be utilized only in conducting procurements
that are up to the amounts specified herein. Procurement requirements must not be artificially divided by
governmental bodies so as to constitute a small purchase pursuant to this section.

(2) Competition and Price Reasonableness.

(a) No Competition. Small purchases not exceeding ten thousand dollars may be accomplished without
securing competitive quotations if the prices are considered reasonable. The purchasing office must
annotate the purchase requisition: "Price is fair and reasonable" and sign. The purchases must be distributed
equitably among qualified suppliers. When practical, a quotation must be solicited from other than the
previous supplier before placing a repeat order. The administrative cost of verifying the reasonableness of
the price of purchase "not in excess of"' may more than offset potential savings in detecting instances of
overpricing. Action to verify the reasonableness of the price need be taken only when the procurement
officer of the governmental body suspects that the price may not be reasonable, comparison to previous
price paid, or personal knowledge of the item involved.

[Model Comment: The 2021 Code increases this limit from $2,500 to 310,000]

(b) Three Written Quotes. Written request for written quotes from a minimum of three qualified
sources of supply may be made and, unless adequate public notice is provided in the South Carolina
Business Opportunities, documentation of at least three bona fide, responsive, and responsible quotes must
be attached to the purchase requisition for a small purchase not in excess of twenty-five thousand dollars,
or for a small purchase of commercially available off-the-shelf products not in excess of one hundred
thousand dollars, or for a small purchase of construction not in excess of one hundred thousand dollars. The
award must be made to the lowest responsive and responsible sources. The request for quotes must include
a purchase description. Requests must be distributed equitably among qualified supplies unless advertised
as provided above.

[Model Comment: (1) The 2021 Code increases the limit from $10,000 to 325,000 and requires that non-advertised
purchases not exceeding $25,000 (or $100,000 for COTS or construction) must have three documented bona-fide
written, responsive, and responsible quotes, see R.2141 (Commercial products)]

(¢) Advertised Small Purchase. Written solicitation of written quotes, bids, or proposals may be made
for a small purchase, other than a small purchase of construction, not in excess of one hundred thousand
dollars. The procurement must be advertised at least once in the South Carolina Business Opportunities
publication. A copy of the written solicitation and written quotes must be attached to the purchase
requisition. The award must be made to the lowest responsive and responsible source or, when a request
for proposal process is used, the highest ranking offeror.

[Model Comment: The 2021 Code increases this advertisement limit from 350,000 to $100,000]
[Districts are advised that, except for some procurements for COTS or construction, the Consolidated
Procurement Code requires advertisement in South Carolina Business Opportunities for all procurements
valued above $25,000 Nevertheless, if requested, Division of Procurement Services will approve the
following language in lieu of the second sentence above:

"The procurement must be advertised at least once in a newspaper of general circulation in the District."

If the District uses the alternative language, the newspaper to be used must be specified in R. 2040.]

30



(3) Advertising Threshold. Except for procurements of either commercially available off-the-shelf
products or construction, if conducted pursuant to item (2)(b), all competitive procurements above
twenty-five thousand dollars must be advertised at least once in the South Carolina Business Opportunities
publication. The District may charge vendors the cost incurred for copying and mailing bid or proposal
documents requested in response to a procurement.

[Alternative Text: Districts are advised that, except for some procurements for COTS or construction, the
Consolidated Procurement Code requires advertisement in South Carolina Business Opportunities for all
procurements valued above $25,000. Nevertheless, if requested, Division of Procurement Services will
approve the following language in lieu of the first sentence above:

"All competitive procurements above twenty-five thousand dollars must be advertised at least once in a
newspaper of general circulation in the District.”

If the District uses the alternative language, the newspaper to be used must be specified in R. 2040.]

[Model Comment: (1) See R.2100 (small purchases), R.2141 (commercial products); (2) Small purchase limits greater
than those currently provided in Section 11-35-1550 will not be considered substantially similar. See Charleston
County School District v. Leatherman, 368 S.E.2d 76 (S.C. Ct. App. 1988).]

SECTION 1560. Sole source procurement; public notice. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1560)

(A) A contract may be awarded for a supply, service, information technology, or construction item
without competition if, under regulations, the Superintendent, or a designee above the level of the
procurement officer, determines in writing that there is only one source for the required supply, service,
information technology, or construction item. Except for contracts with a total potential value of fifty
thousand dollars or less, adequate public notice of the intent to award without competition must be posted
in South Carolina Business Opportunities, except that public notice is not required if the Superintendent,
after consultation with the Board, determines in writing that award without such notice is in the interest of
the District. Notice must contain a statement of the right to protest under Section 4210(1) and must be
posted at least five business days before entering a contract. For contracts with a total potential value greater
than two hundred fifty thousand dollars, such notice must be posted at least ten business days before
entering a contract.

[Model Comment: The 2021 Code requires that, unless exempted in writing by the Superintendent after consultation
with the Board, sole-source procurements greater than $50,000 require five business days of public notice before
entering a contract. For how this relates to protest deadlines, see new Section 4210(1)(c).]

(B) Written documentation must include the determination and basis for the proposed sole source
procurement. A delegation of authority by the Superintendent with respect to sole source determinations
must be submitted in writing to the chief procurement officer. In cases of reasonable doubt, competition
must be solicited. Any decision by a District that a procurement be restricted to one potential vendor must
be accompanied by a thorough, detailed explanation as to why no other will be suitable or acceptable to
meet the need.

SECTION 1570. Emergency procurements; public notice. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1570)
(A) Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, the Superintendent or a designee may award or
authorize others to award emergency contracts only when there exists an immediate threat to public health,

welfare, critical economy and efficiency, or safety under emergency conditions as defined in regulations;
and provided, that such emergency procurements shall be made with as much competition as is practicable

31



under the circumstances. A written determination of the basis for the emergency and for the selection of
the particular contractor shall be included in the contract file.

(B) When a contract entered pursuant to subsection (A) has a total or potential value in excess of fifty
thousand dollars, notice of the award must be posted in South Carolina Business Opportunities (SCBO) as
soon as practicable thereafter. The posted notice must contain a statement of the right to protest under
Section 4210(1).

[Model Comment: The 2021 Code requires that notice of emergency procurements greater than 350,000 must be posted
in SCBO as soon as practicable thereafter. For how this relates to protest deadlines, see new Section 4210(1)(c).]

SECTION 1575. Participation in auction or sale of supplies from bankruptcy. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1575)

A District having knowledge of either an auction or a sale of supplies from a bankruptcy may elect to
participate. The District shall (a) survey the needed items being offered to ascertain their condition and
usefulness, (b) determine a fair market value for new like items through informal quotes, (c) determine the
fair market value from similar items considering age and useful life, and (d) estimated repair cost and
delivery cost, if any, of the desired items. Using this information, the District shall determine the maximum
price that it can pay for each item desired. At the auction or sale, the District shall not exceed the maximum
price so determined.

SECTION 1710. Cancellation of invitation for bids or request for proposals. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1710)

Any solicitation under this code may be cancelled, or any or all bids or proposals may be rejected in whole
or part as may be specified in the solicitation, when it is in the best interest of the District. The reasons for
rejection, supported with documentation sufficient to satisfy external audit, shall be made a part of the
contract file.

[Model Comment: Consider this provision in conjunction with Section 1520(7) and Regulations 2065 and 2095.]
SECTION 1810. Responsibility of bidders and offerors. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1810)

(1) Determination of Responsibility. Responsibility of the bidder or offeror shall be ascertained for each
contract let by the District based upon full disclosure to the procurement officer concerning capacity to
meet the terms of the contracts and based upon past record of performance for similar contracts. The
regulations establish standards of responsibility that shall be enforced in all District contracts.

(2) Determination of Nonresponsibility. A written determination of nonresponsibility of a bidder or
offeror shall be made in accordance with regulations. The unreasonable failure of a bidder or offeror to
supply information promptly in connection with an inquiry with respect to responsibility may be grounds
for a determination of nonresponsibility with respect to such bidder or offeror.

(3) Right of Nondisclosure. Except as otherwise provided by law, information furnished by a bidder or
offeror pursuant to this section shall not be disclosed outside of the offices of the District without prior
written consent by the bidder or offeror.

(4) Public procurement units, as defined in Section 11-35-4610 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, may
provide information to one another relating to the responsibility or prior performance of a bidder or offeror
or provide any other information about a bidder or offeror that is otherwise related to procurement. Any
person affiliated with a public procurement unit in an official capacity, who provides such information in
good faith, is immune from civil and criminal liability which might otherwise result by reason of his actions.
In all such civil or criminal proceedings, good faith is a rebuttable presumption.

SECTION 1820. Prequalification of supplies and suppliers. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1820)

32



The regulations may provide for prequalification of suppliers or supplies.
SECTION 1830. Cost or pricing data. (S.C. Code § 11-35-1830)

(1) Contractor Certification. A contractor shall, except as provided in subsection (3) of this section,
submit cost or pricing data and shall certify that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, the cost or pricing
data submitted is accurate, complete, and current as of mutually determined specified date prior to the date
of:

(a) the pricing of any contract awarded by competitive sealed proposals pursuant to Section 1530 or
pursuant to the sole source procurement authority as provided in Section 1560 where the total contract price
exceeds an amount established by regulations; or

(b) the pricing of any change order or contract modification which exceeds an amount established by
regulations.

(2) Price Adjustment. Any contract, change order or contract modification under which a certificate is
required shall contain a provision that the price to the District, including profit or fee, shall be adjusted to
exclude any significant sums by which the District finds that such price was increased because the
contractor furnished cost or pricing data was inaccurate, incomplete, or not current as of the date agreed
upon between parties.

(3) Cost or Pricing Data Not Required. The requirements of this section shall not apply to contracts:

(a) where the contract price is based on adequate price competition;

(b) where the contract price is based on established catalog prices or market prices;

(c) where contract prices are set by law or regulations; or

(d) where it is determined in writing in accordance with regulations that the requirements of this section
may be waived and the reasons for such waiver are stated in writing.

[Model Comment: Consider this provision in conjunction with Regulation 2120.]
SECTION 2010. Types of contracts. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2010)

Subject to the limitations of this section, any type of contract that will promote the best interests of the
District may be used, except that the use of a cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost contract must be approved by
the Superintendent. A cost-reimbursement contract, including a cost-plus-a-percentage-of-cost contract,
may be used only when a determination sufficient for external audit is prepared showing that the contract
is likely to be less costly to the District than any other type or that it is impracticable to obtain the supplies,
services, information technology, or construction required except under that contract.

SECTION 2015. Effect of contract or amendment. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2015)

A contract or amendment thereto, including, but not limited to, a change order or contract modification, is
not effective against the District unless the contract or amendment is in writing and signed by an officer
having actual authority to bind the District.

SECTION 2020. Approval of accounting system. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2020)

The chief procurement officer may require that:

(1) the proposed contractor’s accounting system shall permit timely development of all necessary cost
data in the form required by the specific contract type contemplated;

(2) the proposed contractor’s accounting system is adequate to allocate costs in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

33



SECTION 2030. Multiterm contracts. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2030)

(1) Specified Period. Unless otherwise provided by law, a contract for supplies, services, or information
technology must not be entered into for any a period of more than one year unless approved in a manner
prescribed by regulation. The term of the contract and conditions of renewal or extension must be included
in the solicitation and funds must be available for the first fiscal period at the time of contracting. Payment
and performance obligations for succeeding fiscal periods must be subject to the availability and
appropriation of funds for them.

(2) Determination Prior to Use. Before the utilization of a multiterm contract, it must be determined in
writing by the District that:

(a) estimated requirements cover the period of the contract and are reasonably firm and continuing;
and

(b) such a contract serves the interest of the District by encouraging effective competition or otherwise
promoting economies in District procurement.

(3) Cancellation Due to Unavailability of Funds in Succeeding Fiscal Periods. When funds are not
appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a subsequent fiscal
period, the contract must be canceled.

(4) Maximum Duration. The maximum potential duration for a contract is five years. A maximum
potential duration of up to seven years may be approved by the Superintendent.

(5) Approval. Every type of contract with a maximum potential duration exceeding seven years must be
approved by the board. For competitive procurements, approval of the maximum potential duration must
be granted before solicitation.

SECTION 2040. Inapplicable laws. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2040)

The following laws are inapplicable to contracts solely for the procurement of commercially available
off-the-shelf products pursuant to Section 1550:

(1) Chapter 14, Title 8, Unauthorized Aliens and Public Employment;

(2) Section 11-9-105, Contracts for Legal or Consultant Services;

(3) Section 11-35-5300, Prohibition of Contracting with Discriminatory Business;

(4) Chapter 57, Title 11, Iran Divestment Act;

(5) Chapter 107, Title 44, Drug-Free Workplace Act; and

(6) any other provision of law identified by regulations that sets forth policies, procedures, or
requirements that impact the procurement of commercially available off-the-shelf products by the District,
except for a provision of law that: (i) provides for criminal or civil penalties; (ii) appears in Article 17 of
this code; or (iii) specifically refers to this section and provides that, notwithstanding this section, it is
applicable to contracts for the procurement of commercially available off-the-shelf products.

SECTION 2050. Void contract terms or conditions. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2050)

Any term or condition in any contract entered into by the District that requires the District to defend,
indemnify, or hold harmless another person, must be void ab initio, unless such term is expressly authorized
by law. All contracts must be governed by South Carolina law. Without limiting the applicability of Section
4230, the exclusive venue for any dispute arising out of or related to any contract is in South Carolina. Any
contract containing any terms or conditions inconsistent with any of the foregoing are otherwise enforceable
as if it did not contain such term or condition.

[Model Comment: (1) This section is new for the 2021 Code and mirrors S.C. Code Ann. § 11-35-2050; (2) See R.2143.
(3) For the enforceability of a District’s Code, see D.W. Flowe & Sons, Inc. v. Christopher Const. Co., 327 S.C. 17,
482 S.E.2d 558 (1997), overruled on other grounds by Evins v. Richland County Historic Preservation Comm’n, 34/
S.C. 15, 532 S.E.2d 876 (2000)]

34



SECTION 2060. Material changes prohibited. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2060)

A change order or a contract modification may not alter a contract in a manner or degree inconsistent with
the underlying purposes and policies of this code or the regulations.

[Model Comment: Cross reference Regulation 2143.]
SECTION 2210. Right to inspect plant. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2210)

The chief procurement officer or his designee is authorized, at reasonable times, to inspect the part of the
plant or place of business of a contractor or subcontractor which is related to the performance of a contract
awarded or to be awarded by the District.

SECTION 2220. Right to audit records. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2220)

(1) Audit of Cost or Pricing Data. All District contracts shall contain a clause setting forth the District’s
right at reasonable times and places to audit the books and records of any contractor or subcontractor who
has submitted cost or pricing data pursuant to Section 1830 to the extent that such books and records relate
to such cost or pricing data. The contract shall further set forth that the contractor or subcontractor who
receives a contract, change order, or contract modification for which cost or pricing data is required, shall
maintain such books and records that relate to such cost or pricing data for three years from the date of final
payment under the contract, unless a shorter period is otherwise authorized in writing by the chief
procurement officer; provided, however, that such records shall be retained for additional periods of time
beyond this three-year period upon request of the chief procurement officer.

(2) Contract Audit. The District shall be entitled to audit the books and records of a contractor or any
subcontractor under any negotiated contract or subcontract other than a firm fixed price contract to the
extent that such books and records relate to the performance of such contract or subcontract. Such books
and records shall be maintained by the contractor for a period of three years from the date of final payment
under the prime contract and by the subcontractor for a period of three years from the date of final payment
under the subcontract, unless a shorter period is otherwise authorized in writing by the chief procurement
officer.

SECTION 2410. Finality of determinations. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2410)

(A) The determinations required by the following sections and related regulations are final and
conclusive, unless clearly erroneous, arbitrary, capricious, or contrary to law: Section 1520(7) (Competitive
Sealed Bidding: Correction or Withdrawal of Bids; Cancellation of Awards), Section 1520(11)
(Competitive Sealed Bidding: Request for Qualifications), Section 1525(1) (Competitive Fixed Price
Bidding: Conditions for Use), Section 1528(1) (Competitive Best Value Bidding: Conditions for Use),
Section 1528(8) (Competitive Best Value Bidding: Award), Section 1529(1) (Competitive Online Bidding:
Conditions for Use), Section 1530(1) (Competitive Sealed Proposals, Conditions for Use), Section 1530(4)
(Competitive Sealed Proposals: Request for Qualifications), Section 1530(7) (Competitive Sealed
Proposals, Selection and Ranking of Prospective Offerors), Section 1530(9) (Competitive Sealed Proposals
Award), Section 1540 (Negotiations After Unsuccessful Competitive Sealed Bidding), Section 1560 (Sole
Source Procurement), Section 1570 (Emergency Procurement), Section 1710 (Cancellation of Invitation
for Bids or Requests for Proposals), Section 1810 (Responsibility of Bidders and Offerors), Section 1830(3)
(Cost or Pricing Data, Cost or Pricing Data Not Required), Section 2010 (Types and Forms of Contracts),
Section 2020 (Approval of Accounting System), Section 2030(2) (Multiterm Contracts, Determination
Prior to Use), Section 3010(1) (Choice of Project Delivery Method), Section 3020(d) (Construction
Procurement Procedures: Negotiations After Unsuccessful Competitive Sealed Bidding), Section 3023
(Prequalification on District Construction), Section 3220(5) (Procurement Procedure, Selection and

35



Ranking of the Three Most Qualified), Section 4210(7) (Stay of Procurement During Protests, Decision to
Proceed), and Section 4810 (Cooperative Use of Supplies, Services, or Information Technology).

(B) The chief business official shall review samples of the determinations periodically, and issue reports
and recommendations on the appropriateness of the determinations made.

SECTION 2420. Reporting of anticompetitive practices; privileged communications. (S.C. Code § 11-35-
2420)

(A) When any information or allegations concerning anticompetitive practices among any bidders or
offerors, come to the attention of any employee of the District, immediate notice of the relevant facts shall
be transmitted to the Office of the Attorney General.

(B) Communications to the Office of the Attorney General and any testimony relating to the matters
described in Section 2420(A) are privileged and may not be disclosed without prior approval of the Office
of the Attorney General. A person required or permitted to report pursuant to Section 2420(A) or who
participates in an investigation or judicial proceedings resulting from the report, acting in good faith, is
immune from civil and criminal liability which might otherwise result by reason of these actions. In all such
civil or criminal proceedings, good faith is a rebuttable presumption.

SECTION 2430. Retention of procurement records. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2430)

All procurement records shall be retained and disposed of in accordance with records retention guidelines
and schedules approved by the Department of Archives and History after consultation with the Attorney
General. All retained documents shall be made available to the Attorney General or a designee upon request
and proper receipt therefor.

[Model Comment: Cross reference should be made to Regulations promulgated by the South Carolina Department of
Archives and History, e.g., Regulations 12-902.15, .17 - .21, .25, & .27, which appear in Volume 23 of the South
Carolina Code of Laws.]

SECTION 2440. Records of procurement actions. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2440)

(1)(a) Contents of Records. The chief procurement officer shall submit semi-annually a record listing all
contracts made pursuant to Section 1560 (Sole Source Procurement) or Section 1570 (Emergency
Procurements) to the Superintendent. The record must contain:

(i) each contractor’s name;
(i1) the amount and type of each contract;
(iii) a listing of supplies, services, information technology, or construction procured under each
contract.
(b) The chief procurement officer shall maintain these records for five years.

(2) Publication of Records. A copy of the record must be submitted to the board on an annual basis and

must be available for public inspection.

[Model Comment: Regulation 2015 contains an additional reporting requirement.)

ARTICLE 7.
SPECIFICATIONS

SECTION 2610. Definitions of terms used in this article. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2610)

36



As used in this article, the term “specifications” means any technical or purchase description or other
description of the physical or functional characteristics, or of the nature of a supply, service, or construction
item. It may also include a description of any requirement for inspecting, testing, or preparing a supply,
service, or construction item for delivery.

[Model Comment: Read this section in conjunction with Regulation 2140.]
SECTION 2710. Issuance of specifications; duties of the Board. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2710)

The regulations may govern the preparation, maintenance, and content of specifications for supplies,
services, information technology, and construction required by the District.

[Model Comment: Read this section in conjunction with Regulation 2140.]
SECTION 2730. Assuring competition. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2730)

All specifications shall be drafted so as to assure cost effective procurement of the District’s actual needs
and shall not be unduly restrictive.

[Model Comment: Read this section in conjunction with Regulation 2140.]
SECTION 2740. Relationship with using agencies. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2740)

Specifications shall be drawn in such a manner as to ensure maximally cost effective procurement,
consistent with regulations.

[Model Comment: Read this section in conjunction with Regulation 2140.]
SECTION 2750. Specifications prepared by architects and engineers. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2750)

The requirements of this article regarding the nonrestrictiveness of specifications apply to each solicitation
and include, among other things, all specifications prepared by architects, engineers, designers, draftsmen,
and land surveyors for District contracts.

ARTICLE 9.

CONSTRUCTION, ARCHITECT-ENGINEER, CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, AND LAND
SURVEYING SERVICES

[Model Comment: Article 9 of the Model School Code parallels Article 9 of the Consolidated Procurement Code, which
is adapted in large part from Article 5 of the ABA's 2000 Model Procurement Code for State and Local Governments
(hereinafter "MPC"). The General Assembly adopted many of construction related provisions of the ABA's Model Code
when it enacted 2008 Act 174. In doing so, the General Assembly stated that "the relevant official comments to the
[ABA] model code, and the construction given to the [ABA] model code, should be examined as persuasive authority
for interpreting and construing the new code provisions created by this act.” Accordingly, a number of the following
Model Comments include quotes from the ABA's Official Comments.]

SECTION 2910. Definitions of terms used in this article. (S.C. Code § 11-35-2910)

(1) “Architect-engineer and land surveying services” are those professional services associated with the
practice of architecture, professional engineering, land surveying, landscape architecture, and interior
design pertaining to construction, as defined by the laws of this State, as well as incidental services that
members of these professions and those in their employ may logically or justifiably perform, including

37



studies, investigations, surveys, evaluations, consultations, planning, programming conceptual designs,
plans and specifications, cost estimates, inspections, shop drawing reviews, sample recommendations,
preparation of operating and maintenance manuals, and other related services.

(2) “Construction manager agent” means a business that has been awarded a separate contract with the
District to provide construction management services but not construction.

(3) “Construction manager at-risk” means a business that has been awarded a separate contract with the
District to provide both construction management services and construction using the construction
management at-risk project delivery method. A contract with a construction manager at-risk may be
executed before completion of design.

(4) “Construction management services” are those professional services associated with contract
administration, project management, and other specified services provided in connection with the
administration of a project delivery method defined in Section 3005 (Project Delivery Methods
Authorized).

(5) “Construction management at-risk” means a project delivery method in which the District awards
separate contracts, one for architectural and engineering services to design an infrastructure facility and the
second to a construction manager at-risk for both construction of the infrastructure facility according to the
design and construction management services.

(6) “Design-bid-build” means a project delivery method in which the District sequentially awards
separate contracts, the first for architectural and engineering services to design an infrastructure facility and
the second for construction of the infrastructure facility according to the design.

(7) “Design-build” means a project delivery method in which the District enters into a single contract for
design and construction of an infrastructure facility.

(8) “Design-build-finance-operate-maintain” means a project delivery method in which the District
enters into a single contract for design, construction, finance, maintenance, and operation of an
infrastructure facility over a contractually defined period. Money appropriated by the District is not used
to pay for a part of the services provided by the contractor during the contract period.

(9) “Design-build-operate-maintain” means a project delivery method in which the District enters into a
single contract for design, construction, maintenance, and operation of an infrastructure facility over a
contractually defined period. All or a portion of the money required to pay for the services provided by the
contractor during the contract period are either appropriated by the District before the award of the contract
or secured by the District through fare, toll, or user charges.

(10) “Design requirements” means the written description of the infrastructure facility to be procured
pursuant to this article, including:

(a) required features, functions, characteristics, qualities, and properties that are required by the
District;

(b) the anticipated schedule, including start, duration, and completion; and

(c) estimated budgets as applicable to the specific procurement, for design, construction, operation,
and maintenance. The design requirements may, but need not, include drawings and other documents
illustrating the scale and relationship of the features, functions, and characteristics of the project.

[Model Comment: (1) Read in conjunction with Regulation 2145K(2). (2) The following official comments to the Model
Procurement Code provide insight into the role of design requirements. MPC '5-101, cmt.2. ("Government prepares a
functional description that sets forth only the essential features of each project, including anticipated schedule, and
estimated budget for design, construction, operation, and maintenance. . . . If the design requirements go beyond
functional description into particular design, construction, finance, or operational requirements, the scope and the
intensity of this competition is compromised, to the detriment of both government and offerors. For example, "design-
build" competitions in which major design decisions are already set forth in the design requirements -- known in the
industry as "detail-build" -- are not likely to produce innovation in the integration of design and construction. "Detail-
build" procurements split the professional design function between government and the contractor, an allocation that
leads to confusion and disputes over liability for design, for construction results, and for performance problems. The
Code encourages government: (1) to prepare design requirements for each project before a procurement method is
selected; and (2) to procure the design function from a single entity."); MPC, opening commentary ("The starting gate
for these competitions is the statement of "design requirements" in the RFP, which establishes a common minimum

38



threshold of owner requirements in these competitions. The finish gate is the submission of "proposal development
documents" by offerors in response to the RFP.").]

(11) “Independent peer reviewer services” are additional architectural and engineering services that a
District shall acquire in design-build, design-build-operate-maintain, or
design-build-finance-operate-maintain procurements. The function of the independent peer reviewer is to
confirm that the key elements of the professional engineering and architectural design provided by the
contractor are in conformance with the applicable standard of care. If a District elects not to contract with
the independent peer reviewer proposed by the successful offeror, the independent peer reviewer must be
selected through competitive sealed proposals.

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Section 3024(3)(b) and Regulation 2145(A)(7). (2) The following official
comments to the Model Procurement Code provide insight into the role of an independent peer reviewer: MPC ' 5-
204(3), cmt. ("The Independent Peer Reviewer provides an independent professional peer review of key elements of
the design of major public facilities. The Independent Peer Reviewer's function is not to conduct a second design
alongside the designers of record. The Independent Peer Reviewer's purpose is to provide the government with
independent professional advice and assurance that key design elements of the project are consistent with the functional
description in the Request for Proposals and with the common law standard of professional care. The Independent
Peer Reviewer's contractual relationship and professional obligation is to the [State]. By requiring that the offeror
recommend an appropriate Independent Peer Reviewer (upon which the offeror is evaluated), the professional quality
of the Independent Peer Reviewer is assured to be high."); MPC '5-101(7), cmt. 2 ("(3) The independent peer
reviewer function is applied to these types of procurements because these project delivery methods typically include
contract periods for operations and maintenance of between 15 and 25 years. In design-build operate maintain and
design build finance operate maintain procurements, a high portion of the contract price is devoted to operation,
maintenance, and (in the case of design build finance operate maintain) to financing concerns. The government has
heightened, but practical, interests: (a) to ensure that initial design is consistent with the applicable standard of care;
(b) to preserve the government's investment in the project during the contract period; and (c) to provide increased
flexibility in the event a termination for convenience or for default is in the government's interest. An independent,
contemporaneous, peer review by a highly qualified professional designer will help to ensure that the contractor's
design comports with good engineering and architectural practice at the time the services are rendered.").]

(12) “Infrastructure facility” means a building; structure; or networks of buildings, structures, pipes,
controls, and equipment, or portion thereof, that provide transportation, utilities, public education, or public
safety services. Included are government office buildings; public schools; courthouses; jails; prisons;
water treatment plants, distribution systems, and pumping stations; wastewater treatment plants, collection
systems, and pumping stations; solid waste disposal plants, incinerators, landfills, and related facilities;
public roads and streets; highways; public parking facilities; public transportation systems, terminals, and
rolling stock; rail, air, and water port structures, terminals, and equipment.

(13) “Operations and maintenance” means a project delivery method in which the District enters into a
single contract for the routine operation, routine repair, and routine maintenance of an infrastructure facility.

(14) “Proposal development documents” means drawings and other design-related documents that are
sufficient to fix and describe the size and character of an infrastructure facility as to architectural, structural,
mechanical and electrical systems, materials, and such other elements as may be appropriate to the
applicable project delivery method.

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Regulation 2145(K)(3).]
SECTION 3005. Project delivery methods authorized. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3005)

(1) The following project delivery methods are authorized for procurements relating to infrastructure
facilities:
(a) design-bid-build,
(b) construction management at-risk;
(c) operations and maintenance;
(d) design-build;

39



(e) design-build-operate-maintain; and
(f) design-build-finance-operate-maintain.

(2) In addition to those methods identified in item (1), the regulations may:

(a) approve as an alternate project delivery method any combination of design, construction, finance,
and services for operations and maintenance of an infrastructure facility; and

(b) allow or require the District to follow any of the additional procedures established by Section
11-35-3024.

(3) Participation in a report or study that is later used in the preparation of design requirements for a
project does not disqualify a firm from participating as a member of a proposing team in a construction
management at-risk, design-build, design-build-operate-maintain, or
design-build-finance-operate-maintain procurement unless the participation provides the business with a
substantial competitive advantage.

SECTION 3010. Choice of project delivery method. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3010)

The project delivery method used for a District construction project must be that method which is most
advantageous to the District and results in the most timely, economical, and successful completion of the
construction project. The District shall select, in accordance with regulations, the appropriate project
delivery method for a particular project and shall state in writing the facts and considerations leading to the
selection of that particular method.

SECTION 3015. Source selection methods assigned to project delivery methods. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3015)

(1) Scope. This section specifies the source selection methods applicable to procurements for the project
delivery methods identified in Section 3005 (Project delivery methods authorized), except as provided in
Sections 1550 (Small Purchases), 1560 (Sole Source Procurement), 1570 (Emergency Procurements), 3230
(Exception for small architect-engineer, and land surveying services contract), 3310 (Indefinite quantity
contracts for architectural-engineering, and land surveying services), and 3320 (Indefinite quantity
contracts for construction).

(2) Design-bid-build:

(a) Design. Architect-engineer, construction management, and land surveying services. The
qualifications based selection process in Section 3220 (Qualifications Based Selection Procedures) must be
used to procure architect-engineer, construction management, and land surveying services, unless those
services are acquired in conjunction with construction using one of the project delivery methods provided
in Section 3015 (3), (5), (6), (7), and (8).

(b) Construction. Competitive sealed bidding, as provided in Section 1520 (Competitive Sealed
Bidding), must be used to procure construction in design-bid-build procurements.

(3) Construction Management at-risk. Contracts for construction management at-risk must be procured
as provided in either Section 1520 (Competitive Sealed Bidding) or Section 1530 (Competitive Sealed
Proposals).

(4) Operations and Maintenance. Contracts for operations and maintenance must be procured as set forth
in Section 1510 (Methods of Source Selection).

(5) Design-build. Contracts for design-build must be procured by competitive sealed proposals, as
provided in Section 1530 (Competitive Sealed Proposals), except that the regulations may describe the
circumstances under which a particular design-build procurement does not require the submission of
proposal development documents as required in Section 3024(2)(b).

[Model Comment: Despite this authority, the regulations do not allow design-build solicitations that do not require
submission of proposal development documents. Stated differently, a design-build procurement cannot be evaluated on
qualifications alone.]

40



(6) Design-build-operate-maintain. Contracts for design-build-operate-maintain must be procured by
competitive sealed proposals, as provided in Section 1530 (Competitive Sealed Proposals).

(7) Design-build-finance-operate-maintain. Contracts for design-build-finance-operate-maintain must
be procured by competitive sealed proposals, as provided in Section 1530 (Competitive Sealed Proposals).

(8) Other. Contracts for an alternate project delivery method approved pursuant to Section 3005(2) must
be procured by a source selection method provided in Section 1510, as specified by the authority approving
the alternative project delivery method.

SECTION 3020. Additional bidding procedures for construction procurement. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3020)

Exceptions in Competitive Sealed Bidding Procedures. The process of competitive sealed bidding as
required by Section 3015(2)(b) must be performed in accordance with the procedures outlined in Article 5
of this code subject to the following exceptions:

(a) Invitation for Bids. The District is responsible for developing a formal invitation for bids for each
construction project. The invitation must include, but not be limited to, all contractual terms and conditions
applicable to the procurement. A copy of each invitation for bids must be advertised formally in South
Carolina Business Opportunities.

(b) Bid Acceptance. Instead of Section 1520(6), the following provision applies. Bids must be accepted
unconditionally without alteration or correction, except as otherwise authorized in this code. The District's
invitation for bids must set forth all requirements of the bid including, but not limited to:

(i) The District, in consultation with the architect-engineer assigned to the project, shall identify by
license classification or subclassification in the invitation for bids all subcontractors who are expected to
perform work for the prime contractor to or about the construction when those subcontractors' contracts are
each expected to exceed three percent of the prime contractor's total base bid. In addition, the District, in
consultation with the architect-engineer assigned to the project, may identify by license classification or
subclassification in the invitation for bids a subcontractor who is expected to perform work which is vital
to the project. The determination of which subcontractors are included in the list provided in the invitation
for bids is not protestable pursuant to Section 4210 or another provision of this code. A bidder in response
to an invitation for bids shall clearly identify in his bid only those subcontractors to perform the work as
identified in the invitation for bids. If the bidder determines to use his own employees to perform a portion
of the work for which he would otherwise be required to list a subcontractor and if the bidder is qualified
to perform that work under the terms of the invitation for bids, the bidder shall list himself in the appropriate
place in his bid and not subcontract that work except with the approval of the District for good cause shown.

(i1) Failure to complete the list provided in the invitation for bids renders the bidder's bid unresponsive.

(iii) The District shall send all responsive bidders a copy of the bid tabulation within ten working days
following the bid opening.

(c) Instead of Section 1520(10), the following provisions apply:

(1) Unless there is a compelling reason to reject bids as prescribed by regulation, notice of an intended
award of a contract to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder whose bid meets the requirements set
forth in the invitation for bids must be given by posting the notice at a location that is specified in the
invitation for bids. The invitation for bids and the posted notice must contain a statement of the bidder's
right to protest pursuant to Section 4210(1) and the date and location of posting must be announced at bid
opening. In addition to posting notice, the District promptly shall send all responsive bidders a copy of the
notice of intended award and of the bid tabulation. The mailed notice must indicate the posting date and
must contain a statement of the bidder's right to protest pursuant to Section 4210(1).

(i1) After five business days' notice is given, the District may enter into a contract with the bidder
named in the notice in accordance with the provisions of this code and of the bid solicited. The procurement
officer must comply with Section 1810.

(iii) If, at bid opening, only one bid is received and determined to be responsive and responsible and
within the District's construction budget, award may be made without the five-day waiting period.

41



(d) Negotiations after Unsuccessful Competitive Sealed Bidding. Instead of Section 1540, the following
provisions apply:

(i) If bids received pursuant to an invitation for bids exceed available funds, and it is determined in
writing by the District that circumstances do not permit the delay required to resolicit competitive sealed
bids, and the base bid, less deductive alternates, does not exceed available funds by an amount greater than
ten percent of the construction budget established for that portion of the work, a contract may be negotiated
pursuant to this section with the lowest responsible and responsive bidder. The District may change the
scope of the work to reduce the price to be within the established construction budget but may not reduce
the price below the established construction budget more than ten percent without a written request by the
chief business official based on the interest of the District.

SECTION 3021. Subcontractor substitution. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3021)

(1) After notice of an award or intended award has been given, whichever is earlier, the prospective
contractor identified in the notice may not substitute a business as subcontractor in place of a subcontractor
listed in the prospective contractor’s bid or proposal, except for one or more of the following reasons:

(a) upon a showing satisfactory to the District by the prospective contractor that:

(1) the listed subcontractor is not financially responsible;

(i) the listed subcontractor’s scope of work did not include a portion of the work required in the
plans and specifications, and the exclusion is not clearly set forth in the subcontractor’s original bid;

(iii) the listed subcontractor was listed as a result of an inadvertent clerical error, but only if that
request is made within four working days of opening;

(iv) the listed subcontractor failed or refused to submit a performance and payment bond when
requested by the prospective contractor after the subcontractor had represented to the prospective contractor
that the subcontractor could obtain a performance and payment bond; and

(v) the listed subcontractor must be licensed and did not have the license at the time required by
law;

(b) if the listed subcontractor fails or refuses to perform his subcontract;

(c) if the work of the listed subcontractor is found by the District to be substantially unsatisfactory;
(d) upon mutual agreement of the contractor and subcontractor; and

(e) with the consent of the District for good cause shown.

(2) The request for substitution must be made to the District in writing. This written request does not
give rise to a private right of action against the prospective contractor in the absence of actual malice.

(3) If substitution is allowed, the prospective contractor, before obtaining prices from another
subcontractor, must attempt in good faith to negotiate a subcontract with at least one subcontractor whose
bid was received before the submission of the prospective contractor’s offer. This section does not affect
a contractor’s ability to request withdrawal of a bid in accordance with the provisions of this code and the
regulations.

(4) This section applies to a procurement conducted using the source selection methods authorized by
Section 3015(2)(b), (3), (5), (6), (7), and (8).

SECTION 3023. Prequalification on District construction. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3023)

In accordance with this section, the applicable section of Article 5, and procedures published by the State
Engineer, a District may limit participation in a solicitation for construction to only those businesses,
including potential subcontractors, that are prequalified. The prequalification process may be used only
with the approval of the Superintendent.

If businesses are prequalified, the District must issue a request for qualifications. Adequate public notice

of the request for qualifications must be given in the manner provided in Section 1520(3). The request must
contain, at a minimum, a description of the general scope of work to be acquired, the deadline for

42



submission of information, and how businesses may apply for consideration. The evaluation criteria must
include, but not be limited to, prior performance, recent past references on all aspects of performance,
financial stability, and experience on similar construction projects. Using only the criteria stated in the
request for qualifications, businesses must be ranked from most qualified to least qualified. The basis for
the ranking must be determined in writing. If fewer than two businesses are prequalified, the
prequalification process must be canceled.

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Section 3024(2)(c)(i), Regulation 2132, and Regulation 2145. Pre-
qualification must be conducted in accordance with the guidance appearing in the District's internal operating
procedures. See attached. Note: The Superintendent grants any approval required by reference to "OSE" or the "State
Engineer".]

[Drafting Note: In order to acquire an affirmative written opinion for a school's code, the following
document must be incorporated by reference into the District's internal operating procedures: Chapter 3.5
of the Office of State Engineer’s 2020 Manual for Planning and Execution of State Permanent
Improvements.

SECTION 3024. Additional procedures applicable to procurement of certain project delivery methods.
(S.C. Code § 11-35-3024)

(1) Applicability. In addition to the requirements of Section 1530 (Competitive Sealed Proposals), the
procedures in this section apply as provided in items (2), (3), and (4) below.

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Regulation 2145(K)(1).]

(2) Content of Request for Proposals. A Request for Proposals for design-build,
design-build-operate-maintain, or design-build-finance-operate-maintain:
(a) must include design requirements;

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Section 2910(10).]
(b) must solicit proposal development documents; and
[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Section 2910(14).]

(c) may, if the District determines that the cost of preparing proposals is high in view of the size,
estimated price, and complexity of the procurement:

(1) prequalify offerors in accordance with Section 3023 by issuing a request for qualifications in
advance of the request for proposals;

(ii) select, pursuant to procedures designated in the State of South Carolina's Manual for Planning
and Execution of State Permanent Improvements, a short list of responsible offerors who submit proposals
determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for award before discussions and evaluations
pursuant to Section 1530, if the number of proposals to be short-listed is stated in the Request for Proposals
and prompt public notice is given to all offerors as to which proposals have been short-listed; or

[Model Comment: According to Section 3023(A) above, the determination regarding how many offers to prequalify is
not subject to protest. No aspect of the short list process is insulated from protest. Given the option of prequalification
under paragraph (i) above, Division of Procurement Services anticipates little if any need for the type of short listing
authorized by this paragraph. Accordingly, the Model retains the reference to state level guidance on this process.]

(iii) pay stipends to unsuccessful offerors, if the amount of the stipends and the terms under which
stipends are paid are stated in the Request for Proposals.
(3) Evaluation Factors. A Request for Proposals for design-build, design-build-operate-maintain, or
design-build-finance-operate-maintain must:

43



(a) state the relative importance of (i) demonstrated compliance with the design requirements, (ii)
offeror qualifications, (iii) financial capacity, (iv) project schedule, (v) price, or life-cycle price for
design-build-operate-maintain and design-build-finance-operate-maintain procurements, and (vi) other
factors, if any; and

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Regulation 2145K(4).]

(b) require each offeror to identify an Independent Peer Reviewer whose competence and
qualifications to provide that service must be an additional evaluation factor in the award of the contract.

[Model Comment: Read in conjunction with Section 2910(111) and Regulation 2145(4)(7).]
SECTION 3030. Bond and security. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3030)

(1) Bid Security.

(a) Requirement for Bid Security. Bid security is required for all competitive sealed bidding for
construction contracts in a design-bid-build procurement in excess of one hundred thousand dollars and
other contracts as may be prescribed by the District's internal procurement procedures (Section 540). Bid
security is a bond provided by a surety company meeting the criteria established by the regulations or
otherwise supplied in a form that may be established by regulation.

(b) Amount of Bid Security. Bid security must be in an amount equal to at least five percent of the
amount of the bid at a minimum.

(c) Rejection of Bids for Noncompliance with Bid Security Requirements. When the invitation for
bids requires security, noncompliance requires that the bid be rejected except that a bidder who fails to
provide bid security in the proper amount or a bid bond with the proper rating must be given one working
day from bid opening to cure the deficiencies. If the bidder is unable to cure these deficiencies within one
working day of bid opening, his bid must be rejected.

(d) Withdrawal of Bids. After the bids are opened, they must be irrevocable for the period specified
in the invitation for bids. Ifa bidder is permitted to withdraw its bid in accordance with regulations, action
must not be had against the bidder or the bid security.

(2) Contract Performance Payment Bonds.

(a) When Required-Amounts. Contracts for construction must require the following bonds or security:

(i) a performance bond satisfactory to the District, executed by a surety company meeting the criteria
established by the regulations, or otherwise secured in a manner satisfactory to the District, in an amount
equal to one hundred percent of the portion of the contract price that does not include the cost of operation,
maintenance, and finance;

(ii) a payment bond satisfactory to the District, executed by a surety company meeting the criteria
established by the regulations, or otherwise secured in a manner satisfactory to the District, for the
protection of all persons supplying labor and material to the contractor or its subcontractors for the
performance of the construction work provided for in the contract. The bond must be in an amount equal
to one hundred percent of the portion of the contract price that does not include the cost of operation,
maintenance, and finance;

[Model Comment: (1) The District's internal procurement procedures (§ 540) may wish to address the impact on the
District of the Subcontractors' and Suppliers' Payment Protection Act, appearing in Title 29, Chapter 6, Article 3 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws. (2) The Office of State Engineer includes in the OSE Manual a guide entitled: Bid,
Payment, and Performance Bonds, What they are, How they work, and a Checklist of what you need (December 2009).]

(iii) in the case of a construction contract valued at fifty thousand dollars or less, the District may
waive the requirements of subitems (i) and (ii) above, if the District has protected itself;

(iv) in the case of a construction manager at-risk contract, the solicitation may provide that bonds
or security are not required during the project's preconstruction or design phase, if construction does not

44



commence until the requirements of subitems (i) and (ii) above have been satisfied. Additionally, the
solicitation may provide that bonds or security as described in subitems (i) and (ii) above may be furnished
for one or more designated portions of the project, in an amount equal to one hundred percent of the value
of the construction of each designated portion, and also may prescribe the time of delivery of the bonds or
security. In no event may construction of any portion of the work commence until the appropriate bonds or
security have been delivered to the District;

v) in the case of a design-build, design-build-operate-maintain, or
design-build-finance-operate-maintain contract, the solicitation may provide that bonds or security as
described in subitems (i) and (ii) above may be furnished for one or more designated portions of the project,
in an amount equal to one hundred percent of the value of the design and construction of each designated
portion, and also may prescribe the time of delivery of the bonds or security. In no event may design or
construction of any portion of the work commence until the appropriate bonds or security have been
delivered to the District.

(b) Authority to Require Additional Bonds. Item (2) does not limit the authority of the District to
require a performance bond or other security in addition to these bonds, or in circumstances other than
specified in subitem (a) of that item in accordance with regulations.

(c) Suits on Payment Bonds-Right to Institute, Where and When Brought. Section 11-35-3030(2)(c)-
(d) of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, provides for legal actions on payment bonds.

[Model Comment: Districts may wish to consider the following legal authorities: (1) D.W. Flowe & Sons, Inc. v.
Christopher Constr. Co., 326 S.C. 17, 482 S.E.2d 558 (1997) overruled on other grounds by Evins v. Richland County
Historic Preservation Comm 'n, 341 S.C. 15, 532 S.E.2d 876 (2000), and (2) S.C. Code Ann. § 11-1-120]

(3) Bonds Forms and Copies.

(a) Bonds Forms. The regulations specify the form of the bonds required by this section.

(b) Certified Copies of Bonds. A person may request and obtain from the District a certified copy of a
bond upon payment of the cost of reproduction of the bond and postage, if any. A certified copy of a bond
is prima facie evidence of the contents, execution, and delivery of the original.

(4) Retention.

(a) Maximum amount to be withheld. In a contract or subcontract for construction which provides for
progress payments in installments based upon an estimated percentage of completion, with a percentage of
the contract's proceeds to be retained by the District or general contractor pending completion of the
contract or subcontract, the retained amount of each progress payment or installment must be no more than
three and one-half percent.

(b) Release of Retained Funds. When the work to be performed on a District construction project or
pursuant to a District construction contract is to be performed by multiple prime contractors or by a prime
contractor and multiple subcontractors, the work contracted to be done by each individual contractor or
subcontractor is considered a separate division of the contract for the purpose of retention. As each division
of the contract is certified as having been completed, that portion of the retained funds which is allocable
to the completed division of the contract must be released forthwith to the prime contractor, who, within
ten days of its receipt, shall release to the subcontractor responsible for the completed work the full amount
of retention previously withheld from him by the prime contractor.

(5) Bonds for Bid Security and Contract Performance. The requirement of a bond for bid security on a
construction contract, pursuant to subsection (1), and a construction contract performance bond, pursuant
to subsection (2), may not include a requirement that the surety bond be furnished by a particular surety
company or through a particular agent or broker.

SECTION 3035. Errors and omissions insurance. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3035)

45



Regulations shall specify when a District shall require offerors to provide appropriate errors and omissions
insurance to cover architectural and engineering services under the project delivery methods set forth in
Section 3005(1)(a), (d), (e), and (f).

SECTION 3037. Other forms of security. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3037)

The District may require one or more of the following forms of security to assure the timely, faithful, and
uninterrupted provision of operations and maintenance services procured separately or as one element of
another project delivery method:

(a) operations period surety bonds that secure the performance of the contractor’s operations and
maintenance obligations;

(b) letters of credit in an amount appropriate to cover the cost to the District of preventing infrastructure
service interruptions for a period up to twelve months; and

(c) appropriate written guarantees from the contractor, or depending upon the circumstances, from a
parent corporation, to secure the recovery of reprocurement costs to the District if the contractor defaults in
performance.

SECTION 3040. Contract clauses and their administration. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3040)

(1) Contract Clauses. District construction contracts and subcontracts may include clauses providing for
adjustments in prices, time of performance, and other appropriate contract provisions including, but not
limited to:

(a) the unilateral right of a District to order in writing:

(1) all changes in the work within the general scope of the contract; and
(i1) all changes in the time of performance of the contract which do not alter the general scope of
the contract work;

(b) variations occurring between estimated quantities of work in the contract and actual quantities;

(c) suspension of work ordered by the District;

(d) site conditions differing from those indicated in the contract or ordinarily encountered.

(2) Price Adjustments.

(a) Adjustments in price pursuant to clauses promulgated by regulation must be computed and
documented with a written determination. The price adjustment agreed upon must approximate the actual
cost to the contractor and all costs incurred by the contractor must be justifiably compared with prevailing
industry standards, including reasonable profit. Costs must be properly itemized and supported by
substantiating data sufficient to permit evaluation before commencement of the pertinent performance or
as soon after that as practicable, and must be arrived at through whichever one of the following ways is the
most valid approximation of the actual cost to the contractor:

(i) by unit prices specified in the contract or subsequently agreed upon;

(i) by the costs attributable to the events or situations under those clauses with adjustment of profits
or fee, all as specified in the contract or subsequently agreed upon;

(ii1) by agreement on a fixed price adjustment;

(iv) in another manner as the contracting parties may mutually agree; or

(v) in the absence of agreement by the parties, through unilateral determination by the District of
the costs attributable to the events or situations under those clauses, with adjustment of profit or fee, all as
computed by the District in accordance with applicable sections of the regulations and subject to the
provisions of Article 17 of this code.

(b) A contractor is required to submit cost or pricing data if an adjustment in contract price is subject
to the provisions of Section 1830.

(3) Additional Contract Clauses. The construction contracts and subcontracts may include clauses
providing for appropriate remedies that cover as a minimum:

(a) specified excuses for delay or nonperformance;

46



(b) termination of the contract for default;
(c) termination of the contract in whole or in part for the convenience of the District.

(4) Modification of Required Clauses. The chief procurement officer may vary the clauses promulgated
by regulation for inclusion in a particular construction contract if the variations are supported by a written
determination that states the circumstances justifying the variations, if notice of a material variation is stated
in the invitation for bids.

SECTION 3050. Cost principles regulations for construction contractors. (S.C. Code § 11-35-3050)

The regulations may set forth cost principles which shall be used to determine t